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Rockhampton

Regional uuncil

PERFORMANCE & SERVICE
COMMITTEE MEETING

AGENDA

25 NOVEMBER 2014

Your attendance is required at a meeting of the Performance & Service
Committee to be held in the Council Chambers, 232 Bolsover Street,
Rockhampton on 25 November 2014 commencing at 9.00am for transaction of
the enclosed business.

O S

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
20 November 2014
Next Meeting Date: 24.02.15



Please note:

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012, please be advised that all discussion held
during the meeting is recorded for the purpose of verifying the minutes. This will include any discussion
involving a Councillor, staff member or a member of the public.
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1
2

OPENING
PRESENT

Members Present:

The Mayor, Councillor M F Strelow (Chairperson)
Councillor C E Smith

Councillor C R Rutherford

Councillor G A Belz

Councillor S J Schwarten

Councillor A P Williams

Councillor R A Swadling

Councillor N K Fisher

In Attendance:
Mr E Pardon — Chief Executive Officer

APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE
CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Minutes of the Performance & Service Committee held 21 October 2014

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS ON
AGENDA

THE
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6 BUSINESS OUTSTANDING

6.1 BUSINESS OUTSTANDING TABLE FOR PERFORMANCE AND SERVICE

COMMITTEE
File No: 10097
Attachments: 1. Business Outstanding Table for Performance
and Service Committee
Responsible Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
SUMMARY

The Business Outstanding table is used as a tool to monitor outstanding items resolved at
previous Council or Committee Meetings. The current Business Outstanding table for the
Performance and Service Committee is presented for Councillors’ information.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Business Outstanding Table for the Performance and Service Committee be
received.
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BUSINESS OUTSTANDING TABLE FOR
PERFORMANCE AND SERVICE
COMMITTEE

Business Outstanding Table for
Performance and Service Committee

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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Date Report Title Resolution Responsible Due Date Notes
Officer
25 March 2014 Fire Management Plan for Mt | THAT Council approve that |Michael Rowe |[01/04/2014 |Fire Management risk analysis
Archer resources be deployed towards completed July 2014. Firescape
the development of a Fire Science engaged for Regional Fire
Management Plan for Mt Archer Management Plan. Stakeholder
and its surrounds and that the . '
plan be presented to the table consultation held
in July 2014. 18.09.2014.Linkages to Mt. Archer
sub-plan being developed along with
MOU for sub-plan operations.
29 July 2014 Renewable Energy Solutions | THAT a report on renewable |Sharon 05/08/2014 |Facilities to establish extent of action
energy solutions that may be |Sommerville required and will follow up

able to be implemented across
Council facilities be brought
back to the table.

accordingly.
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7 PUBLIC FORUMS/DEPUTATIONS

Nil
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8 OFFICERS' REPORTS

8.1 DELEGATION OF COUNCIL POWERS TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

File No: 4107
Attachments: 1. Extract from Financial Delegations Policy
2. Instrument of Delegation - Local Government
Act 2009
Authorising Officer: Tracy Sweeney - Manager Workforce and Strategy
Ross Cheesman - General Manager Corporate Services
Author: Kerrie Barrett - Coordinator Corporate Improvement &
Strategy
SUMMARY

This report seeks Council’'s approval in accordance with section 257 of the Local
Government Act 2009 to delegate to the Chief Executive Officer the power to enter into
contracts, and all powers under the Local Government Act 2009.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION
THAT:

1. Council resolves under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, to delegate to
the Chief Executive Officer, the power to enter into contracts on behalf of Council, of a
value up to the level of financial limits specified in Council’s Financial Delegations Policy
for the position of Chief Executive Officer;

2. Council resolves under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, to delegate all of
the powers under the Local Government Act 2009 as contained within Schedule 1 of the
attached Instrument of Delegation, subject to the limitations contained within Schedule
2

3. All prior resolutions delegating the powers that are listed to the Chief Executive Officer
under the Local Government Act 2009 be repealed.

COMMENTARY

A recent review of Council’s internal delegations register and other related documents
highlighted a number of inconsistencies in comparison to the instrument of delegation for the
Local Government Act 2009 (the Act) provided by Council’s legal advisor, MacDonnells Law
(ML). As such, research was undertaken to compare against other Councils and legal
advice was sought from ML to ascertain the potential risk that such inconsistencies may
pose to Council and the recommended course of action.

The main issues identified and subsequent recommendations by ML were:

1. Whilst Council has an approved Financial Delegations Policy, there is no

evidence of delegations put in to place to support that Policy. It is necessary to
have a separate and specific delegation in place which authorises the entering into of
contracts on behalf of Council and that links to Council’s Financial Delegations Policy by
limiting the contract value to their financial delegation. If Council wishes to delegate the
power for the CEO (and other officers) to expend funds on behalf of Council, which
technically constitutes entering into a contract on behalf of Council, a suite of
delegations (and sub-delegations) should be prepared.
As part of their day-to-day responsibilities, employees are likely to enter into contracts
on behalf of Council ranging from the purchase of stationery to earthmoving equipment.
The execution of contracts on behalf of Council, whether by way of invoices or formal
deeds, is the exercise of a power to enter into a contract.
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2. The CEO’s current instrument of delegation for the Act excludes a number of
identified powers including the identified power in s236 which is the power to
sign documents on behalf of the local government. This section of the Act provides
the power to physically sign (“put pen to paper”) ‘documents’ and therefore, in the
opinion of ML, it is considered prudent that all identified powers within the Act including
s236 be delegated by Council to CEO.

There is no case law which assists in interpreting what was the intention of Parliament
when it refers to ‘documents’. The ML interpretation of the term 'document’ in section
236(1) is to contracts, agreements or written documents intended to give legal
effect. General correspondence and emails are administrative in nature and unless
they are intended to give legal effect, the CEO does not need a specific delegated
power or authority to sign them. The CEO can sign correspondence on behalf of
Council by virtue of the roles and responsibilities assumed upon appointment to his
position.

Delegation s236 to CEO would allay any risk to Council ensuring there is a “catch all”
power to sign documents and cover every contingency.

In the absence of the aforementioned powers being delegated to CEO and sub-delegated as
CEO deems appropriate, there is a potential risk to Council should an officer's power to
enter into a contract or sign a ‘document’ be tested in court.

Following receipt of the advice from ML, research was undertaken with a number of other
Queensland Councils to ascertain if their delegations to CEO for the Act were consistent with
the recent advice received from ML. It was interesting to note that of all of the five Councils
contacted, all were consistent.

PREVIOUS DECISIONS

The vast majority of the sections listed within Schedule 1 of the attached Instrument of
Delegation have previously been delegated and reviewed by Council, with the exclusion of
the sections detailed in table below:

Section of LGA | Description

80A(1) Power to establish a mall in its local government area.

Power to provide a ferry service across a watercourse if the land that

80B(1) forms both banks of the watercourse is in its local government area.

Power to lease the right to provide a ferry service across a watercourse

80B(3) that it has the exclusive right to provide a ferry service across.

196(4) Power to appoint a senior executive employee

236(1) The power to sign a document on behalf of a local government

268A The power to decide the way in which a local government will conduct a

voluntary poll of electors in its area in accordance with that subsection.

LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

Section 257 of the Act Local Government Act 2009 allows Council to delegate its powers to
one or more individuals or standing committees, including to the CEO. Section 257(4) Local
Government Act 2009 states that delegations to the CEO must be reviewed annually by
Council. This annual review ensures that the delegation remains consistent with the local
government’s policy direction and intent.

Under section 259 Local Government Act 2009 the Chief Executive Officer may sub-
delegate some or all of his delegated powers as appropriate.
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LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The recommendations contained within this report have been guided by ML. ML have

advised that these actions be undertaken as soon as possible to allay any potential risk to
Council.

As is always the case with delegations, other important legal principles which apply to the
delegations set out in this report are:

e Council at all times will retain the power to revoke the delegation. Accordingly, Council
retains ultimate control.

e Council, as delegator, has responsibility to ensure that the relevant power is properly
exercised. Council will therefore continue to supervise and oversee the exercise of its
powers.

¢ A delegation of power by Council may be subject to any lawful conditions which Council
wishes to impose. The imposition of conditions enables Council to impose checks and
balances on its delegations. However, the delegated power cannot be unduly fettered.

e The delegate must exercise a delegated power fairly and impartially, without being
influenced by or being subject to the discretion of other individuals.

CONCLUSION

The information contained within the report and the subsequent recommendation has been
guided by Council’s legal advisers, MacDonnells Law.

In line with the advice received from MacDonnells Law, it is recommended that Council

resolve to delegate the exercise of powers as recommended to allay any potential risk to
Council.
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DELEGATION OF COUNCIL POWERS
TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Extract from
Financial Delegations Policy

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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5.2.1 Level of Financial Delegation - CEO

Council has delegated financial responsibility for the administration and application of
Council’s budget to the CEO as follows:

5.2.1.1 Formally approve any operating expenditure within budget, with the following

limitation:

Where a natural disaster and/or extraordinary emergent event has been
declared in the local government area, the CEO can exercise the delegation
to formally approve expenditure necessary which does not cause a variation
of greater than 5% from budget.

5.2.1.2 Formally approve any capital expenditure within budget, with the following

limitation:

Where a natural disaster and/or extraordinary emergent event has been
declared in the local government area, the CEO can exercise the delegation
to formally approve expenditure necessary which does not cause a variation
of greater than 5% from budget.

The following table details the financial delegation bands for Council positions.

Financial Delegation Band Table

Delegation Level Maximum Financial Expenditure Outside of Budget
Delegation
Band 1 As per Clause 5.2.1 e As per emergency provisions s173
Chief Executive Officer of this policy. of the Local Government Regulation
2012. (NB: Requires a resolution of
Council.)

e Acting as an agent - the required
payment resulting from a written
agreement with any external party.

Band 2 $1,000,000 Nil

Limited to General

Managers

Band 3 $500,000 Nil

Limited to Specialist

management positions

Band 4 $150,000 Nil

Generally applicable to

3" Line management

Band 5 $100,000 Nil

Generally applicable to

4" Line Coordinators

Band 6 $50,000 Nil

Generally applicable to

Project Managers and

Engineers

Band 7 Up to $25,000 Nil

Generally applicable to Delegation is to the

Supervisors, Team position as

Leaders and Leading determined by the

hands. CEO. Delegations will
be dependent on the
position’s duties and
responsibilities.

NB: The above mentioned financial delegations are GST Exclusive.
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DELEGATION OF COUNCIL POWERS
TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Instrument of Delegation -
Local Government Act 2009

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 2
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__//-\\/

Rockhampion

Regional *"Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Local Government Act 2009

Under Section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL
COUNCIL, resolves to delegate the exercise of the powers contained in Schedule 1 to the

Chief Executive Officer.
These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.
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Local Government Act 2009 ("LGA")

CHAPTER 3 - THE BUSINESS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Part 1 - Local Laws
Division 2 - Making, Recording and Reviewing Local Laws
Entity Power . .
given to Section of LGA Description
Power to decide local government process for
ovl_ecr)gzrir:ent 29(1) making a local law to the extent that the process
9 is not inconsistent with this part.

Division 4 - Action by the Minister About Particular Local Laws

Entity Power
given to

Section of LGA

Description

CEO

38B(9)

Power to ask the police commissioner to give the
chief executive officer information about noise
abatement directions given to persons in the local
government area.

Part 3 - Roads and Other Infrastructure
Division 1- Roads
SIS [Pt Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 61(1) Power to give the owner of land the local
government government wants to acquire, a notice of intention
to acquire land.
Local 62(7) In the specified circumstances, power to give the
government claimant written notice of council's decision on the
claim.
Local 65(1) Power to decide not to proceed with the
government realignment of a road or part of a road after giving
a notice of intention to acquire land.
Local 65(3) Power to serve notice of its decision on all owners
government of land who were served with the notice of
intention to acquire land.
Local 67(2) In the specified circumstances, power to decide
government whether any of the rights specified in this
subsection are appropriate.
Local 69(1) Power to close a road.
government
Local 69(2)(c) Power to decide whether to close a road in the
government circumstances specified.
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Entity Power

: Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 69(3) Power to publish notice of the closing of a road
government and power to consider what is an appropriate way
to publish the notice.
Local 69(5) If a road is closed to traffic for a temporary
government purpose, power to permit the use of any part of the
road on the conditions considered appropriate.
Local 70(3) In the specified circumstances, power to:
government (@ make an agreement with the owner or
employee or occupier of the land; or
contractor P '
(b)  give the owner or occupier of the land at
least 3 days written notice.
Local 70(4) In the specified circumstances, power to give the
government owner or occupier of the land oral notice of the
matters mentioned in subsection (3)(b).
CEO 70(6)(b) Power to allow a later time for receipt of a claim for
compensation.
Local 70(7)(a) Power to make an agreement with a person for the
government amount of compensation.
Local 71(2) Power to give the owner or occupier advice about
government the permanent level of the road.
Local 71(4)(a) Power to make an agreement with the owner of
government occupier, or their successor in title, for the amount
of compensation.
Local 72(1)(b) Power to consider that the conduct of the activity is
government having, or will have, a significant adverse impact
on a road in the local government area.
Local 72(2) Power to require the entity which is conducting an
government activity to provide information, within a reasonable
time, that will enable the local government to
assess the impact of the activity on the road.
Local 72(3) After assessing the impact of the activity on the
government road, power to do 1 or more of the following:
(&) give the entity a direction about the use of
the road to lessen the impact;
(b)  require the entity:
(i to carry out works to lessen the
impact; or
(i) to pay an amount as compensation
for the impact.
Local 72(4) Power to require the works be carried out or the
government amount be paid before the impact commences or

intensifies.
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Entl_ty Ol Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 74(4) Power to authorise an employee of the local
government government to sign a certificate relating to the
matters in this section.
[Note: this requires a separate authorisation of
an employee to be given.]
Local 75(2) For the specified reasons, power to give written
government approval.
Local 75(4) Power to decide the conditions of an approval
government under subsection (2).

Division 2- Stormwater drains

SIS [PertEs Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 77(1) Power to, by written notice, require the owner of a
government property to connect a stormwater installation for
the property to the local government's stormwater
drain in the way, under the conditions and within
the time stated in the notice.
Local 77(3) Power to give approval for the connection to a
government local government stormwater drain.
Local 77(4) Power to impose conditions on approval for the
government connection, including about the way the
connection must be made.
Local 78(4) Under the specified circumstances, power to, by
government written notice, require the owner of the property to
perform the work stated in the notice, within the
time stated in the notice.
Local 78(5) For a notice provided in subsection (4), power to
government decide a time that is reasonable.
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Division 3- Other matters
Entity Power . o
given to Section of LGA Description
Local 80A(1) Power to establish a mall in its local government
government area.
Local 80B(1) Power to provide a ferry service across a
government watercourse if the land that forms both banks of
the watercourse is in its local government area.
Local 80B(3) Power to lease the right to provide a ferry service
government across a watercourse that it has the exclusive

right to provide a ferry service across.

CHAPTER 4 - FINANCES AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Part

Part

Part

1- Rates and Charges
Entl_ty P Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 95(3)(a) Power to sign a request to register a charge over
government the land on behalf of the local government.
CEO 95(3)(b) Power to sign a certificate that states there is a
charge of the land for overdue rates and charges.
CEO 95(5)(b) Power to sign a certificate that states the overdue
rates and charges have been paid.
3- Financial Sustainability and Accountability
SIS [Pt Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 107(3) Power to enter into a contract of insurance on
government behalf of the local government.
4 - Councillor's Financial Accountability
Entity Power . .
given to Section of LGA Description
Local 110(2) In the specified circumstances, power to give the
government public notice of the disbursement in a newspaper

circulating generally in the local government area.
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CHAPTER 5 - MONITORING AND ENFORCING THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTS

Part 2 - The Public
Division 1 - Power of authorised persons
SIS [PEtEy Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 133(3) Power to give, or make a reasonable attempt to
government give, the occupier of the property a written notice
that informs the occupier of the following:
(&) theintention to enter the property;
(b)  the reason for entering the property;
(c) an estimation of when the property will be
entered.
Local 134(5) Power to give the public notice of the approval of
government an inspection program.
Local 137(2)(a) Power to agree on an amount of compensation
government for a person who has incurred damage or loss
because of the exercise or purported exercise of
a power under this division.

Division 2 - Power of other persons

Entity Power

; Section of LGA Description
given to

Local 140(1)(a) Power to give a remedial notice to the owner of a
government property.

Local 142(6) In the specified circumstances, power to give the
government person who failed to take the action, written notice

of the amount of the debt.

Local 147(3)(a) Power to agree on an amount of compensation for

government a person who has incurred damage or loss

because of the exercise or purported exercise of a
power under this division.

CHAPTER 6 - ADMINISTRATION

Part 2 -

Councillors

Division 3 - Vacancies in councillor's office

Entity Power
given to

Section of LGA

Description

CEO

166(6)

In the specified circumstances, power to request
the political party to advise the full name and
address of its nominee.
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Division 5 - Obligations of councillors

Entity Power

given to Section of LGA Description
CEO 170A(3) Power to make guidelines about the way in which
a councillor is to ask a local government
employee for advice to help the councillor to
make a decision.
Division 6- Conduct and performance of councillors
SIS Pl Section of LGA Description
given to
Entity dealing 176A(2) The power to decide not to take any further action
with the in relation to a complaint about the conduct of a
complaint person who is no longer a councillor in the
under this prescribed circumstances.
division
Entity that 176A(3) The power to give to an entity that made the
makes a complaint, and the accused person, a written
decision under notice that states:
subsection (2) (@)  No further action will be taken in relation to
the complaint; and
(b)  The reasons for the decision.
CEO 176B(3)(b) In certain circumstances, power to conduct a
preliminary assessment of the complaint.
Complaints 176C(2) The power to decide that no further action need
assessor (the be taken in relation to a complaint if the
CEO) circumstances of that subsection is satisfied
Complaints 176C(3) The power to refer a complaint to the
assessor Department's Chief Executive or to the Mayor in
the circumstances prescribed in that subsection.
Complaints 176C(4) The power to refer a complaint to the
assessor Department's Chief Executive; or the regional
conduct review panel or the Tribunal in the
circumstances of that subsection.
Complaints 176C(7) The power, after acting under subsection (2)-(6)
assessor to give the entity that made the complaint and the
accused councillor a written notice in accordance
with the subsection.
CEO 181A(1) The power to keep a record of written complaints

received under this Part and in accordance with
this Section.

Page (18)

25 NOVEMBER 2014




PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA

Part 5 -

Local Government Employees

Division 2 — Other local government employees

Entity Power
given to

Section of LGA

Description

CEO (as part of
a panel)

196(4)

Power to appoint a senior executive employee.

Part 5 -

Local Government Employees

Division 3 - Common provisions

Entity Power

: Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 198(2) Power to make an agreement with other local
government governments that an employee may be employed

by more than one local government.

Part 6 -

Authorised Persons
SIS Py Section of LGA Description
given to

CEO 202(1) Power to appoint a qualified person to be an
authorised person.

CEO 202(5) Power to give a written notice stating the
conditions of an authorised person's appointment.

CEO 204(1) Power to give each authorised person an identity

card.

Part 2 -

CHAPTER 7 - OTHER PROVISIONS

Superannuation

Entity Power
given to

Section of LGA

Description

Employer and
employee

220B(2)

Power to agree in writing:

(@) toreduce the pre-agreement contributions
to the amount equal to the employee's
concessional contributions cap for the
financial year; and

(b) if a yearly contribution made under section
220A(4) is part of the pre-agreement
contributions — on the extent, if any, to
which a contribution mentioned in
$220B(1)(a) or (b) will be reduced to
achieve the reduction.
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Entity Power

: Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 220C The power, as an employer to agree in writing with
government an accumulation benefit member that the member
is exempt from paying all or a stated part of the
contribution.
Local 226(1) Power to establish and amend a superannuation
government scheme for councillors or take partin a
superannuation scheme for councillors.
Local 226(4) For the specified reasons, power to enter into an
government arrangement with a councillor of the local

government.

Part 4 -

Legal Provisions
SIS [PertEs Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 236(1) The power to sign a document on behalf of a local
government government.
CEO 240(1) Power to:
(a) give instructions and act as the authorised
agent for the local government; and
(b)  sign all documents for the local
government.
Local 240(1) Power to authorise in writing another employee,
government other than the chief executive officer, to:
(@) give instructions and act as the authorised
agent for the local government; and
(b)  sign all documents for the local
government.
CEO 248(2) The power to certify a local law or consolidate a

version of a local law in accordance with the
section.

Part 6 -

Other Provisions
Entl_ty ol Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 262(2) In the specified circumstances, power to do
government anything that is necessary or convenient for
performing the responsibilities of a delegate of the
local government.
Local 268(1) Power to adopt a process for resolving
government administrative action complaints.
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Entity Power

; Section of LGA Description
given to
Local 268A The power to decide the way in which a local
government government will conduct a voluntary poll of

electors in its area in accordance with that
subsection.
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Limitations and Conditions to the Exercise of Power

10.

11.

12.

Formally approve any operating expenditure within budget, or where a natural disaster and/or
extraordinary emergent event has been declared in the local government area, the CEO can
exercise the delegation to formally approve expenditure necessary which does not cause a
variation of greater than 5% from budget

Formally approve any capital expenditure within budget, or where a natural disaster and/or
extraordinary emergent event has been declared in the local government area, the CEO can
exercise the delegation to formally approve expenditure necessary which does not cause a
variation of greater than 5% from budget.

Formally approve any capital expenditure up to $2,000,000 where it is part of an approve
programme and does not cause a variation of greater than 5% from that budget.

Formally approve the investment or borrowing of money in accordance with Council’'s approved
policy.

Formally approve Act of Grace payments, on a case-by-case basis, as an equitable remedy to
persons who may have been unintentionally disadvantaged by the effects of Council legislation,
actions or omissions and who have no other viable means of redress, to the value of not more
than $2,000.

Formally approve the waiver of debt where all practical means to recover the debt have been
exhausted and such debt is less than $500.

Formally approve the refund of fees and charges, on a case by case basis, to the value of not
more than $5,000 unless otherwise specified in the Refund Exemption and Reduction of Fees
and Charges Policy. (Document Number 6148006 — Date of Resolution 21 October 2014).

The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the
delegate's knowledge adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's relations
with the public at large.

The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has already
been the subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy decision
relating to the matter).

The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the foreseeable
affect, of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

The delegate will only exercise a delegated power under this resolution in a manner which
complies with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of power which
involves a departure from or variation of those requirements will only be undertaken by Council.

The delegate will not exercise any power which can not lawfully be the subject of delegation by
Council.
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8.2 COUNCIL DELEGATIONS TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

File No: 4107

Attachments: 1. Instrument of Delegation - Disaster
Management Act 2003

Instrument of Delegation - Land Act 1994
Instrument of Delegation - Coastal Protection
and Management Act 1995

4, Instrument of Delegation - Housing Act 2003

wnN

5. Instrument of Delegation - Residential
Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act
2008

6. Instrument of Delegation - Residential

Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation
Regulation 2009

7. Instrument of Delegation - Fire and
Emergency Services Act 1990

Authorising Officer: Tracy Sweeney - Manager Workforce and Strategy
Drew Stevenson - Acting General Manager Corporate
Services

Author: Kerrie Barrett - Coordinator Corporate Improvement &
Strategy

SUMMARY

This report seeks Council’s approval of delegations under State legislation to the position of
Chief Executive Officer.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT as per section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009 Council resolves to delegate to
the Chief Executive Officer, the exercise of powers contained in schedule 1 of the
Instruments of Delegation attached to this report:

1. Disaster Management Act 2003
2 Land Act 1994

3 Coastal Protection and Management Act 1995

4. Housing Act 2003

5 Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008

6 Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation 2009
7. Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990

Further, that all prior resolutions delegating the powers under these Acts listed to the Chief
Executive Officer are repealed. These powers must be exercised subject to any limitations
contained in schedule 2 of the attached Instruments of Delegation.
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COMMENTARY

MacDonnells Law has identified new and/or amended delegable powers under the Acts
listed within the Officer's Recommendation. Subsequently, each Instrument of Delegation
containing new legislative updates/amendments for each Act has been prepared for
Council’s consideration and is attached to this report.

Once Council has resolved to delegate to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the exercise of
powers contained in schedule 1 of the Instruments of Delegation attached to this report,
subject to any limitations contained in schedule 2, the sub-delegates will be given specific
delegations according to their respective areas of responsibility subject to the same general
conditions and, where appropriate, specific limitations.  Without such powers and
delegations, officers would be unable to complete work activities related to their position
under required Acts without reference to Council.

BACKGROUND

Without powers being delegated to the CEO and subsequently sub-delegated to relevant
positions, Council operations would be impeded significantly as separate resolutions would
be required to allow decisions to be made for a vast number of operational activities that are
undertaken on a daily basis.

In relation to amendments to the legislative Acts listed, Council’s legal advisor, MacDonnells
Law, provides a regular service of updates/amendments for relevant state legislation to
Council. The information provided herein is as recommended by MacDonnells Law.

PREVIOUS DECISIONS

The previous Instruments of Delegation for the Acts listed within this report were last
considered and approved by Council at the following meetings:

Legislation Meeting Date
Disaster Management Act 2003 8 March 2011
Land Act 1994 10 December 2013
Coastal Protection and Management Act 1995 10 August 2010
Housing Act 2003 N/A - New Delegable Power
Residential Tenancies and Rooming | N/A - New Delegable Power

Accommodation Act 2008

Residential Tenancies and Rooming | N/A - New Delegable Power
Accommodation Regulation 2009

Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990 23 September 2014

LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

Section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009 allows Council to delegate its powers to one
or more individuals or standing committees, including to the CEO. Pursuant to section
257(4) of the Local Government Act 2009 a delegation to the CEO must be reviewed
annually by Council.

To further streamline the decision making process, section 259 of the Local Government Act
2009 allows the CEO to sub-delegate the powers (including those delegated to him by
Council) to another Council employee where appropriate.

Page (24)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Important legal principles which apply to the delegation proposal set out in this report are:-

e Council at all times retains power to revoke the delegation. Accordingly, Council retains
ultimate control.

e Council, as delegator, has responsibility to ensure that the relevant power is properly
exercised. Council will therefore continue to supervise and oversee the exercise of its
powers.

o A delegation of power by Council may be subject to any lawful conditions which Council
wishes to impose. The imposition of conditions enables Council to impose checks and
balances on its delegations. However, the delegated power cannot be unduly fettered.

e The delegate must exercise a delegated power fairly and impartially, without being
influenced by or being subject to the discretion of other individuals.

CONCLUSION

This report includes the Instruments of Delegation for the relevant legislative Acts
incorporating some sections that are yet to be delegated from the Council to the CEO.

Once Council has resolved to delegate to the CEO, the exercise of powers contained in
schedule 1 of the Instruments of Delegation attached to this report subject to any limitations
contained in schedule 2 of the Instruments of Delegation, the Sub-delegates will be given
specific delegations according to their respective areas of responsibility subject to the same
general conditions and, where appropriate, specific limitations.

It is recommended that Council resolve in accordance with section 257 of the Local
Government Act 2009 to delegate exercise of powers contained in schedule 1 of the
attached Instruments of Delegation subject to limitations contained in schedule 2.
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COUNCIL DELEGATIONS TO
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Instrument of Delegation -
Disaster Management Act 2003

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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Rockhamp

Regional*Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Disaster Management Act 2003

Under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, Rockhampton Regional Council resolves

to delegate the exercise of the powers contained in Schedule 1 to the Chief Executive Officer.
These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.

Instrument of Delegation
Disaster Management Act 2003
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Schedule 1

Disaster Management Act 2003 ("DIMA")

Part 1 - Disaster Management Groups and Committees
Division 2 - District Disaster Management Groups
Subdivision 2 - Membership
Entity power | Section of
given to DIMA A il
Losal 240eh
Government
Local 24(6) As soon as practicable after a person is appointed under section 24(1)(d) of
Government the Disaster Management Act 2003, the power to inform the executive officer
of the department, and the chairperson of the district group, of the
appointment.
Division 3 - Local Government Disaster Management Groups
Subdivision 1 - Establishment of functions
Entity power | Section of o
given to DIMA lEElET
Local 29
Government
Subdivision 2 - Application of sections 29 and 30 in particular circumstances
Entity power | Section of o
given to DIMA Lt
Local 31
Gevernment
Subdivision 3 — Membership
Entity power | Section of A
given to DIMA Lt
Local 33(1) In the specified circumstances, the power to appoint persons as members of a
Government local group.
Local 33(4) In the specified circumstances, the power to appoint a person as a member of
Government a local group only if satisfied the person has the necessary expertise or
experience to be a member.
Local 34(1) Power to appoint:
Government (a) a member of the local group as the chairperson of the local group;
(b) a member of the local group as the deputy chairperson of the local
group.
Local 37 Power to give written notice of the members of a local group to:
Government (a) the chief executive; and
(b) the chairperson for the disaster district in which the local group is
situated.

Instrument of Delegation
Disaster Management Act 2003
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Part 3 - Disaster Management Plans and Guidelines

Division 3 - Disaster Management Plans for Local Governments

Subdivision 1 - Disaster Management Plans

Entity power | Section of

given to DIMA ESTHIET
Local 57(1) Power to prepare a plan (a local disaster management plan) for disaster
Government management in the local government's area.
Local 57(2)(g) Power to consider other matters that are appropriate for inclusion in the local
Government disaster management plan.
Local 59(1) Power to review or renew a local disaster management plan when considered
Government appropriate, subject to sub-section 2.
Chief 60(1)(c) Power to consider the places where a copy of the local disaster management
Executive plan should be available for inspection, free of charge, by members of the
Officer public.

Subdivision 2 - Application of Subdivision 1 in particular circumstances

Entity power | Section of

given to DIMA Description
Local =58
Government
Chief 60(3) Power to decide the fee for provision of a copy of the local disaster
Executive management plan.
Officer

Instrument of Delegation
Disaster Management Act 2003
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Schedule 2
Limitations to the Exercise of Power

1. Where Council in its budget or by resolution allocates an amount for the expenditure of
Council funds in relation to a particular matter, the delegate in exercising delegated power
in relation to that matter, will only commit the Council to reasonably foreseeable
expenditure up to the amount allocated.

2. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the
delegate's knowledge, adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's
relations with the public at large.

3. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has
already been the subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy
decision relating to the matter).

4. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the
foreseeable affect, of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

5. The delegate will only exercise any delegated power under this resolution in a manner
which complies with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of
power which involves a departure from or variation of those requirements will only be
undertaken by Council.

6.  The delegate will not exercise any delegated power which cannot lawfully be the subject of
delegation by Council.

Instrument of Delegation
Disaster Management Act 2003
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COUNCIL DELEGATIONS TO
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Instrument of Delegation -
Land Act 1994

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 2

Page (31)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

0

Rockhampfon

Regional "Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Land Act 1994

Under Section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL
COUNCIL, resolves to delegate the exercise of the powers contained in Schedule 1 to the Chief

Executive Officer.
These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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Schedule 1
Land Act 1994 ("LA")
CHAPTER 2 - LAND ALLOCATION
Part 1 - Allocation Powers
Entity Power Section of P
Given to LA Description
Registered owner 18(1) In the specified circumstances, the power to agree

with the Governor in Council granting or leasing
unallocated State land in exchange for freehold land.

Part 2- Reservations

Entity Power Section of

Given to LA Description
Registered owner 26(2) In the specified circumstances, the power to agree
or Trustee with the Minister in respect to the specified matters

when the Minister is deciding the boundaries of land
being resumed.

CHAPTER 3 - RESERVES, DEEDS OF GRANT IN TRUST AND ROADS
Part 1 - Reserves and Deeds of Grant in Trust
Division 2 - Reserves

Entity Power Section of
Given to LA Description
Any person 31C(1) Power to apply to the Minister for the dedication of a
reserve.
Any person 31C(3) Power to give notice to any other person that the
person considers has an interest in the unallocated
State land over which the reserve is proposed to be
dedicated.
Trustee of a 31D(1) Power to apply to the Minister:
reserve
(a} tochange the boundaries of the reserve; or
(b}  to change the purpose for which the reserve is
dedicated.
Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
2
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Schedule 1
Entity Power Section of
Given to LA Description
Trustee of a 31D(2) Power to give notice of the trustee’s intention to
reserve make the application to each person with a
registered interest in the reserve.
Trustee of a 31D(3) Power to give notice any other person the trustee
reserve considers:
(a}  bhas an interest in the reserve; or
(b}  would have an interest in the reserve if the
boundaries of the reserve or the purpose for
which the reserve is dedicated were changed.
Any person 34(1) Power to apply for the revocation of the dedication of
all or part of a reserve.
Any person 34(2) Power to give notice of the person’s intention o
make the application to:
(a) if the person is not the trustee of the reserve -
the trustee of the reserve; and
(b}  each person with a registered interest in the
reserve.
Any person 34(3) Power to give notice to any other person that the
person considers has an interest in the reserve.
Local government 34H(1) Power to apply to the Minister to remove
improvements from a revoked reserve.
Trustee of an 341(1) In certain circumstances, power to apply for the issue
operational of a deed of grant over a reserve.
reserve
Trustee of an 341(3) Power to give notice of the trustee’s intention to
operational make the application to each person with a
reserve registered interest in the reserve.
Trustee of an 341(4) Power to give notice to any other person the trustee
operational considers has an interest in the reserve.
reserve

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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Schedule 1

Division 3 - Deeds of Grant in Trust

Entity Power Section of o
Given to LA Description
Trustee of deed 38A(1) Power to apply:
of grant in trust
(a}  for an additional community purpose to be
notified; or
(b}  to amalgamate land with common purposes.
Any person 38A(2) Power to apply for the cancellation of a deed of grant
in trust.
Applicant 38A(3) Power to give notice of the applicant's intention to
apply to each of the following:
(a)  the trustee of the deed of grant in trust, other
than the applicant
(b}  each person with a registered interest in the
trust land.
Applicant 38A(4) Power to give notice to any other person the
applicant considers has an interest in the trust land.
Owner of 38G(1) Power to apply to the Minister to remove the owner's
improvements on improvements on a deed of grant in trust.
a deed of grantin
trust that has
been cancelled
Division 5 - Appointments, functions and removal of trustees
Entity Power Section of o
Given to LA Description
Trustee of trust 47(2) In the specified circumstances, the power to give a
land copy of an audited financial statement to the chief
executive within 28 days after it has been finished.

Division 6 - Powers of trustees

Entity Power

Section of

Given to LA Description
Trustee of trust 52(5) Power to apply for the approval of an action that is
land incansistent with the purpose for which the reserve
was dedicated or the land was granted in trust
(inconsistent action).
Trustee of a deed 55A(1) Power to apply to surrender all or part of a deed of

of grant in trust

grant in trust.

25 NOVEMBER 2014

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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Schedule 1
Entity Power Section of
Given to LA Description
Trustee of a deed 55A(2) Power to give notice of the trustee’s intention to
of grant in trust apply to each person with a registered interest in the
deed of grant in trust.
Trustee of a deed 55A(1) Power to give notice to any other person the trustee
of grant in trust considers has an interest in the deed of grant in trust.
Owner of 55H Power to apply to remove the owner’s improvements
improvements on on a surrendered deed of grant in trust.
a deed of grantin
trust that has
been surrendered
Division 7- Trustee leases and trustee permits
Entity Power Section of P
Given to LA Description
Trustee 57(1) Power to lease all or part of the trust land upon first
obtaining the Minister's written 'in principle’ approval
to the lease.
Trustee 57(2A) Power to, without the Minister's approval, grant a
trustee lease (construction) or a trustee lease
(State or statutory body) lease all or part of the
trust land.
Trustee 60(1) Power to issue and enter into on behalf of Council a
trustee permit for the use of all or part of trust land.
Relevant person 64(4) Power to apply for approval to lease or sub-lease
trust land even if an authority is in force
Trustee 66(1) In the specified circumstances, the power to allow a
trustee lessee or trustee permittee to remove the
trustee lessee's or trustee permittee's improvements
on the land within a reasonable time stated by you.
Division 11 - Other grants for public purposes
Entity Power Section of N
Given to LA Description
Trustee of land 84(1) In the specified circumstances, the power to apply to
granted for an the Minister to surrender land to the State and for the
estate in fee issue of a deed in grant in trust under the Land Act
simple for some 1994 for a community or public purpose.
community,
public or similar
purpose
Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
5
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Schedule 1

Part2- Roads
Division 2 - Closing Roads

Any person 94(2) Power to apply for the dedication of a road for public
use.

Public utility 99(1) Power to apply for the permanent closure of a road.

provider or

adjoining owner

for the road

Adjoining owner 99(3) In the specified circumstances, the power to apply

for the road or, in (also a road closure application) to the Minister for

certain the temporary closure of a road.

circumstances,
another person

Adjoining owner 99(6) In the specified circumstances the power to ask in
for the road the application that, on the closure of the road, the
adjoining land and the other land be amalgamated.

Division 3 - Road licences for temporarily closed roads

Adjoining owner 103(1) In the specified circumstances, the power to apply to
or, in certain the Minister for a road licence over a temporarily
circumstances, closed road.

another person

Division 4 - Permanently closed roads

Registered owner 109A(1) In the specified circumstances, power to apply for the
simultaneous opening and closure of roads.

Trustee or 108B(1) In the specified circumstances, power to apply for the
Lessee simulianeous opening and closure of roads.

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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CHAPTER 4 - LAND HOLDINGS

Schedule 1

Part 1 - Making Land Available
Entity Power Section of
(Sl oy LA Description
Any person 120A(1) Power to apply for an interest in land without
competition.
Part 3- Leases
Entity Power Section of
Given to LA Description

Lesseeof a 136(5) Power to enter a land management agreement.

lease

Lessee of a lease 164C(1) Power to make an extension application.

Lessee of a lease 164C(2) Power to advise the Chief Executive, that the lessee
wishes to allow the lease to expire at the end of its
term (an expiry advice).

Lessee of a lease 164C(7) Power to appeal against the Minister's decision.

Lessee of a lease | 1684H(1)(b) | Power to advise the Chief Executive and agree to the
lease becoming a rolling term lease.

Lessee of a lease 169(b)(i) Power to enter into a forest consent agreement in
relation to the land.

Lessee of a lease 176(1) Power to apply for approval to subdivide a lease.

Lessee of two or 176K(1) In the specified circumstances, power to apply for

more leases approval to amalgamate adjoining leases.

Lessee of a lease 176XA Power to agree with the Minister to cancel the land
management agreement registered on a lease.

Part 4 - Permits
Entity Power Section of
Given to LA Description
Any person 177A(1) Power to apply for a permit to occupy unallocated

State land, a reserve or road.

Instrument of Delegation

Land Act

1994
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Schedule 1
Entity Power Section of
Given to LA Description

Any person 177A(2) Power to give notice of the person’s intention to
apply to the following and to any other entity with a
registered interest in the proposed permit land:

(a} for a permit for a reserve — the trustee of the
reserve; or

(b)  for a permit for a State-controlled road — the
chief executive of the department in which the
Transport Infrastructure Act 1994 is
administered.

Registered owner 179(2) In the specified circumstances, the power to agree
with an applicant for a permit on conditions about the
maintenance of a boundary fence.

Relevant entity 180A(1) Power to apply to cancel a permit.

for a permit

Relevant entity 180A(2) Power to give notice of the entity’s intention to apply

for a permit to:

(a}  the permittee; and
(b)  any other entity with a registered interest in the
permit land.

Relevant entity 180A(4) Power to give notice to any other entity the relevant

for a permit entity considers has an interest in the permit land.

Permittee 180H(1) Power to apply to the chief executive to remove
improvements on permit land.

CHAPTER 5 - MATTERS AFFECTING LAND HOLDINGS
Part 2- Conditions
Division 3 - Changing Conditions

Entity Power Section of

Given to LA Ll
Lessee or 210 Power to apply to change conditions of a lease,
Licensee licence or permit under section 210(1).

Lessee of a lease 212B(5) Power to make agreement with the designated
officer for the lease about matters stated in section

212B(5)(a) and (b}.
Lessee or 214A Power to make written submissions to the Minister in
Licensee response to a warning notice.
Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
8
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Schedule 1

Part 4 - Forfeiture
Division 3A - Sale of lease instead of forfeiture
Subdivision 3 - Sale by local government

Entity Power Section of

Given to LA Description

Local government 240G(1) Power to apply to the Minister for approval to sell a
lease.

Local government 2401(4) Power to set a reserve price for the sale of the lease
by auction, or a price for the sale of the lease under
an agreement, that is at least the total of all charges
owing to the State under the Land Act 1994 relating
to the lease.

CHAPTER 6 - REGISTRATION AND DEALINGS
Part 4 - Dealings Affecting Land
Division 2 - Surrender

Entity Power Section of
Given to LA Description

Registered owner 327 The power to apply to surrender, absolutely, freehold
land.

Lessee 327A The power to apply to surrender all or part of a lease.

Registered owner 327B The power to apply to surrender freehold land.

of freehold land

Lessee 327C(1) The power to apply to surrender all or part of a lease.

Lessee 327C(2) The power to give notice of the lessee’s intention to
apply to any other person with a registered interest in
the lease.

Lessee 327C(3) The power to give notice to any other person the
lessee considers has an interest in the lease.

Owner of 3271(1) The power to apply to remove improvements on

improvements on surrendered lease.

a lease that has

been surrendered

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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Schedule 1
Division 7 - Correcting and changing deeds of grant and leases
Entity Power Section of o
Given to LA T
Registered owner 358(1) In the specified circumstances, the power to
or Trustee surrender land contained in a deed of grant or deed
of grant in trust.
Registered owner 358(2) In the specified circumstances, the power to
or Trustee surrender land contained in a deed of grant or deed
of grant in trust with the Minister's written approval.
Lessee or a 360C In the specified circumstances, power to apply to
person acting for amend the description in a lease.
the lessee
Applicant 360D(2) Power to give notice of the applicant's intention to
apply to any other person with a registered interest in
the lease land.
Applicant 360D(3) Power to give notice to any other person the
applicant considers has an interest in the lease.
Division 8 - Easements
Entity Power Section of
CIENS LA Description
Trustee 368(2)(a) | In the specified circumstances, the power to ask the
chief executive to extinguish an easement.

CHAPTER 7 - GENERAL

Part 3B - Making Land Available for Public Use As Beach
Entity power Section of -
given to LANA BESCRENES

Manager | 431W{E}a} | Powerlo authorise an olficer or employee of the

M BX(HD) | P - - et

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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Schedule 1

CHAPTER 8 - CONTINUED RIGHTS AND TENURES
Part 5 -

Part 7

Licences and Permits

Division 1 - Occupation licences and permits

Entity Power

Section of

Given to LA Description
Public utility 481B(1) Power to apply to cancel all or part of an occupation
provider (an licence.
applicant)
Applicant 481B(4) Power to give notice of the applicant's intention to
apply to each of the following:

(a) if the applicant is not the licensee of the
occupation licence — the licensee;

(b}  any other person with a registered interest in
the occupation licence;

(c)  if the occupation licence is a designated
occupation licence — the chief executive of the
department having responsibility for the
administration of the forest reserve, national
park, State forest or timber reserve the subject
of the designated occupation licence.

Applicant 481B(5) Power to give notice to any other person the
applicant considers has an interest in the occupation
licence,

Licensee of 481J(1) Power to apply to remove licensee's improvements

occupation on a licence.

licence

Tenures Under Other Acts

Division 1 - Sale to Local Authorities Land Act 1882

Entity Power Section of P
Given to LA Description

Local government 492(1) In the specified circumstances, the power to apply to
exchange a conditional deed for a reserve or deed of
grant in trust with Council as trustee or a lease
issued under the Land Act 1994.

Lesseeof alease | 521ZL(2) | Power to agree to the renewal application being
treated as an extension application and advise the
Chief Executive of same.

Lessee of alease | 521ZM(2) | Power to advise the Chief Executive that the lessee

wishes the lease to become a rolling term lease.

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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Schedule 2

Limitations to the Exercise of Power

1. Where Council in its budget or by resolution allocates an amount for the expenditure of Council
funds in relation to a particular matter, the delegate in exercising delegated power in relation to that
matter, will only commit the Council to reasonably foreseeable expenditure up to the amount
allocated.

2, The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the delegate's
knowledge adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's relations with the public

at large.

3. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has already been
the subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy decision relating to
the matter).

4, The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the foreseeable
affect, of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

5. The delegate will only exercise a delegated power under this resolution in a manner which
complies with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of power which
involves a departure from or variation of those requirements will only be undertaken by Council.

6. The delegate will not exercise any power which can not lawfully be the subject of delegation by
Council.

Instrument of Delegation
Land Act 1994
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Rockhamp

Regional *Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Coastal Protection and Management Act 1995

Under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
resolves to delegate the exercise of powers contained in Schedule 1 to the Chief Executive Officer.

These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations and conditions contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.

Instrument of Delegation
Coastal Protection and Management Act 1995

Page (45)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

Schedule 1
Coastal Protection and Management Act 1995 ("CPMA")

Part 6 - Development Approval for Assessable Development
Division 4 - Matters about Artificial Waterways
Subdivision 3 - Plans of Subdivision

Entity power | Section of
given to CPMA

119(2) In the specified circumstances, the power to certify on a plan of subdivision
that shows an artificial waterway that -

(a) the waterway, and any access channel associated with the waterway,
is constructed in accordance with the development approval for the
waterway; and

(b) if the waterway Is not a canal - you are satisfied arrangements have
been made, or will be made, for the maintenance and management of
the waterway.

Description

Division 3 — Voluntary Land Surrender
Subdivision 4 - Giving effect to surrender

Entity power | Section of
given to CPMA

115B(a) Power to endorse the plan of subdivision with the local government's
acceptance of the trusteeship of the reserve.

Description

CHAPTER 6 - TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

Part 4 - Transitional Provisions for Environmental Protection and Other Legislation
Amendment Act 2004

Entity power | Section of .
given to CPMA Description
190(5) In the specified circumstances, the power to elect not to be the assessment

manager for an application to amend.

Part 5 - Transitional Provisions for Sustainable Planning Act 2009
Entity power | Section of L
given to CPMA LESEI[LET
193(5) In the specified circumstances, power to elect not to be the responsible entity

for making the permissible change.

Instrument of Delegation
Coastal Protection and Management Act 1995
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Schedule 2
Limitations and Conditions to the Exercise of Power

1. Where Council in its budget or by resolution allocates an amount for the expenditure of
Council funds in relation to a particular matter, the delegate in exercising delegated power in
relation to that matter, will only commit the Council to reasonably foreseeable expenditure up
to the amount allocated.

2. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the
delegate's knowledge adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's relations
with the public at large.

3. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has already
been the subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy decision
relating to the matter).

4, The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the
foreseeable affect, of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

5. The delegate will only exercise a delegated power under this resolution in a manner which
complies with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of power
which involves a departure from or variation of those requirements will only be undertaken by
Council.

6. The delegate will not exercise any power which can not lawfully be the subject of delegation
by Council.

Instrument of Delegation
Coastal Protection and Management Act 1995
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Rockhamp

Regional *Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Housing Act 2003

Under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
resolves to delegate the exercise of powers contained in Schedule 1 to the Chief Executive Officer.

These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations and conditions contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.

Instrument of DE|BQBHBI1
Housing Act 2003
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Schedule 1
Housing Act 2003 ("HOA")
Part 4 - Funding
Entity power | Section of A
given 1o HOA Description
funded 25(1) Power to enter into an agreement with the chief executive for funding.
provider /
registered
provider
funded 26(2)(b) Power to provide a written response to the chief executive.
provider /
registered
provider

Part 4 c ity Housing_Provid
Division.3— Reaistrati

Part 6 - Review of Decision
Entity power | Section of
given to HOA Description
an entity 65 Power to apply to the chief executive for a review of a decision.

entitled to be

given a notice
under section
64

Instrument of DE|BQBHBI1
Housing Act 2003
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Schedule 2
Limitations and Conditions to the Exercise of Power

1. Where Council in its budget or by resolution allocates an amount for the expenditure of
Council funds in relation to a particular matter, the delegate in exercising delegated power
in relation to that matter, will only commit the Council to reasonably foreseeable
expenditure up to the amount allocated.

2. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the
delegate's knowledge, adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's
relations with the public at large.

3. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has
already been the subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy
decision relating to the matter).

4. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the
foreseeable affect, of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

5. The delegate will only exercise any delegated power under this resolution in a manner
which complies with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of
power which involves a departure from or variation of those requirements will only be
undertaken by Council.

6. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power which cannot lawfully be the subject of
delegation by Council.

Instrument of DE|BQBHBI1
Housing Act 2003
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Rockhamp

Regional *Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008

Under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
resolves to delegate the exercise of powers contained in Schedule 1 to the Chief Executive Officer.

These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations and conditions contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
1
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Schedule 1

Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008 ("RTRA")

CHAPTER 2 — RESIDENTIAL TENANCY AGREEMENTS AND ROOMING ACCOMMODATION
AGREEMENTS

Part 1 - Agreements
Division 1 — Residential tenancy agreements
Subdivision 1 - General principles

Entity power | Section of Do
given to RTRA e

Lessor’ 62(1) Power to give a document prepared for section 61 to the tenant for signing on
or before the day the tenant occupies the premises under the agreement.

Lessor 62(3) Power to sign the document referred to in section 61.

Lessor 64(3) Power to form the reasonable belief that a tenant has contravened section
62(2) and in that case, to apply to a tribunal for an order requiring the tenant to
sign the relevant document and return it.

Subdivision 2 — Associated documents

Entity power | Section of

given o RTRA Description
Lessor 65(2) Power to sign a condition report at the start of tenancy.
Lessor 66(2) Power to sign a condition report at the end of tenancy.
Lessor 67 Power to give an information statement in the approved form to the tenant.
Lessor 68(2) Power to give a copy of park rules to the tenant.
Lessor 69 Power to give the tenant a copy of relevant by-laws.

Division 2 — Rooming accommodation agreements
Subdivision 1 — General provisions

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA Description
Provider® 77(4)(h) Power to sign a rooming accommeodation agreement on behalf of the provider.
Provider 78 Power to give a document prepared for section 77 to the resident on or before

the day the resident occupies the room.

A lessor is the person who gives the right to occupy residential premises under a residential tenancy
agreement: section 8(1) of the Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
(RTRA).

A provider is a provider under a rooming accommodation agreement.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
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Subdivision 2 — Associated documents

Entity power | Section of A

given to RTRA iz Al
Provider’ 81(1)(b) Power to sign a condition report at the start of rooming accommodation.
Part 2 - Rent

Division 1 — Residential tenancy agreements

Entity power | Section of A
given 1o RTRA Description
Lessor 88(3) Power to sign a receipt for payment.
Lessor 88(5) Power to make a written record of payment and to give a copy of the record to
the tenant.
Lessor 91(2) Power to give a written notice of proposal to increase rent to the tenant.
Lessor 97(3) Power to apply to a tribunal to make an order about the payment of an amount
by or to a tenant.
Division 2 — Rooming accommodation agreements
Entity power | Section of -
given to RTRA Description
Provider 98(3)(a) Power to give a written notice to the resident about the way to pay rent.
Provider 98(3)(b) Power to agree, in writing, with the resident (the Rent Agreement) to
payments of rent being made in the way stated.
Provider 99(2)(a) Power to:
(a) give a written notice to the resident that gives the resident a choice of
at least two other approved ways for payment of rent under section
98(4)(a) to (f); and
(b) advises the resident of the costs associated with the approved way.
Provider 102(3) Power to sign a receipt of payment.
Provider 105(3) Power to give a resident a written notice stating the amount of increased rent
and the day by which the rent is payable.
Provider 106(2) Power to agree with the resident, the rent payable under the agreement
decreases by the amount and from the time agreed.
Provider 106(3) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order decreasing the rent.
Provider 107(2) Power to agree with the resident to a reduction in rent for the period of the
absence.
Provider 109(3) Power to apply to a tribunal to make an order about the payment of an amount
by or to the resident.
Part 3 - Rental Bonds

Division 2 — Payments to authority

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA

Person 116(1)(b) | Power to give the authority a notice, in an approved form, about a rental bond.

Description

A provider is a provider under a rooming accommodation agreement.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
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Lessor 117(2)(b) | Power to give the authority a notice, in the approved form, about instalments.

Lessor 117(3)(b) | Power to give the authority a notice, in the approved form, about instalments.

Provider 118(2)(b) | Power to give the authority a notice, in the approved form, about instalments.

Provider 118(3)(b) | Power to give the authority a notice, in the approved form, about instalments.

Provider 118((_{1))(a) Power to give the authority a notice, in the approved form, about instalments.
Il

Provider 118(4)(b) | Power to give the authority a notice, in the approved form, about instalments.

Division 4 — Enforcement provisions

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA i)
Person 145(1) Power to give a receipt for a rental bond.
Person 145(2)(b) | Power to sign a receipt for a rental bond.
Division 6 — Miscellaneous
Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA 2t dal bl
Lessor 154(b) Power to give a written notice to the tenant to increase a rental bond.
Lessor 155(3) Power to apply to a tribunal to make an order declaring an amount is or is not
a rental bond.
Part 4 - Key and Holding Deposits for Residential Tenancies
Division 2 — Holding deposits
Entity power | Section of -
given to RTRA Description
Person 160(1) Power to give a receipt for a holding deposit.
Part 5 - Outgoings of Lessor or Provider

Division 1 — Residential tenancy agreements
Subdivision 2 — Service charges

Entity power | Section of c
given to RTRA Description
Lessor 168(3)(a) | Power to agree with the tenant on an amount as reflecting the amount of rent
attributable to the service or facility.
Lessor 168(4) Power to give the tenant a written statement showing each service or facility
for which an amount of rent is attributable and the amount attributed.

CHAPTER 3 - RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTIES FOR RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES

Part 3 - Lessors' Right of Entry
Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRA Description
Lessor 192(1)(h) | Power to form a belief, on reasonable grounds, that premises have been

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
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abandoned.

Lessor 192(i) Power to give the tenant a notice to remedy a breach of the agreement that is
a significant breach.

Lessor 192(j) Power to agree with a tenant that the lessor or lessor's agent may enter
premises.

Lessor 192(1)(1) Power to form a belief, on reasonable grounds, that the entry is necessary to
protect the premises or inclusions from imminent or further damage.

Lessor 193(1)(a) | Power to give a notice of proposed entry (the entry notice) to the tenant.

Lessor 195(1)(b) | Power to make an agreement with the tenant that the lessor may enter

premises on a Sunday or public holiday or on another day after 6.00 pm or
before 8.00 am.

Lessor 195(5) Power to agree a time for entry of premises under section 192(1)(j) with the
tenant.

Lessor 197(1)(a) | Power to give a notice to leave the premises to the tenant.

Lessor 198(1)(a) | Power to give a tenant a notice of the lessors’ intention to sell the premises.

Lessor 203 Power to obtain the tenants written consent to use a photo or other image of

something belonging to the tenant in an advertisement for the premises.

Part 5 - The Dwelling
Division 2 — Locks and keys

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA i
Lessor 211(1)(a) | Power to enter into an agreement with the tenant under which the tenant
agrees to not being given a key.
Lessor 211(2)(b) | Power to enter into an agreement with the tenant to change a lock.

Division 3 — Damage and repairs

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA Description
Lessor 216(2) Power to give a written notice to the tenant of a nominated repairer.
Lessor 220(2) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order about the reimbursement or payment
for emergency repairs.
Part 6 - Additional Provisions for Moveable Dwelling Premises

Division 2 — Relocation

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA

Lessor 223 Power to give a notice (notice to relocate) to the tenant requiring the tenant
to relocate to another site in the moveable dwelling park within a stated period.

Description

Division 3 — Park rules

Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRA iz Al
Park Owner 229(1)(b) | Power to give a notice of proposal to each resident and any person who
becomes a resident before the objection closing day of a proposed change of

apark rule.

Instrument of Delegation
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Park Owner 233(2) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order declaring a proposal about a change
of park rule to be reasonable or unreasonable.

Part 7 - Change of Lessor or Tenant
Division 1 — Transfer or subletting by tenant

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA Kssqription
Lessor 237(2) Power to agree with the tenant, in writing, of the transfer or subletting of a
tenant's interests under an agreement.
Lessor 238(2)(a) | Power to agree in writing to the transfer or subletting of a tenants interests

under an agreement.

Division 2 — Transfer by lessor

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA e
Lessor 242(1)(a) | Power to give a written notice of tenancy to a buyer.
Lessor 242(1)(b) | Power to give a written notice of transfer (the attornment notice) to the tenant.

CHAPTER 4 — RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTIES FOR ROOMING ACCOMMODATION

Part1- Rights and Obligations Generally
Entity power | Section of e
given to RTRA Description
Provider 248(1) Power to give a written notice to the resident of address for service.
Provider 248(2) Power to give a written notice of change to the resident.
Provider 255(1) Power to give an agreement to the attaching of a fixture, or making of a
structural change.
Part 2 - Entry to Residents’ Rooms
Entity power | Section of . L.
given to RTRA Description
Provider 257(1) Power to agree with the resident for the provider to enter the residents room
for any reason.
Provider 259(2) Power to give a written notice of proposed entry to a resident.
Provider 259(4) Power to give a written notice of proposed entry to the agent to whom the
resident normally pays rent.
Part 3 - House Rules
Division 2 — Rule changes
Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA peipe
Provider 270(1) Power to give a written notice to each resident of rule change for rental
premises.
Provider 271 Power to give a written notice to a resident of a withdrawal of a proposed rule
change.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
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Provider 272(4)(b) | Power to give a written notice to each resident if the provider receives
objections to the proposed rule change.

Provider 273(2) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order declaring a proposed change to be
reasonable.

Provider 273(7) Power to give a written notice of the decision of the tribunal about a proposed

rule change to each resident of the rental premises.

Provider 274(7) Power to give a written notice of the decision of a tribunal to each resident of
the rental premises about an existing rule.

CHAPTER 5 - ENDING OF AGREEMENTS
Part 1 - Ending of Residential Tenancy Agreements
Division 1 — General

Entity power | Section of e
given to RTRA Description

Lessor 277(2) Power to end a residential tenancy agreement by entering into an agreement
with the tenant.

Lessor 277(3) Power to give a notice to leave the premises to the tenant if a residential
tenancy agreement ends.

Lessor 277(7)(b) | Power to give a tenant's personal representative or relative a written notice
that an agreement ends because of a tenant's death.

Lessor 277(7)(c) | Power to agree a day with the tenant's personal representative or relative of
when a residential tenancy agreement ends.

Division 2 — Action by lessor
Subdivision 1 — Notices to remedy breach given by lessor

Entity power | Section of =
given to RTRA L e
Lessor 280(1) Power to form a belief on reasonable grounds that:
(a) the rent payable under an agreement has remained unpaid;
(b) the tenant has breached another term of the agreement and the
breach has not been remedied.
Lessor 280(2) Power to give a notice to the tenant requiring the tenant remedy the breach

within the allowed remedy period.

Subdivision 2 — Notices to leave premises given by lessor

Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRA Description

Lessor 281(1) Power to give a notice to leave the premises because the tenant has failed to
comply with a notice to remedy breach.

Lessor 282(1) Power to give a notice to leave the premises to the tenant because the tenant
has failed to comply with an order of a tribunal.

Lessor 283(2) Power to give a notice to leave to the tenant because the tenant has failed to
comply with a notice to relocate.

Lessor 284(1) Power to give a notice to leave to the tenant because the premises have been

destroyed or otherwise in the circumstances set out in that section.

Instrument of Delegation
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Lessor 285(2) Power to give a notice to leave to the tenant because the park has become an
unfit place in which to live in a moveable dwelling.

Lessor 286(1) Power to give a notice to a tenant under a periodic agreement because the
lessor has entered into a contract to sell the premises.

Lessor 287(2) Power to give a notice to leave the premises to the tenant because the park
premises is to change use or otherwise the park is to be closed.

Lessor 288(1) Power to give a notice to a tenant if the tenant's employment ends or
entitlement to occupy under employment ends.

Lessor 289(2) Power to give a notice to leave to the premises if the tenant's entitlement to
supported accommodation ends.

Lessor / 290A Power to give a notice to leave the premises to the tenant because of a

Community serious breach and otherwise in the circumstances set out in that section.

Housing

Provider

Lessor 291 Power to give a notice to leave the premises to the tenant without stating a

ground for the notice.

Subdivision 3 — Applications for termination by lessor

Entity power | Section of

given 1o RTRA Description

Lessor 294(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order in the circumstances of that
subsection.

Lessor 295(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order because the lessor would
suffer excessive hardship.

Lessor (but 296(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order because the tenant has

does not intentionally or recklessly caused damage or injury.

include a

Community

Housing

Provider)

Lessor / 296A(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for termination for damage or injury in public or

Community community housing in the circumstances of that subsection.

Housing

Provider

Lessor (but 297(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order for tenant's objectionable

does not behaviour.

include a

Community

Housing

Provider)

Lessor / 297A Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order for objectionable behaviour

Community in public or community housing.

Housing

Provider

Lessor 298(2) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order because the lessor and
tenant are incompatible in a way that makes it desirable in the interests of both
parties for the agreement to end.

Lessor 299(2) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order for repeated breaches by
the tenant.

Lessor 300(1)(b) | Power to form a belief on reasonable grounds that a tenant is likely to cause

further damage or injury.

Instrument of Delegation
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Lessor 300(2)

Power to apply to a tribunal for an order to restrain a tenant from causing
further damage or injury.

Division 5 — Procedural requirements for action taken by lessor or tenant

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA Description
Lessor 325(2)(a) | Power to sign a notice to remedy breach.
Lessor 326(1)(b) | Power to sign a notice to leave premises.
Lessor 333(1) Power to withdraw a notice to leave for an unremedied breach.
Lessor 333(2)(b) | Power to give a written notice of withdrawal to the tenant.
Lessor 335(1) Power to make an application to the tribunal for a termination order in the

circumstances prescribed.

Division 8 — Abandonment

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA il
Lessor 355(1) Power to form a belief on reasonable grounds that a tenant has abandoned
premises and to give a notice (abandonment termination notice) to the
tenant terminating the agreement.
Lessor 357(1) Power to form a belief on reasonable grounds that the tenant has abandoned
premises and to apply to a tribunal for an order under this section.
Lessor 359(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order for compensation.

Division 10 — Goods and documents left behind on premises

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRA il
Former 363(2) Power to sell goods left on premises or to dispose of them and to form a
Lessor reasonable belief on the grounds set out in that section.
Former 363(4) Power to sell goods that are not reclaimed in the circumstances in that
Lessor subsection.
Part 2 - Ending of Rooming Accommodation Agreements

Division 1 — General

Entity power | Section of c
given to RTRA LETE[LET

Provider 366(2) Power to enter into an agreement with the resident to end a rooming
accommodation agreement.

Provider 366(7)(b) | Power to give a written notice that an agreement ends because of the
resident’s death to the resident's personal representative or relative.

Provider 366(7)(c) | Power to agree the day on which the agreement ends with the resident's
personal representative or relative.

Instrument of Delegation
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Division 2 — Action by provider
Subdivision 1 — Notices to remedy breach given by provider

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA 2t dal bl

Provider 368(1) Power to form a reasonable belief that a resident has breached a rooming
accommodation agreement and that the breach has not been remedied.

Provider 368(2) Power to give a resident a notice requiring a resident to remedy the breach.

Provider 368(3)(d) | Power to sign a notice.

Provider 368(4) Power to form a reasonable belief of the steps necessary to remedy a breach
or to avoid a further breach of a rooming accommodation agreement.

Subdivision 1 — Notices to remedy breach given by provider

Entity power | Section of ...

given 1o RTRA Description

Provider 369(1) Power to give a resident a notice requiring the resident to leave the premises
in the circumstances of that subsection.

Provider 369(2)(d) | Power to sign a notice.

Provider 369(5) Power to withdraw a notice.

Provider 370(1) Power to give a resident a written notice requiring the resident to leave the
rental premises if the provider reasonably believes the circumstances of that
subsection exist.

Provider 370(2)(b) | Power to sign a notice.

Provider 371 Power to give a resident a notice requiring the resident to leave premises in
the circumstances prescribed in that subsection.

Provider 371(3)(d) | Power to sign the notice.

Provider 372(1) Power to terminate a periodic agreement by giving a written notice to the
resident.

Provider 372(2) Power to terminate a fixed term agreement by giving a notice to a resident.

Provider 374(1) Power to give a notice to a resident requiring the resident to leave the rental
premises in the circumstances in the subsection.

Provider 374(2)(d) | Power to sign the notice.

Provider 375(2) Power to use reascnable and necessary force to remove a resident and the
resident's property from rental premises.

Provider 375(4) Power, for the purpose of exercising a power under subsection (2), o enter a
resident’s room.

Division 3 — Action by resident
Subdivision 3 — Applications for termination by provider

Entity power | Section of Description
given to RTRA P
Provider 376(2) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order.
Provider 377(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order terminating a fixed term agreement on
the grounds of excessive hardship.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
10

Page (62)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

Division 5 — Procedural requirements and orders of tribunal

Entity power | Section of A

given to RTRA iz Al

Provider 388(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for a termination order in the circumstances
prescribed in that subsection.

Provider 393(2) Power to form a reasonable belief that property is perishable or of market
value less than the amount prescribed under regulation, or, the storage of
goods would be unhealthy or unsafe.

Provider 393(5) Power to form a reasonable belief that the market value of property is less
than the amount prescribed under a regulation.

Provider 395(3) Power to make an application to the public trustee to pay an amount to the
provider from the unclaimed monies fund kept under the Public Trustee Act

1978.

CHAPTER 6 — DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Part 1 - Conciliation Process for Residential Tenancy Disputes and Rooming
Accommodation Disputes

Division 3 — Starting the conciliation process

Entity power | Section of -

given 1o RTRA Description
Lessor 402(1) Power to make a request to the authority to try to resolve a tenancy dispute.
Lessor 402(2) Power to make a request to the authority to try to resolve a rooming

accommodation dispute.
Division 4 — Conduct of conciliation process

Entity power | Section of L

given 1o RTRA Description
Parties to 405(1) Power to conduct the local government's case on its behalf.
Dispute
Parties to 405(2) Power to represent the local government in the conciliation process.
Dispute
Parties to 408(2) Power to agree with another party in dispute to resolve the dispute.
Dispute

Division 5 — Withdrawal of disputes

Entity power | Section of A

given to RTRA i) Al
Party in 410(1) Power to give a written notice to an authority withdrawing a dispute resolution
Dispute request.
Part 2 - Application to Tribunals

Division 3 — General powers of tribunals

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA

Person 418(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order in the circumstances of that

Description

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
11
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subsection.
Lessor/ 419(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order it considers appropriate to resolve
Provider general disputes between lessors and tenants or providers and residents.
Lessor 419(2) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order about a breach of agreement
Lessor 424(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order about tenants' notices.
Lessor / 429(1) Power to apply to the tribunal for an order to resolve a dispute.
Provider

CHAPTER 8 — CAUSING NUISANCE IN MOVEABLE DWELLING PARKS

Entity power | Section of N
given to RTRA il
Owner of a 455(1) Power to apply to a tribunal for an order excluding a person from the park
moveable because of the person's behaviour in the park.
dwelling park
Owner of a 455(3) Power to give a written notice of application to a person.
moveable
dwelling park

CHAPTER 13A — MATTERS RELATING TO PARTICULAR LEASES BY THE STATE AND
COMMUNITY HOUSING PROVIDERS

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRA

Description

Lessor / 527D(1) Power to give a written notice to a tenant to require the tenant to give a written
Community undertaking (and Acceptable Behaviour Agreement).

Housing
Provider

Lessor/ 527D(4) Power to enter into an acceptable behaviour agreement with a tenant.
GCommunity
Housing
Provider

Lessor/ 527E(1) Power to apply to the tribunal for a termination order in the circumstances of
Gommunity that subsection.

Housing
Provider

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
12
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Schedule 2
Limitations and Conditions to the Exercise of Power

1. Where Council in its budget or by resolution allocates an amount for the expenditure of
Council funds in relation to a particular matter, the delegate in exercising delegated power
in relation to that matter, will only commit the Council to reasonably foreseeable
expenditure up to the amount allocated.

2. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the
delegate's knowledge, adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's
relations with the public at large.

3. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has
already been the subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy
decision relating to the matter).

4. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the
foreseeable affect, of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

5. The delegate will only exercise any delegated power under this resolution in a manner
which complies with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of
power which involves a departure from or variation of those requirements will only be
undertaken by Council.

6. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power which cannot lawfully be the subject of
delegation by Council.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Act 2008
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COUNCIL DELEGATIONS TO
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Instrument of Delegation -
Residential Tenancies and Rooming
Accommodation Regulation 2009

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 6

Page (66)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

Rockhamp

Regional *Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation 2009

Under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
resolves to delegate the exercise of powers contained in Schedule 1 to the Chief Executive Officer.

These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations and conditions contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation
2009
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Schedule 1

Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation 2009 ("RTRR")

SCHEDULE 1 - GENERAL TENANCY AGREEMENTS
Part 2 - Standard Terms
Division 1 — Preliminary

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 2(3) Power to agree on other terms of a general tenancy agreement (special
terms).
Division 2 — Period of tenancy
Entity power | Section of =
given to RTRR il ]
Lessor 5(1) Power to prepare, in the approved form, and to sign and give to the tenant,
one copy of a condition report for the premises.
Lessor 6(1){b)(v) | Power to enter into a written agreement with the tenant to end a fixed term
agreemem.

Division 3 — Rent

Entity power | Section of =
given to RTRR LS| e
Lessor 8(3)(b)(1) | Power to give the tenant a notice proposing a way to pay rent.
Lessor 8(3)(ii) Power to agree a proposal to pay rent.
Lessor 8(5) Power to give a notice to the tenant stating a different place for payment of
rent.
Lessor 10(1) Power to, if the lessor proposes to increase the rent, give notice of the
proposal to the tenant.
Division 4 — Rental bond
Entity power | Section of
given to RTRR [t dal ol
Lessor 13(2) Power to give the authority a notice about the bond.

Division 6 — Rights and obligations concerning the premises during tenancy
Subdivision 1 — Occupation and use of premises

Entity power | Section of
given to RTRR a1
Lessor 20 Power to enter premises during the tenancy only if the obligations under
section 192 to 199 have been complied with.
Lessor 22(1) Power to give the tenant a copy of any body corporate by-laws in accordance

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation
2009
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| | with that subsection.

Subdivision 3 — The dwelling

Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR e
Lessor 27(2) Power to agree in writing to the tenant to attach a fixture or make a structural
change.
Lessor 29(1)(a) Power to agree to change the locks with the tenant.
Lessor 31(1)(b) Power to give a notice to the tenant of the lessor's nominate repairer for
emergency repairs.
Division 7 — Restrictions on transfer or subletting by tenant
Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 34(1) Power to agree in writing to the transfer or subletting of a tenant's interests
under an agreement.
Division 8 — When agreement ends
Entity power | Section of . L.
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 36(1)(a) Power to agree to end an agreement with the tenant.
Lessor 36(1)(b) Power to give a notice to leave the premises to the tenant.
Lessor 39(1) Power to ask the tenant in writing to state the tenant's new residential address.
Lessor 40(2)(a) Power to sign a condition report on behalf of the lessor.
Division 9 — Miscellaneous
Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR iz Al
Lessor 44(4) Power to withdraw the lessor's consent to notices being given by facsimile or
email to the lessor.
Lessor 44(6) Power to give a notice to the other party of a new address for service,
facsimile number or email address of the lessor.

SCHEDULE 2 - MOVEABLE DWELLING TENANCY AGREEMENT
Part 2 - Standard Terms
Division 1 — Preliminary

Entity power | Section of

given to RTRR LS| e

Lessor 2(3) Power to agree with the tenant on other terms of a moveable dwelling tenancy
agreement (special terms).

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation
2009
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Division 2 — Period of tenancy

Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 5(1) Power to prepare, sign and give to the tenant, a copy of a condition report for
the premises.
Lessor 6(1)(b)(v) | Power to agree with the tenant to end a fixed term agreement.
Division 3 — Rent
Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR LI Al
Lessor 8(3)(b)(i) | Power to give a notice to the tenant proposing a way for payment of rent.
Lessor 8(3)(b)(il) | Power to agree to a proposal to pay rent in writing.
Lessor 8(5) Power to give a notice to the tenant stating a different place for payment of
rent.
Lessor 10 Power to give a notice of proposal to increase rent to the tenant.
Division 4 — Rental bond
Entity power | Section of
given to RTRR el
Lessor 13(2) Power to give to the authority, a notice about a rental bond.
Lessor 14(1)(a) Power to give a notice to the tenant to increase a rental bond.
Division 5 — Outgoings
Entity power | Section of
given to RTRR e
Lessor 17(4) Power to give the tenant a written statement showing:
(a) each service for which an amount of rent is attributable; and
(b) the amount attributed to the service.

Division 6 — Rights and obligations concerning the premises during tenancy
Subdivision 1 — Occupation and use of premises

S et Description

Lessor 20(1) The right to enter premises during a tenancy only if the obligations under
sections 192 to 199 have been complied with.

Lessor 22(2) Power to give a copy of park rules for a moveable dwelling park to the tenant.

Lessor 22(8) Power to give the tenant a copy of a park rule change.

Subdivision 3 — The dwelling

Entity power | Section of M=
given to RTRR il
Lessor 28(2) Power to agree in writing to the tenant attaching a fixture or making a

structural change.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation
2009
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Lessor 30(1)(a) Power to agree with the tenant to change a lock.

Subdivision 4 — Damage and repairs

Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 32(1)(b) Power to give a notice to the tenant of the lessor's nominated repairer for
emergency repairs.
Division 7 — Restrictions on transfer or subletting by tenant
Entity power | Section of ...
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 35(1)(a) Power to agree in writing to the transfer or subletting of a tenant's interests
under an agreement.
Lessor 36(2) Power to agree to the transfer or subletting of a tenant's interest under an
agreement.
Division 8 — Relocation
Entity power | Section of ...
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 38(1) Power to give a notice (notice to relocate) to the tenant requiring the tenant
to relocate the moveable dwelling to another site in the moveable dwelling
park.
Division 9 — When agreement ends
Entity power | Section of
given to RTRR el
Lessor 42(1)(a) Power to agree in writing with the tenant that an agreement ends.
Lessor 42(1)(b) Power to give a notice to the lessee to leave the premises.
Lessor 45(1) Power to ask the tenant in writing to state the tenant's new residential address.
Lessor 46(2)(a) Power to sign a condition report for premises.
Division 10 — Miscellaneous
Entity power | Section of . L.
given to RTRR Description
Lessor 50(4) Power to withdraw the lessor's consent to notices being given to them via
facsimile or email by giving notice to the other party.
Lessor 50(6) Power to give a notice to the other party of the lessor's new address for
service, facsimile number or email address.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation
2009
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SCHEDULE 4 - ROOMING ACCOMMODATION AGREEMENTS
Part 2 - Standard Terms
Division 1 — Preliminary

Entity power | Section of . L.
given to RTRR Description
Provider 2(4) Power to agree with a resident on other terms of a rooming accommodation
agreement (special terms).
Division 2 — Period of rooming accommodation agreement
Entity power | Section of
glven 1o RTRR Description
Provider 4(2) Power to prepare, sign and give a resident a copy of a condition report.
Division 3 — Rent
Entity power | Section of s
given to RTRR Description
Provider 6(3)(b)(i) | Power to agree with the resident, a way to pay rent.
and (ii)
Provider 6(5) Power to give a notice to the resident stating a different place for payment of
rent.
Provider 8(1) Power to give notice to the resident of a proposal to increase rent.
Provider 9(2) Power to agree with the resident, decrease in amount of rent payable.
Provider 10(2) Power to agree with the resident to reduce rent for the period of an absence.
Division 4 — Rental bond
Entity power | Section of N
given to RTRR L e
Provider 11(2) Power to give a notice to an authority a notice about a rental bond.
Provider 21(2) Power to, in writing, agree to the resident attaching a fixture or making a
structural change.
Provider 22 Power to enter a resident's room only if the obligations under sections 257 to
262 have been complied with.
Division 7 — When agreement ends
Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR Ll
Provider 23(1)(a) Power to agree in writing with a resident that an agreement ends.
Provider 23(1)(b) Power to give a notice to leave rental premises to the resident.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation
2009

Page (72)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

Division 9 — Miscellaneous

Entity power | Section of A
given to RTRR izl Al
Provider 29(4) Power to withdraw consent to the provider being given notices by facsimile or
email.

Power to change the provider's address for service, facsimile number or email

Provider 29(6)
by notice to the other party.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation

2008
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Schedule 2
Limitations and Conditions to the Exercise of Power

1. Where Council in its budget or by resolution allocates an amount for the expenditure of
Council funds in relation to a particular matter, the delegate in exercising delegated power
in relation to that matter, will only commit the Council to reasonably foreseeable
expenditure up to the amount allocated.

2. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the
delegate's knowledge, adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's
relations with the public at large.

3. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has
already been the subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy
decision relating to the matter).

4. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the
foreseeable affect, of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

5. The delegate will only exercise any delegated power under this resolution in a manner
which complies with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of
power which involves a departure from or variation of those requirements will only be
undertaken by Council.

6. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power which cannot lawfully be the subject of
delegation by Council.

Instrument of Delegation
Residential Tenancies and Rooming Accommodation Regulation
2009
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COUNCIL DELEGATIONS TO
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Instrument of Delegation -
Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 7
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Rockhamp

Regional*Council

INSTRUMENT OF DELEGATION

Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990

Under section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
resolves to delegate the exercise of the powers contained in Schedule 1 to the Chief Executive

Officer.

These powers must be exercised subject to the limitations contained in Schedule 2.

All prior resolutions delegating the same powers to the Chief Executive Officer are repealed.

Instrument of Delegation Gurrent as at 1 July 2014

Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990
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Schedule 1
Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990 ("FESA")

Part 9B - Review of Notices
Entity power | Section of . ..

given to FESA Description
Local 104SG(2) | Power to nominate persons as assessors.
government
Local 104Sl1(2)(b) | Power to nominate persons as assessors to assist QCAT in proceedings
government (i) mentioned in s104SG(1).
Part 10 - Funding

Division 1 - Interpretation

Entity power | Section of A

given to FESA LI Al
Local 105(1) In the specified circumstances, power to determine that a portion of a parcel of
government ‘Prescribed | !and separately held by an owner should be classed as a separate parcel for

property’ | the purposes of Part 10 of the Fire and Rescue Service 1990.
paragraph
(b)
Division 2 - Funding for Urban Fire Brigades

Entity power | Section of . ..

given to FESA Description
Local 112(2) In the specified circumstances, power to give the owner of each prescribed
government property within its area a levy notice.
Local 113(6) In certain circumstances, power to amend or revoke a levy licence and give a
government new levy licence.
Local 117(3) In the specified circumstances, the power to decide the way in which Council
government keeps the administration fee.
Local 121(2) Power to refuse an application to pay an outstanding amount in instalments or
government grant an application to pay an outstanding amount in instalments subject to

any conditions thought fit.
Local 126(1) Power to, by notice in writing, require an owner of prescribed property to pay
government an amount not exceeding an amount representing the prescribed per centum
of the amount of arrears, by way of collection fee.

CHAPTER 4 - STATE EMERGENCY SERVICE, EMERGENCY SERVICE UNITS AND
AUTHORISED RESCUE OFFICERS

Part1 - State Emergency Service
Division 3 - Membership in SES Units

Entity power | Section of A
given to FESA Description
Local 134(2) Power to nominate a local controller of an SES unit.
government
Instrument of Delegation Current as at 1 July 2014

Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990
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Division 5 — Agreements

Entity power | Section of A

given to FESA iz Al
Local 140 Power to enter an agreement with the Commissioner that sets out
government responsibilities of each party in relation to the SES in the local government's

area.

Part 2 - Emergency Service Units
Entity power | Section of et

given to FESA Kssqription
Local 146(2) Power to nominate an ES unit co-ordinator of the ES unit.
government

Instrument of Delegation
Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990

Current as at 1 July 2014
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Schedule 2

Limitations and Conditions to the Exercise of Power

1. Where Council in its budget or by resolution allocates an amount for the expenditure of Council funds
in relation to a particular matter, the delegate in exercising delegated power in relation to that matter,
will only commit the Council to reasonably foreseeable expenditure up to the amount allocated.

2. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which, to the delegate's
knowledge adversely affects, or is likely to adversely affect, the Council's relations with the public at
large.

3. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in relation to a matter which has already been the
subject of a resolution or other decision of the Council (including a policy decision relating to the
matter).

4. The delegate will not exercise any delegated power in a manner, or which has the foreseeable affect,
of being contrary to an adopted Council policy or procedure.

5. The delegate will only exercise a delegated power under this resolution in a manner which complies
with the requirements of Council's Planning Scheme and any exercise of power which involves a
departure from or variation of those requirements will only be undertaken by Council.

6. The delegate will not exercise any power which cannot lawfully be the subject of delegation by
Council.

Instrument of Delegation Gurrent as at 1 July 2014
Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990
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8.3 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

File No: 647

Attachments: 1. Growing Central Queensland map
Authorising Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer

Author: Rick Palmer - Manager Economic Development
SUMMARY

This report outlines the economic development activities in which Rick Palmer and Jane
Whyte have been involved in over the last two months.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT Council adopt the draft Terms of Reference to develop an economic development
strategy and seek a suitable consultant to undertake the study.

COMMENTARY
Economic Development Strategy

Rick Palmer has developed Terms of Reference to contract a consultant to undertake an
economic development strategy for Council. It's possible to have this strategy completed by
31 March 2015.

The strategy will contain a new economic development strategy to guide future activities for
the Rockhampton Region and provide the basis for future, sustainable economic growth.

It will also review the way in which economic development activities are allocated and
undertaken by a number of different organisations within the Rockhampton Region.

Indications are the strategy could cost $40,000-$70,000 (ex GST) depending on the level of
detail in research, consultation, reporting and presentations. | have suggested much of the
planning has already been completed by Council in Towards 2050 and the community and
regional land use plans.

A copy of the draft terms of reference are attached to this report.
Agricultural Production

A copy of the outline for Growing Central Queensland is attached to this report. While this
project is now being driven by Regional Development Australia Fitzroy & Central West
(RDAFCW), Council has put a great deal of effort into bringing this project, and particularly
the agricultural opportunities which arise from the construction of the Rookwood weir and the
raising of the Eden Bann Weir, to the notice of the Federal and State Governments.

The overall project, and particularly the two weirs, now have the attention of the Federal and
State Governments. Both weirs have been listed in the Federal Government’s Northern
Australia Green Paper and the aligned Agricultural Competitiveness Green Paper.

RDAFCW has followed up the submissions made by it and Council at the Queensland
Government’s Community Cabinet meeting held in North Rockhampton on 14 September
2014 and had further discussions with the Queensland Government.

| have drafted submissions to the White Paper on Developing Northern Australia and the
Agricultural Competitiveness White Paper which have been adopted by Council. Both have
been submitted.

CQUniversity Australia’s Agricultural Research

CQUniversity Australia has had considerable success with their agricultural research in
recent years. In spite of this the University had been excluded from funding available for this
type of research through the proposed $150M Commonwealth-funded collaborative research
group looking into Agriculture in Northern Australia.
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Rick Palmer attended a dinner at the University on 22 October 2014 which highlighted the
breadth of community support which the University has for inclusion in that program.

The following day Deputy Mayor, Councillor Tony Williams and Rick Palmer spoke with Mike
Gearin who heads the group seeking to establish the CRC, and reinforced the useful parts
which CQU can play. We also outlined the steps which Council had taken regarding both
weirs and the surrounding agricultural areas.

Cattle Transport through Rockhampton

Councillor Williams and Rick Palmer met with Bill Sauer, Regional Manager for JBS
Australia on 17 September 2014. One issue which arose during this discussion was the
possibility of improving the transport of cattle through Rockhampton.

Rick Palmer is in the process of arranging a meeting with JBS, Teys Bros, Department of
Transport & Main Roads and Council officers to see if the transport of cattle through
Rockhampton can be materially improved. This meeting should be held in December 2014.

Other Agricultural Related Activities

Rick Palmer attended the ‘Ag in the Asian Century Conference’ in Toowoomba on 30
September 2014 and 1-2 October 2014.

The conference included an inspection of the 30,000 head Grasslands feedlot outside Dalby
as well a great opportunity to network with many organisations seeking to carry out
agricultural trade with Asia.

Rick Palmer attended the Major Projects Conference in Brisbane on 18 September 2014 and
spoke at the Central Queensland equivalent in Rockhampton on 19 November 2014. These
touched on the potential to expand agricultural production in Queensland and particularly
Central Queensland.

Defence

Rick Palmer drafted a submission for consideration by those compiling the Federal
Government’'s White Paper on Defence.

The submission focused on:
e Develop a discrete military precinct at the Rockhampton Airport;
¢ Relocate an Armoured Cavalry Regiment (ACR) to Parkhurst, North Rockhampton;

e Should the relocation of an ACR not be possible, construct storage in the Rockhampton
Region to facilitate support, including maintenance, for armoured vehicles, related
equipment and stores; and

e Use Port Alma for the importation of bulk explosive ordinance, which could then be stored
at the Bajool Explosives Facility.

This draft was adopted by Council and has since been submitted.
Proposed Queensland Capital Cities Program

Rick Palmer worked with the Mayor to develop terms of reference for this proposed program.
These are presently being considered by a working group of economic development officers.

International Hockey Championships

Cr Rutherford and Rick Palmer had a teleconference with the CEO of Hockey Australia on 7
November 2014 to discuss the possibility of Rockhampton hosting the Oceania Hockey
Championships in 2015. The event has mens and womens sections and is likely to include
three to five teams in both categories.

The Hockey Australia CEO said on a couple of occasions the Rockhampton Region was
high on their list of possible contenders.

A follow-up meeting is being held with the Rockhampton Hockey Association and Capricorn
Enterprise.
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Jane Whyte has carried out the following activities in the past month:

Rockhampton Regional Council

Gracemere Industrial Area — ongoing introductions as RRC Senior Resources Advisor to
Gracemere companies, and recruitment to Resource Industry Group general membership
and relevant working groups, where possible.

Maintenance of established relationships:

o Ongoing support of Gracemere industry Park through Gibb Group and Newcastle/
Hunternet companies — investment attraction visit postponed from October until early
2015

o LINK — Gracemere (Kele Property Group) still not proactively promoting currently

Parkhurst — meetings with resource sector suppliers (and others) with a view to co-
ordinating a business community meeting with Mayor Strelow before Christmas.

Made contact with Sibelco and Aurizon to propose single point of contact for key issues
and relationship building — awaiting choice of local manager.

Technology Park / precinct — Rockhampton CBD. Jane Whyte has participated in first
couple of meetings regarding the creation of a Techpark that combines with a technology
community with a view to:

1) Acting as a magnet and positioning Rockhampton as ready for the technological
advancements and megatrends;

2) providing a supporting environment in Rockhampton CBD — using upper rooms and
laneways in Rockhampton CBD for small scale niche tech companies.

Jane Whyte attended as the Council’s resources contact given the use of technology for
remote monitoring and servicing. The group also explored how Rockhampton could
become the service point for Central Queensland for this activity, and provide an
alternative employment base for mobile workforce of resource company / corprorates
(equally applicable).

Connect Rockhampton — designed to attract and retain resources / service families, and
connect those already here. Jane Whyte has approached Newcomers network to look at
application of existing model — meeting to be held in Adelaide during Christmas vacation.

This will be delivered through a volunteer system, external to Council, but with Council’s
endorsement and tie in to the Connect Rockhampton initiative. Idea is to run this through
the Rockhampton Region website and are recruiting ambassadors to cover community,
education, employment, sport, health, social, special interest, housing, investment,
industry opportunities, regional profile, events, accommodation and food and wine.

The meeting with Arrow Energy possibly incorporating a joint Council approach with
Gladstone and Isaac is an important opportunity. Arrow’s Rockhampton visit will take
place before Christmas, but was postponed from planned November date. Isaac and
Gladstone are interested in participating jointly and are going through the Council
approval process. Jane Whyte is in the process of preparing a report to seek Council’s
approval of this involvement.

Promotion and engagement - The Resources Q launch was postponed with no
rescheduled date yet announced. Local meeting with DSDIP (State) , Enterprise Connect
(Federal), Department of Industry (Federal) to look at Export Development Grants, Supply
chain facilitation programs, Entrepreneurs Infrastructure Program.

EDA national conference in Darwin — The Rockhampton presentation entitled Advance,
Grow, Prosper was well received.

Following approval from Rick Palmer, Jane Whyte applied and was voted onto the Board
of Economic Development Australia.
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This should provide the opportunity to profile Rockhampton ongoing, and at the next EDA
conference in Moreton Bay. It will also give the chance of using the national and
international instances of best practice.

Maintained industry connections/ various meetings while in Darwin. NT Department of
Primary Industries, NT Chamber of Commerce, Ithchys project via KBR Procurement,
Darwin Ports Corporation and Women In Resources, Katherine Mining Services
Association.

Schedule industry site visits — to begin early 2015 due to availability. Participation from
RIG members as well as Cr Fisher and RIG Board members.

LGAQ - Resource Communities Committee. KPMG report — case study presented at
conference in Mackay. Remote meetings only.

Capricornia Chamber of Commerce — activities co-ordination / organisation alignment —
introduction to Peter Fraser following the departure of Alan Anderson as President.

Resources Industry Group

Became incorporated
Additional new Board Member recruited — Barry Boland, Back on Track
Waiting to hear from QMRS re Foundation partnership (Board meeting this week)

Membership and sponsorship levels approved by Board — Board to proactively work with
Strategic Networks & Collaboration working group on recruitment. Various submissions
pending brand finalisation.

Working groups of Strategic Networks & Collaboration, Infrastructure Transport and
Logistics, Resources education and Environment and Community formed and have met
twice.

Following Community Cabinet — applications to DSDIP and DNRM have been developed
and awaiting formatting to new brand

Web site — Coaltrain were unable to progress options. Scope of work sent out by
Strategic Networks and collaboration to seven local companies. Board will approve
choice week commencing 17 November 2014.

Project Summaries — collating project information and matrix of relationship management
— being progressed through the Board and Working groups.

Brisbane meetings organised with Anglo American, Adani and additional juniors.
Queensland Gas Conference - 25 & 26 November 2014.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ACTIVITIES

Growing Central Queensland Map

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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Growing Central Queensland
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8.4 AUDIT COMMITTEE FEBRUARY 2015 MEETING DATE

File No: 5207

Attachments: Nil

Authorising Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author: John Wallace - Chief Audit Executive
SUMMARY

To enable maximum flexibility of attendees to attend Audit Committee meetings, it is
suggested that preferred dates should be solicited but not formally adopted in future.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That the original decision to hold the next meeting in February 2015 be rescinded, in favour
of allowing all attendees flexibility to attend in March, with the anticipated date being Friday
20 March 2015.

BACKGROUND

At the Audit and Business Improvement Committee meeting held on 10 September 2014 it
was resolved “That the next Audit and Business Improvement Committee Meeting be
scheduled for early February 2015.”

Unfortunately the majority of members are unable to attend a meeting in February and the
date of Friday 20 March 2015 from 10am to 2pm appears to be the most suitable date at this
stage, but still requires confirmation from all members.

It is now necessary to rescind the previous motion and it is recommended that in future the
Committee should not formally adopt preferred dates for future Committee meetings.
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8.5 ADOPTION OF 2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

File No: 5042

Attachments: 1. 2013-14 Annual Report

Responsible Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author: Shane Turner - Manager Governance Support
SUMMARY

Content for the 2013/14 Annual Report is submitted for Council’s consideration and
approval.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation
2012 and the Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008, the 2013/14 Annual Report as
presented be adopted.

COMMENTARY

The Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 require Council to
prepare an Annual Report and adopt the report within 1 month after the day the Auditor-
General gives the Auditor-General’s report about the local government’s financial statement
for the financial year to the local government. Council received the auditor-general’s report
on 30 October 2014.

Attached for Council’'s consideration is the 2013/14 Annual Report, which incorporates the
Annual Reports for Council’s commercial business activities Fitzroy River Water (FRW) and
Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling (RRWR). The 2013/14 Annual Report also
includes detailed information on the Rockhampton Airport which became a commercial
business unit on 1 July 2012.

As per the Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008, a Local Government may include
the required information in its annual report prepared under the Local Government Act 2009.
The Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 requires that Water Service Providers
present an annual report on the approved Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) and
Customer Service Standard (CSS); all legislative content has been incorporated into the
Rockhampton Regional Council Annual Report.

Additional RRWR information to what is legislatively required under the Local Government
Act 2009 has been included in the Annual Report in order to maintain existing standards of
best practice.

LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT
Section 182 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 states:
(1) A local government must prepare an annual report for each financial year.

(2) The local government must adopt its annual report within 1 month after the day the
auditor-general gives the auditor-general’s audit report about the local government’s
financial statements for the financial year to the local government.

Section 190 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 states:
(1) An annual report for a financial year must contain the following information:
(c) an annual operations report for each commercial business unit.
(2) In this section —

annual operations report, for a commercial business unit means a document that
contains the following information for the previous financial year —
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(a) information that allows an informed assessment of the unit’s operations, including
a comparison with the unit’s annual performance plan;

(b) particulars of any changes made to the unit's annual performance plan for the
previous financial year;

(c) particulars of the impact the changes had on the unit's —
() financial position; and
(i) operating surplus or deficit; and
(iii) prospects;
(d) particulars of any directions the local government gave the unit.
Section 141 of the Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 states:

(4)(a)(i) the local government includes the information mentioned in section 142 in its
annual report prepared under the Local Government Act; and

(4)(a)(ii) the local government gives a copy of the report to the regulator within 30
business days after the report is adopted.

CONCLUSION

The 2013/2014 Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with legislation.
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ADOPTION OF
2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT

2013-14 Annual Report

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT

For the year ended 30 June 2014

The Community Financial Report provides an easy to read summary and analysis of Council's general purpose
financial statements for the 2013/2014 financial year.

De-Amalgamation of Livingstone Shire Council

The de-amalgamation of Livingstone Shire Council from Rockhampton Regional Council occurred on 1 January
2014 as per the Local Government (De-amalgamation Implementation) Regufation 2013. Within the general
purpose financial statements, the results for the Livingstone Shire Council area are shown under ‘Discontinued

Operations’ (refer to Note 14 in the Audited Financial Statements).

Simplified Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet) as at 30 June 2014

$M
How much council has in the bank 86.9
How much council owns 1,850.3
How much council is owed 18.4
Total Assets 1,955.6
How much council owes suppliers and employees 61.9
How much council has borrowed 157.9
Total Liabilities 219.8
Net Community Assets (Wealth) 1,735.8

The simplified balance sheet shows the value of the community's assets at the close of the 2013/14 financial
year. This is calculated by Total Assets — Total Liabilities = Net Community Assets.

At the end of the 2013/14 financial year, Council held cash of approximately $10.4 million on behalf of
Livingstone Shire Council. This amount as well as accrued interest was subsequently transferred to Livingstone
Shire Council on 15 August 2014.

The de-amalgamation transaction transferred $859 million of net Assets and Liabilities to Livingstone Shire
Council (refer to Note 34 in the Audited Financial Statements). The transfer of Assets and Liabilities was
completed in accordance with the methodology adopted by the Transfer Committee and has been audited by
delegates of the Queensland Audit Office as part of the audit of the Financial Statements.
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Simplified Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2014

™
Rockhampton Regional Council (excluding Livingstone Shire Council area)
Operational results:
Total operating revenue 180.0
Less operating expenses:
Employee benefits (63.1)
Materials and services (43.4)
Finance costs (9.7)
Depreciation and amortisation (43.4)
Net operational resuit — RRC 20.4
Other results:
Capital grants, subsidies, contributed assets and other capital income 52.0
Less write-off of assets and other capital expenses {9.5)
Plus increase in non-current asset values on revaluation 67.1
Less loss on restructure of local government (859.0)
Net other results - RRC (749.4)
Net result - RRC (729.0)
Livingstone Shire Council (shown as discontinued operations)
Total revenue 51.7
Less tolal expenses (25.7)
Net result - LSC 26.0
Comprehensive loss for the year - decrease in Community Equity (Wealth) (703.0)

Council's net operational surplus of $20.4 million was above the revised budget surplus of $13.1
million. In preparing for de-amalgamation, Rockhampton Regional Council implemented measures to
improve its operating position. This was achieved through a leaner organisational structure and by
reviewing the way in which services are delivered. The 2014/15 operational surplus is budgeted at
$4.6 million, and will be closely monitored against the results achieved during the 2013/14 and
2014/15 years.

Income — Where our money comes from...

To provide services to the community, Council must collect income. Council's total income in 2013/14
was $231.9 million. Rates, levies and utility charges are Council's principal source of revenue and
represent approximately 50% of Council’s revenue in 2013/14. Council also generates income from
fees and charges, undertakes recoverable works and receives funding in the form of grants and
subsidies from both State and Federal Government, to help construct and maintain the extensive
infrastructure assets and provide community development programs to the region.

For the 2013/2014 financial year, 22% of Council's total income was comprised of capital grants,
subsidies and contributions. This ‘income’ was mainly non-monetary in the form of contributed
infrastructure assets from new land subdivisions.
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Other Capital

Income by Category 2013/2014

Income
0%
Capital Grants, General Rates
Subsidies & 19%
Contributions

22%

Separate/Special
rates and charges
6%

QOther Recurrent
Income
3%

Interest Received

2%
Water Charges
Sales Revenue 11%

5%

Operating Grants,
Subsidies &
Contributions
6%

Sewerage Charges
9%
Fees & Charges
11% Environmental Levy
1%

Expenses — Where our money is spent...

Council's operational and capital expenses as per the Statement of Comprehensive Income totalled
$169.0 million for the 2013/2014 financial year. The three largest items of Council's expenditure are
employee benefits (37%), materials and services (26%), and depreciation and amortisation (26%).
Council's expenditure is constantly monitored via a rigorous budget process. Detailed estimates are
prepared prior to the start of the financial year, and reviewed throughout the year to ensure that funds
are utilised efficiently.

Council requires a large workforce to provide the many and diverse services to our community. We
also need to plan and monitor for the future of the Rockhampton Region in respect of developments,
so that our lifestyle is maintained and improved.

Council spends considerable funds on materials and services to operate effectively. In accordance
with Council’'s Purchasing Policy, we give some preference to local businesses when work is tendered
to external suppliers. As well as being a large employer in the community, it makes sound economic
sense to keep our money circulating in the region for the benefit of all who live here.

Depreciation and amortisation is the method of allocating the cost of an asset over the asset’s
estimated useful life. Through the accurate calculation and allocation of depreciation and
amortisation, we are confident that we will have the necessary funds to renew our existing assets.

In comparing the total expenditure of Council from this year to last, it can be seen that total
expenditure is approximately $4 million less than last financial year. Council is constantly striving to
identify efficiencies and ensure value for money.

Page (92)

25 NOVEMBER 2014



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA

25 NOVEMBER 2014

Expenditure by Category 2013/2014
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What are our Assets?

The total value of Council's assets at the end of 2013/2014 was $1,956 million. Infrastructure assets
such as roads and drainage, water and sewerage, buildings and land comprise 94% of total assets,
with the remaining 6% being cash held in bank accounts and investments and money owed to Council

from its customers.

The following graph details the $1,832 million of community infrastructure owned and managed by

Council:
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Investment in Infrastructure - Capital Works

The capital works program for the 2013/2014 year totalled approximately $86.3 million including
works completed in the Livingstone Shire Council area for the period from July to December 2013,
This expenditure represents a commitment to sound asset management practices by directing funding
towards new assets and the renewal of existing assets.

Significant projects undertaken in 2013/14 were:

« Completion of Stage 2 - 2" World War Memorial Aquatic Centre (new grandstand and shade
structures)

e Continued work on Stage 3 at the 2™ World War Memorial Aguatic Centre which includes a

25m heated pool, learn to swim pool and new entry building to house amenities

Reseal and rehabilitation program to road and drainage network

Repairs to road infrastructure from Oswald Flood Event in January 2013

Replacement and upgrade program of the region’s water and sewerage mains

Upgrades to the Glenmore Water Treatment Plant

Lakes Creek Landfill Transfer Station - Stage 3

Airport runway lighting upgrades

« e e e

What do we owe?

Liabilities are amounts that Council owes to others totalling approximately $219.8 million at 30 June
2014. Council’s liabilities comprise loan borrowings, amounts owing to suppliers for goods and
services, amounts owing to employees for leave entitlements, carbon tax, and obligations to
rehabilitate quarries and landfills.

Council's borrowings at the end of 2013/2014 totalled $157.9 million, some $2.7 million less than at 30
June 2013. The level of Council’'s debt is regularly reviewed as a component of the Long Term
Financial Forecast. Council is committed to underlake a responsible borrowing program to fund new
major assets to service the community's needs.

Interest expense on loans totalled 5.0% of total operating income, which is within the sustainable
range provided by the Department of Local Government. In the Long Term Financial Forecast this
indicator improves over time.

Financial Sustainability Ratios

An important indication in determining the financial health of Council is to calculate and review
financial indicators or financial ratios. These ratios further assist in understanding the financial
performance and position of Council, without reviewing all of the details contained within the Financial
Statements.

There are three measure of financial sustainability specified in the Local Government Regulation
2012. These have been calculated for the 2013/2014 year and are shown below together with
projected ratios as per Council's adopted Long Term Financial Forecast.

Operating Surplus Ratio — Target Benchmark between 0% and 10%

This ratio indicates the relationship between Council’'s operational result and total operating income,
expressed as a percentage. It is an indication of Council's ability to fund its day-to-day operations. A
result of up to 10% means that surplus income is available after Council has paid for the cost of
delivering all its services to the community. Council's ratio of 11.4% for 2013/14 indicates that
Council had a strong operational result for the year.

Council's long-term financial forecast shows the ratio moving back into the target range from
2014/2015.
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Asset Sustainability Ratio — Target Benchmark greater than 90%

This ratio indicates whether Council is renewing or replacing its existing assets at the same time that
its overall stock of assets is wearing out, expressed as a percentage. Council's asset management
plans continue to place emphasis on renewal works and at each annual budget Council has to
determine an appropriate balance between renewal projects as well as meet the requirements for our
growing community. In the 2013/14 year, more expenditure was invested into growth capital
expenditure which resulted in the ratio falling below target for the year. The forward ratios are well
above the target range demonsfrating commiiment to the long term management of current
infrastructure assets.
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Net Financial Liabilities / Revenue Ratio — Target Benchmark not greater than 60%

This ratio indicates the extent to which Council’s debts can be met by its operating income, expressed
as a percentage. A result of less than 60% indicates that Council has capacity to fund its liabilities
and has the capacity to increase its loan borrowings if required. Whilst the short to medium forecast
period is not within the target ratio, it is managed and controlled to move within the target benchmark
range within the forecast period.

Net Financial Liabilities / Revenue Ratio
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Looking to the Future

The Rockhampton Regional Council has worked through the challenges of the de-amalgamation
process and remains in a solid financial position with a bright future.

On-going long term cash flow planning, sound budgeting and extensive strategic financial planning
feature significantly on Council's calendar. These actions allow Council flexibility to adjust to the
needs of the community whilst ensuring the sustainability of the organisation as the landscape
continues to change.
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Stat t of Comprehensive |
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 Restated 2013
Note $ $
Continuing operations
income
Recurrent revenue
Rates, levies and charges 3Ha) 116,994,729 103,038,704
Fees and charges 3(b} 25,510,203 23,950,058
Interest received 3(c) 3,671,158 3,094,137
Sales revenue 3(d) 12,201,632 11,615,571
Othner recurrent income 3(e) 7,129,349 7,114,184
Grants, subsidies and contributions 4(a) 14,476,055 12,688,322
179,983,026 161,500,976
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies and contributions 4(b) 51,762,850 36,551,652
Total revenue 231,745,876 198,052,628
Capital income 5 187 437 1,023,676
Total income from continuing operations 231,933,313 199,076,304
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits 7 (63,056,569) (68,193,257}
Malerials and services 8 (43,393,227) (45,907 ,645)
Finance costs 9 (9,653,666) (9,095,858)
Depreciation and amortisation 10 (43,430,070) (41,602,036)
(159,533,532) (164,798,596)
Capital expenses 11 (9,464,289) (8,333,357)
Loss on restructure of local government 34 (859,080,932} -
Tolal exp from continuing operations (1,028,078,753) (173,131,953)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year from continuing operations (796,145,440) 25,944,351
Discontinued operations
Surplus/(deficit) for the year from discontinued operations 14 25,997 851 (2,153,663)
Net result attributable to Council (770,147,589) 23,790,688
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified 1o net result
Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 28 67,139,608 (14,068,394)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 67,139,608 (14,069,394)
Total comprehensive income for the year (703,007,381} 9,721,294

Council has made a retrospective restalement as a consequence of correction of prior period error(s) and therefors, in accordance with
AASB 161 has presenied restated comparative information in the prior reporting period. Details are disclosed in Note 38 and 14.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.

QAQ
cerlified statements
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2014
2014 Restated 2013
Note $ $
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 29,899,637 14,666,355
Investments 16 57,000,000 59,000,000
Trade and other receivables 7 18,407,067 15,970,194
Inventories 18 1,730,165 1,459,135
107,036,869 91,094,684
Assets classified as held for sale and transfer 19 14,100,261 940,828,495
Total current assets 121,137,130 1,031,923,179
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 20 1,832,457,668 1,712,598,678
Intangible assels 22 2,048,277 1,670,531
Total non-current assets 1,834,505,935 1,714,569,209
TOTAL ASSETS 1,955,643,085 2,746,492,388
Current liabllities
Trade and other payables 23 33,536,769 16,949,389
Provisions 24 12,167,403 12,209,197
Borrowings 25 14,407,449 13,267,455
Other liablilities 26 533,319 317,378
60,664,940 42,743,419
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as 19
held for sale and transfer 101,669,972
Total current liabilities 60,664,940 144,413,391
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 24 13,153,563 14,659,220
Borrawings 25 143,495,888 147,334,972
Other liabilities 26 2472,710 1,220,860
Total non-current liabillties 159,122,161 163,215,052
TOTAL LIABILITIES 219,787,101 307,628,443
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS 1,735,855,964 2,438,863,945
Community equity
Retained surplus 27 1,221,687,076 1,963,537,727
Asset revaluation surplus 28 457,465,006 390,325,398
Obfiei rasanvs 29 56,703,882 85,000,820
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 1,735,855,964 2,438,863,945
Council has made a relrospeclive reslalemen! as a consequence of correclion of prior period error(s) and therefore, in
accordance with AASBE 101 has pr warative information in the prior reporting peried. Details are disclosed
in Note 38 and 19.

The above statement should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying nofes and Significant Accounting Policies.

QAO
certified statements
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Total Retainad surplus/(deficiancy} Asset revaluation surplus Other reserves
Mote 27 Note 28 Note 29
2014 Restated 2013 2014 Restated 2013 2014 Restated 2013 2014 2013
3 $ $ 3 $ $ $ $
Balance at beginning of year 2,438,863,945 2,425,890,116 1,963,537,727 1,952,178,181 390,325,398 398,495,279 85,000,820 75,216,986
Adjustment to opening balance - 3,252,205 - (2,647,308)) - 5,899,513 -
Reslated balances 2,438,863.945 2,429.142.,651 1,963,537,727 1,949,530,873 390,325,398 404,394,792 85.000.820 75,216,986
Net result attributable to Council (770,147,589)] 23,790,688 (770,147.589) 23,790,688 o = o -
Other comprehensive income for the year | - B
Adjustment 1o asset revaluation surplus: i | o o o
Property, plant & equipment 67,139,608 (14,069,394} - - 67,139,608 {14,069,394)] - -
Total p 1sive for year (703,007,881) 9,721,294 (770,147,589) 23,790,688 67,139,608 (14,069,394 . .
Transfers to and from reserves i - .
Transfers from general reserves - 58,163,753 31,065,105 - - (58,163,753 (31,065,105
Transters to general reserves - - (29,866,815) (40,848,939l - - 29,866,815 40,848,939
Total transfers to and from reserves - - 28,296,938 (9,783,834} - - (28,295,938} 9.783,834
Balance at end of year 1,735,855,964 2,438,863,945 1.221,687.076 1,963,537.727 457,465,006 390,325.398 56,703,882 85.000.820
Council has made a ret ive f asa of correction of prior period error(s) and therelore, in accordance with AASE 101 has pi restated camp i jon in the prior reporting
period. Detalls are disclosed in Nole 38.
The above statement should be read in conji with the wanying notes and Si ing Folicies,
2
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 2014 Restated 2013
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates, levies and charges 141,850,260 152,614,656
Fees and charges 28,378,088 29,348,318
Grants, subsidies and contributions 15,750,053 17,349,645
Interest received 4,819,030 5,820,437
Other income 21,000,424 22,265,444
Net GST paid 191,442 420,066
Payments to suppliers (49,626,140) (63,773,389)
Payments to employees (75,939,211) (92,169,777)
Interest expense (11,318,546} (12,733,551)
Net cash Inflow from operating activities 35 75,105,400 59,150,849
Cash flows from investing activities
Government subsidies and grants 16,040,634 8,407,985
Capital contributions 10,417 141 6,969,914
Payments for property, plant and equipment (86,554,353) (80,199,169)
Payments for intangible assets (644,590) (1,089,821)
Net transfer from/(10) cash investments 35,000,000 (56,000,000)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 1,875,404 2,435,925
Transfer on restructure of local government 34 (33,003,070) -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (56,868,834) (119,475,166)
Cash flows from financing actlvitles
Proceeds from borrowings 10,306,321 38,400,000
Repayment of borrowings (16,159,797) (18,469,477)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (5,853,476) 19,830,523
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 12,383,090 (40,393,794)
Cash at beginning of reporting year 27,897,808 68,291,602
Cash at end of reporting year 15 40,280,898 27,897,808

Council has made a refrospective restatement as a consequence of correction of prior period emor(s} and therelore, in
accordance with AASB 101 has p ted restaled comp ive information in the prior reporting period.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the ying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1 Significant accounting policles

1.1 Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2013 ta 30 June 2014 and have been prepared
in compliance with 1he requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012.
Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all Australian Accounting
Standards, Australian Accounling Inierpretations and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of
certain non-cutrent assets.

1.2 Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and inlerpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to Council's operations and effective for the curment
reporting period. Because the Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards inciude
requirements for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent with International Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRS),
to the extent these inconsislencies are applied, these financial statements do not comply with IFRS. The main
impacis are the offsetting of revaluation and impairment gains and losses wilhin a class of assets, and the timing of
the recognition of non-reciprocai grant revenue.

1.3 Constitution

The Reckhampton Regional Ceuncil is constituted under the O land Local Go Act 2009 and s
domiciled in Australia.

1.

o

Date of authorisation
The financial statements were authorised for issue on tne date they were submitled to the Auditor-General for final
signature. This is the date the managemenl cerificate is signed.

1.5 Currency
The Council uses the Australian Dollar as its functicnal currency and its presentation currency,

1.6 Adoption of new and 1 A ting Standards

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board {AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period.
The adoption of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any material changes to
Councii's accounting policies. However the Application of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8
Amendments 1o Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 for the first time this year has resulted in
greater disclosures,

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in issue
but not yet effective:

Etfective for annual report
periods beginning on or
after:
AASB 9 Financial s (D ber 2009) 1 January 2017
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2014
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 1 Jaruary 2014
AASB 12 Disclosure of interests in other eniities 1 January 2014
AASB 127 Separale Financial Statements (replaces the exisling standard together 1 January 2014
with AASB 10}
AASB 128 [nvesiments in Associates and Joint Ventures (replaces the existing 1 January 2014
standard)
AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 1 July 2014
fg;.:;:b:.rm;rg‘;?ents fo Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 1 January 2015
: " . . .
?gfci ;g;?z'.’o):;?andmenrs o Accounting arising from AASB 9 1 January 2015
AASB 2011-7 A s to / 1A ing 8 arising from the .
= idation and Joint A nts Standards d J-Jarinary 2014
AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian A ing Standards — Offsetti
Financial Assats and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
[AASB 132}

Page &
~ QAO
certified statements

Page (101)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

AASB 2013-1 Amendments to AASB 1048 - Relocation of Budgeiary Reporting 1 July 2014
Requiremants
AASB 2013-3 Amendments fo AASB 136 — Ay ble Amount Disci for 1 January 2014
Non-Financial Assets Y
AASE 20134 A o ian Accounting Standards — Novation of i

i January 2014

Derivatives and Cantinuation of Hedge Accounting [AASE 133)
AASB 2013-5 Amendments to Austrafian Accounting Standards — Investment

Entities JAASB 1, AASB 3, AASB 7, AASB 10, AASE 12, AASB 107, AASB 112, 1 January 2014
AASE 124, AASB 127, AASB 132, AASB 134 & AASE 139)

AASB 2013-8 Amendments fo AASE 136 arising from Reduced Disclosure 1 January 2014
Requirements v
AASB 2013-7 Amendments fo AASB 1038 arising from AASB 10 in relation to 1 Jansary 2014
consolication and i of policyholders [AASB 1036] van
AASB 2013-8 A fo A lian A niing Standards -

implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities — Conirol and Structured Entities 1 January 2014

JAASB 10, AASE 12 & AASE 1049]

AASB2013-8 Amendments to Austrafian Accounting Standards — Conceptual

Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments Refer Title calumn
[Operative dates: Part A Conceptual Framework — 20 Dec 2013; Part B Materiality —

1 Jan 2014; Part C Financial Instruments — 1 Jan 2015)

Interpretation 21 Levies 1 January 2014
B 9 Fin L3 ts (e tive fre 15]

AASB 8, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is efiective for reporling
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 and must be applied relrospectively. The main impact of AASE 9 isto
change the requirements for the classilication, measurement and disclosures associated with financial assets. Under
the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets slipulated in AASB 139 will be replaced with two
measurement categories: fair value and amortised cost and financial assets will only be able to be measured at
amortised cost where very specific conditions are met.

idation Sta
The following accounting slanda.rds apply to Gouncll from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014:
AASB 10 Gy i
AASB 11 Jow.qfrangmnfs
AASB 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Enlities
AASB 127 Sep Financial St;
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint
Arrangements Standards
AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian A ing Standards - A lian fmple ior Guidance for Not-for-
Profit Entitias - Control and Struciured Entlities

These slandards aim lo improve the accounting requirements for censoll {i i s, joint
arrangements and off balance sheel vehicles.

AASB 12 the di i nts for inlerests in other entities including unconsolidated structured
entities. While the Council is yet o plete a review of disc) ne sigrificant changes are anticipated, based en
those presently made

1.7 Critlcal accounting jud ts and key of estimation uncertalnty
In the application of Council's ting pelicies, t is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions aboul carrymg values of asse'rs and Habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
timates and ions are based on historical experience and other factors thal are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may dHIer from these estimates. The eslimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on
an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimate is revised
and in fulure periods as relevant.

Judgements, estimates and assumplions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial
statement notes:

Discontinued operations - Note 1.15 and Note 14

Assets classified as held for sale - Note 1.17 and Note 18

Veluation of property, plant and equipment - Note 1.18(c) and Note 20

Impairment of property, plant and equipment - Note 1.21 and Note 20

Provisions - Note 1.24 (e}, Note 1.26 and Note 24

Conlingencies - Note 31 and Note 36

Capital Income - Note 5

Captial Expenses - Note 11
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PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1.8 Reporting entities
Tne financial statements include the value of all revenues, expenses, assets, liabilties and equity of the Council.

The following controlled entities are not consolidated with the Council's financial statemenls as the transactions and
balances are not material to the Council's operations.

The Rockhampton Art Gallery Trust

The Rockhampton Art Gallery Trusl's operations are audited by the Auditor-General of Queensland. The financial
slatements receive a qualfied audit opinion, as is normal for organisations of this lype, because it cannot
demonsirate thal il has identif'ed and recorded all revenue from donations.

The resulls for the 2013714 financial year are as follows:

Art Gallery
r - _'E'ou—i 2013
! $ | $
L
Freceipls 51200 | 28,695
Disbursements {48.433) | (55,345)
Net surplus/deticit 2857 |  (26,650)
l
| Assets es712 | 65,854
Liabiities L
Net assets | eer2 | esess

1.8 Revenue

Rales, levies, grants and other reveniue are recogrised as revenue on receipt of funds or eariier upon unconditional
entitlernent to the funds,

(a) Rates, levies and charges

Where rate monigs are received prior 10 the commencement of the rating period, the amount is recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are received, otherwise rates are recognised at the commencement of the rating
period.

(b) Grants and subsidies

Grants, subsidies and confributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in which
Councii obtains control over them. An equivalent amount is transferred from relainea eamings to the relevant
reserve until the funds are expended. Unspent non-reciprocal capital grants are placed in the unspent or constrained
granis reserve.

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised over the term of the funding
arrangemenis. Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants.

(c) Non-cash contributions
MNon-casn contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue and as non-
current assets. Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses.

Physical assels coniributed 1o Council by developers in the form of road works, stormwaler, water and wastewater
infrastruclure and park assels are recognised as revenue when the development becomes “on mainlenance” (i.e.
Council cbtains control of the assets and becomes liable for any nngolng maintenance) and there is sufficient data in
the form of drawings and plans 1o d ine the ap i i and values of such assets. All non-cash
contributions are recognised at the fair value of 1ha contribution reoenrad on the date of acquisition.
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

(d) Cash Contributions
Council receives cash contributions from property developers to construct assets such as roads and footpaths and to
connect new propery developments to water and sewerage networks in the local government area. Where
agreements between Council and the developers relating to these contributions are determined to fall within the
scope of AASB Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers these contributions are recognised as revenue
when the related service obligations are fulfilled.

Developers may alsc make cash contributions towards the cost of constructing existing and proposed water supply
and sewerage headworks in accordance with Council's planning scheme policies. (Headworks inciude pumping
stations, treatment works, mains, sewers and water pollution control works). Cash contnibutions in relation to water
supply and sewerage headworks are nof within the scope of AASB Interpretation 18 because there is no performance
obligation associated with these conlributions. Consequently, these cash conlributions are recegnised as income
when received.

For new development applications, since the 3rd January 2012, developers pay infrastructure charges for trunk
infrastructure, such as pumping stations, treatment works, mains, sewers and water pollution control works. These
infrastructure charges are not within the scope of AASB Interpretation 18 because there is no performance obligation
associated with them. Consequently, those infrastruciure charges are recognised as income when received

(e) Interest received
Interest received from term depesits is accrued aver the term of the investment.

(f) Sales revenue

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer,
generally when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods.

The council generates revenues from a number of services including coniracts for road and earthworks. Revenue
from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an hourly
charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion cf the contract activity at the reporting date. Revenue is measured at the fair valve of
i received or r in relation to that activity. Where consideration is received for the service in
advance it is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service s performed.

(g) Fees and charges

Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this Is upon lodgement of
the relevant applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when the service is provided.

(h) Other recurrent income
Other revenue is recognised as a receivable when il is probable that it will be received and the amount is known,
otherwise the amount is recognised upon receipt. Rental revenue is recognised as income on a periodic straight line
basis over the lease term.

1.10 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in ils Statement of Financial Position when, and only when,
Council becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Rockhampton Regional Council has gorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
balance date as follows:

Einancial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1.11)

Investments (Note 1.12)

Trade and other receivables - measured at amontised cost {Note 1.13)

Financlal liabilities
Payables - measured al amorlised cost {Note 1.23)

Borrowings and borrowing costs - measured at amortised cost {Note 1.25)

Financial assels and financial liabililies are presented separalely from each other and offsetling has not been applied.
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The fair value of financia! instruments is determined as follows:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetary financial assets and financ'al Eabililies
approximate their carrying amounts and are not disclosed separately.

The fair value of borrowings, as disclosed in Note 25 to Lhe accounts, is determined by reference 1o published price
quatations in an active market and/or by reference to pricing models and valuation techniques. K reflects the value of
the debt if the Council repaid it in fuli at balance date. As it is the intention of the Council to nold its borrowings for
their full term, no adjustment provision is made in these accounts.

The fair value of trade receivables approximates the amortised cost less any impairment. The fair value of payables
approximates the amortised cost

Rockhampton Regional Councii does not recognise financial assets or financial liabilities at falr value in the
Statement of Financial Position.

All other disciosures relating to the measurement! and financia! risk managemeni of financial instruments are included
in Note 38.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalerts inciudes cash on hand, all cash and chegues receipted bui not banked at the year end,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, olher shod-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

1.12 Invesiments

Term deposits in excess of three months are reported as investments, with deposits of less than three months being
reporled as cash equivalents.

1.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade recsivables are recognised al the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase
price / conlract price. Setlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice dale.

The caollectability of receivables is d periodically and if there is objective evidence that Gouncil will not be able
10 collect all amounts due, the carrying amoun is reduced for impairment. The ioss is recognised in finance costs.
The amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated cash flows discounted at the effeclive interest rate.

All known bad debls were written-cff at 30 June, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off in the
same period are recognised as finance cosis in the Statement of Comprebensive Income. If an amount is recovered
in a subsequent period it is recognised as revenue.

Because Council has the power under the Local Gevernment Act 2009 to sell an owner's propery to recover
outstanding rate debts, Council will only impair rate receivabies when cutstanding debt ds unimproved capital
values.

Loans and advances are recognised in the same way as other receivables. Security is not normally obiained.

1.14 Inventories

Stores and raw materials held for resale are valued al the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where
applicable, direct material, direct labour and an appropriale porliorn cf variabie and fixed cverheads. Costs are
assigned on the basis of weighted average cost.

Inventories held for distribution (inlernal consumption) are:
+ goods to be supplied at ne, or nominal, charge, and
+ goods to be used for the provision of services at no, or neminal, charge.

Inveniory for distribution is valued at cost, adjusted when éppiicable for any !oss of service potential,
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the ysar ended 30 June 2014

1.15 Discontinued operations
The de-amalgamation of Livingstone Shire Council from Rockhampton Regional Council occurred as at 1 January
2014 as per the Local G (D g ion Impl jion) Regulation 2013. In line with AASB 5 Non-
Current Assets Haid for Sale and Discontinued Operations the revenue and exp of the di i peraticns
have been separated. Note 14 suppiies a summary of the operational results of the discontinued operations and
Note 34 supplies a summary of the assels and liabilities in the disposal which have been recorded in accordance with
AASB 3 Business Combinations .

1.16 Land held for resale
Land acquired with the intention of reseliing it (with or without further development) is classified as inventory. As
inventory this land is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Inventory land is treated as a current asse!
except where it is anticipated that a material portion of land value will not be sold within 12 months.,

Profit arising upon sale of land is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the signing of a valid
unconditional contract of sale.

1.17 Other assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their camying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale or disposal process, rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale or disposal is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale or disposal in its present condition. Management musi be committed to the sale or disposal, and/or
directed by law or regulation, which should be expected lo qualify for recognition as a completed sale or disposal
within one year from the date of classification.

When the above commitment 10 a sale or disposal process exists, all appropriate assets and liabilities are classified
as held for sale. Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their previous carrying amount and fair value less cost 1o sell. Details of land held for sale can be found in Note 19,

1.18 Invesiment property

Investment property is property held for the primary purpose of earning rentals andior capital appreciation. This
includes land heid by Council for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment property is measured using the fair velue model. This means all investment property is initiaily
recognised at cost (including transaction costs) and then subsequently lued lly al the balk sheet date.
Where investment property is acquired at no or nominal cost it is recognised at fair value.

Property that is being constructed or developed for fulure use as investment property is classified as investment
property. invesiment property under construction is measured at falr value, unless fair value cannot be reliably
determined for an individual property (in which case the properiy concerned is measured at cost until fair value can
be reliably determined).

Gaings or losses arising frem changes in the fair value of investmen! properly are included in the Stalement of
Comprehensive Income for the period in which they arise. Investment property is not depreciated and is not tested
for impairment.

1.18 Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Hems of plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000,
and infrastructure assets, site improvements, airport assets and buildings with a total value of less than $10,000 are
Ireated as an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitaiised.
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the Council are:
Land
Site Improvements
Buiidings
Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure Assets:
Road and Drainage Network
Bridge Network
Water Assets
Sewerage Assets
Airport Assets
Heritage and Cultural Assets
Work in Progress

(a) Acquisition of assets
Acquisitions of assels are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as
consideration plus costs incidenta; te the acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and engineering design fees
and all other establishment costs.

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues al fair
value by Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition threshoids for the respective assel class. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderiy iransaclion between markel paricipants al the
measurement date.

(b) Capital and operating expenditure
Wage ard materials expenditure incurred for the acguisition or construction of agsels are freated as capital
experdiiure. Routine pperating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of
the non-current asset is expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to repiacement of a major component of
an assel to maintain its service potential is capitalised.

{c) Valuation

Land, site improvements, buildings, airport, heritage and culural and all infrastructure assels are measured on the
revatuation basis, at fair value, in accordance with AASB116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair
Value Measurement. Other plant and equipment and work in progress are measured ai cost.

Non-current physical assels measured al fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each
class of asset does not materialiy differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging
professionally qualified valuers {internal/external) o determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and
equipment assets al least once every 5 years. This process involves the vaiuer physically sighting Council's assets
across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection.

In the intervening years, Council uses mosily internal resources to assess the condilion and cost assumpfions
associated with all property, plant and equipment assels, measured on the revaluation basis, the results of which are
considered in combination with the A lian Bureau of Stalistics Indexes for Queensland, and other measures
deemed suitable. For the 2013/14 year management has engaged independent, professionally qualified valuers to
determine suitable indices for the buildings, airport, bridge and heritage and cuilural asset classes. Together these
are used to form the basis of a management valuation for property, plant and equipment asset classes, measured on
the revaluation basis, in each of the intervening years.

The Producer Price Indexes for Queensland provided by Australian Bureau of Statistics that are used lor property,
plant and equipment assets are:

Buildings - Index Number ; 30 Buiiding construction Queensianad ;
Waler and Sewerage - Index Number ; 3020 Non-residential building construction Queensland ;

Road and Drainage Network, Bridge Network and Airport - Index Number ; 3101 Road and bridge construclion
Queensland ; and

Site Improvements used the combination of indices above.
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Noles to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an assot is credited to the appropriate class of the asset
revaluation surplus, except to the exient it a ion di for the class previously recognised as an
expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is debited to the appropriate revaluation surplus of that
assel class. Should this revaluation surplus be exhausted, then the remainder of the revaluation decrease is charged
as an expense.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is d propor y with the change in the carrying amount of the
asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful Ife.

identified comp ol assets are on the same basis as the assets lo which they relate.

(d) Capltal work in progress

The cost of properly, plant and equipment being constructed by the Gouncil includes the cost of hased services,
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads.

(¢) Depreciation

Land Is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipmeni assets
is calculaled on a straight-ine basis so as to wrile-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less
its estimated residual value, progressively aver its estimated useful life to the Council. Management believe thal the
straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattem of consumption of all Council assels.

Ascets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the lime an
assel is completed and commissioned ready for use.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular repl ent, these p s
are assigned useful lives distinct ifrom the asset to which they relate. Any diture that the
assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is dspreclaled ovsr
the remaining useful fife of the asset to the Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for parficular assets that are above the asset recognition threshold are
capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the asset to which they relate.

The depreciable amount of imp: its to or on Id land is all d progressively over the estimated useful
lives of the improvemants to the Council or tha unexpired period of the lease, whichever is the shorter.

Landfill rehabilitation assets are deprecialed on a straight line basis over the period remaining until the forecast dale
of closure of the landfil area. Council annually assesses the remaining life of landfill cells and accordingly,
depreciation rates are adjusted to reflect these estimates.

Depreciation meihods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assels are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattem of
consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The
condition assessmants performed as part of Councils assel management processes, for assets measured at
I cost are used to estimate the useful lives of these assels al each reporting date,
Details of me range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are showr in Note 20.

(N Land under roads

Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-current asset where the Council holds title or
a financial lease over the asset. The Rockhampton Regional Council currently does not have any such land holdings.

Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened for public use under the
Land Act 1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 is not controlled by Council but is controlled by the state pursuant to the
relevant legislation. Therefore this land is not recognised in these linancial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1.20 Intangible assets
Intangible assets with a cost or other value exceeding $10,00C are recognised as intangible assets in the financial
statements, iterns with a lesser value being expensed.

E iture on ) ities relating te internally-generated intangible assets is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Costs iated with the d pment of p are capital and are ised on a straight-li
basis over the period of expected benefit to Council.

It has been determined that there is not an active market for any of the Council's imangible assets. Therefore, the
assets are recognised and carried al cost less accumuiated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

d useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and adjusted where appropriate. Details of the esti d usefui lives assigned to each class of intangible assets are
shown in Noite 22.

1.2

-

Impairment of non-current assets

Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is d for indicators of impai It
If an indicator of possible impairment exists, the Councii determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by
which the asset's camrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is reccrded as an impairment loss. The
recoverable amouni of a2n assel is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amourt. When the asset is measured at a revalued amcunt, the impairment loss is offset
against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class 10 the extent available.

Where ar. imp loss sub sently . the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
1hat would have been daisrmmod had no impairment loss been rewgmsod for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an loss is gnised as income unless the asset is camed at a revalued amoury, in which case the
reversal of the impairment ioss is treated as a revaluation surplus increase.,

1.22 Leases

Leases of plant and equipment under which the Council as lessee assumes substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership, are classified as finance leases. Other leases,
where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are classified as operating ieases.

(a) Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal insia'ments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased property.

1.23 Payables

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed
purchase/contract price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts cwing are unsecured
and are generally seltled on 30 day terms.

1.2

&

Liabilities - employee benefits

Liabilities are recognised for empioyee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave in
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. Liabilities for benefits are
assessed at each reporting date. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid in the next melve months or that
Council does not have an unconditiona! right to defer settiement of the liablity for at least 12 months, the liability is
treated as a current Kability. Otherwise the liability is treated as non-current. Councii has adopted the charges in
AASB 118 Employee Benefits during the 2013/14 year. This dard is effective for periods cor ing on or after
1 January 2013. The transitional provisions of this standard require restatement of the earliest prior period. Council
has assessed the impact of these changes on the prior financial year and adjusted the classification of leave
provisions; but determined that as the changes are not material, no ent to the total ts will be made.
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(a) Salaries and wages
A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current
pay rates in respect of employees' services up to that date. This liabllity represents an accrued expense and is
reporied in Note 23 as a payable.

(b) Annual leave
A liability for annual leave is recognised, Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months are caleulated on current
wage and salary levels and includes related employee on-costs, Amounts not expected 1o be settled within 12
months are calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs, and are
discounted to present values. This liability rep: an accrued exp and is rep in Note 23 as a payable.

(c) Sick leave

Council has an obligation to pay sick leave on termination to certain employees and therefore a Habflity has been
recognised for this obligation. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reporled in Note 23 as a payable.

(d) Superannuation

The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the Counci! makes to the
superannuation plan which provides benefits fo its employees. Details of those arrangements are sel out in Note 32.

{e} Long service leave

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outfiows to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using
current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The
estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in the Council's employment or other i
employment which would result in the Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made o
allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the result is discounted to present value. The inerest rates
attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to discount the
estimated future cash outflows to their present value. This liability is reported in Note 24 as a provision.

1.25 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attri ion costs. Subseq) to initial
recognition these liabilities are measured at beok value at date of reporting.

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 Gouncil adopts an annual debt policy that sets out
Council's planned borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projects
and for a term no longer than the expected life of the asset. Council also aims to comply with the Queensland
Treasury Gorporation's borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels
at all times.

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. No borrowing costs are capitalised on
qualifying assets.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities except for the principal amount that is due and payable, under the
contractual terms of the loan agreement, 12 months after the end of the reporting period. This amount is classified as
& non-current amount. Further details are provided in Note 25.

1.26 Restoration provision
A provision is made for the cosl of restoration of landfill facilities and quarries where it is probable the Council will be
liable, or required, to incur such a cost on the cessation of use of these facilities. Further details can be found in Note
24.

Landfill restoration

The provision represents the present value of the anticipaled future cosls associated with the closure of the landfill
facilities and monitoring of historical residues on these sites. The calculation of this provision requires assumptions
such as application of environmental legisiation, site closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost
estimates. These unceriainties may result in future actusl expenditure differing frem amounts currently provided.
Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs
that will be incurred. The provision recognised for landfill facilities is reviewed al least annually and updated based on

the facts and circumstances available at the time.
QAO
certified sta tements
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The provision is measured at the expected cost of the work required, discounted 1o current day values using an
appropriate rate. The Commonwealth Governmenl guaranteed securities, with a maturity date corresponding to the
anticipated date of restoration, is considered an appropriate rate.

Changes to the provision resulting from the passing of time (the unwinding of the discount) are Ireated as a finance
cost.

Qggrrz rehabilitation

The provision represents the present value of the anticipated fulure costs associated with the closure of the quarries
and rehabilitation of these sites. The calculation of this provision requires pti such as application of
environmental legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and engineering cosl estimates. These
uncenainties may result in future aciual expendiiure ditfering from amounts currently provided. The provision
recagnised for quarry rehabilitation is revi at beast fly and based on the facts and circumstarces
available al the time. Managemenl estimates that the restoration will eccur on an ongoing basis.

The provision is measured at the expected cost of the work required, discounted to cument day values using an
appropriate rate. The Commonwealth Government guaranleed securities, with a maturily date corresponding 1o the
i date of ion, is L an rate.

PPIop

Changes o the provision resulting from the passing of me {the unwinding of the discount) are reated as a finance
cost.

1.27 Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and equipment
that do not result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the camying value of classes of non-
current assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaiuation surplus.

Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets.

Where a class of assels is decreased on revaiuation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the
asset revaluation surolus in respect of thal class. Any excess is treated as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reporled in surplus in respect of that asset is relained in the asset
revaluation surplus and not transferred to retained surplus.

1.28 Reserves held for future capital expenditure
These are cash backed reserves and represenl funds that are accumulated within the Council to meet anticipated
{ulure capital assets needs. In each case the amount relates 1o a perceived future requirement which is not currently
a liability.

{a) Unspent grants reserve
This reserve is credited with all grants and subsidies received during the reported period and constrained for the
purpose of funding specific capital expendilure. As the expenditure is incurred on specified capital assets the
eguivalent funds are transferred from the reserve to the capital account. The closing balance reported at the periad
end represents funds not yet expended and must be retained until expended in the manner for which the grant was
received.

(b) Constrained grants and contributions reserve
This reserve is credited with all contributions of monetary revenue received during the reporied period and
constrained for the purpose of funding specific capital expendilure. As the expendilure is incurred on specified capital
assets the equivalent funds are transferred from the reserve to the capital account. The closing balance reported at
the period end represents funds not yet expended and must be retained until expended in the manner specified by
the contributor.

(c) Airport development reserve
This reserve was created to set aside funds for future Airport capital upgrades and expansion.

(d) Capital works reserve
Tnis reserve was created to provide funds for the fulure replacement of assets.

(e) Plant reserve
This reserve was created to provide funds for the future replacement of plant and equipment.
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(1) Water reserve
This reserve was created to provide funds for the future replacement of water infrastructure.

(g) Sewerage reserve
This reserve was created to provide funds for the future replacement of sewerage infrastructure.

(h) Waste management reserve
This reserve was created to provide funds for the future replacement of waste assets.

(i) Year-end uncompleted works reserve
This reserve was created to assist with the management of the transition of uncompleted works between financial
years in a transparent and limely manner.

1.29 Reserves held for funding future recurrent expenditure
These are cash backed reserves and represent funds that are accumulated within the Council to meet anlicipated
future recurrent or operating expenditure needs. In each case the amount relates to a perceived future requirement
which is not currently a liability.

(a) Operating projects reserve
This reserve was crealed to set aside funds for specific recurrent expenditure, including unspent operational grants.

(b) Asset maintenance reserve
This reserve was creafed io meet unexpected assel maintenance expenditure.

1.30 Retained surplus
This represents the amount of Council's net funds net set aside in reserves 1o meet specific future needs.

1.31 National competition policy

The Council has reviewed its activities to identify its business activities. Details of these activities are disclosed in
Note 40.

132 R ding and ives
Amounts included in the financial stalements have been rounded to the nearest $1.

Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the cumrent reporting
period.

1.33 Trust funds held for outside parties

Funds held in the trust account on behall of outside paries include those funds from the sale of land for arrears in
rates recovery, deposits for the contracted sale of land, security deposits lodged to guarantee performance and
unclaimed monies (e.g. wages) paid intc the trust account by the Councll. The Council performs only a custodian
rale in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not
considered revenue nor brought 1o account in the financial statements,

The monies are disclosed in the notes to the financial statermenis for information purposes only in Note 33.

1.34 Carbon pricing
In 2011 the Australian Government introduced a Clean Energy Legisiation pack which introduced a pricing
mechanism for greenhouse gas emissions in the Australian economy from 1 July 2012, This legislation was repealed
on the 17 July 2014 to effectively remove Carbon Pricing from 1 July 2014.

For Rockhamplon Regional Council, the Lakes Creek Landfill was above the emissions threshold and as such was
liable for Carbon Tax on the emissions during the period in which the legislation was effective.

1,35 Taxation
Income of local autharities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benefits
Tax and Goods and Services Tax ('GST'). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO
is shown as an asset or liability respectively.

The Council pays Payroll Tax to the Queensland Government on cerain activilies.
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2 Analysis of results by funclion

(a) Components of Council functions
The activities relafing to the Council’s compenents reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows:

Resourcing

Includes recognitior and ailocation of general rate and grant revenue as well as interest revenue and
expenses not allocated to business units.

Office of CEO

Incorporates the offices of the Mayor, Councillors and the Chief Executive Officer. Includes govemance and
Council innovatior: as well as marketing engagement functions.

Infrastructure Services

Includes roadworks, street lighting, stormwater drainage, recoverable works, depol and workshop
operations, engineering administration and engineering planning. Also includes development assessment,
development compliance and strategic planning.

Corporate Services
Includes communication and information technology, administration services, financial services, workforce
and slrategy, asset management, rationalisation and realisation of land and building assets, organisational

development services and fleet and plant services. Also includes the lease of caravan parks and
Gracemere saleyards.

Community Services

Includes libraries, art services, theatre and venue management, heritage preservation, child care, aged
services, and community assistance. Management, mainlenance and operation of Council facilities, reserves
and parks. Maintenance and beautificatior: ¢f entrances into the region and road reserves where these are
Council controlled. Local law enforcement (dog registration and regulation of parking) within Council
boundaries. Manages operalions of public health, environmental health, health planning and natural
resource management.

Alrports
Encompasses Rockhampton Airport operations.

Waste & Recycling
Includes waste collection and disposal, recycling collection, and management of Council's landfill tacilities.

Fitzroy River Water

Council's commercialised walter and sewerage business. Includes provision of waler and sewerage services
1o the residents of Rockhampton Regional Council including operation of the barrage, water treatment plant,
reservoirs, water distribution network, water gquality control, sewerage treatment plants, frunk sewers,
sewerage pump stations, sewerage mains and services.

QAC
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2 Analysis of results by function

{b) Revenue, expenses and assels have been atiributed fo the following functions:

Funclions Income
Recurring Total income | Total Expenses Net Result Assets
Grants Other
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
$ $ $ $ $ B

Resourcing 3,258,489 74,192,204 | 77450783 | 830,877,710 | (753,426,927 225,386,070
Officeof GEO [ - 34,721 34,721 Sst110) (5476389 31,606 |
hrestruciure 17,408,907 53,617,679 | 71021586 |  59198408| 11,823,180 |  878.491,126
Corporate Services 915,189 | 3,005,242 3,820,431 16,886,747 (12,966,316) 42,758,454
Community Services| 6,821,104 .. BB46203 | 15467307 )  52411,266|  (36,943,959) 169,188,370
Arports | 25976 ] 1 51 1 1) 13665344 |  351.927) 79.227.189
Waste & Reoyoling 538,745 16,774,304 17,314,049 18,368,392 (1,054,343 29,994,561
Fitzroy River Water 2,529,528 81,917,419 84,446,947 56,901,708 27,545,238 530,565,679
Total 31,493,938 252,179,157 | 283,673,085 | 1,053,820,684 | (770,147,589)] _ 1,855,643,065

The analysis of results by function for the cument year reflects the restructure of local government. This loss on restructure s included in
the total expenses lor Resourcing. This note should be read in conjunction with Note 14, Note 19 and Nole 34.

Prior Year | R d ]
Funclions Income
Recurring Tolal Income | Total Expenses Net Result Assels
Grants Other
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$ $ $ $ $ $

Resourcing 8,262,488 78,526,574 87,788,062 (29,198,303) 116,987,365 268,424,624
Office of CEO - 5,869,186 5,869,186 17,334,162 {11,464,976) 11,112
fInfrastructure
Services 11,859,685 37,722,886 49,582,571 78,659,268 (29,076,627) 1,403,206,267
Corporate Services | 627,275 | = 2684867 | 3312142 |  21,636985| (18,324,844) __55804,570
Gomml_l_”h}' Services 4,309,078 8,592,893 12,902,071 56,286,237 (43,384,167) 192,430,531
Airparts 48,000 12,808,772 12,956,779 12,924,086 32,693 78,023,453
Waste & Recycling - 21,538,607 21,538,667 20,639, B05 888 892 24,853,150
Fitzroy River Water 172,662 76,114,357 76,287,059 68,164,637 8,122,422 723,638,481
Total 25,279,188 244,058,379 | 270,037,667 246,446,877 23,790,688 2,746,492,388

The amounts for the prior year analysis of results by function, were maintained for the total Rockhampton Regional Council in the prior
year, ie. with the inclusion of the amounis relating to the de-amalgamating Livingstone region, as this was deemed to give the most
informative position for Rockharmpton Reglonal Gouncil for the comparalive years. This note should be read in conjunction with Note 14
and Note 18.
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3 Revenue analysis

(a) Rates, levies and charges
General rates
Separate rates
Special rates
Water
Sewerage
Garbage charges
Rates and utllity charge revenue
Less: Discounts
Less: Pensioner remissions
Net rates and utility charges

(b) Fees and charges
Airport fees
Waste and recycling fees
Venues, events, tourlsm and cultural fees
Buiiding, plumbing and development fees
Local laws and health licencing fees
Irrigator and commercial waler fees
Other fees

(c) Interest received
Investments
Qverdue rates and ulility charges

{d) Sales revenue
Recoverable and private works

The amount recognised as revenue from contract works during the period is

the amount receivable in respect of invoices issued during the period.

The contract work carried out is not subject to retentions.

(e) Other recurrent income
Rental / lease income
Commission and collection fees
Other income

Page 20

Note $ $
2014 Restated 2013
47,296,140 40,698,980
16,021,095 14,595,592
109,701 214,390
27,475,150 23,637,384
23,881 427 21,500,339
13,667,728 12,208,168
128,251,241 112,854,853
(9,809,308) (8,695.423)
(1,447,204) (1,120,726)
116,994,729 103,038,704
10,183,557 9,043,264
4,723,052 4,602,613
3,612,948 2,987,565
3,248,618 3,888,374
1,071,971 898,109
1,549,947 1,560,020
1,120,110 970,113
25,510,208 23,950,058
3,229,240 2,628,905
441,918 465,232
3,671,158 3,004,137
12,201,532 11,615,571
12,201,532 11,615,571
2,963,257 3,766,098
1,920,670 370,320
2,245,422 2,977 766
7,128,349 7,114,184
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4

(a)

(b)

Grants, subsidies and

are

Recurrent - grants, subsidies and cc
analysed as follows:

General purpose grants

Government subsidies and grants
Contributions

Total recurrent revenue

Capital - grants, subsidies, and contrlbutions are analysed
as follows:
(i) Monetary revenue designated for capital funding purposes:

Government subsidies and grants
Contributions

(ii) No y revenue ived is analysed as follows:
Developer assets contributed by developers at fair value
Other physical assets contributed at fair value

Total Capital Revenue

Contributions recognised as income during the reporting period
and which were obtained on the condition that they be expended
in a manner specified by the contributor but had not been
expended at the reporting date:

Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on recurrent Government
subsidies and grants

Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on capital Government
subsidies and grants

Capital income

Gain on the disposal of non-current assets

Gain from assets not previously recognised

Quarry rehabilitation - change from revision of future restoration
expenditure

Quarry rehabilitation - reduction in rehabilitation provision for
future costs, due to a change in discount rate

Landfill restoration - change from revision of future restoration
expenditure

Landfill restoration - reduction in rehabilitation provision for
{uture costs, on land not controlled by Council, due to a change
in discount rate

Total capital income

Page 21
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2014 Restated 2013
2,743,390 6,533,263
11,454,479 5,817,757
278,186 337,302
14,476,055 12,688,322
12,957,824 6,353,595
4,950,369 4,695,157
17,908,193 11,048,752
23,867,849 24,793,945
9,986,808 708,955
33,854,657 25,502,900
51,762,850 36,551,652
1,049,775 210,128
82,222 32,735
1,131,997 242,863
2014 2013
187,437
452,966
66,971
23,185
170,948
309,606
187,437 1,023,676
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6 Gain on the disposal of non-current assets 2014 2013
{a} Proceeds from disposal of land 541,289
Less: Book value of land disposed (195,769}
346,220
{bj Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 1,126,810
Less: Book value of plant and equipment disposed (1,335,827}
(208,017}
(¢} Proceeds from disposal of site improvements 120,565
Less: Book value of site improvements disposed (70,331)
50,234
Total gain on the disposal of non-current assets 187,437 B
7 Employee benefits 2014 Restated 2013
Tolal staff wages and salaries 56,425,284 58,299,658
Councillors® remuneration 1,015,410 1,107,197
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements. 7,376,533 8,145,566
Superannuation 32 6,754,242 7,218,355
71,571,469 74,770,776
Other employee related expenses 2,407,134 2,986,085
73,978,603 77,756,861
Less: Capitalised employee (10,922,034} (2,563,604)
63,056,569 68,193,257

Councillor remuneration represents salary and other allowances paid in

respect of carrying out their duties.

Total Council employees at the reporting date:

Elected members 8 1
Administration staff 459 668
Depot and outdoors stafi 349 515
Total full time equivalent employees 816 1,194

8 Materials and services 2014 Restated 2013

g.::l;:; I:::ual financial statements by the Auditor-General of 218,962 208,978
Advertising and marketing 696,452 609,905
Administration supplies and consumables 896,722 829,582
Communications and IT 2,561,293 1,828,086
Consultants 2,932,570 2,330,251
Contractors 6,449,452 7,518,320
Donations paid 1,126,166 1,494,845
Insurance 1,890,359 1,717,451
Electricity 6,156,652 5,555,896
Repairs and maintenance 19,170,827 22,909,570
Rentals - operating leases 250,777 139,873
Other materials and services 1,042,895 764,888

43,393,227 45,907,645
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9

Finance costs

Finance costs charged by the GQueensland Treasury Gorparation
Bank charges

Impairment of recelvables

Quarry rehabilitation - change in present value over time

Landfill sites - change in present value over time

10 Depreciation and amortisation

"

(a) Depreciation of non-current assets
Site improvements
Buildings
Heritage and Cultural assets
Plant and equipment
Road and drainage network
Bridge network
Water
Sewerage
Airport
Total depreciation of non-current assels

(b} Amortisation of intangible assets
Computer software
Total amortisation of intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenses

Loss on the disposal non-current assets

White off of non-current assets

Quarry rehabilitation - change from revision of future restoration
expenditure

Quarry rehabilitation - increase in rehabllitation provision for
future costs, due to a change in discount rate

Flood Events
Flood event 2013 asset adjusimenis

Flood event 2011 asset adjustments

Landtill Rehabliitation
Closure cost now recognised
Total capital expenses
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12
13
24

24

37
37

13

2014 2013
9,002,213 8,432,480
385,193 279,851
115617 265,036
24,845 13,689
125,798 108,102
9,653,666 5,085,658
2014 2013
2,868,291 1,730,734
5,957,811 5,805,165
156,533
5,472,810 5,944,424
15,393,920 15,035,957
410,360 414984
5,643,705 5,125,699
5,412,311 5,333,815
1,376 417 1,580,528
42,692,158 41,061,306
737,812 540,730
737,312 540,730
43,430,070 41,602,036
2014 Restated 2013
569,454
9,415,791 7,080,199
29,779
18,719
1,634,565
(2,724,751)
- 1,773,890
5,464,288 8,333,357
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12 Loss on the disposal non-current assets 2014 2013
(a) Proceeds from disposal of land {5,388)
Less: Book value of land disposed 40,276
34,888
(b) Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment (2,430,537
Less: Book value of plant and equipment disposed 2,965,103
534,566
Total loss on the disposal of non-current assets - 569,454
13 Write off of non-current assets 2014 Restated 2013
Heritage and cuttural 414,000
Intangible assets 3,628 3,749
Builaings 273,355 925,625
Plant and equipment 3,695 221,021
Site improvements 211,570 19,581
Road and drainage network 7,170,223 5,046,645
Bridge network 481,596
Water 747 944 387,396
Sewer 523,580 62,150
Airport 3z
1 9,415,792 7,080,199

Additional information regarding landfill rehabilitation assets
Additional site and closure recognition for landfill

rehabilitation
Capital closure cost transfemed to rehabilitation asset 2,083,808
Additional site closure costs for ongoing maintenance and (309,918)
environment rehabilitation .

1 1,773,890
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14 Discontinued operatlons
The de-amalgamahm of Livingstone Shire Cuunmi trom Rockhampton Regional Councit occurred as at 1 January 2014 as

per the Local G t (De- 1 Imple ) Regulation 2013. Rockhamplon Regional Council have
considered all rel impacts, legislati ions and modelling on its assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2013 and beyond, as a result of the de-amalgamation process. In accordance with MSB 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, all revenue and exp for the d ! g Livingstone Shire Gouncil have

been separated for the six months ended 31 December 2013, and summarised as per ann 14,

Revenue and expenses were mainly apportioned on the basis of geographica! location. Where a geographical
apportionment was not possible, a population based distribution method was used, while other allocation methodologies

were only used where they provided meaningful separation.

214 Restated 2013
$ $
Income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Rates, levies and charges 26,043,939 48,573,274
Fees and charges 2,867,885 5,398,260
Interest received 1,133,657 2,142,211
Sales revenue 1,129,258 1,982,828
Other recurrent income 381,944 804,006
Grants, subsidies and contributions 1,273,997 4,661,324
32,830,680 63,561,903
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies and contributions 18,908,651 8,196,132
Total revenue 51,739,331 71,758,035
Capital income 448
Total income 51,739,779 71,758,035
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits {13,364,908) (24,747,276)
Materials and services (8,825,555) (19,423,881)
Finance costs (2,419,799} (4,444,712)
Depreciation and amortisation (9.648) {16,909,249)
(25,719,908) (65,525,118
Capital expenses (22,020} (8,366,580)
Total expenses (25,741,928) (73,911,698)
Surplus/{ 1) from red operati 25,897,851 (2,163,663}
Cash flows from discontinued operations
Net cash inflows from operating activilies 5,340,510 15,938,113
Net cash (cutfiows) from investing activities {5,034,243) (19,202,108)
Net cash (outflows) from financing activities (3,154,390) 5,071,313
Net cash (outilows)inflows (2,848,123) 1,807,317

In the preparation of accounting entries for the disposal of Livingsione Shire Council as at 31 December 2013, a review of
the allocation of revenue and expenses in the 2012/13 financial year was undertaken. With !hebeneﬂt of new or improved
information, some Hems of revenue and expenses in 2012113 were My continuing and
discontinued operations. The effect of the reallocations on revenue, expenses, and cash flows is summarised as follows:
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15

16

Restatement of prior year accounts
Revenue

Interest received
Sales revenue
Granls, subsidies and contributions

Total movement in revenue
Expenses

Employee benefits
Materials and services

Total movement in expenses

Net t due to

Restatement ol cash flows from disconiinued operalions
Net cash intlows from operating activiies
Mel cash {outfiows) from Investing aclivities

Net cash (outflows)/finflows from financing activities

Net cash inflows

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in operaling bank account
Cash in other banks and on hand
Deposits and investments held with QTC

Balanca as per statement of linancial positior.

Component of cash held for transier 1o Livingstone Shire

Balance as per statement of cash flows

Cash at bank funds are held with the Commonwealth Bank. Deposits at
iand Treasury O i

call consist of funds held in a G

Fund, which has a short term credil rating of A1+ and a long term rating of

AA=+, with a lloating interest rate (3.38% for 30 June 2014},

Externally imposed expendilure restrictions at the reporting date

reiate to the following cash assets:

Unspent government grants and subsidies

Unspen! developer contributions

Cash balance to be transferred to Livingsione Shire Council

Total unspent restricled cash
Investments

Opening balance as al 1 July 2013

Add back assets held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Counail

as al 30 June 2013
Transfers (le)/from cperating bank account

Assets held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Councii

Amount onr e of local gor

Closing balance of term deposils

Term depesits at fixed Interest rates are held with the following financial
inslitutions: Westpac {A1+), Nationa' Australia Bank (A1+), ME Bank (A2)
and The Rock (A3). Malturity ranges from 4 months to | year and bear

interes! rates from 3.65% to 4.03%.

Fage 26

Cash

$ $
2014 Restated 2013
(27,878}
284,745
{327,098)
(70,231)
2,025,114
(3,089,117
(1,064,003
(1.134.234)
(233 287)
470,504
237,217
e
2014 Restated 2013
1,882,256 1,113,447
27,500 27,350
27,989,881 13,524,558
28,699,637 14,665,355
10,381,261 13,232,453
40,280,898 27.897.808
372,693 1,047,861
16,434,564 26,131,285
10,381,261
27,188,518 27,179,156
2014 2013
59,000,000 36,000,000
33,000,000
(2,000,000) 56,000,000
{33.000,000)
(33,000,000} .
57,000,000 50,000,000
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17  Trade and other receivables

Current
Rateable revenue and ulility charges
Less: impaimment

Water charges yet fo be levied
GST recoverable

Other deblors

Less: impairment

Prepayments

Interest is charged on outstanding rates ai a rate of 11% per annum (2013 -
11%). There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and utility charges,

fees and other debtors receivable.

Community loans arise from time to ime and are subject to negotiated
interes! rates.

lated impai losses {trade and other receivables)

Mo in ace
is as follows:
Opening balance
Impairment debts written off during the year
Additional impairments recognised

Closing balance

18 Inventories
Inventories held for sale

Other trading stocks

Inventories held for internal use:
Quarry and road materials
Stores and materials

Valued al cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of
service potential.

Page 27

$ $
2014 Restated 2013
7,277,106 6,252,617
(30.940) {23,546)
7,246,166 6,229,071
308,487 §0,082
639,820 579,682
9,085,367 8,134,710
(483,683) (427,675)
9,549,891 8,336,800
1,610,810 1,404,314
18,407,067 15,970,184
451,220 400,183
(63,582) (131,355)
126,985 182,382
514,623 451,220
2014 2013
235,559 278,028
235 558 279.028
355,039 162,027
1,139,567 1,018,080
1,484 606 1,180,107
1,730,165 1,450,135
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Note $ $
18 Assets classified as held for sale and transfer 2014 Restated 2013
Land held for sale {a} 3,719,000 1442210
Assets held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Council ()] 10,381,261 939,386,285

14,100,261 940,828,495

Liabilities heid for transfer 1o Livingstone Shire Counci! (b} 101,669,972

(a) Council has decided to sell vacant land. it has been placed with rea! estate agenls or subject to negotiation
and is expected to be soid within one year. These asse!s are measured at the lower of the assets’ carrying
amounts and their fair values less costs 10 sell. These assels are not depreciated or amortised.

(b} The ge-amalgamation of Livingstene Shire Council from Rockhampton Regional Council occurred as at 1
January 2014 as per the Local G t (De i lit ion) Regulation 2013, Assets and
ligbiliies anticipated to be transferred 1o the Livingstone Shire Council are as follows:

Cash, i s and cash equival 10,381,261 45,232,455
Trade and olher receivables 5,207,872
Inventories B46,795
Property, plant and equipment 885,763,331
Intangible assets 857,764
Land held for sale 478,068
::::t::;l:(vingsmne Shire Council classified as heid for sale () 10,381,261 939,386,285
Trade and other payables 7.064,528
Provisions 14,532,944
Loans 79,418,045
Otner liabilities 653,455
Liabilities of Livingstone Shire Counci! classifiec as held for ) 101,669,972
sale and transfer T

Net assels and liabilities 1o be transferred 10,381,261 837,716,313

In the preparation of accounting entries for the disposai of Livingstone Shire Council as at 31 December 2013, a
review of the allocation of assets and liabilities in the 2012/13 financiai year was undertaken. With the benefit of
new or improved information, some asse! items as al 30 June 2013 were subsequently reallocated between
current assets and assets held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Council. The effect of the reallocations is
summarised below:

Restatement of prior year (movement in balances)

Assets
Cash, i 1 and cash equivalent 2,688,176
Trade and other receivables 71,852

Total change in assels

Net due 1o 2,758,028
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20 (a) Froperty, plant and equipment
Note Hentage and
Site Plant and Road and Brigge . "
Land Bulldings ” Water Sewerage Airport cultural Work in
Hmprovements equipment  |drainage retwork |  network dinandi e Yolal
Basis of measuremant Valuation Valuation Valuation Cost Valualion Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Cost
Asset values s $ $ E 5 3 3 $ 3 3 3 ]
g:;"‘dm S kit July 2012~ Rodkhempton 104,130,480 | 67,227,197 | 235,678,918 | 61482121 | 1,076032,170 | 32903029 | 460593592 | 320926015 | 65513798 | 21319922 | 33946882 | 2479734104
Add assets held for transfer lo Livingstone Shire Couneil __ | 50,774,106 | 39182819 | 18756814) 583452462 | 28669338 | 237382288 108891720 - | 330990 12809:340| 1,111,039,648
Opening gross value as at | July 2013 154,904,566 274,861,738 | 80,218,536 £1592417 | 697.975.880 21650912 | 46.756.222 | 3.590,773.756 |
Rodtonsatcost 58488 _ | smseanf T aadeadnn 23,028| 42438074 84,167,360
Contributed assels at vatuation - _3fmo) | _ |, .. 110191 = ___ 3654805 T=ir 356, JJ
Reassessment of landlill restoration cost = (714,734) = = = > a : (714,734
Translers between classes 2,931 8,209,130 | 3,085,204 181,045 5,235,710 2,600,062 - (21,720,355 -
Digposals (195,769) (161,480) - (4,828,172) - - - - - el - {5.185,421)
8 . psasan | .3 i i i . Y A 3 ! IR TN IR 8 1
28 26,517,410 |~ 10,501,709 - - E 61,507,089 - 7
o 37(a). ST P = N MY O B [ (e = 030
3 v 13514 - (1.753.224)]  (1.244.205) (245,145) (9,768.684)|  (563.061)]  (3.28B.748) - (19.492.741
Transter to i ible assets 22 - B = - . 3 e R — ______[5“.590) | (844,590
Assets transhorred o Livingstane Shire Counci a4 (50,850 647)| (28,162,865)| (39,557.283)| (19,492,335 (389,195.195)| (29,043,666)| {238 A75,913) 1320,190)| (23.924.355) (1,129.456,292)
Closing gross value as ot 30 June 2014 127,625,456 | 85,838,622 | 239,420,286 | 62,177, 1,121 32558748 | 530417703 | 297.754.682 | 65,663,150 | 21.404.514| 42904996 | 2627420508 i
Accymulatad depreciation and impairment
goupi:i' %:ss v?lue as at 1 July 2013 - Rockhampion - 19,007,226 | 101,742,049 | 25,698,739 258572048 | 9265883 | 163590938 | 163,189,616 | 22,135,147 | 3.932.800 - 767,135,426
gk unei
(Add assets hald for transfer to Livingstane Shire Gounil ] | _6379,385] 16.195238)  7.743675| 74122598 | 6493639 90,182284| 24,179.297 e e ] 225278318
|Opaning balance as al 1 July 2013 - 25386812 | 117,937,289 |  33.442,414 332,694,646 | 15.760,502 | 253,753,222 | 187,368,915 | 22135148 | 3,932,800 | - 992,411,748
Depreciation provided in period 0@ | - 2,868,367 | 5957811 5,482,220 | 15,394,080 410,360 5.643,705 5412311 | 1376417 156,533 - 42,701,804
Depreciation on disposals ) | - L 91.148)] - | (3406753 - 3 = - - - - {3.487.50:
|Fevaluation agUstmant (o assel revalualion surpius 28 e .sgszjzur‘ R T PO A T I 81,8
Ficod event 2011 assel adjusiments = 37(a) . ] - - = 235,460 - . . - . - o
|Depreciation on write o'fs 13814 - (1.541,654) (970,94 241 ,577,442) 181,466)|  (2,540.804)]  (2,004,995) - - - (10.058,760)|
Assets translerrad to Living: Shire Council ad = (6,021,380)| (16,183,410)[  (7.500,425) (73,260,304)| (6,524,082)| (90,138,628)| (24,179,297 Z - N s 47 )
Accumulared depreciation as at 30 June 2014 - 26,363,210 | 106,730,741 | 27,776,006 | 272456440 | 94e5312] 192604965 | 131,965,356 | 23,511,565 4,088,333 - 794,962,940
[Fet vaiue at 30 Jone 2014 127625458 | 59475412 | 132,689,528 | 24,401 849,108,788 | 2309335 | 337.812.728 | 166,789,316 ] 42,151,685 17406181 ] 42904,096 [ 132457658
Residual value - 5999628 - 11,213,177 308,181,245 = 9,536,208 5.206.471 | 22,340,805 - 362,457,532
Buildings only
Range of estimated useful ite in years [No! deprecial 10-102 10-80 3-40 4-130 10-100 15-120 15- 100 12-120 15-75
Addilions comprise:
Conlinuing operations § 5 $ 3 5 (3 [ __ $ $ $
enewals - 245,944 | 12325082 575633 3.280.578 2,178,527 22,558 - 4,954,481 28,427,535
| Other additons 58,488 668,713 4,305,384 - 3,163,461 6.315.145 4,687 23.028 | 25.961,084 43,273 415
Total ations 488 917,667 16,630,476 575639 6,442,439 8,493,673 27,248 23,028 | 30,335,565 71,701,110
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20 (b) Property, plant and equipment - prior year

Restated 2013 | Rostated 2013 Jfiestated 2013| Aestated 2013 | Restated 2013 |Rostaled 2013 Restated 2013 | Hestatod 2013 [Restated 201 2013 |Restated 2013| Restated 2013
ot Site Plant and fioad and Bridge histiige ana
tard improvements | P95 | sqimant | arainage network|  network Water Seenege | cAmorl coua Work in
Progress Tatal

Basis of measurement __ Valuation Valuation Valuation Cost Valuation Valualion Valuation Valuation | Valuation Valuation Cosl

Asset values s $ s s s s s s 3 B 3

Opering gross value as at 1 July 2012 | 146492138 | 79685973 | 270,686,164 |  80,005722 | 1,636,734,979 | 61,077,663 | 663.883,048 | 429,735,761 19,606,354 | 73447201 | 3,527.013,701

Adjustment to opening vale 3 | 2536774 | 6] 532,893 | {(19,000)]  (363.227)] 468,386 | 13,111,567 | (13,841,676} ! = | 15.833,043)) (13,950,182}

| Additions al cost 46,804 4,117,533 9,407,806 19,259,186 32,412 7.448,515 5,608,991 ; 25,809 | 27,100,747 76,103,281

Gontributed assets at valuation 4{bj(in& 13 42521 35900 - 67,586 22,922,870 - 2,525,637 3,376,525 - 708,955 - 29,880,004

Assots not previously recegnised . - - 131,302 18,320 281,580 - - - - 50,318 - 481,620

:‘.:;::;ishm»m of future landfill closura and maintenance o . 21,715,982 - . . N . _ . (2,083 808)] 18,631,474

| Iransters bonwoen classes R ~ 1081 | 3290316 aB5ea| 18794153  0e676 | 13237191 Bi62402|  pa0a| -

Disposals ___ e ——— .. fao2gami - | | .(8.452.772) —_— = NS ; etz ] (BB55412)

Assals ified as neld for sale - land 19 6,178,288 - - - 5. . - _ - = = 6,178,288

i i o asget surplus 28 - - 510,388 - - - 1,868,582 - 2,182,088

Flood evant 2013 asset 37{o} - - (8.777,691) - - - - - - 18,777.691)

Flood avent 201 1 asset adjustments 370} - - (13.978.418) - = - - - {13,978.418)

Write ofts 134 14 - (69,208)| (1.671,150)]  (1,233,285) (14,899,187) (80,700)|  (6.496,900)]  (2,224,3G8)] (14,000} - (27,102,968)|

and reversal of i 28 - - - - - 4,266,912 - - - 4,766,912

Translor 1o intangible assets 22 - - - - - - - - (1,089,821 {1,088,821)

Assets held for transfor ta Living: Shire Coungil (50,7/4,106)| (29.769,721)| (39,182,819)| (18,756,814)] (583,452,462)| (?8,6G89.388)| (237.282,288)| {109,891,720) (330,990)| (12,809,340} {1,111,029,648)

Closing gross value as at 30 June 2013 104,130,460 | 67,227,198 | 235,678,919 | 61,462,122 | 1,076,032,171| 32,903,020 [ 450,593,592 320,006,015 | 65,513,798 | 21319974 | 30,046,882 |  2,479,734.108

PG ALL AT 1L WL == L ARLLN
P and imp

Opening balance as al 1 July 2012 3 24,904,503 | 112,200.508 | 32,158,363 253,164,923 | 189,643,410 | 20,583,335 - 971.441.796

Asjustment to opening value ] TN - B03e7|  seeTl _(8oi7) (6592:320)] _(7.915.915)| __ (14.747) - | __menses

De it jed in p RCETEREY 2372413 |  7.019177 7,792,001 | 7154473 [ 1580528 |

[Depreciation on disposals i - 5 3 15,487,669)

ovaluation adjusiment 1o asset = 3 2 =] -

Flood event 2013 asset adjustments 2 S S e 90.974)) S P 74)|

Flood event 2011 asset adj B - . - (8,467,989) - - - - - - (8,467,983}

D on write ofls - (“9.717)]  (745526)]  {1.012,264)| (3,149,817) (71,792)]  (3,742,784)]  (1,513,063) (13,968) - - (10,298,331}

Impairment and revarsal of - - - - - - 2,504,313 - - - - 2,504,813

Assets held for transfer to Livi Shire Council - (6.379.585)| (16,195,238 7,743,675] 6,493,638] 62,284 - - 225.276,316)

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2013 . 19,007,227 | 101,742,050 X 22,135,148 | 3,932,800 767,135,430

LLS - L RO
Net value at 30 June 2013 104,130,460 | 48,219,971 | 133,936,069 | 35,763,383 | 817,460,123 | 23,636,166 | 297,002,654 | 157,736,398 | 43,378,650 17.387,122 | 33,066,882 ] 1,712,508,678
Residual value - - 16,619.672 297.271,914 - - - 22794349 - 336,185,885
Ui 5 0

Range of uscful Iite in years ____|Mot depreciated| 4-145 10-80 2-40 4-130 10-100 16 - 150 20 - 100 12 - 120 Ism-o?s =

Additlons compriso:

Continuing eperations 5 5 3 H 3 [3 3 $ $ 5 $ $
Renewals - 255,085 | 3,290,071 6,615,835 8,105,562 - 3.750.736 1,939,694 114,302 - 5,904,374 31,065,859
Other additions 46,069 1,530,355 375,048 625,391 4,637,058 - 572,119 2,447, 119,494 25908 | 18,904,010 29,292,908

Total addtions 46,069 1,785,450 | 3,665,113 7,251,226 13,742,610 - 4,372,655 4,387,148 233,796 25,500 | 74,898,384 60,358,565
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21 Falr value measurements

(e) Recognised falr value

Couneil and ises the ing assets at fair value on a recurring basis:
Property, plant and equipment
- Land

- Site Improvemenls
- Bulldings
- Road and drainage network
- Bridge network
Water
Sewerage
Airport
Heritage and cullural assels

Council does not measure any liabllities at fair value on a recurring basis.

Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed In other noles.

Council gs are at cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incured. The fair vaiue of
borrowings disclosed in Nole 25 is ided by Ihe Ch land Treasury C ion and the undi d
cash flows at balance date (level 2).

The carrying amounis of trade i and trade pay are to approxi their fair values due to their shorl-term
nature (level 2).

Council alsc has assets measured al fair value on a non-recurring basis as a resull of being reclassified as assets held for saje. This
comprises land held for sale as disclosed in Note 19. A descri of the valuati hniques and the inputs used to determine the
fair value of this land is included below under the heading "Land (level 2)°

In accordance with AASB 13 falr value are on the ing basis:
- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)
- Fair value based on inpuls that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or hability (level 2)
- Fair value based on uncbservable inputs for the asset and liability {level 3

Tha ing table 0 tair valug r as sither level 2 or level 3 In accordance with AASB 13, Council doss not
have any assels or iabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.

The fair values of the assels are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is
availabie, and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If al! significant inputs required o va'ue an assel are cbservable, the
asset is included in level 2, It ene or more of the significant inpuls is nol based on abservable market data, the asset is included in
level 3. This Is the case lor all Council assets, which are of a specialist nalure for which there ig no aclive market for simiiar or
identical essets. These assets are valued using a combination of cbservable and unobservable inputs.

The table presents the Counci's assets and liabilth d and ised at fair value &t 30 June 2014. Comparative
information has not been provided as allowed by the transitional provisions ol AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Note Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Significant other |  {Significant

A130June 2014 observable uncbsarvable
Inputs) inputs)
$ $ $
20 78,565,000 49,056,458 | 127,625,458
20 - 59,475,412 £9,475.412
20 - 132,688,524 | 132,683,524
20 - 849,108,788 | 849,108,788
20 - 23,093,435 23,093,435
20 - 337,812,738 | 337.812,738
20 - 165.789.3 165,788 316
20 - 42,151,58 42,151,585
20 - 17.405,1 17,405,181
78,569,000 | 1,676,582 437 | 1,755,151,437
Land held for sale 19 2,524,000 1,185,000 3,719,000
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There were no iransiers between leve!s 1 and 2 during the year, nor betweer ievels 2 ard 3.

Counci’s poficy is to recognise transters in and out of the lair value hierarcry 'evels as at the end cf the reporting period.

(b) Valuation techniques used te derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 vaiuations

Courc!! adonted AASB13 Fair Value Measurement for the first time th's finasciai year and has reviewed each vauation to ensure
witr the i of the rew standard. There have been no changes in valualion techniques as & resull of this

review, The last luil vaiuation of road and drainage, buiidings, airpon, bridge and heritage and cultural assels were vawed under
AASB118 Froperty, Plant and Equiprment.

Where land is used for community benefit purposes tnere is generally a differerce between the current use and nighesl and best use,
inciuding cemeteries, parks, sporting faciliies and the showgrounds.

Specific valuation technigues used to value Council assets comprise:
Land (level 2) / Land heid for sale (level 2)

Land ‘air vases were delermined Dy independert valuer, APV Vawers & Assel Managemenl eflective, 30 April 2074, Leve' 2
vaiuation inpuls were used !o value land in freehold litle as we' as ‘and esed for speciai purposes which is restricted in use under
current zoring ruies. Sales pmces of comparable iand sites In close prexim'ty are adjusied for diferences in key attribules sucn as
prope-ty size. Tre mosl significant inpuls into this valuator: aporoach are price per square metro.

Land (level 3) / Land heid for sale (level 3)

Wnere there was no observable market evidence ‘o a iand assel due o its configuration, council zoning reslriclions, contamina’on
or simiiar factors that result in the'e being no directly comparable marke! evidence ievel 3 valuation inputs were used. Fo- these
assets significant assumplons needed to be made to determing the fair vaiue. Trese were subseguently valed a: the levei 3
valuation input hierarchy by using the pi | judg: of & Regi Valuer who adjusted the price per square melre of saies
from sites nol in ¢lose croxmity which provided only a low leve! of comparabilily. The nighesl and best aliernale use was utfised in
the determination: of the replacement cost where there was no directiy comparable market evidence for the current use.

Land classified as heid for sale during the reporling period was measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair vaiue less cost
%0 sell at the time of recassification. The fair vaiue of the land was determired using the sales comparisor approach descriced in the

preceding paragragh.
The ‘ollowing ‘able provides a y of the unok inputs and an assessment of the sens’tivity of these to the 'ar value
rgasuremer.
of to vable Inputs
Significant unobservable Input Range of inputs | Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
Price per square metre $0.50 - §1 000 L:Bl;:;gvh:uema Riice per-quans-meve, e higher

Buildings (level 3)

The tair va'ue of buidings is measured at writen down curren! repiacemer! cost. The las! comprebensive revaluation was
undertaken by AssetVal Pty Ltd, Registered Valuers, under AASB 116 Properly Plant & Equipment, as at 30 June 2012, The
indexed based review conducied by AssetVai Pty Lid and Councli's review of indices as a* 30 June 2014 fourd no matera
movement n values, and as a result ro valuation edjustment was undertaker.
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For the year ended 30 .June 2014
Current replacement cost (CRC)

Whera Councll buildings are of a specialist natura and there is no active marke! for the assets, fair value has been determined on the
basis of replacement with a new assel having similar semca puwnual Putlshed or available markel data for recent projects, andior

published cost guides are uliised o determine the 1t cost, inchudir for preliminaries and
professional fees.

Accumuiated depreciation

In ing the level of p ion the asset has been disaggregated into significant components which exhibit

different useful lives. Allowance has been made for the typical asset lde cycle and renewal treatments of each compenent. An
assessment of the economic life and remaining economic ife of the various assets has been derived from valuer experience.

Estimated useful lives and residual values (nil for buildings) are disclosed in Note 20,

Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable inputs

The table below 1re effect that ges in the most signi u inputs would have an the valuation:

Signlficant unobservable input Range of inputs | Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value

" E ‘The higher the replacement cost per square melra,
Replacement cost per square metre 564 - §5 605 the higher the falr value.

[Remaining useful e 2-80 years ;;??vl;? the remaining useful ife, the higher the|

Site Improvements (level 3}

The fair value of site improvements were datermined by Cardno (Qid} Ply Ltd, Registerad Valuer, as at 30 April 2014, at writlen down
current replacement cost.

Current replscement cost (CRC)

‘Where site improvement assets are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for the assets, fair value has been delemined
on the basis of replacement with a new assel having similar service potential. The unit rates {iabour and materials) and quantities

applied to determine the CRC of an asset are based on the full W cosl, i s that may not need o be
replaced. The unit rates were derived from valuer databases and cost curves, uheduled rales ID( canstruction of assets or similar
assets, published cost guides and supplier and cali where s ion unit rates {re costs) were

increased by 15% to allow for project overheads including survey, environmental and investigalion costs, engingering desi
planning, and project management.

Aceumulated depreciation

I determining the level ol accumulated depreciation, the asset has been disaggregated into signilican! componenls which exhibit
different useful lives. Allowance has bean made for the consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset by reference 1o
the uselul life and condition of the asset.

Site inspeclions were undertaken on 50% of the site improvements. For the inspected asssts a condition rating was alocated which
determined the remaining uselul [ife as par the following table:

Remaining
Cenditian rating useful life %

0-1 B0%-100%

1-2 60%-80%

23 40%-60%

3.4 20%-40%

4-5 0%-20%
‘Where sila inspections were not conducted, the remaining useful life was calculated based on age. Where assets have nol besn
inspected and did not have a construction date, an average condition rating based on the 50% i assats was o
those assets and g usedul life gly.

Estimated usehul lives and residual vatues (nil for site improvements) are disclosed in Note 20.
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Notes to the financlal statements
For tne year ended 30 June 2014

Sensifivity of valuation {o uncbservable inpuls

Tie tabie below summarises *he ef'ect that changes 'n the most significant uncbservable inputs wou'd have on the valuation:

Significant unobservable Input Range of inputs | Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
Material cost 20% - 75% of [The higher the material cost, the higher the fair|
sl replacement cost |value.
15% - 70% of ) P

i T i i 4 r th e,
Labour cost repiacement cost The higher the labcur cost, the higher the fair value
18 higher t , the i the fai

Replacement cost $70 - $5 999 626 ILZ:QHH he rpiacement coat, the higher the feir
= e

Condition rating 0.1-4 Ix‘aworse e asset conditior, the lower the fair

The higher the residual value tre higher the fair

Rosidual valuo 50-$5 999 626 ¢ 10 mesunl,vatue Lys:highor 1ol
Useful fe 10-102 years [The longer the usefui iile, the higher the fair value.

Infrastructure assets (level 3)

Adl Courcil infrastructure assets were valued using writer. down current repiacement cost. Tris valuation comprises tne assets
current replacement cost {(CRC) less on the pasis of such cos! io reflect the already consumed
or exprred fulure economic benefils of the asset. Gouﬂ st delermined the gross cost of replacing the fuli service potential of the
asset and then adusted this amount to take account of the expired service polential of the asser.

CRC was measured by reference fo the lowes! cost at which the gross fulure ecoromic berefi's of the asset couid currenty be
obtained in the normal course of busitess. Where existing assels wers over designed, had excess capacity, or were redundart ar
adiustmert was made so thal the resulting vaivation refected the cost of replacing the existing economic penefils based on an
efficiont sot of modern equivalent assets o achisve the required leve! of sarvice outout within the courci's piarning Rorizon.

The unit rates {labour and ard quartilies aopied lo ine the CAC of an asset or asset comoonent were based on 2
that the CRC was determined as the full cos! of replacement with a rew asse! inciuding
camponarts that may nat need to be repaced, such as eanhworke. The deprecialed replacement cost was determined using
me:nods relevar: to the asset class as described under individual asset categories beiow.

Road and drainage network (level 3)

Current replacement cost (CRC)

Councl! caregorises its road infrastructure according to the NAASRA functiona! road s ard then calegonses these mto
sealed and unseaied. Both wiban and rural roads are managed in segments of varying lengths. This can be dependant or
CONSlrUCHON type, environment and su as. All road segr are then comp d into formation, pavement and surface

(wnere applicabie). Council assumes tha! environmenta! factors such as soil iype, cimate and topography are consistent across each
segmant, Counch also assumes a segment is constructed 1o the same standard and uses corsistent unit rates.

CRC was calculated by reference to assel linear and area specifications, estimated labour and materia inputs, services cosis, and
15, Counci: that formation, pavement and surfaces are construcied to the siandard drawings sef cut in
the Capri Municipal Design Guidei For inlermal construction estimales, matenal and services prices are based on existing
supplier contract rates or supplier pr s and labour wage rates warg vased on Gourcil’s Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA).
Al direcl cosls were aliocaled to assets at usage rding te recently simiiar projects. Where
construction is outsourced, CRC was based on the average unit rates of compieted similar prejects over the last few years.

Tra tast fuii vaiuation of road and drainage infrastruciure was underlaker effective 30 Jure 2012 by suitably qualfied ofiicers of
Rockhampton Regiona' Council under AASB116 Proparty, Plant and Equipment. A review of indices as at 30 June 2014 using the
ABS Peoducers’ Price Index "Roads and Bridges Constructon - Queersiand (3101) A2333727L" found thal there was no ma'erial
movement in values, and as a resull no valuation adj 1t was underiah
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MNotes to the financial statements
For the year ends: 1

Accumulated depreciation

In determining the level of accumulated d lation, roads ware di d into significant componants which exhibited different
useful lives.

Assessment of expired service potential and remaining useful lives was undertaken based on a straight line basis derived drom the
assaciated benchmark life for e type of asset or condition information where reliable information is available.

Estimatad useful lives and resldual values are disclosed in Note 20.

Hoad and y of to vable inputs

As detailed above, Council's road and drainage network has been valued using written down current replacement cost. This methad
utilises a number of inpuls that require judg and are fore classed as | While these judg are made
with the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different judgements could resull in a different vaksation. The lable
below summarises the effect that changes in the most significani unobservable inputs weuid have on the valuation:

Significant unobservable input Range of inputs | Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value

g | - " X .
Nisiinbiecial liatscias Bouirk \;ir::eug:remwg 1::,.;“ gher the labour hours, the higher the fair

Varias depending| The higher the plant hours and more costly the plant
Numbecof plant hoors ard fypecof plant imed on type of assets |used in the process, tha higher the fair value.

) - \ ing[The higr ties, the higr I
Standard material usaga quantities Ui’:f;!d:fmﬂu v::m gher the usage quantites, the higher the falr

» § ; The longer the remaining uselul life, the higher the
Remaining useful life 2-120years [ e

Varies depending ' . N
Residual value on type of assets I;zeh gher the residual value, the higher the fak
0-100%

Bridge network (level 3)

The fair value of the bridge network Is measured al writlen down curent replacement cost. The last comprehensive revaluation was
undertaken by AssetVal Pty Ltd, Registered Valuers, under AASB 116 Property Flant & Equipment, as at 30 June 2012, The
indexed based review conducled by AsselVal Ply Lid and Council's review of indices 28 at 30 June 2074 found no material
movernent in values, and as a result no valuation adjustment was underiaken.

Current replscement cost

Where Council bridges are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for the assels, fair value has been determined on the
basis of replacement with a naw asset having similar service polential. Published or available market data for recent projects, andior
published cost guides are uliised to delermine the estimated replacement cost, including allowances for preliminaries and
professional fees.
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Holes to the linancial statements
For Ihe year endad 30 June 2014

Accumuisted depreciation
In determining the level of accumulated depreciation te asse: has been disaggragated into significant components which exhibi:

differert usefu' fives. Allowance has peen made for Ine typical asset iife cycle and renews: trealments of each comnonert. An
assessmer! af the ecenomic (ife ana remaining economic I¥e of tne various assels has been derved from Valuer experience.

Estimated usefu! lves and restduai values (nil for bridge network) are disciosed in Note 20.
Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable inputs

The labie beiow summarises the efiect thal changes in the most significant urcbservabie inputs would have ar the vauatior:

Significant unobservable Input Range of inputs | Relationship of unobservable inputs lo falr value

5-160 Tre higher the labour hours, the higher the fair

Mumber o? abaur hours houts/compenent vaiue.

Varies dopending
Raw matenal usage quaniifies on type o' assels

The higner the usage quantilies, Ine highe: the fail
and appiicalion M

ale.

Tre ionger the remaining useful li‘e, the higher the

[Remaini tul =1 "8 | fah
Remaining use'ul life 2-1005608 {0 aine,

Water and Sewerage (level 3)

Tre fa'r vaive of waler and sewerage assets were determined by AssetVal Pty Lid, Registered Valuer, as at 30 Aprit 2014, al wrinen
down current replacement cost

Current replacement cost (CRC)

The water and sewer assels wee segregated into active ard passive asse's. Fo- passive assets (water and sewer mains; water
meters) unit rates were app'ed based on similar recent procect costs, und rate dalabases, indices, Rawiinson's construction rates and
quotations and reviews by Counc?! enginears. The active assets of reatmert, pumping and storage assets were compeonentised anc
valued independenty, wilh aliewances lor compiexity, size, function and site factors. Raw coss were increased by up to 30%
depercing on proiect comp'extty to allow for prolect overheads inciuding survey, enviranmentai and investigation costs, engineer’rg
design, olannirg and projiect maragemant.

Aceumulated depreciation

I determining the ieve! of accumuiated depreciation tor majo: assels, he assels have been disaggregated into significart
components which exd dilierent patterns of consumption (uselul kves). Resldual value fine vakie a! the Eme the asset is
considered no longer availab'e) is also a 'actor. A condition assessment (g applied on a componen| bas's, which is based on fastors
such as the age of the asse!, overal! condition at the lime of inspection, economic andior functior. cosoiescerce. The conditon
assessmen: drecty rans'ates to the eve: of depreciation applied.

For the above ground actve wa'er and sewer assets there was a 95% inspection undenaken. Where site inspectons were not
conducted tne remainirg useful iife was calculated on asset age ard estimated useful lfe.
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Notes to the financial statements

Forthe year ended 30 Juno 2014
The condition rating inputs can be defined in the following table:

ripti ot
Description Fating life remaining
Brand new or rehabifitated to new 10 100%
Near new with no visible deterioration 8 90%
Excellent overall condition early stages of delerioration 8 80%
Very good overall condition with obvious L evident 7 70%
Good overall conditicn, obvious deterioration, serviceability impaired very s
shghtly 60%
Fair overall condition, obvious deterioration, some serviceability loss 5 50%
Fair to poor overall condition, obvious deterioration, some serviceability loss 4 0%
Paoor overall iion, obvious ioration, Some Servi ility loss, high 3
maintenance costs 0%
Very poor overall condition, severe deterioration, very high maintenance costs, 2
(Consider renewal 20%
Extremely poor condilion, severe serviceability problems, renewal required .
immediately ) 10%
|Failed asset, no longer serviceable. Should nol remain in service 0 0%
Eslimated useful lives and residual vaiues are disciosed in Note 20.
Sensitivity of valuation to unobservabie inputs
Significant uncbservable input Range of inputs | Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
1% The higher the labour hours, the higher the fai
Number of labour hours per compenent hoursfinear value. '
metra )

Varies depondingl., higher the usage quantities, the higher the fair

Raw malerial usage quantities on type and value.
application -
Water:
Condition rating 1<8; The higher the condition score, the higher the fai
Sower value,
1-8
Water:
el 1118 YeRIS |1 e longor the remaining usetul I, the higher tha
" E— fair value.
1 - 86 years
Water:
-§2 17
Residual value $0-§2 173600 The higher the residual value, the higher the fair|
) value
Sewer;
$0 - $2 079 000
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Airport (level 3)

The fair vaiue of the airport assets are measured al written down current replacement cost. Tne last comprehansive "evaluatior was
underiaken by AsseiVal Pty Lid. Regislered Vaiuers, under AASB 116 Properly Planl & Equipmen:. as at 30 Jure 2012. The
Indexed based review conducted by AssetVai Pty Lid and Councli's review of indices as at 3C Jure 2014 found nc materal
movemer! in values, and as a result ro valuation adiustiment was undertaken,

Current replacement cost

Where Counci! airport assets are of a specialisl nature and there i ne active market for the assels, fair value has been determined
on tre bas's of replacement with a new asset having simiiar service potenta!. Published or avallabie marke! data for recen: projects,
andier published cos: guides are uiilsed to delermine the estimated replacement cost. including allowances lor preiiminaries and
professional tees.

Accumulated depreciation

In irg he ieve! of i the asset has been disaggregaied into significant components which exnibit
diferent uselu. lves. Allowance has been made for the typical asse! life cyc'e and renewa! ‘rea'ments of each comporent and
residual va'ues at the ime the asset is considered to be no 'onger avaiiable for use.  Airpor: hardstand pavements nave a residual of
40% wils @ formation res'cual of 100%. Ar assessmant of the ecoromic “fe and ramain'ng economic fife of 1ne various assets has
been derived from valuer gxperignce.

Est'mated useful lives ard nesidua’ values are d'sclosed in Note 20.
Sensilivity of valuation ta unobservable inputs

The tabe below summarises the eflect that charges in the mest significant urobservable inputs would have on the vaiuation:

‘Significant uncbservable input Range of inputs | hip of unobservable Inputs 1o fair value
]
5-100 z
hi r oA k ¥ he f
Number of iabour hours per companent hours near ;r:fm grar“the tabour hioues, the -higher tha-falr
metre )
Varies depending |, oo g ¥ " .
Raw matera usage quantities on type and ;I;.’E;.ghe the usage quartties, the higher the lair]
appiicasion o
ir te, the higher 1
Remaining uselul ii'e 2-118 years :a?v::gu the remaining usefui lite, the higher the|
The iy ; lue, Te righer e 1ai
Residual vaiue $0 - 5 300 000 ‘:::cueh igher the residual value, the righer tne fairl

Heritage and Cultural Assets (level 3)

The fair value of heritage buildings is measured at writlen down current replacemen cost: with the fair value of artworks, heritage
coliectons, rare books ard museum col'ections vawued on a marke: based app The last comg ve fion was
undertaker: by byice!, Registered Vaiver for anworks, and AssetVai Piy Lid, Registered Vamuers, for all other 'tems, under AASE 116
Properly Plant & Equipmen?, as a! 30 June 2013. The indexed pased review conducted by AssetVal Ply Lid; and byjoe. {Artworks),
as at 30 June 2014 feund no materia! movement in vaiues, and as a resuit no was

Current replacement cost

As Councils heritage buildings are of a speciais: nature and there ' 70 acsive markel for the assels, lar value has been cetermined
o~ the basis of rep/acemert with a new asset having similar service potent'al. Published or availabie markei cata for recert projects,
andlor published cost guides are vilised o determine the estimeted reolacement cost, ‘ncluding allowances for preimiraries and
professiona’ ‘ees. Tre artworks and collections were valued under a matke! based aporeach reflacting the intinsic importance,
ranly and uniqueress ir. iheir vakies

Aecumulated depreciation

In determining the ‘evel of accumulaled depreciation the asset has been disaggregated into significant components which exhibit
diferent useful lives. An of the ic ite and 9 fe has been deriveo by the valuer from
experience valuing s'milar assets.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Heritage buildings - estimated useful lives and residual vaiues (nil for heritage buildings) are disclosed in Note 20.
ty of to vable Inputs
The table below summarises the effect that changes in the most significant unobservable inputs would have on the valuation:

(a) Heritage and cultural assets - bulldings and collections

Significant unobservable input Range of hm] Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair vaiue
Heritage bulldings:
Replacement cost per square metre $100 - $2160 ;:en:‘g'ﬁ:ﬁm{?siimam cost per square melre,
Remaining Iife 2-44 :’::mlorrger the remaining life, the higher the fair
Collections - herltage and museum:
[Riate per uni or metrs $2.40- $380 m]:’:ommqhel the input unit rale, the higher the fair)
(b) Artworks

Significant unobservable Input Range of Inputs |Relationship of unobservable Inputs to fair value
Replacement cost $1- $650 000 I:(;e"lgher the replacement cost, the higher Ihe fair

(c) Changes In fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

The changes In level 3 assets with ing fair value are detalled in Note 20 (Property, plant and equipment).

There have been no transfers b level 1,20r 3 during the year.

{d) Valuation processes

The Council engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the tar vaiue ot the land, site improvements,
buildings, infrastructure, airport and heritage and cultural assets on a regular basis within a five year cycle. An annual assessment is
undertaken to determine whether the carrying amount of the assets is materially different from the fair value. If any variation is
considered material a ion is either by o i luation or by applying an interim revaluation using
appropriate indices.

Changes in ‘evel 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each reporting period and reviewed by Finance, Chiet Executive
Officer and Audit and B P Commi
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note $ $
22 Intangible assets 2014 2013
Net carrying value at period erd;
Computer software 2,048 277 1,970,532
2,048,277 1,970,532
Computer software
Opening gross carrying value 3,930,504 5,034,161
Add assets held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Council
as at 30 June 2013 el
Adjustment to opening valus 494,955
Transfer from work in progress 20 644,580 1,089,821
Value of asset write off in the period (1,17 (492,479)
Assets held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Council {1,700,998)
Assets transferred 1o Livingstone Shire Council as at 31
December 2013 s (1,711,90)
5047241 3,830.504
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 1,958,972 2,570,440
Add assets held for transfer 1o Livingstone Shire Council 843,235
as at 30 June 2013 g
Adjustment to opening value 494,955
Amortisation in the period 10{b) 737912 721,497
Amortisatior: written off in the period (7.291) (488,730)
Assets held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Gouncil (B843,235)
Assets transferred to Livingstone Shire Council as at 31 34 1,029,119)
December 2013 (1.028,
2,999,664 1,956,972
Net carrying value al period end 2,048,277 1,970,532

Estimated useful life in years - 4 to 10 years

Straight line amortisation has been used with no residual
value.
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Note
23 Trade and other payables

Current
Creditors and accruals
Annual leave
Sick leave
Other entillements
Balance of cash payable for restructure of local

government 19& 34

In accordance with revised AASB 118 Employee Benefits, all
annual leave and sick leave has been reclassified 1o a
current liability and restatement for the prior year has now
occurred.

24 Provisions

Current
Quarry rehabilitation
Landfill restoration
Carbon tax
Long service leave

Non-current
Quarry rehabilitation
Landfil restoration
Long service leave

Detalls ot movements In provisions:

Quarry rehabilitation
Balance at beginning of financial year
Add back liabilities held for transfer to Livingstone Shire
Council as at 30 June 2013
Increase in provision due to change in time
Increase/{decrease) in provision due to change in
discount rate
Increase/(decrease) in estimate of future cost
Liabilities held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Council
Liabilities transferred to Livingstone Shire Council as at a4
31 December 2013
Balance at end of financial year

Page 41

$ $
2014 Restated 2013
14,464,383 8,252,425
7,890,940 7,588,786
127,482 136,801
692,703 961,377
10,381,261
33,556,769 16,949,389
2014 Restated 2013
50,264 49,287
1,024,447 2,116,193
371,000
10,721,692 10,043,717
12,167,403 12,009,197
483,301 410,935
11,084,006 12,762,950
1,586,256 1,485,335
13,153,563 14,658,220
460,222 761,261
192,575
28,126 19417
18,719 (32,886)
29,779 (94,995)
(192,575)
(195,856)
533,565 460,222
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Note S $
2014 2013

This is the present value ot the estimated cost of restoring

the quarry sites to a usable state at the end of their useful

life. The projected cost is $717,852 and this cost is expected

to be incurred over the period 2015 fo 2034.

Landfill restoration

Balance at begirning of financial year 14,879,142 5,622,111
Add back liabilities held for transfer to Livingstone Shire
Coundil as at 30 June 2013 91655,845
Decrease in provison for rehabilitation asse! expenditure (2,181,754)
Additional sites and closure cost recognitions 19,530,968
Increase in provision due to change in time 162,674 171,307
Decrease in provision due to change in discount rate (1,243,678) (533,345)
Increase/{decrease) in estimate of future cost 528,944 {256,253)
Liabilities held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Council (9,655,846}
Liabilities transferred to Livingstone Shire Council as at
31 December 2013 (8,682.521)
Balance at end of financial year 12,108,453 14,879,142

This is the present value of estimated future closure, maintenance
and monitoring cost of landfill sites to the end of their useful lifes and
regulated periods. The projected cost is $16,357,320 and this cost is
expected to be incurred over the period 2015 to 2046.

Carbon tax liability
Balance at beginning of financial year ¥
Increase in liability 371,000
Balance at end of financial year 371,000

Long service leave

Balance at beginning of financial year 11,529,052 15,231,683

Add back liabilities held for transfer to Livingstone Shire

Council as at 30 June 2013 4,684,723

Long service leave enlitlement arising 1,906,699 3,084,275

Long service entitlement extinguished (522,850} {1,129,923)
Long service entitlement paid (691,347} {982,260)
Liabilities held for transier to Livingstone Shire Council (4,684,723)
Liabilities transferred to Livingstone Shire Councit as at

31 December 2013 (4.598.329)

Balance at end of financial year 12,307,948 11,529,052

The non-current portion of long service leave are discounted
1o the presenl value.

In accordance with revised AASB 118 Employee Benefits,
the uncenditional portion of long service leave is reclassified
to a cument liability ana restatement for the prior year has
occurred.
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Note
25 Borrowings

(a) Bank overdraft
The Council does not have a bank overdraft facility.

(b) Unsecured borrowings

2014

2013

Unsecured borrowings are provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation. All borrowings are in Australian dollar
denominaled amounts and camried at amorlised cost, interest being expensed as it accrues. No interest has been
capitalised during the curremt or comparative reporting period. Expected final repayment dates vary between 15

December 2022 to 4 June 2023,

There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the peried. Principal and interest repayments are

made quarterly in arrears.

Details of borrowings at balance date are:
Current
Queenstand Treasury Corporation

Liabilities to be transferred to Livingstone Shire Council

Non-current
Queensland Treasury Corporation

Liabilities to be transferred 1o Livingstone Shire Council

Details of movements in borrowings:
Queensland Treasury Corporation
Cpening balance
Add liabifities held for transfer to Livingstone Shire
Council as at 30 June 2013
Loans raised
Principal repayments

Liabllities held for transfer to Livingstone Shire Council
Liabilities transferred te Livingstone Shire Council as at
31 December 2013

Book value at year end

The QTC loan market value for all loans at the reporting date was
$171,244,149. This represents the value of the debt if Council repaid
it at that date. As it is the intention of Council to hold the debt for its

term, no provision is reguired to be made in these accounts.

Page 43

14,407,449 19,396,425
(6,128,970)
14,407 449 13,267,455
143,495,888 220,625,047
: (73,290,075)
143,495,888 147,334,972
160,602,426 220,090,948
79,419,045
10,306,321 38,400,000
(16,159,797) (18,469,477)
234,167,995 240,021,471
(79,419,045)
(76,264,659)
157,903,336 160,602,426
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Note $ $
26 Other liabilities 2014 2013
Current
Unearned revenue 533,319 317,378
533,319 317,378
Non-current
Developer contributions 2,472,710 1,220,860
2,472,710 1,220,860

The developer contribution NHabilty reflects cash contributions from
developers for which the related service obligations have yet to be
{uffilled by Council. Refer Note 1.9 {d).

27 Retained surplus/(deticiency) 2014 Restated 2013

Movement in the retained surplus

Retained surplus/(deficit} at beginning of the year 1,963,537,727 1,952,178,181
Adjustment to opening balance 38 (2,647,308}
Restated balances 1,963,537,727 1,949,530,873
Net result attributable 1o Council (770,147 589) 23,790,688
1,193,390,138 1,978,321,561
Transters (to)'from reserves for future capital funding
purposes:
{iy Unspent capital grants reserve 675,177 3,327,194
{ii}  Constrained grants and contributions reserve 11,543,868 (2,414,654)
(i) Airport development reserve 477,266 (159,083)
{iv) Capilal works reserve 1,175,470 (113,216}
(v; Plantreserve (1,892,059) {194,293)
(vi) Water reserve 1,929,392 134,587
(vii) Sewerage reserve 370,716
(viiiy Waste management reserve 78,905
(ix) Year end uncompleted works reserve 12,463,519 (9,780,209)
Transfers (to)from reserves for fulure general funding
purposes:
(i) Operating projects reserve 1,455,142 (584,160}
(i} Asset maintenance reserve 19,542
Balance at the end of financial year 1,221,687,076 1,963,537,727
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Note $ $
28 Asset revaluation surplus 2014 Restated 2013
Movements in the assel revaluation surplus were as
follows:
Balance at beginning of the year 390,325,398 398,495,279
Adjustment to opening balance 38 - 5,899,513
Restated balance 390,325,398 404,394,792
Net adjustment to non-current assels 1o reflect a change in
current fair value:
Water - impairment and reversal of previous impalrment 1,762,599
Road and drainage network - fiood and other 853,570 (13,570.873)
adjustments
Buildings - revaluation 5,008
Site improvements - revaluation 4,739,495
Sewerage - revaluation 408,516
Water - revaluation 35,619,617
Land revaluation 25517410
Heritage and cullural assets - revaluation (2,266,218)
Balance at end of the year 457,465,006 290,325,398
Asset revaluation surplus analysis
The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus is
comprised of the following asset categories:
Land 48,314,787 22,797,377
Site improvemenis 6,607,543 1,868,048
Buildings 28,353,361 28,353,361
Road and drainage network 229,586,865 228,733,295
Bridge network 2,048,224 2,048,224
Water 51,283,801 15,664,274
Sewerage 69,918,398 69,508 882
Airport 16,940,328 16,940,328
Heritage and cultural assets 4,411,609 4,411,608
457,465,006 390,325,398
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29 Other reserves

Note
$ s $
(a) Other reserves - current year
Balance at Balance at the
beginning of Trsnigiats fo/som end of financial
retained earnings
financial year year
Movements in capital reserves are
analysed as follows:
iy Unspent capital grants reserve 1,047 870 {675.177) 372,693
@l _Constrained grants and 27,876,432 (11,543,868) 16,434,564
contributions reserve
(i} Airport development reserve 3,934,804 (477,266) 3,457,538
(iv) Capital works reserve 6,422,539 (1,175,470} 5,247,069
{vi Plantreserve 2,268,006 1,892,058 4,160,065
(vit  Water reserve 2,460,306 (1,929,392) 530,914
(vii} Sewerage reserve 2,125,029 (370.716) 1,754,213
(viii) Waste management reserve 1,067,176 (78,905) 988,271
o
::‘;ar:e“' end uicompleted warks 27,078,343 (12,463,619) 14,614,824
74,382,505 (26,822,254) 47,560,251
Movements in operating reserves are
analysed as follows:
iy Operaling projects reserve 10,222,104 (1,455,142) 8,766,962
(i) Asset maintenance reserve 396,211 (19,542) 376,689
10,618,315 {1,474 684) 9,143,631
Total other reserves 85,000,820 28,296,938) 56,703,882
(b) Other reserves - prior year
Balance at Balance at the
beginning of l‘;’;::’::‘::i':’: end of financial
financial year 9 year
Movements in capital reserves are
analysed as follows:
(i Unspent capital grants reserve 4,375,064 (3,327,194} 1,047,870
) Gonstrained grants and 25,563.778 2,414,654 27,978,432
contributions reserve
(i} Airport development reserve 3,775,721 169,083 3,934,804
(iv) Capital works reserve 6,309,323 113,216 6,422,539
(vi  Plant reserve 2,073,713 194,293 2,268,006
(vi)  Water reserve 2,594,893 {134 587) 2,460,306
(vii) Sewerage reserve 2,125,029 2,125,029
{viii) Waste management reserve 1,067,176 1,067,176
£:gew“:’3’ end uncompleted works 17,298,134 9,780,209 27,078,343
65,182,831 9,199,674 74,382,505
Movements in operating reserves are
analysed as follows:
(i) Operating projects reserve 9,637,944 584,160 10,222,104
(i} Assel maintenance reserve 396,211 396.211
10,034,155 584,160 10,618,315
Total other reserves 751216 986 9,783,834 85,000,820
These reserves are cash backed as per
cash and investments held in Notes 15, 16
&19.
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30 Commitmenis for expenditure

3

Operaling leases
Minimum lease payments in relation 1o non-cancellable operating leases

are as follows:
Within one year

One lo five years

Contractual commitments
Contractual commitments al end of financial year but not recognised in
1he financial stalements are as foliows:

Aijrport

Waste and Recycling
Fitzroy River Water
Communities
De-amalgamation
Other

Conlingent liabilities

Note

Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

(i) Community loans

Under approval irom Queensland Treasury, Council has guaranteed loans
to Diggers Memorial Bowls Club ($13.33) and Rockhampton Basketball Inc
($209,401.01) as at 30 June 2014,

{ii) Local Government Workcare

The Rockhampton Regional Council is a member of the Queensland local
government workers compensation self-insurance scheme, Local
Government Workeare. Under this scheme the Council has provided a bank
guarantee 1o cover bad debts which may remain shouid the self insurance
licence be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover
outstanding liabilities. Only the Queensland Government's workers
compensation autherity may call on any part of the guarantee should the
above circumstances arise. The Council's maximum exposure to the bank
guarantee is:
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2014 2013
$ $
4728 9,557
16,736 40,593
21464 50,150
5,726,308 967,829
4,931,186 18,041,080
1,908,763 1,018,725
2592567 910,015
. 906,061
514,814 817,936
15,673,638 23,661,646
209,414 244,414
4,160,251 3,909,040
Q
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2014 2013
(iify Local Government Mutual

The Council is a member of the local governmenl mutual lability self-
insurance pool, LGM Queensiand. In the event of the pool being wound up
or it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules
provide that any accumulated deficit wili be met by the individua! pool
members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total poo!
coniributions in respect lo any year thal a deficit arises.

The financial statements for 30 June 2013 reported an accumulated surplus
and il is not anticipated any liability will arise.

(iv) As at 30 June 2014, the foliowing cases were filed in the courls naming
the Rockhampton Regional Council as defendant:

Number of cases Number of cases

Workplace Health and Sa'ely prosecution

A workpiace health and safety prosecution has commenced however there

is a dispute in regards 1o whether Council should remain as defendant. An

appeal is currently with the Supreme Court of Queensland to determine

whether Counci! is in fact the defendant. The penalty imposed should

Council be listed as defendant and found in breach would be determined

following a hearing. 1 ']

Yeppoon to Rockhampten pipeline Supreme Court case.

The above case has been detailed under Conlingent Liabilities for a number
of years in the financial stalements of Rockhamplon Regional Councit. This
case was seitled on the 28th May 2014, releasing all parties involved from
all liability in respect of the claims in the case, once all conditions of the
settlement agreement has been met. All the conditions have now been met. 0 1

{v) Possible liability arising from the de-amalgamation of Livingstone Shire
Council from Rockhampton Regional Councit

The substantial and involved de-amalgamation process between the above

two councils has progr almost 1o completion as at the reporling date.
The process was guided by !egislation consisting of the Local Government
(De-an i ion) Regulation 2013, supported by the De-

amalgamation Transfer Methodology.

Due to the numercus assumption and interpretation options available for
consideration within this legislative environmeni, there was always the
possibility of contrasling interpretations. The posilion of Rockhampton
Regional Counci! is that they have met all the conditions of the de-
amalgarnation legislation, and that all matters were dealt with in a timely and
transparani manner via participation in the Transfer Commitiee.

It is the recent contention of Livingstone Shire Council that some financial
separation delall shoukd have been dealt with differently, which would result
in an improved cash oulcome for Livingstone Shire Council. This matter
could not be resolved by the Transfer Committee, and is in the process of
being referred to the Minister for Local Government, Commurity Recovery
and Resilience for his consideration.
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32 Superannuation

The Rockhampton Regional Council contributes 1o the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qid) (the scheme).
The scheme is a Multi-employer Plan as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AASE 119 Employee Benefits.

The Queensland Local Government Superannualion Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local government
superannuation scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation
Indusiry (Supervision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements referred to as:
The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund
The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fund members working for regional
local governments; and

The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF).

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 119. Council has no liability to or interest in the ABF other
than the payment of the statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 20089

Council does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore, is nol exposed 1o the obiigations,
assels or cosls associated with this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB119. The Council is not able to account for the Regional
DBF as a defined benefit plan in accordance with AASB118 because the scheme is unable to account 1o the Council for
ils proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs. The funding policy adopted in respect of
the Reglonal DBF is directed al ensuring that the benefils accruing lo members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they
fall due.

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the rate of contributions from
relevant local government employers subject to advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no changes
had been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain al 12% of employee asssls and there are no known
requirements lo change the rale of contributions.

Any amount by which either fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits and contributions to the
Regional DBF, and is not an asset or liability of the Council. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements
of any over or under funding of the schame.

As al the reporting date, the assets of the scheme are sufficient o meet the vested benefits.

The most recent acluarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2012, The actuary indicated that “the
Regional DBF is currently in a satisfactory but modesi financial position and remains vulnerable to adverse shorl and

medium term experignce.”

Following the previous actuarial assessment in 2009, Gouncils were advised by the trustee of the scheme, following
advice from the scheme's actuary, that additional contributions may be imposed in the future at a level necessary to
protect the enlittements of Regional DBF members. In the 2012 actuarial report the actuary has recommended no change
to the employer conlrioution levels al this time.

Under the Local Government Act 2009 the trusiee of the scheme has the power to levy additional contributions on
councils which have employees in the Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable -
normally when the assets of the DBF are insufficient to meet members’ benefits.

There are cumently 72 entities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any changes in coniribution rates would apply
equally to all 72 enlities. Rockhampton Regional Council made less than 4% of the total contributions o the plan in the
2013/14 financial year.

2014 2013
$ $
The next actuarial investigation will be conducted as at 1 July 2015,
The amount of superannualion contriputions paid by Rockhamplon Regional Council
to the scheme in this period for the benefit of employees was: 8,188,661 9,228,333
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2014 2013
Note $ $
33 Trustfunds
Trust funds held for outside parties:
Manies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet to be paid out {0 or on 2 086 597 0.510.679
behalf of those entities oAk =
2,086,597 2,210,679
The Rockhamplon Regional Council performs only a custodial role in respect of
these monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they
are not brought to account in these financial statements.
34 Disposal due to the Igi ion of Livil Shire Council
On 11 Aprii 2013 the Queensland State Government the Local Gor (D i tion Implementation}

Reguiation 2013 for the purpose of de-amalgamating several local government areas, including Rockhampton.
Rockhampton Regional Council would continue with different boundaries and Livingstone Shire Council would be
established as a new local government area. The de-amalgamation took effect on 1 January 2014, As pari of the de-
amalgamation process, the transfer commitiee for Livingstone Shire Council determined the assels and liabiities 1o
transfer from Rockhampton Regional Council to Livingstone Shire Council. No compensalion was received by either
Councl! for the assets and liabiiities iransferred and a loss or restructure has been recorded in accordance with AASE 2
Business Combirations.

Casn was apportionsd based on the opening balances inherited by Council on amalgamation and the reconstruction of the
cash flows for the period of amalgamation. Similarly, loans were allocated based on the opening balances on
amaigarnation and the direct allocation of new borrowings and repayments over the period of amalgamalion. Other
assets and liabililies were mainly apportioned on the basis of geographical location. Where a geographical apportionment
was not possible, a population based distribution method was used, while other allocation methodoiogies were only used
where they provided meaningfui separation.

(a) Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost
Current assels

Cash, investments angd cash equivalents 341b) 43,384,331
Trade and other receivables 3,929,796
Inventories 1,043,515
Land held for sale 15,799
Non-current assels

Property, plant and equipment 905,611,761
Intangible assets 682,871

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (4,275,874)
Provisions {3,941,340)
Loans (6,581,722)
Other liabilities (126,785)
Non-current liabilities
Provisions {10,545,365)
Loans (69,682,937)
Other liabilities (433,118)
858,080,932
Compensation received
Loss on restructure of local government 859,080,932 -
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2014 2013
Note $ $
{b) Ne1 cash outflow on disposal of Livingstone Shire Council

Cash fioats and petty cash transferred on restructure 3,070
Initial cash transfer made on restructure 33,000,000 -

33,003,070 -
Balance of cash payable to Livingstone Shire Council 23 10,381,261

43!38421

In addition 1o the above, $863,510 in trust monies was transferred to Livingstone Shire Council. As the Council only
performed a custodial role in respect to these monies, they have not been brought to account in calculating the net loss on
local government de-amalgamation.

35 Reconciliation of net result attributable to Council to net cash flow
from operating activities

Net result atiributable to Council (770,147,589) 23,790,688
Non-cash operating items:
Depreciation and amortisation 43,439,719 58,511,284
Landfill rehabilitation 849,220 5,185,709
Carbon {ax 371,000
Change in restoration provisions expensed to financa costs 180,800 180,724
44,850,739 63,887,717
Investing and developmenl aclivities:
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions (70,671,502) (44,747,784}
Cagital income (139,387) (426,908)
Capital expenses 9,437,813 16,123,167
Loss on restructure of local government 859,080,932

797,707 856 (29,051,523)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

{Increase)/decrease in receivables (1,158,795) 2,392,068
({Increase)/decrease in inventories {excluding land) (457,749) 586,015
Increase(d ) in payabl 3,437,466 (3,731,883)
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 692,501 982,092
Increase/{decrease) in other liabiliies 180,971 205,672
2,694,394 523,965

Net cash inflow from operating activities 75,105,400 59,150,847

36 Contingent assets

Council has an agreement with RLX Investment Company Pty Lid for a lease over Council contrelled reserves, known as
the Gracemere Saleyards. The lease commenced 1 January 2010 for a pericd of thirty years. The lsssee has agreed as
part of the agreement to construct fixlures upon the land for their own purpose. It has been agreed that a sum of
approximately $14 millian will be expended in addifions and refurbishmants over the term of the lease. Council ablaining
conlrol of this asset is contingent upon the expiration/surrender of the lease agreement. Until such time that the fixtures
revert back te Council controd they will not be included in Gouncil's non-current assets.
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37 Accounting for natural disaster events

2013 tiood event

I January 2013, the Rockhampton area experienced an unprecedented amount of rainfall within a 24 hour
period from Cycione Cswald which led to flash fioeding as well as a moderate flood in the Fitzroy River. As a
result of this event, road infrastructure asset values were adjusted to reflect their damaged condition.

2011 flood event

in January 2011, the Rockhampton area experienced a major fiood from Cyclone Yasi and in the reporiing
period ended 30 June 2011, similar entrias were performed to that of the January 2013 event above. However,
adiustments were required 1o this data in the 2012713 financia! year, as below:

Comections to revaluation adjustments posted at 30 June 2012 due to incorrect asset dimensions being
used.

Reversal of asset write-offs in the year ended 30 June 2611 due to the preliminary nature of informatien
used.

In the current year the flood restoration works and assel entries were finalised. Any remaining estimated
comrections ic revaluation adjustments undertaken in 2012/13 were reinstated to the asset vaiues, as below.

Note 5 3 3 $

(a) Current Year

Asset
Accumulated Revaluation Capital
Cost Depreciation ~ Surplus Expenses

(i) 2013 flood event:

Asset adjustments 20&28 -
Write off of assets for 2013 flood event 20 & 28 &

{ii} 2011 flood event:

Reinstalement of asset values - 201213

adjustments not required 20828 088,030 235,480 853,570
Increase in asset values due to 2011
fiood event a2 1+089.030 235,480 853,570
(b) Prior Year

Asset

Accumulated Revaluation Capital
Cost Depreciation Surplus Expenses
(i) 2013 fiood event:

Asset adjustmenis 20828 9777.6M 1,790,974 5,355,165 2,631,553
Ezfjer:;!held for transfer Livingstone Shire 2 (3.412,306) (986,104} (1,429,215) (996,988)
Write off of assets for 2013 flood event 11 6,365,385 804,870 3,925,850 1,634,565

(i) 2011 flood event:

Assel adjusiments 20&28 13978418 8,467,989 8,726,005 (3,215,667)
Assets held for transfer Livingstone Shire 34 (3791,733)  (1.673,686) (2,608,982) 490,916

Council

Reduction in asset values due o 2011

flood event 1 10,188,685 6,794,323 6,117,113 (2,724,781)
Fage 52
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38 Correction of error
{a) Restatement of Cpening Balances for 1 July 2012:
The opening balances for assels and equily as at 1 July 2012 have been amended in the financial statements for the below ilems as were the comparative amounts for 2012113,

The additional asssts recagnised (existing assels not previously recognised and contributed assels) incarparate depreciation to 1 July 2013 In the asset values.

Comperatives 201213 prior to Comparatives 201213 restated
Note w" Closing Correction of eor]  gpening
balance 1 July | balance 30 balance 1 July | Closing balance
2012 June 2013 2012 30 June 2013
Property Plant and Equipment - 4 4
 value | sa) 20(0) 3,527.013,701 | 2,487.076,576 (13,959,183)| 3,513,054,518 | 2,479,734,108
Property Plant and Equipment -
awﬁm'?m” dep,w-:,;fn 971,441,796 | 784,125,382 17,211,288 | 954,230,408 767,135,420
(decrease) 20(b)
Total Property Plant and 2,555,571,905 | 1,702,951,194 3,252,205 | 2,558,824,110 |  1,712,588,678
Equipment (Increase) 20(b} | _ N
:’i‘::f;a’::'””m surplus - 308,495279 | 384,425,885 5839513 | 404,394,792 |  390,325398
Retained surplus (decrease) 27 1,952,178,181 | 1.959,788,758 | (2,647.308)| 1,948,530,873 | 1,963,537.729
Equilty m__z.wm 5,644 3,252,205 | 2,353,925,665 | _ 2,953,063,127
Retalned
203 Eamnings | Restated 2013
1712012
Capitat Expenses - restated |
201212013 11 &13 14,728,633 (5,395,278 6,395,278 8,333,357
Nole: no retrospective adjusiment has been made to the depreciation expense for the 2012/13 year, as the effect of the above adjustments on annual 1 has been
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{b) Corraction of error by

Plant and Read and

Bridge

Work in

Site ; . ’
assel class: | Liand Imgmvememsl Buildings Equipment | drainage network | network | e | Sewerage | Mrport Progress Tolal
Note

Asset values
(i} Assets nol proviously 38(c) & o .
rocognised p azoz 9,828,006 1,222,893 - 650,872 468366 | 21,142,287 3534475 36878911
(i) Contributed assets -prior  38(c) & 4818400 : : 1,741,208 2 392,966 | 618511 7561,083
years {d) - e
{iii} Assels previously 38(c) & ~ R
racogaised incommecly s (1,761,261) (27,539) - {11,000)] (2,753,097) {5,475,068) (15,632,201} (25,861 866)
{iv) Disposals (renewals) not a8(c) &
previously recorded (:d: (652.377) {125,533) (690,000) - (2,208} - (2,938,618) (2,360,761} {277.000) (8,946,497)|
ivh Reassessment of
landfill rehabilitation a8(e) {20,157,770) 3 - 5 % - - £ (5,633,043)|  (25.790,813)
ftreatment

Total asset values 20(b} 2,536,774 | (10, B 532,803 {1,000 1363,227) 468,366 | 13,111,567 | (13,641,676) (277.000)] __(5,633,043) _(13,856.182)
{vi} Assats previeusly 38(c) &
d nised incon @ {14,157) - {8.017) (303,014} {4.236,230)| (6.176.156) 10,737,574}
{vii} Disposals {renawals) not 3B{c) &
previously recorded ) - {67.729) (536,871) - [ikky - 2,356,000  (1.739.759) {14.747) {4,715,313)]
(viii) Reassessment of
tandfill rehabilitation 38(a) - (1,758,501) - - - - - (1,758,501}
treatment

Total accumulated

depreciation 20(b) - (1,840,387) (536,871) (8,017) (303,131) - {6,582,320)| (7,915,915) (14,747) - 17,211,388)
Total correction of errors 20(0) [ 2,536,774 |  (8,642,449)] 1,069,764 | (2,983)] 60,096)] 468,366 | 19,703,887 [ (5,925,761)] (262,253) (5,633,043) 3,252,206
C to apening (1 Juy 2012) :
Assels:

Asset value 20(b) 2,536,774 | (10,482,837) 532,693 {11,000} 363,227) 466,366 | 13,111,667 | {13,841,676)] 277,000]] {5.633,043)

A I iation 20(b) - {1,840,387) (536,871) (8,017) 303,131) (6,592,320)| (7,315,915 (1a,747)|

Total property plant and

eguipment 2536774 (8.642.450) 1,069,764 (2,583)| (60,096 468.366 | 19.703.887 {5.925.761) 62,253 {5.633,043)

Equity:

Assat revaluation surplus 28 {845 674)) § ,838)

Retai plusi( 27 {2.536,774) 8,642,450 (1,068,764} 2,983 705770 (468,366)] (14.450,049 5,925,762 262,253 5,633,043

Net impact | = . - . Y . = - - N
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Motes 1o the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

(0ST) abed

OvO

SUBLWIE)S payipan

(¢) As identified as part of the ongoing asset Improvement processes

As part of a continual asset data integrity and completeness improvemaent process, which commenced in 2070/11, the identification of e:ﬂs‘lng assets not previously recorded, disposals from prior years, including
where renewals were undertaken (water and sewerage), assets recorded in error and contributed assets that have not pi y been have been as an adjusiment to comparative parods. This
encompasses lhe recancifialion of informalion within the assel systems, assel register and graphical information sysrem and physnca! verihcatson where appropriate.

(d) As Identified in the 2013/14 year as part of the valuation process

During the process of valuing Council's assats at 30 June 2014, additional assets not iousl d and buted were identified and brought o account. Disposals of assets that
had bebn renewed In prior years were identified and corrected as an adjustment 1o the comparative period. These aasct ¢classes previously underwent a comprehensive revaluation in June 2009 upon amalgamation,
with this year being the final year in the revaluation cycle for all asset classes since amalgamalion.

(e} Landfill rehabilitation

(it Landfill rehabilitation asset: In the prior year Council correcled an error and brought to account for the first time an asset for the establishment of future landfill closure and maintenance costs, amounting te
$24,534,788 in accordance with AASE 118 Property, Plant and Equipment. In the current year, during the annual assessment of Council's provision for the restoration of landfills and the related rehabilalion asset, it
was idantified that this amount should have been reduced by $11,459,102 in ordet to appropriately reflect the pattern of existing consumption of the related landfill asset as at that date.

(i} Leachate assets: Disposal of laachate assets thal rolate to expendilure incurred for landfil restoration prior te 1 July 2012 amounting 1o $15,392,715. A portion of this amount, $9,214,782, relates to i.ssels

previously written off in 201213 (Site improvements - $3,581,732 and Capital closure costs - $5,633,043); disposal of these assels 5 now processed as correction of error, i with current ing
treatment.

{f) Internal revenue restatament

Council allocates internal revenue and exp [ Council d for the provision of intemal services. Any intemnal and would ity be netted off against each other for

consolidated reporting. However, in the 2012/13 financial year, rates and wiility charges for Council controlled properties were not netted off, resulting in Ihc overstatement of rak:s levies and charges revenue and the
overstatement of materials and services. The corection of error ko both of the respective lines in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is $2,930,985, however as there is offsetting reductions to both revenue and
axpenssa, there is no impact on Council's net result.
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PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statemenis
For the year ended 30 June 2014

39 Financial instruments

Rockhampton Regional Council's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial nsks including interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity
rigk.

Exposure 1o financial risks is managed in accordance with Council approved policies on financial risk management. These policies
{focus on managing the volatility of finaricial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on tne financial performance of
the Council.

The Council minimised its exp to fi ial risk in the following ways:
- Investments ir financia! assets are only made where those assets are with a bank or other financial institution in Australia.
- The Council does not invest in derivatives or other high risk investments.

- Wken the Council borrows, it borrows from the Queensland Treasury Corporation unless another financial institution can offer a
mare beneficial rate, taking into account any risk. Borrowing by the Council is constrained by the provisions of the Statutory Bodies

Financial Arrangements Act 1982.
Rockhampton Regi Council risk exposure using a variely of methods as follows:
Risk exposure Measurement method
Credit risk Ageing analysis
Liquidity risk Maturity analysis
Interest rate risk Sensitivity analysis
(i) Credit risk

Credit risk exposure refers 1o the situation where the Council may incur finarcia! loss as a resu't of another party to a financial
instrument failing o discharge their obligations.

In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power to sell the property to recever any defaulted amounts. In effect this power
protects the Counci! against credi risk in the case of these detts.

In other cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit
protection proceoures 1o minimise the risk.

The Council is exposed to credit risk through its ir with the Qu Treasury Corporation (QTC) and deposits held
with banks or other financiai institutions. The QTG Cash Fund is an asset management portiolio that invests with a wide variety of
high credit rating counterparties. Deposits are capital guaranteed. Other investments are held with highly rated and regulated
banks and whilst not capital guaranteed, the likelihood of a credit failure is remote.

The maximum exposure to credit risk al balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is tne gross carrying
amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions for impairment.

No coliateral is held as security relating to the linancial assets held by the Council

The following table represents the Council's maximum exposure to credit risk:

Note 2014 2013

Financial assets $ $

Cash and cash equivalenis 15 20,899,637 14,665,355

Investments 16 57,000,000 59,000,000

Receivables - rates 17 7,246,166 6,229,071

Receivables - other 17 9,549,990 8,336.802
Other credit exposures

Guarantee N 4,369,665 4,153,454

106,065,458 92,384,689

Past due or impaired

No financial assets have had their terms renegotiated so as ta prevent them from being past due or impaired, and are stated at the
carrying amounts as indicated.
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The following represents an analysis of the age of the Council's financial assets that are sither fully performing, past due or

impaired:
30-Jun-14 Past due
Fully s Less Total
erformin e85 than impairment
v v days 30-60days 61-90days Over 90 days pal
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Receivables 10,499,061 2,747,915 315,183 49,330 3,699,290 (514,624) 16,796,157
Net receivables 10,499,081 2,747,915 315,183 49,330 3,609,290 (514,624} 16,796,157
30-Jun-13 Ful Past due i
ully ess Total
rformin Less than 30 impairment o8
L i days 30-60days 61-90 days Over 90 days e
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Receivables 8,001,443 1,187,897 83,862 525,302 4,280,448 (451,220) 14,637,732
Net receivables 9,001,443 1,187,897 93,862 525,302 4,280,448 {451,220) 14,637,732
(i) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk refers to the situation where the Council may encounter difficulty in mesting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in
the normal course of business and borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation for capital works.

The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient undrawn facilities, both short and long term, to cater for
unexpected volablity in cash flows. These facilities are disclosed in the borrowings Note 25.

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the Council in a format as it might be provided to

1 g The disclosed in the maturity analysis represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows 2t balance date,
Carrying
Otot1year 1to5years Over5years Total smgintg
3 $ $ $ §
2014
Trade and other payables 14,464,383 - - 14,464,383 14,464,383
Loans - QTC 22,752,408 90,898,238 B6,006417 199,747,063 157,903,336
37,216,791 50,898,238 86,096,417 214,211,446 172,367,718
2013
Trade and other payables 8,262,425 - 8,252 425 8,252,425
Loans - QTC 21,999,697 80225681 124920476 227145854 160,602,427

30,252,122 80,225,681 124,920,476 235,398,278 168,854,852

The outflows in the above lable are not expected to occur significantly eariler and are not expected to be for significantly different
amounts than indicated in the table.

(i) Interest rate risk
The Council is exposed to interest rate risk through its finance lease borrowings, borrowings from the Queensland Treasury
Corporation and investments held with financial institutions.

The rigk in barrowing is effectively managed by borrowing from financial institutions which provide access to & mix of floating and
fixed funding sources such that the desired interest rate risk exposure can be constructed. Interest rate risk in other areas is
minimal.

The Council does not underiake any hedging of interest rate risk.
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes fo the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Interest rate sensitivily analysis
The foliowing interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on a report similar to that which would be provided to managemen?, depicting

the outcome to profit and loss should there be a 1% increase in market interest rates. The calculations assume that the rate would
be held constant over the next financial year, with the change occurring at the beginning of that year. h is assumed that interest
rates on overdue rates would not change. If the rates decreased by 1% the impact would be equal in amount in the reverse

direction.

Net carrying amount Profit'Loss Eauity

2014 [ 2013 2014 [ 2013 2014 | 2013

$ | $ $ i 3 § | $
Financial assets 86,872,137 76,324,180 868,721 763,242 868,721 763,242
Financial liabilities (157,903,336) | (160,602,427)| (1,579,033)| (1,608,024)| (1,579,033)] (1,606,024)
Net tota! (71,031,199)] (84.278.247)| (710,312)| (B42,782) {710,312} (842,782)
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

40 Natlonal competition policy

(a) Type 1and type 2 activities

Definitions of type 1 and 2 activities :
Before the end of each financial year, the Minister for Local Government must decide for the financial year, the expenditure
amounts {the “threshold amounts") for identitying a “significant business activity" that should be a type 1 or 2 business
activity.
Type 1.
A significant business activity where the threshold expenditure has been set by the Minister for the year ended 30 June 2014
follows :-
{a) for water and sewerage combined activities - $42,640,000
(b} for other activities - $25,540,000
Type 2.
(a) for water and sewerage combined activities - $12,770,000
(b) for other activities - $8,550,000

The Council has resolved to commercialise the following activities which fall into the expenditure guidelines above.

Waste and Recycling
Fitzroy River Water

Airport
(b) Activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied

A "business activity” of a local government is any activity that involves trading in goods or services.
The code of competitive conduct (CCC) must be applied to the following business activities:

(a) A building certifying activity that:
(i) involves performing building certifying functions within the meaning of the Building Act, section &; and
(ii) is prescribed under a regulation®.

*Section 38 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 lists the local government's whose activities are prescribed building
certifying activiies.

(b) A roads activity, other than a roads activity for which business in conducted only through a sole supplier arangement,
that involves.
(i) the construction or maintenance of state contrelled roads for which the local government submits an offer to carry out
work in response to a tender invitation.
(i) construction or road maintenance on another local govemment's roads which the local government has put out to
tender.

Each local government may elect to apply a Code of Competitive Conduct (CCC) to any other identified business activities.
However, for any with current expenditure of $300,000 or more, the local government must decide, by resolution each year,
whether to apply the CCC to that activity.

In general, applying the competitive code of conduct means that the competitive neutrality principle is applied to the business
activity.

Under the competitive neutrality principle, an entity that is conducting a business activity in competition with the private sector
should not enjoy a nel advantage over competitiors only because the enfity is in the public sector.

The competitive neutrality principle may be applied by commercialisation or full cost pricing. This includes removing any
competitive advanage or disadvantage, where possible, and charging for goods and services at full cost.

In addition the cest of perfomming community service obligations, less any revenue received from carrying oul those

obligations, must be treated as revenue for the business activity.
 QAO
certified statements
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A community service obligation is an obfigation the local government imposes on a business activity thal is rot in it's
commercial interest, For . giving a cor ion to pensi 4

A local government's financial stalements must contain an activity statement for each business activity to which the CCC
aoolies.

The Rockhampion Regional Council applies the competitive code of conduct to the following activities:
Building Certification

This requires the applicatior of full cost pricing, identifying the cost of community service obligations (GSO} and eliminating
the advantages and disadvantages of public ownership within that activity.

The CSO value is determined by Council, and represents an activities cost(s) which would not be incurred if the primary

objective of the activities was to make a profit. The Council provides funding from general revenue to the business activity to
cover the cost of providing non-commercial community services or costs deemed to be CSO's by the Council.

The foilowing activity statements are for for activities subject to the code of competitive conduct:

(c) Financial performance of activities subject to competition reforms:

Building Certification
2014 2013
§ $
Revenue for services provided to the Council - -
Revenue for services provided to external clients 158,901 161,473
Community service obligalions 113,567 92,295
272,468 | 253,768
Less : expenditure 272,468 253,768
Surplus/{deficiency) - -

(d) Community Service Obligations were paid during the reporting peried to the following activities:

Activities CS0O description: Actual
Building Certification Non-commercial private certification senvices 113,567
Fitzroy River Water Combined lines charges (capital) 99,838
Combined line charges (operational) 107,801
Manholesfaccess chambers (capital) 96,644
Remissions to community and sporting bodies 157,886
Storage of water allocations 38,646
Site rental Ergon Energy 270 Limestone Creek Road 2,656
Mariborough water supply return on capital 33,144
650,382
Rockhampton Airport ‘Capricorn Rescue Helicopter Service and Royal Flying 10,213
Royal Flying Doctor Service 66,787
77,000
Waste and Recycling Non commercial community services 1,347,223

AT
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Financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Management Certificate
For the year ended 30 June 2014

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant 1o sections 176 and 177 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.
In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

() the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 for
the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages 1 to 60, present a true and fair view, in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council's fransactions for the financial year and
financial position at the end of the year.

<

MF.Strelow ' E.A. Pardon
Mayor Chief Executive Officer
Date: 24 October 2014 Date: 24 October 2014

b QAD
certified statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Mayor of Rockhampton Regional Council

Report on the Financial Report

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Rockhampton Regional Council, which
comprises the slatement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The
audit was conducted in accordance with the Audifor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require
compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the
audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control, other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed
requirements. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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Independence

The Audiitor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector
entities and can be removed only by Farliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditer-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents
and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant.

Opinion

In accorgance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009 —
(a) | have received ali the information and explanations which | have required; and
(b) in my opinion -

(i) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in ail material respects; and

(i) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the
prescribed accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of
Rockhampton Regionai Council for the financiai year 1.uly20i3 to
30 June 2014 and of the financial position as at the end of that year.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should ncte that audit
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does nct provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent
risks arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the
printed copy of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically
presented information.

QUEENSLANG
- ka 0 0CT 2014
\MP_EEEE‘G%
P J FLEMMING CPA Queensland Audit Office
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
Current-year Financlal Sustainability Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Council's performance at 30 June

2014 against key financial ratlos and ~ How the measure is Actual - Target

targets: calculated Counell

Operating surplus ratio Net result (excluding capital 11.4% Between 0%
items) divided by total and 10%

N operating revenue {excluding

{capital items)

Assel sustainability ratio Capital expenditure on the 68.2% greater than
replacement of assets 90%
(renewals) divided by
depreciation expense.

Net financial liabilities ratio Total liabflities less current 60.6% not greater
assels divided by folal than B0%
operating revenue (excluding
capital items)

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared In
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial
Management (Sustainabilify) Guideline 2013. The amounts used to calculate the three reported
measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the Council's audited general purpose
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2014

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the

Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation).

M.F. Strelow E.A. Par

Mayor Chief Executive Officer

Date: 24 October 2014 Date: 24 October 2014
Page B4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Mayor of Rockhampton Regional Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

| have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a
special purpose financial report of Rockhampton Regional Council for the year ended
30 June 2014, comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificate given by the
Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability
statement based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-
General of Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing
Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating
to audit engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the statement.

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately
calculated based on the Council’'s general purpose financial report. My responsibility does
not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios,
nor on the Council's future sustainability.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensiand public sector
entities and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-Generai may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-Generai has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents
and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are
significant.

Opinion

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current-year financial sustainability statement of Rockhampton
Regional Council, for the year ended 30 June 2014, has been accurately calculated.

Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of
accounting. The current-vear financial sustainability statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose
of fulfilling the Council’s reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation
2012. As a resuit, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Statement

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpose financial report should note
that audit does noi provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented
electronically and does riot provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to
or from the financiai statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the
inherent risks arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised te refer to
the printed copy of the audited financial statements to confim the accuracy of this
electrenically presented information.

\

P J FLEMMING CPA Queensland Audit Office
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensiand Brisbane

CUEENSLANG
30 0CT 201
AUDIT OFFICE:
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL COUNCIL
Long-Term Financial Sustalnability Statement
Prepared as al 30 June 2014

Projected for the years ended
Measures of Financlal Measure Target Actuals at 30 | 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
{Sustainability June 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Consolidated
aa 5 Between
Operating surplus ratio r‘ paseikt diddad by folaf apersing 0% and 11.4% 25% 3.8% 4.3% 4.9% 5.4% 5.8% 6.1% 6.6% 7.4%
venue 0%
Capital expenditure on the replacement| greater than
Asset sustainability ratic of assets (renewals) divided by 90% 68.2% 131.7% 99.8% 95,1% 101.4% 102.0% 103.9% 103.4% 103.8% 103.8%
iation expense.
ot financial iabilities ratio ;ﬂﬁ“”"'::&':’::’“" S o roael | o0sw 773% | 752% | 7% | e70% | esaw | 593% | s55% | s13% | 47.0%

Gouncll's Financial Management Strategy

‘Council measures revenue and expendilure trends over time as a guide to fulure requirements and to make decisions about the efficient allocation of resources to ensure the most effective provision of services. Council

ensures that its financial management siralegy is prudent and that its long-term financlal forecast shows a sound financial position whilst also being able to meet the community’s current and future needs.

Certificate of Accuracy
‘ For the long-term fi fal ility

prepared as at 30 June 2014

financial st i has been prepi
Reguiation 2012 (the Regulation).

1o Section 178 of the Local

& Regulation we certify that this long-ters finangla) sustainabllity
d.

E.A. Pardo

Chief Executive Officer

!T‘ 1le: 24 Oclober 2014 Date: 24 October 2014
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STATUTORY INFORMATION

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2009 AND WATER SUPPLY SAFETY AND RELIABILITY ACT 2008

FITZROY RIVER WATER
ANNUAL STATEMENT ON OPERATIONS OF COMMERCIAL BUSINESS UNIT
With the de-amalgamation of the Livingstone Shire Council as at 1 January 2014 reference is given to

‘Continuing Operations’ which implies that the figures pertain only to the continuing business activities of
Fitzroy River Water under the Rockhampton Regional Council and does not include activities of the Livingstone

Shire Council (Discontinued Operations).

Nature and Scope of Activities

Fitzroy River Water is a commercial business unit of Council and is responsible for operating and maintaining
water and sewer assets totalling approximately $840.3 million (replacement value).

General functions of these assets include the storage and supply or raw water for urban, commercial and
agricultural purposes, treating and distributing potable water for urban and industrial use and the collection,

treatment and discharge of treated effluent.

Broadly, the scope of Fitzroy River Water (based upon 2013/14 year) is as follows:

Item RRC Whole of
Council
Total income (operating) $58.6M 68.4M
Total expenses (operating) $30.9M 37.4M
Annual Operations Report
Financial Indicators
Item 201314 Target 2013/14 Achieved
Qperating surplus ratio 35.60% 45.25%
1 0,
Interest coverage ratio 6.20% 5.00%
- - S
Asset consumption ratio 59.50% 60.78%
Gross revenue $71,372,265
$68,357,014
Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation $45,857,156
and Amortisation (EBITDA)
$45,640,455
Competitive neutrality ratio (% of gross 30.30%
revenue)
29.35%
i H 1 0,
Depreciation ratio 22.50% 16.43%
Total written down asset value $675,013,227 $513,366,344
Return on assets 1.50% 3.96%
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Financial Performance

Operational

Continuing operations of Fitzroy River Water raised operational income of $58.6 million with the majority raised
through utility charges. Operating revenue in 2013-2014 has increased by 13.06% from the 2012-2013 period. This
increase is predominantly evident in utility charges largely influenced by water consumption.

Continuing operational expenditure for the 2013-2014 financial period was $30.9 million, which has decreased from
the 2012-13 financial period.

Employee costs, materials and services and depreciation continually remain to be the largest portion of
expenditure for Fitzroy River Water each year. The 2013-2014 year is no different in this respect; however there
has been a decrease in material and service costs.

Net Result Attributable to Fitzroy River Water

Fitzroy River Water net result before tax of $48.3 million is the difference between total income and total
expenditure. Included in the total income and total expenditure are items of capital revenue and capital
expenditure which fluctuate from year to year. After appropriations (payment of return to Council, transfers of
capital income and expenditure and application of previous years’ deficit for continuing and discontinuing
operations) Fitzroy River Water incurred a retained surplus of $17.4 million.

Capital

Total capital expenditure for the 2013-2014 year was $31.9 million including debt redemption. Extensive
refurbishment programs of underground water and sewerage assets were undertaken and also construction of new
aboveground infrastructure was prominent.

The year saw the commencement and/or completion of these projects:

Completion of the North Rockhampton and Yeppoon Sewerage Treatment Plant dewatering facilities
Completion of the Breakspear St sewerage main

Completion of the relocation of Lakes Ck Rd sewerage main

Completion of the Gracemere Industrial Area water and sewerage expansion

Completion of Stage 1 of 300mm trunk water main duplication to Gracemere

Continuation of stage 2 of the 300mm trunk water main duplication to Gracemere

Continuation of the augmentation of Gracemere and South Rockhampton sewerage treatment plants
Continuation of the Glenmore Water Treatment Plant Highlift pump station upgrades

Continuation of the Mount Morgan Sewerage scheme expansion

Continuation of the 300mm Gracemere rising sewerage main

Continuation of the Gracemere Sewerage Treatment Plant effluent return

Continuation of the refurbishment of the sewerage network, and

Continuation of the replacement of water mains.

Directions the Local Government gave the Unit — Non Commercial Directives

Community service obligations arise as a result of Fitzroy River Water receiving a direction from Rockhampton
Regional Council to undertake activities that would generally be considered not to be in the interests of a
commercial entity to undertake. The amount attributed to community service obligations reflects the value of the
non-commercial concessional benefit provided by the business to the community. This is equal to either the cost of
providing the service less any attributable revenue received or, alternatively, the benchmarked cost of providing the
service less any attributable revenue received where the benchmark has been obtained from equivalent service
providers.
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The following table summarises the types of community service obligation revenue received by Fitzroy River

Water during the 2013/14 year:

Water

Storage of Water Allocations $38,646
Lease of land to Ergon Energy $2,656
Marlborough Water Supply Return on Capital $33,144
Remissions to Community & Sporting Bodies $27,312
Sewerage

Combined Line Charges (expenses) $107,901
Combined Line Charges (Capital) $99,938
Raising Manholes (Capital)} $96,644
Sporting Bodies Sewerage Access $130,573
TOTAL $536,814

The following Community Service Obligations (CSO) were funded by a contribution from Council

WATER

to FRW:

OBJECTIVE

Other Rate Remissions

RRC upon review of applications, at times
grants remissions for Water Charges. These
amounts are then claimed as a CSO by
FRW.

Sporting Bodies Rate
Remissions

RRC upon review of applications, at times
grants remissions for Water Charges. These
amounts are then claimed as a CSO by
FRW. Refer to Council Rate Rebates and
Remissions Policy.

Storage of Water
Allocations

A resolution dated 23 December 2008 states
that “a Community Service Obligation of
2.5% be applied to the Annual Increase in the
Full Commercial Cost".

Lease of land to Ergon
Energy — Mt Barmoya

A resolution dated 24 August 2010 states
that “a Community Service Obligation to the
value of $5,000pa (increased by CPI) be
allocated to FRW” in relation to the 99 year
peppercorn lease (nil rent) by Ergon Energy
Corporation Limited for part of Mt Barmoya

Marlborough Water
Supply Return on Capital

A resolution dated 27 April 2010 states that
“Council will fund a Community Service to
FRW to the value of the return of capital
employed.”

SEWERAGE

OBJECTIVE

Combined Line Charges (expenses)

A resolution dated 22 June 1999 states that
“Council continue its current policy of
maintaining combined line house drains and
fund all such work carried out by FRW as a
Community Service Obligation”.

Combined Line Charges (Capital)

Further to the above resolution regarding the
maintenance of combined lines, FRW has
begun a full replacement program of these
assets. As a result the cost of the
replacement of these Combined Lines also
constitutes a CS0O and the full cost incurred
is claimed.

Raising Manholes (Capital)}

A resolution dated 29 May 2000 states that
“FRW carries out the raising of sewerage
manholes and claims this as a community
service obligation”.

Sporting Bodies Rate

RRC upon review of applications, at times

Remissions grants remissions for Sewerage Charges.
These amounts are then claimed as a CSO
by FRW. Refer to Council Rate Rebates and
Remissions Policy.

Other Rate RRC upon review of applications grants

Remissions remissions for Sewerage Charges. These

amounts when remitted are then claimed as
a CSO by FRW.
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STATUTORY INFORMATION
Asset Management

Compliance with an approved Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) should ensure continuity of
supply of services for customers, and should help a service provider to maintain its current assets and plan
future needs to meet customer demand. A SAMP provides performance indicators and targets for service
standards. This annual repaort compares those targets with actual performances.

A summary of the performance indicators and targets set out in Fitzroy River Water's SAMP, actual
performance and confidence gradings are outlined below. Where performance has not met the minimum
targets set, commentary is provided qualifying the data, including action to be taken.

Confidence Gradings
The confidence levels (reliability and accuracy bands) used in this report are based on both a “reliability

band” and an “accuracy band” for each item of data reported as defined by the Regulator and assessed by
Fitzroy River Water. Relevant bands include:

Reliability and Accuracy Bands

Highly reliable Data is based on sound records, procedures, +-1%
investigations or analyses that are properly documented
and recognised as the best available assessment
methods. 2 +/- 5%
) +/- 10%
B Reliable Generally as in “A”, but with minor shortcomings eg. some 4 +/- 25%
of the documentation is missing, the assessment is old, or
some reliance on unconfirmed reports; or there is some 5 +/- 50%
extrapolations from such reports/inspections/analysis.
6 +/- 100%
C Unreliable Generally as in “A” or “B" but data is based on

extrapolations from records which cover more than 30%
(but less than 50%) of the service provider's system.

D Highly unreliable Data is based on unconfirmed verbal reports and/or
cursory inspections or analysis, including extrapolations
from such reports/inspections/analysis.
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COMPARISON WITH ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

Water Services Performance

Table 1: Water - Day to Day Continuity - Potable and Non Potable Water Schemes

Ccss
Refere
nce

Performance indicator

Potable Water Schemes

Potable Water Schemes

Rockhampton and Gracemere Water Supply Scheme
Number of access charges - 35,280
as at 1 January 2014

Annual
1stgir  2nd gir 3rd gir 4th gtr Target

Year to
Date

Mount Morgan Water Supply Scheme
Number of access charges - 1,454

as at 1 January 2014

Istgir  2nd qgir 3rd gir

4th gir

Annual
Target

Year to Date

Css1

Extent of unplanned
interruptions -
connections based
(no. per 1,000
conneclions per year)

11 12 14 1M <80

48

40 18 77

31

<80

166

css2

Extent of unplanned
interruptions -
incidents based (no.
per 100 km of main
per year)
Rockhampton and
Gracemere 744.4km
Mount Morgan 71.5km

10 10 19 15 <30

14 3 15

<30

39

Cs83

Time for restoration of
service - unplanned
interruptions (%
restored within 5
hours)

94% 94% 97% 100% >90%

96%

100%  100% 94%

100%

>90%

99%

Css4

Customer
interruption
frequency:

1 interruption per year

1.83% 1.98% 2.53% 1.52% 12%

7.86%

8.13% 3.35% 7.84%

5.19%

12%

24.51%

2 interruptions per
year

0.20% 0.15% 0.07% 0.04% 2%

0.46%

0.14% 0.06% 0.34%

0.13%

2%

0.67%
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3 interruptions per
year

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

1%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

1%

0.00%

4 interruptions per
year

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.50%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.50%

0.00%

5 or more interruptions
per year

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.25%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.25%

0.00%

CsS85

Relative incidence of
planned and
unplanned interruption
incidents (% of
planned versus total
number of
interruptions)

25%

14%

8%

9%

>30%

14%

10%

50%

8%

29%

>30%

24%

CSS6

Average interruption
duration - planned and
unplanned (hours)

0.54

0.62

293

1.72

1.45

0.81

5.98

2.26

4.2

3hs

3.31

CSsSs7

Response time

Priority 1 — 1 hour
response

92%

76%

81%

78%

95%

82%

67%

100%

83%

50%

95%

75%

Priority 2 — 2 hours
response

87%

94%

87%

88%

95%

89%

88%

100%

67%

71%

95%

82%

Priority 3 — 24 hours
response

97%

98%

93%

98%

95%

97%

100%

88%

88%

89%

95%

91%

Restoration time

Priority 1 — 5 hours
restoration

92%

94%

88%

83%

95%

89%

100%

100%

86%

83%

95%

92%

Priority 2 — 24 hours
restoration

96%

97%

99%

98%

95%

98%

100%

100%

100%

86%

95%

97%

Priority 3 — 5 days
restoration

99%

100%

98%

99%

95%

99%

100%

100%

88%

89%

95%

94%
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COMPARISON WITH ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

Water Services Performance

Table 2: Adequacy and Quality of Normal Supply of Water Supply

CSS Performance
Reference indicator

Potable Water Schemes

Potable Water Schemes

Rockhampton and Gracemere Water Supply Scheme
Number of access charges - 35,280
as at 1 January 2014

Mount Morgan Water Supply Scheme
Number of access charges - 1,454
as at 1 January 2014

Minimum pressure

CSS8  standard at the 220 220 220 220 20 20 | 20 20 220 220 220 kPa 220
water meter (kPa)
Minimum flow 9 9
CS59 standard at the 9 L/min 9L/min  9L/min  9L/min 9 L/min ) 9 L/min ) 9L/min 9 L/min 9 L/min 9 L/min
L/min L/min
water meter
Connections with
css1p  deficient pressure <25% = <25% <2.5% <25% <2.5% 00% | <2.5% <25% <25% <25% = <2.5% 0.0%
and/or flow (% of
total connections)
Drinking water
cssqq  Quality (compliance | 4650, 100%  100%  100%  >98%  100% | 100%  100%  100%  100% >98% 100%

with industry
standard)

FRW's Drinking Water Quality Management Plan identifies the following key water quality parameters as reference indicators for customer service purposes:
Physical and Chemical Water Quality Parameters - Target: >99% of all samples tested compliant with Australian Drinking Water Guidelines and E.coli - Target:
None detected in >98% of all samples tested.

Drinking water
quality complaints

Css12 D o por 1.000 0.37 0.45 0.43 0.34 <5 159 | 2.05 1.37 0 481 <5 8.23
connections)
Drinking water

css13  Quality incidents 0 0 0 0 <5 0 0 0 0 0 <5 0

(number per 1,000

connections)
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COMPARISON WITH ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN
Water Services Performance

Table 3: Long Term Continuity of Water Services Potable and Non Potable Water Schemes

CSS
Referenc
e

Performance
indicator

Potable Water Schemes

Potable Water Schemes

Rockhampton and Gracemere Water Supply Scheme

Number of access charges - 35,280

as at 1 January 2014

Annual
istgir  2ndgir  3rdgir  4thgir  Target

Year to
Date

1st gtr

Mount Morgan Water Supply Scheme
Number of access charges - 1,454
as at 1 January 2014

Annual
2ndgtr  3rdqtr  4thgtr  Target

Year to
Date

Css14

Water main breaks
(number per 100
km main)
Rockhampton and
Gracemere
744.4km

Mount Morgan
71.5km

23

11

3 10 8 <40

32

Css15

Water services
breaks (number
per 1,000
connections)

21

3 3 4 <40

18

CSS16

System water loss
(litres per
connection per
day)

227 161 185 331 <200L

226

172

175 138 73 s200L

140
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COMPARISON WITH ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

Water Services Performance

Table 4; Effective Transportation of Sewage

CSSs
Referenc
e

Performance
indicator

Sewerage Schemes

Sewerage Schemes

Rockhampton and Gracemere Sewerage Scheme
Number of access connections - 43,892
as at 1 January 2014

Annua
2nd | Year to
1st gtr qtr 3rd gtr  4th gtr  Target Date

Mount Morgan Sewerage Scheme
Number of access connections - 225
as at 1 January 2014

Annual
i1stqtr 2ndgtr  3rd gir 4th gtr Target Year to Date

css17

Sewage overflows —
total (number per
100 km main)
Rockhampton and
Gracemere 689.1km
Mount Morgan
10.6km

12.53 1271 13.64 12.92 <30 51.8

CSS18

Sewage overflows
to customer
property (number
per 1,000
connections)

213 1.98 2.14 2.03 <10 8.28

CSs19

Odour complaints
(number per 1,000
connections)

0.12 0.2 0.43 0.32 <1 1.07

Css20

Response time

Priority 1 — 1 hour
response

82% 88% 94% 84%  >95% 87%

100% 100% 100% 100% >95% 100%

Priority 2 — 2 hours
response

84% 89% 84% 84% >95% 85%

100% 100% 100% 100% >95% 100%

Priority 3 — 24
hours response

96% 100% 97% 100%  >95% 98%

100%  100% 100% 100% >05% 100%

Restoration time

Priority 1 — 5 hours
restoration

94% 96% 94% 100%  >95% 96%

100% 100% 100% 100% >85% 100%

Priority 2 — 24
hours restoration

97% 99% 95% 96%  >95% 97%

100% 100% 100% 100% >85% 100%

Priority 3 — 5 days
restoration

98% 100% 98% 100% >95% 99%

100% 100% 100% 100% >85% 100%
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Table 5: Long Term Continuity of Sewerage Services

css21

Sewer main breaks
and chokes (number
per 100 km main)
Rockhampton and
Gracemere 689.1km
Mount Morgan
10.6km

20.36

2092

25.25

19.16

<50

85.69

<20

8822

Sewer inflow and
infiltration (ratio of
Peak Day Flow to
Average Day Flow)

1.2

1.5

4.78

<5

2.76

1.36

1.21

1.7

1.4

<5

1.42

Reference Codes
A blank field should contain one of the following:

a. 0 (zero)

b. ND (no data is available, although the indicator is relevant)

c. NR (not relevant; the indicator is not relevant to that scheme)
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COMPARISON WITH ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

Customer Service Standards

A summary of the additional performance indicators and targets set out in FRW’s Customer Service
Standards (CSS), actual performance and confidence gradings is outlined below. Where performance has

not met the minimum targets set, commentary is provided qualifying the data.

Table 6: Customer Service Targets

Year to

Performance indicator 1st gtr 2nd gtr 3rd gtr 4th gtr Target Date

Installation of new water
connections (within the water 83% 7% 82% 81% 15 working days 81%
service area)

Installation of sewerage
connections (within the 40% 5% 53% 20% 15 working days A7%
sewered area)

Complaints — (excluding
maintenance of water and

X . 100% 100% 100% 100% 20 working days 100%
sewerage services) — advise
outcome
Table 7: Financial Performance Targets
1st gtr 2nd gtr 3rd gtr 4th gtr
Performance indicator date date date date Target
reported reported reported reported

RRC Operational Plan Initiatives successfully

29/07/2013 10/01/2014  03/04/2014 02/07/2014

Reporting Frequency: quarterly completed by year end
Operating Budget Conduct all activities in
Reporting Frequency: quarterly 30/09/2013 31/12/2013 31/03/2014 30/06/2014 | accordance with required
or when variations arise timelines and budget

Timely reporting of any
significant variations to
budget revenue and
collection timing

Annual Revenue
Reporting Frequency: quarterly 30/09/2013 31/12/2013  31/03/2014 30/06/2014
or when variations arise

Capital Works Completion of capital

Reporling Frequency: guarterly | 30/09/2013  31/12/2013  31/03/2014  30/06/2014 "\’;ﬁf;’; ';‘eg‘if;gf:;‘;
or when variations arise P

and budget (within 3%)

Reference Codes

A blank field should contain one of the following:
a. 0 (zero)
b. ND (no data is available, although the indicator is relevant)
c. NR (not relevant; this indicator is not relevant to that scheme)
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Non Compliance Comments

CSs
REfe et Scheme Comment
Mount Morgan
CS51 Water Supply Mount Morgan experienced 6 main breaks and 6 service breaks. A total of 5 unplanned incidents affecting 45 service connections.
Scheme
Rockhampton and | A total of 23 broken water mains for fourth quarter affecting a total of 378 unplanned interruptions. The total for YTD is 183 watermains. The
CSs2 Gracemere Water number of interruptions to cur customers remains above our target the capital water mains replacement program will provide improvement to
Supply Scheme support meeting the required target.
Mount Morgan
css2 Water Supply A total of 6 broken water mains for fourth quarter affecting a total of 45 unplanned interruptions. The total for YTD is 22 watermains
Scheme
Mount Morgan . -
The percentage exceeds the target due to 6 water main breaks for the 4th quarter. The total number of water incidents was 37 (22 of those
CSs4 Water Supply X ) . ) ]
Scheme relate to watermains). The affected water mains have been included in the capital renewal programme.
Rockhampton and I .
csss Gracemere Water Due to thfe ggelng infrastructure Rockhampton has had 115 unplanned versus 12 planned water shut downs. A water mains replacement
s program is in place.
upply Scheme
Mount Morgan L .
css5 Water Supply Due to the ageing infrastructure Mount Morgan has had 27 unplanned versus 6 planned water shut downs. A water mains replacement program
is in place.
Scheme
Mount Morgan . . ) - ’ L
CSS6 Water Supply The planned duration for the quarter is 515 minutes based on 6 planned incidents compared to 241 minutes based on 5 unplanned incidents. A
water main replacement program is in place.
Scheme
Response
P1 - Total requests 18 and 14 responded to within 1 hour.
Rockhampton and P2 - Total requests 49 and 43 responded to within 2 hours.
Css7 Gracemere Water

Supply Scheme

Restoration
P1 - Total requests 18 and 15 restoration to within 5 hours.

Continue to monitor weekly reporting of priorities. The output of that monitoring will be to identify both issues and areas for improvement.
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Response

P1 - Total requests 6 and 3 responded to within 1 hour.
P2 - Total requests 7 and 5 responded to within 2 hours.
P3 - Total requests 9 and 8 responded to within 24 hours.

Mount Morgan
Css7 Water Supply Restoration
Scheme P1 - Total requests 6 and 5 restored to within 5 hours.
P2 - Total requests 7 and 6 restored to within 24 hours.
P3 - Total requests 9 and 8 restored to within 5 days.
Continue to monitor weekly reporting of priorities. The output of that monitoring will be to identify both issues and areas for improvement.
Mount Morgan A small number (7) of discoloured water complaints were received in May and June and given the relatively low number of connections this
C8512 Water Supply relatively small number of complaints led to an exceedance of the compliance target. Follow-up actions to help prevent further similar events
Scheme have been identified.
Rockhampton and | Water loss per connection per day 331 litres. Flow meters have recently been installed at major reservoirs outlets. Once communications have
CSS16 Gracemere Water been established with these flow meters the current water loss calculations will be drilled done to supply zone level to more accurately assess
Supply Scheme the current water loss calculations.
Rockhampton and
CSs17 Gracemere A total number of 132 blockages and 89 overflows.
Sewerage Supply
Scheme
Rockhampton and A slightly elevated number of complaints in the last two quarters has led to the compliance target being exceeded by a very small margin.
Gracemere ? . . X .
CSS19 Sewerage Sunpl Improved management of wet season events may help to reduce the number of odour complaints that are associated with high sewage inflow
9 PRy events.
Scheme
Rockhampton and Response .
Gracemere P1 - Total requests 32 and 27 responded to within 1 hour.
CSs20 P2 - Total requests 104 and 87 responded to within 2 hours.
Sewerage Supply
Scheme Network Service supervisory staff continue to work with staff on improving resource
Rockhampton and
css21 Gracemere Rockhampton and Gracemere sewerage system sustained 132 breaks and chokes during the fourth quarter. A total of 34 were mainline
Sewerage Supply blockages and 89 overflows.
Scheme
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INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE ACT

Water Supply (Safety and reliability) act 2008

The Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 underwent significant change in May 2014. These changes
were to simplify regulatory requirements and remove the need for service providers to have multiple

management plans in place. The new reporting requirements will come into force for the 2014/15 year.

Fitzroy River Water is a commercial business unit of Rockhampton Regional Council and this Annual Report
covers its SAMP (approved 22 February 2012), CSS and SLMP (approved 19 November 2010).

Fitzroy River Water's Drinking Water Quality Management Plan (DWQMP) was approved by the Office of the

Water Supply Regulator in August 2012. The DWQMP is the regulatory document used by Fitzroy River
Water to manage all risks posed to the safety of drinking water supply.

STATUTORY INFORMATION

Overview of Services

Retail Water Rockhampton Water Supply Scheme
(including Gracemere) (Potable)

Mount Morgan Water Supply Scheme (Potable)

Recycled Gracemere Recycled Water Scheme Mount Morgan Recycled Water Scheme
Water Scheme

Irrigation / Other Fitzroy River Barrage Water Supply
Scheme (Raw-partially treated water scheme)
Sewerage North Rockhampton Sewerage System

South Rockhampton Sewerage System
West Rockhampton Sewerage System
Gracemere Sewerage System

Mount Morgan Sewerage System
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INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE ACT
CUSTOMER SERVICE STANDARDS PROCESSES
Service Connections

Water

Fitzroy River Water aims to install all new connections in the Water Service Area within 15 working days of
approval of the application and payment of the related fee; or by the installation date agreed with the
customer outside the 15 day period.

A standard fee for water connections applies within each scheme. An application may be made for water
connections to properties outside the Water Service Area. If approved, the applicant will be required to meet
all associated costs.

Sewerage

A standard sewerage connection is provided free to each property within existing sewered areas. Any
additional connection or reconnection where a service is removed will incur the appropriate fee. Where a
request is made for a sewerage connection outside the Sewered Area, FRW will assess if it is practical to
make the service available or if the Sewerage Scheme should be extended. The applicant will be required to
meet all associated costs where it is a connection outside an existing Sewered Area and, in the case of the
extension of a Sewerage Scheme; FRW will assess the costs to be apportioned amongst the relevant
property owners.

Fitzroy River Water aims to install all new sewerage connections within the Sewered Area within 15 working
days of approval of the application and payment of the related fee or by the installation date agreed with the
customer outside the 15 day period.

Trade Waste Services

Trade waste is any wastewater that is acceptable either treated or untreated for discharge to sewer. Trade
waste specifically excludes any sewage discharged from private residential premises. A customer may
discharge trade waste into the sewerage system provided the customer has first entered into a Trade Waste
Agreement with Fitzroy River Water and in accordance with the adopted Trade Waste Policy.
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INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE ACT

Metering and Billing

Water consumption bills are individually and independently issued by Fitzroy River Water on a quarterly
basis.

Fitzroy River Water's water access and sewer charges are integrated with Rockhampton Regional Council
rate notices which are issued twice a year.

Accounting

If a customer is over charged, the amount over charged will be credited to the customer’s next bill or refunded
at the customer's request. If a customer is under charged, the next account will be adjusted or an additional
payment will be required.

Customers who choose to pay their account in full including arrears and interest accrued daily (if any) by the
date specified will receive a discount on current half yearly rates and utility charges excepting water
consumption charges on which there is no discount applicable.

Payment can be made in the following manner:

Payment by BPAY

Payment via Mail

Direct debit

Payment via Australia Post

Personal payment to Council — payments can be made at a Customer Service Centre via the Internet through
Council’'s website

Phone — Call 1300 BPOINT.

Customers who hold a Pensioners Concession Card or a Department of Veterans Affairs Card are eligible for
government funded concessions on rates and utility charges only.

Complaints

All complaints received regarding maintenance of water and sewerage services will be acted upon to meet
the stated performance indicators. Other complaints will be investigated and Fitzroy River Water will
endeavour to advise of the outcome within 20 working days.

Dispute Resolution

Customers not satisfied with Fitzroy River Water's response to an enquiry or complaint, can address their
concerns in writing to the Chief Executive Officer at:

Chief Executive Officer

Rockhampton Regional Council

PO Box 1860

Rockhampton Qld 4700

Customers not happy with the response at this point, may raise their concerns with the Queensland
Ombudsman’s Office on (07) 3005 7000 or toll free 1800 068 908.
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INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE ACT
REVIEW AND AUDIT

Rockhampton Regional Council, as a water and sewerage service provider, has previously been required to
have an approved SAMP certified by a Registered Professional Engineer, for ensuring continuity of supply of
each of the service provider’s registered services.

Review of the SAMP

The requirements for a SAMP are currently under review by the Department of Energy and Water Supply
(DEWS). Indications are the requirements to produce a SAMP to show how we are managing assets will be
replaced by reporting on key performance indicators (KPls). To replace the SAMP a Water and Sewer Asset
Management Plan (AMP) is being put together. The AMP will include all of what was contained in the SAMP
as well as a Forward Plan for New Works. Draft Asset Management Plans will be completed by April 2015.

Review of the System Leakage ManagementPlan (SLMP)

Service providers are required to regularly review their approved SLMP. Fitzroy River Water is currently
undertaking a detailed review of the existing SLMP with this to be completed by 30 June 2015.

Review of Customer Service Standards (CSS)

Legislation requires service providers to review the CSS every year. Fitzroy River Water's performance
against financial and non-financial targets and key strategies are reported to Council on a quarterly basis in
accordance with the adopted 2013/14 Performance Plan. The Annual Performance Plan report as at 30 June
2014 was presented to Council with the Customer Service Standards on 3 September 2014.

As part of the changes to the Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act, Fitzroy River Water will need to set
Customer Service Standards by the end of 2014.

The current CSS are available on Fitzroy River Water's website.
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ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL WASTE & RECYCLING

ANNUAL STATEMENT ON OPERATIONS OF COMMERCIAL BUSINESS UNIT

With de-amalgamation of the Livingstone Shire Council from 1 January 2014 reference is given to ‘Continuing
Operations’ which implies that the figures pertain only to the continuing business activities of Rockhampton
Regional Waste and Recycling under Rockhampton Regional Council and does not include activities of the
Livingstone Shire Council (Discontinued Operations).

Nature and Scope of Activities

Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling is a commercial business unit of Rockhampton Regional Council
and is responsible for the operation and maintenance of waste and recycling assets totalling approximately
$18.1M (replacement value).

General functions of these assets include the provision of waste collection points for the bulk transport of waste
to three landfills, and the provision of ‘airspace’ to receive the Region’s waste in an environmentally sound
process and associated recycling and reuse support facilities at the four landfills.

Broadly, the scope of Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling (based upon 2013/14 year) is as follows:

Iltem Whole of Council

Total Income (operating) $21.7M
Total Expenses (operating) $19.1M
Number of staff 31
Properties served— General Waste 31,029
Properties served— Recycling 30,839
Total waste to Landfill - including kerbside waste collection 75.656
but not including cover material (tonnes) '

Kerbside Waste Collected (tonnes) 27824
Recycling Collected (tonnes) 7196
Landfill 2
Transfer Stations (manned) 3
Roadside Bin Stations 9
Recycling Kerbside Drop Off Stations (unmanned) 0

Financial Indicators

ltem 2013/14 Target 201314
Achieved
Operating Surplus Ratio 11.4% 12.2%
Interest Coverage Ratio 10.9% 9.7%
Asset Consumption Ratio 77% 76.1%
Depreciation Ratio 5.9% 77%
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COMPARISON WITH ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

Non-Financial Performance Targets

Rockhampton Gracemere Capricorn Coast Mount Morgan
Re:e ffnce Performance Indicator Target Actual Actual Actual Actual
WECSS1 rvv:ily collection of domestic waste on the same day every 98% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.97%
. . o Included in Included in
WCSS2 Woeekly collection of commercial waste 95% 99.78% WCSS1# 99.99% WCSS1#
WCSS3 Fortnightly collection of domestic recyclable waste 98% 99.93% 99.96% 99.96% 99.95%
. ) . o Included in Included in
WCSs4 Fortnightly collection of commercial recyclable waste 98% 99.71% WCSS3# 99.97% WCSS3#
Missed service collection provided within two working days
WCSS5 from notification when notification is within one working day of 95% 100% 100% 100% 100%
scheduled collection
Collection services will be made available within four working o, o, o o o
WeCssé days upon application by the owner 98% 100% 100% 100% 100%
WCSS7 :;%T;E;?ir; r?fb istsr,:gt:a:ﬂsdeerxltces within ten working days from 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Repair or replacement of stolen, removed, damaged,
WCSS8 vandalised mobile bins within four working days from 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
notification
# Unable to separate domestic and commercial data for Gracemere and Mount Morgan. Staff currently working on this to enable these indicators to be reported on in
future.
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1st gqtr 2nd qtr 3rd gtr 4th gtr
Performance indicator Target date date date date
reported reported reported reported
RRC Operational Plan Initiatives successfully
Reporting Frequency: quarterly completed by year end 1/09/2013 | 31/12/2014 | 31/03/2014 | 30/06/2014
. Conduct all activities in
Operating Budget . .
. . i . accordance with required 30/09/2013 | 31/12/2013 | 31/03/2014 | 30/06/2014
Reporting Frequency: quarterly or when variations arise timelines and budget
Timely reporting of any
Annual Revenue significant variations to
Reporting Frequency: quarterly or when variations arise budget revenue and 30/09/2013 | 31/12/2013 | 31/03/2014 30/06/2014
collection timing
Completion of capital
Capital Works program in accordance with | 4409,5913 | 31/12/2013 | 31/03/2014 | 30/06/2014

Reporting Frequency: quarterly or when variations arise

adopted timeframe and
budget (within 3%)
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Review of Customer Service Standards

Legislation requires service providers to review the Customer Service Standards every year. Rockhampton
Regional Waste and Recycling’s performance against financial and non-financial targets and key strategies are
reported to Council on a quarterly basis in accordance with the adopted 2013/14 Performance Plan. The Annual
Performance Plan report as at 30 June 2014 was presented to Council with the Customer Service Standards on
03 October 2014.

Significant work has been undertaken during the reporting period on initiatives and work practices that will
improve business performance. These include, monitoring of actual performance against response targets for
job requests and the assessment of the number and type of actual jobs requiring rework and associated
financial performance.

FINANCIAL PERFOMANCE
Operational (Continuing Operations)

Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling raised operational income of $21.7 million, including internal
charges revenue, with the majority raised through utility and landfill fees and charges.

Operating revenue in 2013/14 is higher than the 2012/13 period. This is partly attributed to the carbon tax price
increase which has been netted off in operational expenditure. Rates revenue was up by 17.9% compared to
the 2012/13 financial year and landfill fees and charges were higher by 5.0% in comparison to last year, all of
which contain an increase due to the Carbon tax price increase.

Operational expenditure for the continuing Regional Waste and Recycling 2013/14 financial period was $15.3
million; this does not include capital expenditure, company tax equivalents.

'Materials and services and employee costs formed the largest portion of expenditure for the continuing RRWR
in the financial period. Expenditure incurred for materials and services (60%) is essential in providing critical
waste services to the community and maintaining Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling property, plant
and equipment. Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling also supports a medium sized in-house workforce
in order to provide and maintain these services for today and into the future with employee costs being 19% of
operational expenditure.

Net Result Attributable to Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling

Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling net result before tax of $89.5 thousand is the difference between
total income and total expenditure. Included in the total income and total expenditure are items of capital
revenue and capital expenditure which fluctuate from year to year. After appropriations (payment of return to
Council, transfers of capital income and expenditure and application of previous year’s deficit for continuing and
discontinuing operations) Fitzroy River Water incurred a retained deficit of $5.1 million.

Capital
Total capital expenditure for the 2013/14 year was $11.5 million, including debt redemption.

The year saw the commencement and/or completion of these projects:
+ Continuation of waste transfer station construction
» Replacement of bins under the Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling replacement bin program.

Directions the Local Government gave the Unit - Non Commercial Directives

Community service obligations arise as a result of Rockhampton Regional Waste and Recycling receiving a
direction from Rockhampton Regional Council to undertake activities that would generally be considered not to
be in the interests of a commercial entity to undertake. The amount attributed to community service obligations
reflects the value of the non-commercial concessional benefit provided by the business to the community. This
is equal to either the cost of providing the service less any attributable revenue received or, alternatively, the
benchmarked cost of providing the service less any attributable revenue received where the benchmark has
been obtained from equivalent service providers.

The following table summarises the types of community service obligation revenue received by Rockhampton
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Regional Waste and Recycling during the 2013/14 year:

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL COST

Great Keppel Island Collections and Landfill $45,933
Roadside Bin Operations $ 395,917
Roadside Bin Disposal Costs $290,993
Tyres, Oils & Chemicals $25,380
Old Landfill Maintenance Works $78,397
Green Waste Vouchers $337,444
Green Waste/Mulch Loading Trial -$72,686
CQLGA Membership $186,753
Boat Ramp Services $7,357
Charity Waste Policy $44,111
Waste Audit $7,624
TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICE OBLIGATIONS $1,347,223

In accordance with Rockhampton Regional Council's Community Service Obligation Policy, the following
requests have been approved:

Authorised Group Date Limit Expiry

The Umbrella Network 01/07/2013 3 tonne 30/06/2014
Lifeline Rockhampton (Uniting Care Community) 01/07/2013 250 tonne 01/07/2014
Anglicare Central Queensland Ltd 01/07/2013 60 tonne 02/07/2014
The Salvation Army 01/07/2013 120 tonne 03/07/2014
St Vincent de Paul Society 01/07/2013 120 tonne 04/07/2014
Endeavour Foundation 01/07/2013 20 tonne 05/07/2014
Rockhampton Women's Shelter 01/07/2013 25 tonne 06/07/2014
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ROCKHAMPTON AIRPORT
ANNUAL STATEMENT ON OPERATIONS OF COMMERCIAL BUSINESS UNIT

Nature and Scope of Activities

Rockhampton Airport is a commercial business unit of Rockhampton Regional Council and is a major Australian
regional airport that services the City of Rockhampton and Central Queensland, with flights to Brisbane,
Gladstone, Mackay, Townsville and Cairns.

The Airport is used by both domestic and international airlines using a mix of aircraft including wide-bodied
aircraft such as the B747 to B777 and A340 types. There are future plans to expand the Airport to
accommodate a new customs quarantine section for future international flights.

Rockhampton Regional Airport is responsible for the operation and maintenance of Airport assets totalling
approximately $110.1 million (replacement value).

Annual Operations Report

ltem As at 30 June 2014
Total income $14.1M

Total expenses $9.4M

Passenger movements 677,442

Number of staff 24

Number of paid parking car parks 637

Aircraft movements 35,350

COMPARISON WITH ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

Annual Performance Report

The 2013/14 financial year was the first period that the Rockhampton Airport operated as a Significant Business
Activity under the Local Government Act. This necessitated the requirement of an Annual Performance Plan.
The non-financial performance targets and corresponding results are included below.

Performance Indicator Target Annual Result
Increase Passenger numbers 2% -5.1%

Increase Aircraft Movements 1% -5.2%

Bird Strikes Less than 40 38

Lost Time Days — workplace injuries 0 1

Reported Public Injuries on Airport Precinct 0 5

Customer Requests Actioned 100% 100%

Airline Engagement Meetings held Quarterly Yes Yes

All Military Exercise Briefings Attended Yes Yes
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Operational
Total Income for the financial period was $14.1 million; this includes capital income for grants received for
capital purposes.

Despite passenger numbers being down 4.9% over the previous financial year operating income was higher in
comparison to the previous financial year by 9%. This can be attributed mostly to passenger landing charges.

Operational expenditure for the 2013/14 financial period was $9.4 million, this does not include capital
expenditure and company tax equivalents. Total expenditure for the financial period was $10.9 million.

'Materials and services, depreciation and employee costs formed the largest portion of expenditure for the
Rockhampton Regional Airport in the financial period. Expenditure incurred for materials and services (47.95%)
is essential in providing critical services to the community and maintaining the Rockhamption Regional Airport
property, plant and equipment. Rockhampton Regional Airport also supports a reasonable size in-house
workforce in order to provide and maintain these services for today and into the future with employee costs
being 26.14% of total expenditure.

Rockhampton Regional Airport total net result of $4.6 million before income tax is the difference between total
income and total expenditure. Included in the total income and total expenditure are items of capital revenue
and capital expenditure which fluctuate from year to year. Overall Rockhampton Regional Airport achieved a
surplus of $ 3.1 million for the 2013/14 financial year. After appropriations (payment of return to Council,
transfers of capital income and expenditure and application of previous years surplus) Rockhampton Regional
Airport incurred a retained deficiency of $381k.

Capital
Total capital expenditure for the 2013/14 year was $2.8 million which fell short of the capital program budgeted
of $5 million.

During this period a major refurbishment to the terminal was completed allowing the progress of further
business opportunities. In addition work commenced on Stage 1 of a runway lighting project with the final 2
stages to be completed over the next 2 financial years.

Work was also completed on upgrading the storm water management system and expanding the ground
maintenance shed to improve operational support. Works were also undertaken 1o rejuvenate the asphalt on the
bay six apron and resurface the tower crescent road to reduce potential operational hazards.

Directions the Local Government gave the Unit - Non Commercial Directives

Community service obligations arise as a result of Rockhampton Regional Airport receiving a direction from
Rockhampton Regional Council to undertake activities that would generally be considered not to be in the
interests of a commercial entity to undertake. The amount attributed to community service obligations reflects
the value of the non-commercial concessional benefit provided by the business to the community. This is equal
to either the cost of providing the service less any attributable revenue received or, alternatively, the
benchmarked cost of providing the service less any attributable revenue received where the benchmark has
been obtained from equivalent service providers.

The following table summarises the types of community service obligation revenue received by Rockhampton
Regional Airport during the 2013/14 year.

Description Actual Cost

Royal Flying Doctors Service & Capricorn Rescue Helicopter Service $77,000
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BENEFICIAL ENTERPRISES (s41 LGA 2009)

Identifying beneficial enterprises
+ Caravan Parks
e Building Certification

SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ACTIVITIES (s45 LGA 2009)

All business activities
* \WVater and Sewerage
* Regional Waste
* Rockhampton Airport

Identify all significant business activities stating where new for the financial year and whether
Competitive Neutrality Principles were applied

*» \Water and Sewerage

* Regional Waste

« Rockhampton Airport

Code of Competitive Conduct was applied to all significant business activities.

All significant business activities were conducted in the previous year.

COUNCIL PERFORMANCE s190(a)

Assessment of Council Performance in implementing 5 year corporate plan
Performance against the Corporate Plan activities was measured on a quarterly basis and the majority of
activities were achieved by all Departments.

Assessment of Council performance in implementing the annual operational plan Honest, transparent
and accountable corporate governance in line with corporate values has resulted in the majority of key outcome
targets being achieved with those results reported to Council via its Operational Plan on an annual basis. The
detailed results for the 2013/2014 Operational Plan were reported to Council's Performance and Service
Committee meeting on the 29 July 2014 in accordance with s104 Local Government Act 2009 and s174 Local
Government Regulation 2012.

Particulars of other issues relevant to making an informed assessment of the local government’s
operation and performance in the financial year
No contingent issues impacted the assessment of Council's performance for the period under review.

Details of any action taken for, and expenditure on a service, facility or activity supplied by another
Council for conducting a joint government activity and for which the Council levied special
rates/charges for the financial year

Council has not been engaged in providing services to any other local government or joint local government.

Number of invitations to change tenders under section 228(7) during the financial year
One (1)
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List of the registers kept by Council
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Register of Designated Natural Hazard Management Areas (Flood)

Register of Thermostatic Mixing Valves

Register of Development Applications

Register of Subdivisions Approved under the repealed Local Government (Planning and Environment)
Act 1990

Register of Zonings, Rezonings and Consents Approved under the repealed Local Government
(Planning and Environment) Act 1990

Adopted Infrastructure Charges Register

Infrastructure Charges Register

Regulated Infrastructure Charges Register

Register of Declared Pest Permits

Register of Pest Control and Entry Notices

Register of Testable Backflow Prevention Devices

Register of Installed On-site Sewerage and Greywater Use Facilities

Register of Resolutions About Land Liable to Flooding made under the Building Act
Register of Master Plan Applications

Register of Administrative Action Complaints Received

Register of Complaints about the conduct or performance of Councillors

Register of Contact with Lobbyists

Register of Interests of Councillors

Register of Interests of persons related to a Councillor

Register of Interests of Senior Executive Employees and Persons related to a senior executive
employee

Register of Interests of Chief Executive Officer and Persons related to Chief Executive Officer
Asset Register

Register of Activities for Competitive Neutrality

Register of Beneficial Enterprises

Register of Roads and Road Maps

Register of Cost-Recovery Fees (Council Fees and Charges)

Register of Pre-qualified Suppliers

Register of Delegations

Register of Authorised Persons (Environmental Protection Act 1994)

Asbestos Register

Cat and Dog Registry

Register of Impounded Animals

Cemetery Register

Local Law Register

Register of Environmental Authorities

Register of Surrendered Environmental Authorities

Register of Suspended or Cancelled Environmental Authorities

Register of Environmental Evaluations

Register of Environmental Reports

Register of Monitoring Programs

Register of Results of Monitoring Programs

Register of Transitional Environmental Programs

Register of Temporary Emissions Licences

Register of Environmental Protection Orders

Register of Direction Notices
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Summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by the local government

Approved Government Pensioners:

Rate remissions/subsidies are available to approved pensioners, who are in receipt of a pension for
entittiements from Centrelink or the Department of Veterans’ Affairs or Widow's allowance.

The Scheme is directed to the elderly, invalid or otherwise disadvantaged citizens of the community whose
principal or sole source of income is a pension or allowance paid by Centrelink or the Department of Veterans’
Affairs and who are the owners of property in which they reside and have responsibility for payment of Council
rates and charges thereon.

Eligibility

Approved Pensioner — A Person who:

1) is and remains an eligible holder of a Queensland "Pensioner Concession Card” issued by Centrelink or the
Department of Veterans’ Affairs, or a Queensland “Repatriation Health Card — For All Conditions” issued by the
Department of Veterans Affairs; and

2) is the owner or life tenant (either solely or jointly) of the property which is his/her principal place of residence;
and

3) has, either solely or jointly with a co-owner, the legal responsibility for the payment of rates and charges
which are levied in respect of the property.

Approved Widow/er — A Person who:
1) is and remains in receipt of a Widow’s Allowance.

Unless stated otherwise the terms and conditions of the Queensland Government Pensioner Rate Subsidy
Scheme shall apply to the application of the Council subsidy.

Close of Applications

Applications for remissions will be considered at any time during the rating period (i.e. half year). Applications
received after the date of levy will be considered only from the commencement of the current rating period.
Rebates will not be granted retrospectively without prior approval from the State Government Concessions Unit.

Applications must be made in writing using Council’'s approved form and a new application will need to be
submitted where a change of address occurs.

Amount of Remission

Persons who qualify for a subsidy under the Queensland Government Pensioner Rate Subsidy Scheme
guidelines will be eligible for a Council remission of 20% (to a maximum of $200) on all rates levied in respect of
each eligible property, excluding environment separate charge, special rates/charges and rural and state fire
levies/charges.

A person in receipt of a Widow's Allowance will also be entitled to a subsidy of 20% (to a maximum of $200) on
all rates levied in respect of the property the person owns and occupies, excluding environment separate
charge, special rates/charges and rural and state fire levies/charges.

Should an applicant/person be entitled to only part of the State Subsidy, because of part ownership of the
property, or other relevant reason, the Council remission would be similarly reduced.

Not-For-Profit/Charitable Organisations
Rate remissions are available to approved organisations whose objectives do not include the making of profit
and who provide services to their membership and the community at large.

Eligibility

Not-For-Profit/Community Organisation — An incorporated body who:

1) does not include the making of profit in its objectives.

2) does not charge a commercial fee for service.

3) is located within Rockhampton Regional Council area and the majority of its members reside in the Council
area.

4) does not receive income from gaming machines and/or from the sale of alcohol in an organised manner
(e.g. bar with regular hours of operation with permanent liquor license).

5) is the owner, lessee or life tenant of the property and which is the incorporated bodies main
grounds/base/club house or residence.

6) has, either solely or jointly with a co-owner, the legal responsibility for the payment of rates and charges
which are levied in respect of the property; and

7) is not a religious body or entity or educational institution recognised under State or Federal statute or law.

Should an applicant only have part ownership of the property the Council remission would be similarly reduced.
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Close of Applications

Eligibility for a remission will be assessed by Council on annual basis prior to issue of the first rate notice each
financial year (generally June/July). Organisations who are not automatically provided with a remission, and
who believe that they meet the relevant criteria, may apply for approval at any time. If an application is
approved by Council, remissions will be applied from the beginning of the current rating period (remissions will
not be applied retrospectively).

Amount of Remission
(a) Category One (1) — Surf Life Saving Organisations

Remission Level General Rates — 100%

Remission Level Separate Rates/Charges — 100%

Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%

Remission Level Water Access Charges — 25%

Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — Charged at residential rates
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 25%

Remission Level Waste Charges — 25%

Cap — N/A

(b) Category Two (2) - Showground Related Organisations

Remission Level General Rates — 100%

Remission Level Separate Rates/Charges — 100%

Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%

Remission Level Water Access Charges — 50%

Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — Charged at residential rates
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 50%

Remission Level Waste Charges — 50%

Cap — N/A

(c) Category Three (3) — Kindergartens

Remission Level General Rates — 50%

Remission Level Road Network Separate Charge — 50%

Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%

Remission Level Environment Separate Charge — 0%

Remission Level Water Access Charges — 25%

Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — Charged at residential rates
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 25%

Remission Level Waste Charges — 25%

Cap - § 700.00

(d) Category Four (4) — Charitable Organisations Benefiting the Aged/Disadvantaged

Remission Level General Rates — 100%

Remission Level Separate Rates/Charges — 100%
Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%
Remission Level Water Access Charges — 25%
Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — 0%
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 25%
Remission Level Waste Charges — 25%

Cap - $ 700.00

(e) Category Five (5) — Sporting Clubs & Associations — Without Liquor & Gaming Licenses

Remission Level General Rates — 100%

Remission Level Separate Rates/Charges — 100%

Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%

Remission Level Water Access Charges — 25%

Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — Charged at residential rates
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 25%

Remission Level Waste Charges — 25%

Cap - $ 700.00

(f) Category Six (6) — Sporting Clubs & Associations — With Liquor Licenses but No Gaming Licenses

Remission Level General Rates — 50%
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Remission Level Road Network Separate Charge — 50%

Remission Level Environment Separate Charge — 0%

Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%

Remission Level Water Access Charges — 25%

Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — Charged at residential rates
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 25%

Remission Level Waste Charges — 25%

Cap - $ 700.00

(g) Category Seven (7) — Sporting Clubs & Associations situated on highly valued leasehold land — With Liquor
Licenses but No Gaming Licenses

Remission Level General Rates — 75%

Remission Level Road Network Separate Charge — 75%

Remission Level Environment Separate Charge — 0%

Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%

Remission Level Water Access Charges — 25%

Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — Charged at residential rates
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 25%

Remission Level Waste Charges — 25%

Cap - $ 700.00 for Service Charges only

(h) Category Eight (8) — Sporting Clubs & Associations — With Liquor & Gaming Licenses

Remission Level General Rates — 0%

Remission Level Separate Rates/Charges —0%
Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%
Remission Level Water Access Charges — 0%
Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — 0%
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 0%
Remission Level Waste Charges — 0%

Cap - N/A

(i) Category Nine (8 ) - All Other Not-For- Profit/Charitable Organisations

Remission Level General Rates — 100%

Remission Level Separate Rates/Charges — 100%

Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%

Remission Level Water Access Charges — 25%

Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — Charged at residential rates
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 25%

Remission Level Waste Charges — 25%

Cap - $ 700.00

(i) Category Ten (10 ) - Rural Fire Brigade

Remission Level General Rates — 100%

Remission Level Separate Rates/Charges — 100%
Remission Level Special Rates/Charges — 0%
Remission Level Water Access Charges — 100%
Remission Level Water Consumption Charges — 100%
Remission Level Sewerage Charges — 100%
Remission Level Waste Charges — 100%

Cap - N/A

NOTE: Sewerage charges are not to be levied in respect of public amenities blocks that are locked and
controlled by the clubs.

Page (191)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

General Rate Remissions

In accordance with Part 10 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans & Reporting) Regulation 2010, the
properties where 100% remission of general rates applies may be exempted from payment of general rates in
lieu of the provision of a remission.

Permits to Occupy (Pump Sites)

Council will grant a remission on the following basis for those assessments that only contain a permit to occupy
for pump sites provided the ratepayer as shown on the assessment is the owner of another property in the
Council area on which the rate or charge has been levied:

(a) Separate Charges — 100% remission
(b) General Rates — Maximum remission of $600.00.

Water Consumption Charges

Council will grant a remission on the following basis for the following assessments:
s 148543 — Gracemere Lakes Golf Club
e 148545 — Gracemere Bowling Club

Water Consumption Charges — 50% remission.

Lot 1 South Ulam Rd, Bajool
Council will grant a remission on the following basis for the following assessment:
+ 146963-2 — being Lot 1 South Ulam Rd, Bajool (L1 MLG80014 Parish of Ultimo)
a) General Rate 100%
b) Road Network Charge 100%
c) Environment Separate Charge 100%

Exclusions from Capping of General Rates as an Unintended Consequence

Council will grant a remission of general rates for those assessments impacted as a result of an unintended
consequence which negates or negatively impacts upon the application of the intent of capping of general rates
as per Council's Revenue Policy. (For example, minor changes to property area as a result of boundary
realignment.)

The amount of remission will be that required to reduce the amount of general rates payable to the amount that
would have been levied if capping had been applied to the individual assessment subject to the event leading to
the unintended consequence.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT FOR THE YEAR s190(1)(h) (FPA) Reg 2012

The Internal Audit Function and Audit Committee (Renamed Audit and Business Improvement Committee) are
mandatory compliance requirements of the Local Government Act 2009.

Audit and Business Improvement Committee

This Advisory Committee operates under best practice guidelines with a majority membership consisting of 3
external independent experts. ts responsibilities are to review and monitor the effectiveness of Governance,
Risk and Compliance functions, including oversight of the overall audit process, and make recommendations to
Council.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Unit's mission is to independently examine and evaluate Council activities as a service to the
Council, Management and the Community.

Internal Audit provides analyses, appraisals, recommendations for improvement, and evaluation of internal
controls across all areas of operations which assist the Council in the effective discharge of its responsibilities.
These in-house services extend to investigations for fraud and corruption. Internal Audit reports administratively
to the CEO but is also empowered to report functionally independently directly to the Audit and Business
Improvement Committee, thus following a best practice governance approach to protect the public interest.

Internal Audit Plan
Specific audits planned and undertaken during the financial year 2013-2014 included:

Cash Floats and Petty Cash

Public Event Management Process (including public safety)
Child Care Centre Regulatory Review

Engineering Records and Associated Systems Review
Animal Management Business Process Improvement Review
De-Amalgamation Compliance Review

Follow-Up Audits from previous years’ audit recommendations

« s 8 0 * @

SENIOR EMPLOYEES s201(1) a&b

The total of all remuneration packages that are payable (in the year to which the annual report relates)
to the senior management of the local government.

The total remuneration packages that were payable to senior management for the financial year was
$1,203,812.46.

Number of employees in senior management who are being paid each band of remuneration.

Three senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of $200,000-5229,000.

One senior contract employee with a total remuneration package in the range of $300,000-$399,000.

Please note: Packages include base salary, vehicle allocation, annual leave loading and superannuation.
Administrative Action Complaints (s787 LGA 2009)

Council takes all complaints about its services seriously and is committed to responding quickly and efficiently.
Complaints may be lodged by an affected person either in writing, by telephone or face to face. The department

referred to in the complaint will be responsible for the initial investigation.

Complainants not satisfied with the outcome of the investigation undertaken by the department may appeal the
decision to the CEO for investigation under the Administrative Action Complaint Management Procedure.
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Council manages complaints through the Actionable Communications Procedure initially and if the customer is
dissatisfied with the outcome that may appeal to the CEO to have the complaint investigated under Council’s
Complaint Management Policy and Administrative Action Complaint Procedure. A separate investigation report
will be provided to the CEO for action.

A total of 54 complaints were received by council under the above policies and procedures this financial year.
42 of those complaints were able to be resolved before the end of the financial year, along with 10 complaints
from the previous financial year.

Number of administrative action complaints received in financial year 54
Number of administrative action complaints resolved in financial year 52
MNumber administrative action complaints not resolved in financial year 12
Number of administrative action complaints that were from a previous financial year 2

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE ACT
COUNCILLORS

Audit and Business Improvement Advisory Committee

Council's Audit and Business Improvement Advisory Committee oversees the audit, control and risk
management functions. The Audit Committee is comprised of five members; two councillors and three external
representatives appointed by Council.

Statement about the local government’s activities during the year to implement its plan for equal
opportunity in employment

The Local Government Regulfation 2012 does not require this plan therefore the plan does not need to be
implemented.

Summary of investigation notices given in the year under section 49 for competitive neutrality
complaints
Nil

Responses in the financial year on the QCA’s recommendations on any competitive neutrality
complaints under section 52(3)
Nil

Resolutions made under s250(1) LG Regulation 2012 (Requirement to adopt expenses reimbursement
policy or Amendment)

That the Expenses Reimbursement and Provision of Facilities for Mayor and Councillors Policy be amended as
attached.

Moved by: Councillor Fisher
Seconded by: Councillor Schwarten
MOTION CARRIED

Resolutions made under section 206(2) LG Regulation 2012 (Valuation of non-current physical assets)
That Council’'s Asset Capitalisation Policy be adopted including the separation of the Roads, Bridges and
Drainage asset class as outlined in the report.

Moved by: Councillor Mather
Seconded by: Councillor O'Brien
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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Remuneration and superannuation contributions paid to each Councillor S186(a)

Councillor YTD salary ‘Work’ | Employer Super Gross
Mayor, Councillor M F $154,636 $14,303 $168,939
Strelow

Councillor $105,433 $12,652 $118,086
A P Williams

Councillor $91,375 $10,965 $102,341
R A Swadling

Councillor $91,375 $10,965 $102,341
G A Belz

Councillor $91,375 $10,965 $102,341
S J Schwarten

Councillor $91,375 $8,223 $99,599
N K Fisher

Councillor $91,375 $10,965 $102,341
C R Rutherford

Councillor $91,375 $10,965 $102,341
C E Smith

Councillor $49,202 $5,904 $55,106
G M Mather

Councillor $49,202 $5,904 $55,106
F W Ludwig

Councillor $49,202 $5,904 $55,106
T A Wyatt

Expenses incurred by and provided to each Councillor under the Expenses Reimbursement Policy

s186(a) LG Regulation 2012

Travel / Expenses /

Councillor Allowances
Mayor, Councillor M F Strelow $39,728.51
Councillor G M Mather $12,966.15
Councillor T A Wyatt $15,635.13
Councillor F W Ludwig $14,792.78
Councillor C E Smith $23,405.09
Councillor C R Rutherford $19,364.55
Councillor G A Belz $21,847.90
Councillor S J Schwarten $15,489.92
Councillor A P Williams $26,083.27
Councillor R A Swadling $32,143.14
Councillor N K Fisher $32,790.69

Expenses Reimbursement Policy s186(a) LG Regulation 2012

1. Purpose:

This Policy will ensure accountability and transparency in the reimbursement of expenses incurred, or to be
incurred, by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors.

This Policy will also ensure that elected members are provided with reasonable facilities to assist them in

carrying out their civic duties.

(This Policy does not provide for salaries or other form of Councillor remuneration. Councillor remuneration is in
accordance with the determination of the Local Government Remuneration Tribunal.)
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2. Reference (e.g. Legislation, related documents):
+ Local Government Act 2009
Local Government (Operations) Regulation 2010
Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting) Regulation 2010
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
Taxation Rulings issued by the Australian Taxation Office
RRC Travel and Conference Attendance Policy
RRC Travel and Conference Attendance Procedure
RRC Corporate Uniform Policy
Procurement Policy and Purchasing Guidelines
Councillors Vehicle Use Policy

LI R T R B T Y I )

3. Definitions:
To assist in interpretation, the following definitions shall apply:

Authorising person: shall mean the person with delegated authority to approve expenditure or reimbursement
for Councillor expenses and facilities.

Council business: shall mean official business conducted on behalf of Council, where a Councillor is required to
undertake certain tasks to satisfy legislative requirements or achieve business continuity for the Council, for
example official Council meetings, Councillor forums and workshops, Committees/Boards as Council’s official
representative, scheduled meetings relating to portfolios or Council appointments.

Council Business should result in a benefit being achieved either for the local government and/or the local
government area, for example Council may decide that Council business includes civic ceremony duties such
as opening a school fete.

Participating in a community group event or being a representative on a Board not associated with Council is
not regarded as Council business.

Councillors: shall mean the Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors.

Expenses: shall mean costs reasonably incurred, or to be incurred, in connection with Councillors discharging
their duties. The expenses may be either reimbursed to Councillors or paid direct by Council for something that
is deemed a necessary cost or charge.

Expenses are not included as remuneration.
Facilities: shall mean the facilities deemed necessary to assist Councillors in their role.
Public record: shall mean any record created, received or kept in an official capacity.

Reasonable: shall mean Council must make sound judgements and consider what is prudent, responsible and
acceptable to the community when determining reasonable levels of facilities and expenditure.

4, Context:

The payment and/or reimbursement of expenses and provision of facilities for Councillors must only be for the
actual cost of legitimate business use and only in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009 and the
Local Government (Operations) Regulations 2010.

Council is committed to ensuring that Councillors are provided with the facilities required to enable them to
perform their duties.

The payment and/or reimbursement of expenses and provision of facilities for Councillors:
* is to be open and fransparent, prudent, responsible, acceptable to the community and in accordance
with statutory requirements;
* based on ensuring economy and efficiency; and
+ subject to budget provisions.

Council's Annual Report must contain the information as stipulated in the Local Government Act and associated
Regulations.

* Spouses, partners and family members of Councillors are not entitled to reimbursement of expenses or
to have access to facilities allocated to Councillors.
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The following expenses refer to actual expenses deemed necessary for Council business. Councillors are only
entitied to the expenses contained in the categories listed below.

4.1 Representing Council at Events

Councillors may be required to attend a range of events and functions as part of their role in attending to
Council business. Councillors may, for example, be required to attend significant sporting and other community
events in an official capacity.

Council will pay for expenses associated with Councillors attending events for the purpose of addressing
Council's advocacy strategy and to provide support for community social and economic development activities.

4.2 Travel as Required to Represent Council

All Coungillor travel, excluding that undertaken in a Council provided vehicle as per this Palicy, requires the
approval of Council via a report to Council identifying the relevance of such event to the Council and as far as
practicable indicate the cost of attendance. The Mayor will not be required to have the approval of Council if
attending functions or meetings relevant to the role of Mayor.

Council may approve local, intrastate, interstate, and overseas travel for Councillors where Council considers it
appropriate to promote or represent the Rockhampton Regional area for a local government purpose.

Where time does not permit the presentation of a report to Council:

a) The CEO may approve any requests for travel by the Mayor subject to a report being submitted to the
next available Council Meeting; and
b) The Mayor may approve any Councillor’s travel subject to a report being submitted to the next available

Council Meeting.

All travel and conference arrangements must be made in accordance with Council’s Travel and Conference
Attendance Policy and associated Procedure. All expenses incurred in relation to travel and conference
attendance will be reimbursed in accordance with Council's Travel and Conference Attendance Policy and
associated Procedure.

All requests for travel (including associated registrations) should be made in sufficient time to take advantage of
discounts and gain access to the widest range of accommodation and flights. Failure to do so will limit flight and
accommodation aptions.

4.2.1 Meeting Attendance
Where Councillors are attending to Council business such as meetings, functions or other activities in an official
capacity, Council will pay for the approved expenses associated with that activity.

The following restrictions apply in the following circumstances:
Mayor: No limit to travel to attend meetings to represent Council in undertaking his/her responsibilities.

Committee Chair: No limit to travel to attend meetings to represent the interest of the Committee in line with the
Committee’s Terms of Reference or when directed by Council o attend.

Councillors: No limit to travel to attend meetings to represent Council when nominated or requested by the
Mayor, Committee Chair or CEO or when directed by Council to attend.

4.2.2 Council Delegates

Where Councillors are appointed by the Council as Council’s representative on a Committee or Association, all
travel and accommodation associated with the Councillor's fulfilment of that role is deemed as approved without
the need for a further report to Council.

4.2.3 Conference Attendance

The CEO, where possible, will advise Councillors of upcoming conferences. Councillors shall give notice of their
desire to attend a conference by giving notice to the CEO ten (10) days prior to the relevant Committee/Council
Meeting.

4.3 Professional development
There are two categories of professional development for Councillors — Mandatory Training and Discretionary
Training.
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4.3.1 Mandatory training

Mandatory training is where one or more Councillors are required to attend courses, workshops, seminars or
conferences for skill development related to the Councillor's role. This includes events directly relating to the
role of Councillor such as Councillor Induction, Meeting Procedures and Legislative Obligations, events that are
relevant for a Chairperson of a Committee, or events where a Councillor has been appointed as an official
Council delegate.

If a Chairperson or Council delegate is unable to attend an event and an alternative Councillor is appointed by
Council then this will be deemed as mandatory. Council will meet all costs associated with mandatory training.

4.3.2 Discretionary training
Discretionary training is where one or more Councillor wishes to attend a course, workshop, seminar or
conference outside the provisions of mandatory training.

In addition to any mandatory training required, the following limits apply to any discretionary training attendance:
* Mayor No limit
e Deputy Mayor 5 events per year
» Committee Chairs 4 events per year
* Councillors 3 events per year

Where the Councillor wishes to attend a conference and has exceeded the above limits, the CEO will submit a
report to the table and the Council will determine if the Councillor is able to attend.

4.4 Hospitality Expenses
Where Councillors incur hospitality expenses while conducting Council business, apart from official civic
receptions organised by the Council, the maximum amount that may be reimbursed is:

+ $500 per annum for each Councillor; and
* $6,000 per annum for the Mayor

Hospitality expenses related to official receptions and other functions organised by council officers are met from
relevant approved budgets.

4.5 Provision of Facilities

Facilities provided for Councillors must be deemed necessary and required to assist Councillors in their official
capacity. In accordance with statutory provisions, Council may only provide Councillors with the facilities listed
below.

Council determines the reasonable standard for facilities for Councillors. If a Councillor chooses a higher
standard of facility than that prescribed by Council, any difference in cost must be met by the Councillor
personally.

All facilities provided to Councillors remain the property of Council and must be accounted for during annual
equipment audits. The facilities must be returned to Council when the Councillor's term expires, unless Council
agrees to dispose of the facility in some other manner.

4.5.1 Administrative tools and office amenities
Office space and access to meeting rooms
The Mayor and Deputy Mayor will be provided with a dedicated office in the Rockhampton Office.

Council provides access to occasional office accommodation and meeting rooms for all Councillors to meet with
constituents and the public. Such accommeodation should be booked through the Councillor Suppert Section.

Secretarial support

The Mayor's office will be staffed with a Personal Assistant and an Administrative Assistant as a minimum.
Additional staffing will be provided as deemed to be warranted from time to time by the CEO based on
workloads.

Secretarial support will be provided to all Councillors as warranted by the CEO and based on demand.
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Computer and Printer for business use

Councillors are provided with a laptop computer and printer for Council business use. The standard of computer
shall be similar to that available to Council managers. An IPad will also be made available on request to the
CEO

Photocopier and paper shredder

Councillors are entitled to access photocopiers and paper shredders for business use at the various Council
offices. Access to domestic photocopiers/scanners may be provided for the home based offices, on request by
Councillors.

Stationery

Councillors are provided stationery for official purposes only, including, but not limited to:
» Pens and pen sets

Paper

Note paper

Letterhead

Business cards

Envelopes

Briefcase

‘With Compliments’ slips

" 8 " e

Council stationery is not to be converted or modified in any way and may only be used for carrying out the
functions of the role of Councillor. Stationery does not include any form of advertising by Council.

Telecommunication needs

Councillors will be provided with a mobile telephone or hand held device as designated by the CEO. Council will
pay for all costs associated with the business use. Any personal calls made by the Councillor should be
reimbursed to Council. The Mayor and Deputy Mayor are entitled to have the full cost of Council business
related mobile phone/PDA charges paid by Council. It is recognised that community obligations and demands
on the Mayor/Deputy Mayor are such that generally all mobile phone/PDA charges are deemed to be council
business.

Individual or personal mobile phone plans will not be reimbursable under this policy.

Publications
Councillors are provided access to copies of relevant legislation, books and journals considered necessary for
undertaking their duties.

Other administrative necessities
Subject to Council approval, Councillors may be provided with any other administrative necessities to meet the
business of Council.

Advertising
Council will not reimburse or provide funds, services or facilities for the purposes of advertising for Councillors.

Community consultation

Councillors may use facilities provided to correspond with community representatives for the purpose of
clarifying issues that are relevant to their division or the region in general. Where a Councillor chooses to
undertake further community consultation on a particular matter, in addition to that approved by Council, the
Councillor is responsible for those costs.

4.5.2 Home office

Councillors may be provided with home office equipment in addition to the abovementioned laptop computer
comprising a computer, screen, printer, lockable filing cabinet, desk and chair and internet access for business
use only. Where Councillors elect to establish a home office, Council will provide a land line connection to
enable phone and internet access for business use only. It is the responsibility of each Councillor to ensure that
where a home office is established, all WHS legislative requirements are met and where required, Council’'s
WHS unit can provide assistance.

4.5.3 Name badge and uniforms

Councillors will be provided with any safety equipment such as overalls, safety shoes, safety helmets or
glasses, as required, in their role. Councillors will be provided with uniforms in accordance with the Corporate
Uniform Policy and Procedure, comprising five (5) items and a Blazer, and a name badge if required.
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4.5.4 Vehicles

Councillors, with the exception of the Mayor, may either:

(a) Be provided with a Council vehicle for official business use, or

(b) Use their own private vehicle for business purposes and claim a mileage allowance for the business use of
the vehicle, as per mileage allowances recommended by the Australian Tax Office (ATO). Such claims shall be
supported by ATO compliant records.

The standard of Council vehicle provided to Councillors for business use shall be as per the Councillors Vehicle
Use Policy.

A Council vehicle may also be made available for private use by the Councillor as per the Councillors Vehicle
Use Policy.

The Mayor is to be provided with a Council owned vehicle for Council business. It is recognised that community
expectations and demands on the Mayor are such that generally all vehicle use is deemed to be Council
business. The requirement to calculate private use under the provisions of this policy and the Councillors
Vehicle Use Policy are not applicable to the Mayor.

During the term of Council, a Councillor may change vehicle arrangements providing it is cost neutral for
Council. Should excessive costs to Council be apparent, the CEOQ may refuse the request or require the
Councillor to reimburse such costs.

In the case of (b) above, Councillors may utilise Council's Salary Packaging provider to facilitate the provision of
a private vehicle.

4.6 Payment of Expenses
Reimbursement of personal expenses incurred whilst undertaking Council work will be paid to a Councillor
through administrative prog:‘esses apprgved by the CEO. All receipts requiring reimbursement must be

submitted no later than 14 June or 14 December of that year.

Travel expenses will be paid subject fo the limits outlined in this Policy and Council's Travel and Conference
Attendance Policy and associated Procedure subject to the following variation:

Expenses relating to the consumption of alcohol will be reimbursed only where such expenses is incurred with
the provision of a meal and which on review would not be deemed as excessive.

Should the Councillor choose not to attend a provided meal/dinner, then the full cost of the alternative meal
shall be met by the Councillor.

4.7 Maintenance costs of any Council owned equipment
Council will cover all ongoing maintenance costs associated with fair wear and tear of council owned equipment
to ensure it is operating for optimal professional use.

4.8 Legal costs and insurance cover

Councillors will be covered under Council insurance policies while discharging civic duties. Specifically,
insurance cover will be provided for public liability, professional indemnity, personal accident and/or workers
compensation, international and domestic travel insurance. Any claims over and above that the stated will
require the approval of a Council Resolution. In addition the liability of any legal costs incurred while discharging
a Councillors civic duty will transfer to Council upon approval via a Council resolution.

5. Evaluation Process:

This Policy is reviewed when any of the following occur:

1. The related information is amended or replaced.

2. Other circumstances as determined from time to time by the CEO/Council

Notwithstanding the above, this Policy is to be reviewed at intervals of no more than two years.

6. Responsibilities
Sponsor Chief Executive Officer
Business Owner Executive Manager Office of CEO
Policy Owner Executive Manager Office of CEO
Policy Quality Control Corporate Improvement and Strategy
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Details of the number of meetings attended by each councillor during the financial year

Meeting Attendance Figures
July 2013 - December 2013

Special Performan Resource
Council Council Business Continuing Health and Parks & ce and Planning and Audit Industry
Councillor Meeti Meeti Enterprise Communities Council Compliance Infrastructure Recreation Service Development Water Advisory Advisory
Mayor, Councillor M F
Strelow 9 1 5 2 9 2 4 5 1 4 3 | {1 Observer) 2
Deputy Mayor, (1
Councillor A P Williams g 1 Observer) 8 14 5 5 1 9 3 2
Councillor G M Mather 10 1 4 5 | {1 Observer) 1 8 4 2
Councillor T A Wyatt 10 1 3 5 4 5 4 1 8
Councillor F W Ludwig 9 1 4 5 1 7
(1
Councillor C E Smith 10 1 4 4 8 5 {1 Observer) Observer) 1 9 2 2
Counciller C R
Rutherford 6 1 5 4 7 5 1 {2 Observer) 3 0
Counciller G A Belz 7 1 3 8 3 1 {1 Observer) 3 Q
Counciller 5 J
Schwarten 4 Q 3 1 0 0 1 0 Q
Counciller R A Swadling 3] 1 4 8 5 1 {1 Observer) 2
Counciller N K Fisher 9 1 5 9 5 5 5 1 7 4 2
Total Meetings Held 10 1 5 5 3 5 5 5 1 3 4 1 2
Meeting Attendance Figures
January 2014 — June 2014
Planning
Special and Resource South
Council Council Business Health and Parks & Performance | Developm Audit Industry Rockhampton
Councillor Meeting Meeting Enterprise | Communities | Compliance | Infrastructure Recreation and Service ent Water Advisory Advisory Flood Levee
Mayor, Councillor M F
Strelow 5 2 5 5 5 4 5 4 7 5 1 1 1
Deputy Mayor, (1
Counciller A P Williams 5 2 Observer) 5 4 5 5 11 5 1 1 1
(1
Observe
Councillor C E Smith 6 2 5 5 5 4 (2 Observer) 5 11 r) 1
Councillor CR [{l
Rutherford 6 1 5 5 Observer) {1 Observer) 5 4 10 5 1
Councillor G A Belz 5 2 5 4 5 9 5 1]
Councillor S J
Schwarten 5] 1 4 2 3 3 8
Councillor R A Swadling 5] 1 4 5 4 3 7 1
Councillor N K Fisher 3] 2 5 5 4 5 4 11 5 1
Total Meetings Held 6 2 5 5 5 4 5 5 11 5 1 1 1
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Councillors (S114)

Orders made under s180(2) or s180(4) LGA 2009 — Orders by Regional Conduct Review Panel
Nil
Orders made under s181 LGA 2009 — Orders by Mayor/Chairperson for Inappropriate Conduct
Nil

Description of the Order (misconduct, inappropriate conduct)

(i} complaints about the conduct or performance of councillors for which no further action was 3
taken under section 176C(2) of the Act;

(i)  complaints referred to the department'’s chief executive under section 176C(3)(a)(i) of the 0
Act;

(i) complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under section 176C(4)(a) of the Act; 0

(iv) complaints assessed by the chief executive officer as being about official misconduct; 0

(v)  complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel; 0

(vi)  complaints heard by the tribunal, 0

(vii) complaints to which section 176C(6) of the Act applied 0

Summary of the Orders for Councillors

(i) complaints about the conduct or performance of councillors assessed as frivolous or 0
vexatious under section 176C(2) of the Act;

(i) complaints about the conduct or performance of councillors for which no further action was 3
taken under section 176C(2) of the Act;

(i)  complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under section 176C(3)(a)(i) of the 0
Act;

(iv) complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under section 176C(4)(a) of the 0
Act;

(V) complaints assessed by the chief executive officer as being about official misconduct; 0

(vi) complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel; 0

(vii)  complaints heard by the tribunal; 0

(viii)  complaints to which section 176C(6) of the Act applied 0

OVERSEAS TRAVEL

Overseas travel by councillor or employee in an official capacity (s188 LGA 2009)
Nil
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EXPENDITURE ON GRANTS TO COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS

Summary of expenditure for the financial year on grants to community organisations (s789 LGA 2009)
A total of $323,576 was granted to community organisations during the 2013-14 financial year.

2013-14 payments to community organisations

Community Assistance Program 247,199

Waste & Recycling Community Service Obligations 4111
Community Entertainment Fund

Australia Day Community Events
Regional Arts Development Fund 32,266
323,576

Summary of expenditure from each councillor's discretionary fund detailing organisation, amount and
purpose (5189 LGA 2009)

2013-2014 Councillors Discretionary Fund

Due to de-amalgamation, funding for Divisions 1 - 3 were allocated $2,500.00 as these Councillors will be
transferring to the new Livingstone Shire Council as of 1 January 2014. Funding periods for the remaining Divisions
remained at $5,000.00 for the financial year.
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Mayor Margaret Strelow

Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
Rockhampton Bowls Club  |to assist with funding for prize money for the Mayoral Trophy $1,000.00
Iinc
Australian High School to assist Gracemere students with the costs of competing in the Trans- $500.00
Rodeo Association Tasman
Rockhampton International (financial assistance towards 2014 International Nurses Day $500.00
Nurses Day Organising Celebrations
Committee
Rockhampton Regional donation to fund a drink foundation in the Mt Morgan Skate Park $3,200.00
Council - Parks Department
Meals on Wheels contribution towards a donation for a silver brick to assist Meal on $200.00
Wheels construct a new kitchen facility. Combined donation for the
brick by Mayor Strelow, Councillor Williams, Councillor Rutherford &
Councillor Schwarten.
The Salvation Army donation towards the 2014 Red Shield Appeal $1,000.00
Royal Flying Doctor Service [financial assistance in memory of the late Graeme Acton $200.00
Gracemere Men's Shed Inc (financial assistance towards the purchase of a drop saw for use in the $500.00
shed
\Warripari Scout Group financial assistance to assist children from low income earning families $500.00
to fully participate in group activities
Rotary Club of North financial assistance towards the running of the hamburger stall at the $1,000.00
Rockhampton Inc 2014 Rockhampton Show
TOTAL $8,600.00
Councillor Glenda
Mather
Community Organisation Purpose Amount
Milman State School P&C  |to provide financial assistance for the Centenary Celebrations for the $500.00
Association school
Barmoya Community Sports [to assist with costs to purchase furniture and equipment for the $500.00
& Recreation Association  |association
The Byfield Hall Association |to assist with the purchase of stackable chairs $500.00
IInc
Marlborough State to assist with the purchase of folding chairs to use while on actions $400.00
Emergency Service
Byfield & District Historical |to assist with the purchase of termite traps and timber repair at the $300.00
Society Inc Raspberry Creek
Caves & District Lions Club |to assist with costs associated with painting the exterior of the $300.00
Inc clubhouse
| TOTAL $2,500.00
Councillor Tom Wyatt
Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
Rockhampton and District  |to assist with the operations and maintenance of the saciety $250.00
Historical Society
(Australian Volunteer Coast [to assist with the costs towards providing a wheelchair access from the $500.00
Guard Qf20 Keppel Sands  |car park
Prostate Cancer Foundation [to assist with fundraising for Prostate Special Care Nurse to be located $500.00
of Australia in Rockhampton
|Mt Chalmers & District to assist with costs to replace bore pump $500.00
Progress Association Inc
Cooee Bay Progress & to provide financial assistance towards the repair and upgrade of the $500.00
Sports Association Inc travelling irrigator
TOTAL $2,250.00
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Councillor Bill Ludwig

Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
The Mill Gallery Yeppoon  |to assist with the purchase of catering equipment for the gallery $500.00
IInc
'Yeppoon Seagulls Jnr to assist with the purchase of field gear and padding for corner posts $500.00
Rugby League Football
Club
Keppel Coast District Girl  |to assist with the purchase of a marquee and cooking items for $500.00
Guides activities
132 Yeppoon Army Cadet  |to assist with the purchase of a new computer $500.00
Unit
Capricorn Coast Touch to assist with the cost of Junior Referee Course and Development days $500.00
Association
TOTAL $2,500.00
Councillor Ellen Smith
Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
Capricorn Animal Aid to assist with costs of veterinary treatment and care of homeless $500.00
animals
Rockhampton and District  |to assist with operations and maintenance of the Society $150.00
Historical Society
Gracemere Men's Shed Inc |to assist with costs for submitting a Material Change of Use $500.00
Application to Council
Gracemere State School to assist with costs for classes to students provided by Family Planning $500.00
P&C Qld
Marmor State School P&C  |to assist with the purchase of an outdoor table for use by the students $200.00
Association
Bouldercombe State School [to assist with costs associated with the preparation of the School Fete $200.00
P&C
Bouldercombe Progress donation towards enlarging and updating the Bouldercome Progress $150.00
Association Inc Association hall
Mount Morgan State High  |financial assistance towards 2013 awards ceremony $50.00
School P&C Association
Gracemere Bowls Club financial assistance towards building a shed $200.00
Gracemere pensioners’ and |financial assistance towards hire of a bus for a trip for the pensioners $500.00
Superannuants' League
Mount Morgan Promotion & [financial assistance towards 2013 Christmas Tree Festival $50.00
Development
Gracemere Community financial assistance towards holding a fundraiser with proceeds going $50.00
\Voice Association to Gracemere RSL
|Incorporated
Upper Ulam Recreation financial assistance towards maintenance for playground equipment $500.00
Grounds
Bajool School of Arts financial assistance towards Bajool School of Arts Centenary 2015 $200.00
Committee
Balmoral Hack & Pony Club [financial assistance towards the purchase of 20 high visibility safety $100.00
vests for use by volunteers at events
Rockhampton Show sponsorship of the horse section in the 2014 Show $220.00
Mount Morgan Show financial assistance towards hosting the 2014 Mount Morgan Show $100.00
Society
Port Curtis Road State donation towards the purchase of OX laptops for all students $250.00
School P&C
Rockhampton Agricultural & (financial assistance towards Committee establishment $300.00
Citizens Show Society
Local Spiritual Assembly of |financial assistance towards hall hire fees for the Junior Youth Spiritual $100.00
the Baha'is of Rockhampton [Empowerment Program
Region
Capricorn Region Girl financial assistance towards installing screens to the Guide Hut $180.00
Guides - Gracemere District
TOTAL $5,000.00
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Councillor Cherie

Rutherford
Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
Mount Morgan Branch to assist with fundraising activities $100.00
Australian Pensioners and
Superannuants League
Queensland
Kalapa Hall & Sports to assist with funds to conduct the annual horse & novelty sports day $300.00
Committee Inc on 31 August 2013
Rockhampton & District to assist with the operations and maintenance of the Society $200.00
Historical Society Inc
Mount Morgan Promotion  |sponsorship of the 2013 Mount Morgan Christmas Tree Festival $200.00
|and Development Group
Mount Morgan State High  |to assist with the Awards Ceremony being held on 6 November 2013 $100.00
School P&C
Ridgelands & District donation to cover the cost of printing the 2014 Ridgelands & District $770.00
Sporting & Agricultural Assn |Show programs
Inc
Rockhampton Show sponsorship towards the cost of ribbons $220.00
Beezsafe Education donation towards production of Safety Awareness DVDs to be $275.00
Productions Pty Ltd distributed to Rockhampton Child Care Centres
Meals on Wheels contribution towards a donation for a silver brick to assist Meal on $500.00
Wheels construct a new kitchen facility. Combined donation for the
brick by Mayor Strelow, Councillor Williams, Councillor Rutherford &
Councillor Schwarten.
Rockhampton Mallet Sports |donation towards the running of the club's four major events in 2014 $100.00
Club Inc
Meals on Wheels to assist with the garden development program $500.00
Jok Sang Martial Arts financial assistance towards the purchase of the junior members' $150.00
annual medal awards and new equipment
RSPCA Rockhampton financial assistance towards de-sexing, micro chipping and vaccinating $400.00
Branch rescued animals
IMount Morgan Australian  [financial assistance towards the Mount Morgan APSL Seniors Week $150.00
Pensioners and Morning Tea being held 18 August 2014
Superannuants League
Queensland
Mount Morgan Show financial assistance towards the 2014 Mount Morgan Show $500.00
Society
TOTAL $4,465.00
Councillor Greg Belz
Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
Rockhampton Golf Club financial support for the Rockhampton Closed Ladies Golf $500.00
Ladies Committees of Championship 2014
Rockhampton Golf Club
Rockhampton & District financial assistance to ward operating costs and research $500.00
Historical Society
Rockhampton Show sponsorship of the horse section in the 2014 Show $330.00
Beezsafe Education donation towards production of Safety Awareness DVDs to be $275.00
Productions Pty Ltd distributed to Rockhampton Child Care Centres
Capricorn Region Girl financial assistance towards hiring a bus to transport Girl Guides to the $200.00
Guides Kinka Wetlands Discovery Tour
Jok Sang Martial Arts financial assistance toward further expansion of the club's junior $500.00
program and to assist with the replacement of training equipment
\Warripari Scout Group financial assistance towards scouting camp equipment $500.00
TOTAL $2,805.00
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Councillor Stephen

Schwarten
Community Organisation (Purpose Amount
Neighbourhood Watch to assist with financial support $500.00
North Rockhampton Area 1
St Matthews Cottages to assist with costs towards the report of two sets of steps $500.00
Committee
Rockhampton Tennis to assist with sponsorship funding of the Queensland Age Champions $500.00
IAssocation Inc
Five Star Community to purchase copies of 'Brigalow Scrub and Melon Holes' to give to $700.00
Service Club Inc regional schools
Central Queensland to assist the association with the facility hire costs for the Annual $750.00
Filipino-Australian SportsFest Event
lAssociation Inc
Central Queensland Tamil |to assist the association with running costs $500.00
Mandram Inc
Park Avenue State School [to assist with the cost of conducting the compulsory annual audit for $500.00
P&C Association the association
Rockhampton & District to assist with the cost of refurbishing club trophies $250.00
Indoor Bowls Association
Inc
Meals on Wheels contribution towards a donation for a silver brick to assist Meal on $300.00
Wheels construct a new kitchen facility. Combined donation for the
brick by Mayor Strelow, Councillor Williams, Councillor Rutherford &
Councillor Schwarten.
Shalom Independent Units  |financial assistance towards upgrades needed at the community hall $500.00
Residents Committee
TOTAL $5,000.00
Councillor Tony
Williams
Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
Drug Awareness & Relief  |sponsorship of one "Matters of Substance” manual $50.00
Foundation (Australasia)
Sporting Wheelies & sponsorship of Charity Golf Day being held 15 September 2013 $300.00
Disabled Association
Rockhampton Cricket to cover costs associated with the application to Council for permission $372.00
Ground Management to erect billboards at Rockhampton Cricket ground
Committee
Rockhampton & District donation towards maintaining the society $100.00
Historical Society
Rockhampton District contribution towards payment of registration fees for the Committee's $200.00
Neighbourhood Watch participation in the Cancer Council Queensland Christmas Parade
Committee
lAnglicare Central donation towards 2014 Annual Cent Sale $200.00
Queensland
Rockhampton Show sponsorship of Beef Cattle section in 2014 Rockhampton Annual Show $275.00
Queensland Blue Light sponsorship of one child for 2014 Disadvantaged Children's Movie Day $60.00
Association being held 1 March 2014
Beezsafe Education donation towards production of safety awareness DVDs to be $495.00
Productions distributed to Rockhampton Child Care Centres
Variety Queensland Inc donation for 5 children to attend Children's Movie Spectacular being $250.00
held on Rockhampton 22.06.2014
Meals on Wheels contribution towards a donation for a silver brick to assist Meal on $500.00
Wheels construct a new kitchen facility. Combined donation for the
brick by Mayor Strelow, Councillor Williams, Councillor Rutherford &
Councillor Schwarten.
Indoor Sports Arena donation towards cost of Cancel Council Queensland Corporate $500.00
Games Breakfast being held on 22 June 2014
Rockhampton Mallet Sports |donation towards the running of the club's four major events for 2014 $100.00
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Club Inc
Umbrella Network financial assistance towards purchase of 1725 DL Flyers $497.55
Rockhampton Tigers Junior [financial assistance towards the purchase of sporting equipment $500.00
Rugby League
Capricorn Animal Aid financial assistance towards promotional signage for adoption days $500.00
RSPCA Rockhampton financial assistance towards de-sexing, micro-chipping and vaccinating $100.00
Branch rescued animals
TOTAL $4,999.55
Councillor Rose
Swadling
Community Organisation [Purpose Amount
Crimestoppers assistance for education programs $250.00
Rockhampton Area
Committee
Rockhampton Special assistance for the Poker Run Charity Fundraiser $250.00
School P&C
The Umbrella Network to assist with ongoing costs of the Network $250.00
South Rockhampton to assist with funds for the School Breakfast program $250.00
Chaplaincy Committee
Girls Time Out Young to assist with ongoing support for the program $250.00
\Women's Support Service
Sporting Wheelies & sponsorship for Charity Golf Day $250.00
Disabled Association
Rockhampton & District to assist with running costs of the club $250.00
Blind Club
/All Blacks Sports Club to purchase a banner for S.5.1 50th Anniversary celebrations $250.00
School Library Assocation  |to purchase book club award vouchers $245.00
of Queensland
Community Supporting to assist with ongoing expenses and upkeep of the Sondra Lena Park $250.00
Police
Cerebral Palsy League to assist with the purchase of sensory equipment for the community $250.00
centre
Azar House to assist with the donation towards a lockable shed $250.00
RFDS Auxiliary assistance with ongoing costs for the Royal Flying Doctor Service $255.00
Emmaus College P&C assist with the purchase of equipment for the school's eco-club $1,000.00
RSL Ladies Auxiliary assist with costs of a bus trip $250.00
Red Cross (Walali Centre) |assist with various projects for the centre $250.00
Parkhurst State School P&C |assist with financial support for the school $250.00
TOTAL $5,000.00
Councillor Neil Fisher
Community Organisation |Purpose Amount
Bundara Kindergarten to assist purchasing books for the library $300.00
Diggers Memorial Ladies sponsorship donation for Invitation Masters Four Carnival $500.00
Bowling Club
Capricorn Region Bonsai financial assistance towards Annual Bonsai Exhibition $300.00
Society Inc
Rockhampton Show sponsorship of the Horticulture section in 2014 Rockhampton Show $330.00
Bajool School of arts financial assistance towards the Bajool School of Arts Centenary $200.00
Rockhampton & District financial assistance towards maintenance of the Rockhampton & $100.00
Historical Society Inc District Historical Society
Diggers Memorial Ladies financial assistance towards sponsoring the Bowling Carnival $300.00
Bowling Club
Rockhampton Agricultural  |financial assistance towards Committee establishment $300.00
and Citizens Show Society
Frenchville State School donation to provide outdoor seating to the shaded learning spaces $350.00
P&C Association
Mount Morgan Show financial assistance towards hosting the 2014 Mount Morgan Show $100.00
Saciety
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Mount Archer State School |[financial assistance towards purchasing new small-medium appliances $350.00
P&C for the tuckshop kitchen
Meals on Wheels to assist with the garden development program $1,870.00
Rockhampton

TOTAL $5,000.00
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8.6 FEDERAL GOVERNMENT "GREEN ARMY PROGRAM" 2014-2015 ROUND 2

File No: 1171

Attachments: 1. Green Army Project Guidelines - Round 2
Authorising Officer: Michael Rowe - General Manager Community Services
Author: Margaret Barrett - Manager Parks

SUMMARY

The report seeks endorsement for Council to submit an application under the Green Army
program for park restoration, weed clearing and amenity improvements at Fraser Park, Mt
Archer.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION
THAT Council endorse:

1. Submission of an application for Project Sponsor status under the Green Army
program;

2. That the preferred Green Army project is park restoration, weed clearing and amenity
improvements at Fraser Park, Mt Archer; and

3. That the project be included in Council’s revised budget.

COMMENTARY

The Commonwealth Government has recently released information for Round Two (2)
projects beginning in the 2014/2015 financial year for community organisations, environment
groups and local councils to apply for Green Army projects in their region. Councils are best
placed to apply to be ‘Project Sponsors’. Projects are to deliver environment or heritage
conservation activities and achieve the strategic objectives and outcomes of ‘increasing
restoration and rehabilitation of the natural environment, including protecting and conserving
nationally and internationally significant species, ecosystems, ecological communities,
places and values’'.

Funding for Green Army projects is provided through nominated and approved Service
Providers who deliver and manage the projects on the ground; involving recruiting
Participants, managing work health and safety, provide training, pay allowances and oversee
project management. Two of the five engaged Service Providers have a presence in
Queensland. Projects are to be designed to involve a green army team of up to nine
participants and a team Supervisor and to take between 20 and 26 weeks to complete.

Project Sponsors are responsible for designing and hosting the project and for materials that
are required and are in addition to those materials provided by the Service Provider. Service
Providers supply ‘project specific materials’ up to an average of $10,000 per project.

Council has recently commenced a community engagement program to inform a master plan
to activate Mt Archer. Charettes held with a range of community and government
representatives have highlighted that Fraser Park holds great potential to provide an
expanded range of recreation opportunities and experiences; many of which would be
progressed with restoration of the park, weed clearing and amenity improvements informed
by the engagement process.

Applications close on 9 December, 2014 and are submitted on-line. Projects are expected
to be ready to commence between 1 January 2015 and 30 June 2015. Projects selected
under Round 2 must finish no later than 31 December 2016.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

No funding is available directly to Council if successful as a Project Sponsor.
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Project Sponsors are responsible for supplying project materials that are required by the
project, but not supplied by the Service Providers. Service Providers supply ‘project specific
materials’ up to an average of $10,000 per project.

The 2014-2015 Budget includes an allocation of $15,000 (Division 10: Mount Archer —
Cleanup and re-establish plantings).

STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

The detailed application process requires considerable time and effort to complete.
Discussions are still to be held with the Rockhampton office of the Service Provider to
determine the potential availability of Green Army participants.

CONCLUSION

The Green Army Program has been well established for a number of years, focusing on
environmental improvement and conservation initiatives. The restoration of Fraser Park has
been identified as important to the enhancement of the Mt Archer precinct. Utilising the
Green Army Program for this restoration provides an opportunity to link the community
aspirations for this area with a Commonwealth Government priority.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

v

v

v

Round Two of the Green Army will give all eligible entities an opportunity to apply for 2014-15 and
2015-16 Green Army Projects. Green Army Project Applications (Applications) must include at least
one Green Army Project (Project) that commences between 1 January 2015 and 30 June 2015. All
Projects under Round Two must finish no later than 31 December 2016.

Five Service Providers have been engaged to deliver and manage the projects on the ground. This
includes recruiting Participants, managing Work Health and Safety, providing training, paying
allowances and overseeing project management. Applicants are encouraged to contact a Service
Provider in their state or territory to discuss a project application. A list of Service Providers and the
states and territories within which they operate can be found in Section 1.4.

Each Project will invalve a Green Army Team of up to nine Participants and a Team Supervisor
participating for between 20 to 26 weeks to deliver environment or heritage conservation activities.

Each successful Project Sponsor is eligible to receive approved Project Specific Materials
{see Section 2.6). These will be up to an average of $10,000 per Project and be sourced and
provided by the Service Provider.

All other materials required to deliver the Project, in addition to those provided by the Service
Provider, will be the responsibility of the Project Sponsor.

No cash funding is available for Project Sponsors.

These Round Two Project Guidelines (Guidelines) provide information to help interested
organisations or individuals to prepare an Application that includes either a single Project or
multiple {(consecutive or concurrent) Projects. These Guidelines include information on the
Application process and criteria that will be used to assess Applications.

An Application to the Australian Government under the Green Army Programme (Programme) may
be for one or more (up to nine) Projects, to deliver specified environmental or heritage
conservation outcomes (see Section 1.2).

Multiple Projects within a single Application must work towards a common conservation outcome
and be linked by a common location, site, or conservation theme.

Successful Applicants will be invited to enter into a Project Agreement with a Service Provider, and
become a Project Sponsor.

Project Sponsars are not responsible for recruiting or managing Participants or Team Supervisors.
A separate process with each Service Provider will be undertaken for young Australians to become
a Green Army Team Participant or Team Supervisor. Further information is available at
www.environment.gov.au/green-army.
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KEY DATES

To be considered in Round Two, Applications need to be received by the Department of the
Environment (Department) prior to 2:00pm AEDT (Canberra time) Tuesday 9 December 2014
(Closing Time).

SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION

Step 1:

Step 2:

Step 3:

Read these Guidelines and any other relevant information made available on the
Department’s website (http://www.environment.gov.au/green-army).

Complete the online Application form available from the Department’s website:
http://www.environment.gov.au/green-army, addressing each of the selection criteria in the
relevant fields.

Please note that each downloaded Application form has an embedded unigque identifier as
a means to exclude duplicate submissions. This means that the same form cannot be
submitted twice. A separate Application form will need to be downloaded from the online
site for each individual Application.

If the Applicant does not have access to the Internet, they may request a hard copy Green
Army Application form by calling the Green Army Hotline on 1800 780 730.

Submit the Application form(s) online prior to the Closing Time. Please ensure that a record
of the Application submission number is retained. Additional information provided by the
Applicant, but not requested in the Application form, will not be assessed.

Please do not email an Application form to the Department, as emailed Applications may not
be accepted. It is advised that Applicants allow extra time to correct any errors in the
electronic Application form that may be brought to the attention of the Applicant upon
attempting to submit. Please contact the Department well before the Closing Time if any
assistance is required to complete the form or correct errors.
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* © Copyright Commonwealth of Australia, 2014.

[OMO

The Green Army Round Two Project Guidelines 2014-15 are licensed by the Commonwealth of
Australia for use under a Creative Commons By Attribution 3.0 Australia licence with the exception of
the Coat of Arms of the Commonwealth of Australia, the logo of the Department of the Environment,

content supplied by third parties, and any images depicting people. For licence conditions see:
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au/

This document should be attributed as ‘Green Army Round Two Project Guidelines 2014-15
Commonwealth of Australia’.

The Commonwealth of Australia has made all reasonable efforts to identify content supplied by third
parties using the following format ‘© Copyright, [name of third party]’.

Cover image: Green Army participants removing ivy from native trees in the Dandenong Ranges,
Victoria, Department of the Environment.
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PART 1: INTRODUCTION
1.1  About the Green Army Round Twa Project Guidelines

The Australian Government is investing more than $2 billion to manage our natural resources and
heritage values and enable communities to take practical action to improve their local environment.
The Programme will help realise the Government's vision for the future by protecting and improving
our environment and heritage for generations to come.

The Green Army is helping local communities deliver environment and heritage conservation
outcomes across Australia. Projects delivered by Green Army Teams will be guided by local community
needs and contribute to Australia’s environmental priorities and national and international obligations
to conserve and rehabilitate Australia’s natural, historic and Indigenous heritage assets.

The Programme is a voluntary programme available to a broad range of young Australians aged 17 to
24, including Indigenous Australians, school leavers, gap year students, graduates, and job seekers. It
will provide young Australians with opportunities to develop skills, undertake training and gain
experience in the delivery of conservation projects and, importantly, enhance opportunities for
careers and further training in conservation. Eligibility requirements relating to age may be extended
in future years.

The Australian Government has announced a number of successful Green Army Projects received
through Round One. Through this second Round, the Government is providing an additional
opportunity to submit a Project or suite of Projects commencing between 1 January 2015 and

30 June 2015, and be completed by 31 December 2016. Applicants seeking approval for multiple
Projects should note that the approval of Projects in subsequent years will be conditional upon
successful delivery of Projects in the first year.

Applications submitted under Round Two must deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic Objective 1
and, to improve the likelihood of success, one or all of the Strategic Objectives 2 to 4, as set out in
Section 1.2, They must also meet the Investment Priorities set out in Section 5.1.

Terms in bold text in these Guidelines are defined in Part 12: Glossary of terms.

1.2 Programme objectives

The Programme has a strong focus on achieving real and practical environmental and heritage
conservation outcomes, and will help thousands of young Australians explore career opportunities
while gaining practical and hands-on skills, training and experience.

The Programme aims to engage, train and deploy a total of 15,000 Participants to Green Army Projects
between 1 July 2014 and 30 June 2017. From 2018-19 the Programme will engage 15,000 people per
year.
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The Programme has four strategic objectives and outcomes:

Strategic Objective

Strategic Outcome

1.  Environmental Conservation: Support the delivery of
enduring environment and heritage conservation
outcomes at the local, regional, national and
international level.

Increase restoration and rehabilitation of the natural
environment, including protecting and conserving
nationally and internationally significant species,
ecosystems, ecological communities, places and values.

2. Community Engagement: Work cooperatively with
community groups, and help raise awareness of
environment and heritage values in the community.

Increase engagement and participation of the
community, including landcare, farmers and Indigenous
people, in sustainable natural resource management.

3. Green Army Participation: Engage and deploy young
Australians to participate in Green Army Teams, having
highest regard for Participant safety, wellbeing and
personal need and development.

Teams of young and motivated Australians helping
communities deliver local priorities and outcomes in a
safe environment.

4. Experience, skills and training: Provide Participants with
opportunities to undertake training recognised under
the Australian Qualifications Framework, in a range of
areas which increase their skills and qualifications.

Participants are successful in achieving skills, training
and accreditation in a range of areas related to
conservation management,

To receive support under the Programme, a Project must:

v meet the eligibility criteria set out in Part 4;

v meet the Investment Priorities set out in Section 5.1; and

¥ deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic Objective 1 as discussed below.

To improve the likelihood of success, a Project should also deliver outcomes consistent with one or all
of Strategic Objectives 2 to 4. Whether a Project delivers outcomes consistent with the Strategic

Objectives will be addressed against the Selection Criteria set out in Section 5.2.

To deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic Objective 1, Projects must be directed towards

Australia’s relevant international obligations. Further information on Australia’s relevant international
obligations are contained in the following documents:

i the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change;

ii.  the Convention on Biological Diversity;

iii.  the Convention on Wetlands of International Importance especially as Waterfowl

Habitat;

iv.  the Convention on the Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals; and

v.  the Convention Concerning the Protection of the World Cultural and Natural

Heritage.

Alternatively, to deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic Objective 1, Projects must be directed

towards protecting and conserving Matters of National and Environmental Significance under the
Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cth) (EPBC Act). Such Projects may
include World Heritage Areas, Ramsar wetlands, national heritage and others. The importance of
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biodiversity and ecosystem services is also recognised in Australia’s Biodiversity Conservation Strategy
2010-2030 (ABCS), which is the overarching policy and guiding framework for national biodiversity
conservation in Australia.

By investing in local projects, the Australian Government recognises the important contribution of
local communities in assisting Australia to meet its relevant international obligations and to protect
and conserve Matters of National Environmental Significance.

In Round Two, the Government will be seeking Applications including (but not limited to) those with
activities in remote locations, those which address Indigenous outcomes and those which deliver
threatened species outcomes.

Remote area and Indigenous outcomes

The Australian Government is committed to supporting Green Army Projects in remote parts of
Australia and to providing opportunities for Indigenous Participants and communities in areas that
have Indigenous environmental or heritage values.

The Programme is capable of supporting Participants and Projects in remote communities, and
providing targeted training and ways to connect Indigenous Australians with their country, identity and
culture. The Programme will support activities that include the implementation of traditional
ecological knowledge and/or the protection and management of cultural sites, delivery of land
management practices on Indigenous managed lands (for example: Indigenous Protected Areas),
preserving Indigenous heritage values, weeding, Revegetation, fencing, gully remediation, clean up of
waterways, or monitoring and surveys on Indigenous and non Indigenous lands.

The Department may, at its absolute and sole discretion, approve the engagement of Participants aged
25 years or older. This will only be approved in exceptional circumstances where requested jointly by a
Service Provider and Project Sponsor. For Round Two of the Green Army Programme, these
exceptional circumstances are limited to Indigenous Participants 25 years or older who bring
Indigenous cultural knowledge critical for successful delivery of the outcomes of the project.
Consideration will only be given after a project has been approved by the Minister for the
Environment.

Threatened Species outcomes

The Australian Government recognises its position in protecting our unique and threatened species.
The Programme seeks to complement the government’s responsibilities for threatened species
protection and recovery under both our national environmental law and international obligations.

The Australian Government is committed, through the Green Army programme, to working in
partnership with state, territory and local governments, non-government organisations, regional
natural resource management organisations and community groups to ensure the protection of our
native species through activities such as revegetation, weeding, debris removal, public access
management or surveying.

See Part 3 and Section 5.1 of these Guidelines for further details.
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1.3  What does a successful Applicant (Project Sponsor) receive?

Project Sponsors are an Applicant who is successful in being awarded the services of a Green Army
Team under the Programme and who subsequently enters into a Project Agreement with a Service
Provider.

Each Project Sponsor will receive a Green Army Team of up to nine Participants and a Team Supervisor
working to deliver conservation activities for between 20 and 26 weeks.

Under the Programme, Project Sponsors do not receive any cash funding for their Project.

Where approved by the Department, the Project Sponsor will be provided with Project Specific
Materials (see Section 2.6). The Service Provider will be responsible for ensuring Project Sponsors
receive their Project Specific Materials.

Any costs and resources required to deliver the Project (excluding those Project Specific Materials)
must be provided by the Project Sponsor.

Project Sponsors will be required to negotiate a Project Agreement with their allocated Service
Provider outlining how the Project is to be delivered and covering matters such as roles and
responsibilities, insurance, resources, a work plan, Work Health and Safety, and reporting
requirements.

1.4 How will the Green Army Programme be delivered?

Green Army Service Providers have now been appointed to deliver the Green Army projects on the
ground. Below is the list of Service Providers that operate in each state and territory:

Service Provider State/Territo Contact details
Conservation Volunteers Australian Capital Phone: 1800032 501
Territory
Australia

Email: info@conservationvolunteers.com.au

New South Wales

X Website:
Northern Territory
http://www.conservationvolunteers.com.au/green-
Queensland arm

South Australia

Tasmania

Victoria

Western Australia
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Manpower Services
(Australia) Pty Ltd

and Landcare Australia
Ltd

Australian Capital
Territory

New South Wales
Queensland
South Australia
Tasmania
Victoria

Western Australia

Phone: 1300 725 937

Email: greenarmyjobs@au.manpower.com

Website: https://www.manpower.com.au/job-

seekers/greenarmy.aspx

Job Futures Ltd

Australian Capital
Territory

New South Wales

Northern Territory

Victoria

Western Australia

Phone: (03) 9606 1700

Email: greenarmy@jobfutures.com.au

Website:

https://www.jobfutures.com.au/index.php/our-

activities/green-army.html#Contact

Campbell Page Ltd and
Skillset Ltd

Australian Capital
Territory

New South Wales

Queensland

Phone: 1300 139 920

Email: reception@campbellpage.org.au

Website: http://www.campbellpage.com.au/green-

arm

Workskil Australia Inc.

South Australia

Phone: 08 8275 6100 or 1300 967 575

Email: greenarmy@workskil.com.au

Website:
http://www.workskil.com.au/youth/green-

army/current-projects/

To keep up to date, current contact details for these Service Providers can be found on the

Department’s website at http://www.environment.gov.au/land/green-army/service-providers.

Applicants are encouraged to consult with Service Providers in developing their proposed Project.

Service Providers will be able to help Applicants consider an Application, clarify aspects of the

Programme and address issues that affect Project implementation. The Department will have absolute
discretion in allocating Projects to Service Providers, but will have regard to consultations which have
occurred with Service Providers in the development of the Applications.
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Service Providers have received funding to cover costs directly associated with Green Army Teams.

Service Providers will be responsible for recruiting, deploying and managing Participants. Participants
must be Australian citizens or permanent residents between the ages of 17 and 24 and will be required
to enter into a Participant Agreement with the Service Provider regarding their engagement in the
Programme. Participants will be provided with an Allowance by the Service Provider and will be
engaged primarily on a full time basis for 20 to 26 weeks. They will also undertake nationally
recognised training and may come from the local area where the Project will be carried out.

Service Providers will be responsible for recruiting and deploying Team Supervisors and managing the
delivery of each Project.

Team Supervisors engaged by Service Providers will manage Green Army Teams. Team Supervisors will
be over 18 years old, be adequately experienced, and will be primarily responsible for supervising
Participants in the field as part of a Project, managing attendance, Work Health and Safety
requirements and field reporting.

Service Providers will deliver training to Participants directly, or through a previously agreed third
party training provider.
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Figure 1: Green Army parties and Programme delivery.
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PART 2: GREEN ARMY PROJECTS AND APPLICATIONS
2.1 Green Army Project

A Project under this Round must involve activities to support a Green Army Team (of up to nine
Participants and a Team Supervisor) engaged over a period of 20 to 26 weeks (see Part 3 for a list of

supported activities). Projects must support environmental and/or heritage conservation outcomes
across Australia.

Projects must deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic Objective 1. That is, they must be directed
towards meeting Australia’s relevant international obligations or, alternatively, directed towards
protecting and conserving Matters of National Environmental Significance (see Section 1.2)

Projects may be carried out across urban, regional and remote Australia, on public land, Indigenous
managed lands, or private land where there is a clear public and environmental and/or heritage
benefit.

2.2 Green Army Applications

Applicants may consider a single Application under this Round consisting of one Project (20 to 26
weeks) or a Multi-Project Application (with up to nine Projects) that delivers an overarching, specified
conservation outcome. Multi-Project Applications may cover a period of up to 18 months (with each
Project running for 20 to 26 weeks).

Where an Applicant would like a Green Army Team to undertake work for a period shorter than that
permitted under the Programme (that is, less than the minimum 20 weeks), the Applicant may partner
with one or more other organisations to develop a suite of activities linked by a commaon location, site
or theme, which could be undertaken by a single Green Army Team over a 20 to 26 week period.

Applications can be developed by an individual, organisation or a consortium of organisations. Where
a consortium has developed an Application, one organisation must take overall responsibility for the
Application (including the proposed Projects) and be able to enter into a Project Agreement with the
Service Provider as a Project Sponsor.

Multi-Project Applications

Where Applications contain more than one Project, all Projects in the Application must work towards a
commeon conservation outcome, and be defined by a common location, site or theme. The Application
may include, for example, multiple Projects to deliver activities in relation to the conservation of a
specific ecological community (or part thereof), heritage site, water body, or habitat.

Multi-Project Applications may seek to deliver concurrent (up to three Projects at the same time)
and/or consecutive (back to back) Projects over a period of up to 18 months. An Application can
include a maximum of nine Projects. All Projects within any Application must be completed by 31
December 2016, and at least one must commence between 1 January 2015 and 30 June 2015.
Applicants seeking approval for multiple Projects should note that the approval of Projects in
subsequent years will be conditional upon successful delivery of Projects in the first year.

Figure 2 outlines three possible Application scenarios. Where an Applicant is seeking various Projects
that do not clearly relate to a common conservation outcome, separate Applications should be lodged
for each Project.
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Figure 2: Green Army Application scenarios

5 1. Single 2. Multi-Project Application 3. Multi-Project Application

E Project (concurrent) (consecutive)

T Application On a single Application form On a single Application form

-
1 Green Army Green Amy Team 1: Green Amy Green Amy Green Army

Project Project 1 Project 1 Project 2 Project 3

20-26 weeks 20-26 weeks 20-26 weeks 20-26 weeks 20-26 weeks

Green Army Team 2
Project 2
20-26 weeks

Green Army
Proiect

< & month Period> < & month Period> <18 month period>

Projects can be a combination of the concurrent and consecutive scenarios above.
2.3 Consultation and community support

Applicants are encouraged to consider engaging with a Service Provider to assist them with the
development of their Application. In addition, Applicants should consult with relevant traditional
owners, local government and planning authorities, community groups, land holders/managers,
regional catchment and regional natural resource management organisations. This will help to ensure
that activities are feasible, take into account natural and cultural values of the area and local
knowledge, and are aligned with local community aspirations and relevant environment and heritage
plans.

Applicants must ensure that their Application complies with all requirements set out in any applicable
Commonwealth, state, territory, and local government laws, and ensure that all necessary planning,
approvals and/or permits are in place prior to the commencement of a Project. This includes the
necessary permits and the written consent of relevant traditional owners or appropriate Indigenous
organisations where activities may directly affect Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander sites, places,
values or communities (see Part 4). Applicants are asked to consider approval times in considering
their Project commencement date.

2.4 Likely Participant interest

Applicants developing an Application should consider whether there are likely to be young people
from the local area who will be interested in the proposed Project(s). The Applicant is not required to
coordinate or recruit teams of Green Army Participants. This will be undertaken by Service Providers.

However, likely Participant interest is a practical issue that should be kept in mind when developing an
Application, as availability of young people may be an issue in forming a Green Army Team to
undertake the Project.

2.5  Work Health and Safety

Work Health and Safety is a high priority for the Programme. Project Sponsors must comply (and
ensure that any subcontractors they are organising separately for the Project comply) with the
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provisions of all relevant statutes, regulations, by-laws and requirements of any Commonwealth, state,
territory or local authority including those arising under the Work Health and Safety Laws.

Service Providers are responsible for developing and consulting with relevant parties, including seeking
input and agreement from Project Sponsors in the development of Project specific Work Health and
Safety plans. Such plans must include the identification and assessment of safety risks, identification of
mitigation strategies to address such risks (and the party responsible for implementing these
strategies), and identification of any Participant training requirements to ensure their safety while on
site.

Service Providers may require Project Sponsors to contact or provide the contact information for any
other stakeholders, such as land managers who may have some shared responsibility for Work Health
and Safety, for advice and agreement on the development of those plans.

The Service Provider, through the Team Supervisor, will have primary responsibility for managing
the Work Health and Safety of Participants while they are undertaking a Project.

Project Sponsors also have a responsibility to facilitate safe working environments, in particular safe
access to the site where work is being carried out (where they have control of this) and ensuring that
any equipment provided (other than that provided by the Service Provider]) for use in the Project is in
good working order and meets necessary safety, performance and servicing standards. If a Project
Sponsor is unable to facilitate a safe working environment, the Department may require changes to
Project activities or terminate the Project.

The Applicant must consider the risks of the Project, and the Work Health and Safety risks for
Participants working on the Project, and reflect an appropriate management or mitigation response in
the Application form.

2.6 Project Specific Materials

The Programme will support Project Specific Materials with an average value of $10,000 (GST
inclusive) per Project. The Service Provider is responsible for ensuring Project Sponsors are provided
with the Project Specific Materials, in addition to Basic Materials required to support delivery of a
Project (see Section 2.7). Types of items eligible for inclusion in the Application include:

o seedlings

* herbicide

* mulch

* Jute Matting

* tree guards.
Project Specific Materials must directly support both:

e the delivery of the environmental and/or heritage objectives of the Project, and

e be used in an activity being undertaken by the Participants.
Where specified by the Department in an Order, the Service Provider must provide the Project Specific

Materials in addition to basic materials. This may also be specified in the Project Agreement between
the Service Provider and Project Sponsor.

It is not necessary to request materials that will already be supplied by the Service Provider, such as
personal protective equipment or protective clothing. For the avoidance of doubt, Project Specific
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Materials do not include acquisition or maintenance of assets, administrative costs, vehicle hire,
community engagement activities, food, contractors, expert advice and waste removal fees. Service
Providers may provide the use of other tools and equipment, such as brush-cutters, hoes or chemical
spray packs for use by Participants. These will be retained by Service Providers for use on other
Projects. These items are not eligible as Project Specific Materials.

Any costs or resources, in addition to Project Specific Materials and items not covered by the Service
Provider to deliver the Project, must be covered by the Project Sponsor.

No cash funding will be provided to Project Sponsors.

2.7 Basic Materials

The Programme will support Basic Materials associated with Participant requirements and supplied by
the Service Provider, Basic materials include:

* safety clothing,
e basictools
e first aid kits.

Basic tools will generally be able to be used on multiple Projects, with the Service Provider replacing
lost or broken tools where necessary.

It is not necessary to Project Sponsors request materials that will already be supplied by the Service
Provider.

2.8 Participant training

Service Providers will be responsible for organising training for Participants in consultation with, and
provided by, Registered Training Organisations. Project Sponsors do not organise the certified training

of Participants.

Participants will be required to undertake a minimum level of training. This will include, for example,
first aid training and Work Health and Safety training, and may include Project specific training such as
training in the handling of herbicide chemicals, ‘on-the-job’ training or cultural awareness training.

In addition, Participants will have the opportunity to undertake training that is of particular interest to
them. These opportunities will be negotiated between the Participant and the Service Provider and
will be set out in the Participant’s individual training plan agreed with the Service Provider.

2.9 Project monitoring and reporting

Data and information will be collected throughout the delivery of the Programme. This will be used to
maintain a record of Project and Programme outcomes and ensure roles and responsibilities are met
by all parties. Service Providers have primary responsibility for monitoring and reporting.

Project Sponsor reporting

The Project Sponsor will be asked to complete a short end-of-Project survey, provided by the
Department through the Service Provider, outlining how the Project(s) has helped them to achieve
their conservation outcomes. The survey will also seek Project Sponsors’ evaluation of their experience
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of working with a Green Army Team and the Programme more generally. Surveys will need to be
submitted to the Service Provider at the completion of each Project.

Green Army Teams

Service Provider’s will facilitate reporting on the delivery of activities (including the monitoring
activities) in an online reporting system. This may include photo point monitoring at Project sites. All
monitoring and reporting data will be made public subject to confidentiality and privacy requirements.

All Participants will be required to complete a Participant survey, to be provided to the Service
Provider at the completion of each Project.

Service Providers and Team Supervisors will also have responsibilities to report Work Health and
Safety incidents and Participant attendance. These arrangements will be managed by the Service
Provider.

The Department

The Department may conduct site visits and/or arrange inspections by third parties to monitor the
progress of selected Projects, assess compliance of Projects with the contracted requirements, assess
the performance of the Service Provider(s), and determine whether appropriate Work Health and
Safety practices are being implemented.

The Department may also undertake Programme evaluation and monitoring activities. This may
include publishing case studies of Projects detailing achievements, community engagement activities,
Participant perspectives and lessons learnt.
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PART 3: GREEN ARMY PROJECT ACTIVITIES

Each Project should address locally relevant conservation priorities that deliver on the Programme’s
strategic objectives and outcomes. All Projects must deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic
Objective 1. That is, they must be directed towards Australia’s relevant international obligations or,
alternatively, directed towards protecting and conserving Matters of National Environmental

Significance (see Section 1.2).

Locally relevant priorities can include:

e cultural heritage conservation

e heritage value conservation

* environmental value conservation and restoration
e propagation and planting of native seedlings

* weed control

e re-vegetation and regeneration of local parks

s habitat protection and restoration

s improving water quality by cleaning up waterways
e re-vegetation of sand dunes and mangroves

* creek bank regeneration

+ foreshore and beach restoration

* construction of boardwalks and walking tracks to protect local wildlife.

A list of specific activities (and their conditions) that can be undertaken by Green Army Teams is
provided in Table 1 below. These activities are relevant to the conservation of the environment and
heritage (natural, cultural and Indigenous) assets and values and include a range of conservation,

monitoring and awareness activities.

Activities should clearly relate to the conservation and/or heritage priorities and objectives of the
Project and must deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic Objective 1. Where possible the activities
delivered should be consistent with any relevant environmental or Conservation Management Plans,
strategies or advices. Activities undertaken to address heritage values should be consistent with
available best practice heritage guidelines.

Applicants should provide details of where Green Army Teams may require additional (third party)
expert guidance or supervision to adequately deliver the activities. It will be the responsibility of the
Project Sponsor to provide any expert consultation or supervision.

Applicants should consider whether activities associated with individual Projects are appropriate for
the skill level of teams of young people aged between 17 and 24.

25 NOVEMBER 2014

Green Army Round Two Project Guidelines Page | 13

Page (232)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

Table 1: Activities supported by the Programme
Green Army activities Conditions
Weed treatment Activities primarily involve the physical, chemical, or biological control of weed

plant species. Activities must focus on reducing the spread and impact of existing
weeds or local eradication or containment of new or emerging weeds. Preference
will be given to activities focusing on weeds declared as Weeds of National
Significance and weeds listed on the National Environmental Alert List.

Pest or disease management Activities focused on local eradication or reducing the impact and spread of
existing pests or diseases.

Project activities should demaonstrate consistency with relevant local, regional,
state or national pest animal strategies and plans, and recommended
management codes of practice, such as the Australian Pest Animal Strategy, and
the model codes of practice and standard operating procedures for the humane
capture, handling, or destruction of feral animals in Australia.

Care should be taken to minimise the risk of spreading pests and diseases when
undertaking on-ground work, even when pest or disease management is not the
primary activity.

Revegetation Activities aimed at establishing and managing mixed native species plantings
appropriate to the site and type of vegetation community. Species that are
known to be or have the potential to become an agricultural or environmental
weed must not be used. Revegetation may involve direct seeding and/or planting

activities.
Seed collection and plant Seed collection focused on species native to the region and should be closely
propagation managed to ensure native plant populations can continue to reproduce. This

activity must be undertaken in connection with a not-for-profit revegetation
activity. This activity also includes propagation from plant cuttings.

Fire management Activities that use fire as a way to manage environmental and/or heritage assets.
Activities specifically aimed at protecting life, property and non-environmental
assets will not be supported except where this is related to the protection of built
heritage values.

Debris removal Activities must focus on the removal and appropriate disposal of rubbish from
local waterways and bushland reserves, where it can be demonstrated that this
activity is part of a Threat Abatement Plan or strategy, or will directly improve
the ecological condition of the site. Rubbish removal activities aimed solely at
improving visual and recreational amenity will not be funded. (Note that in some
cases vegetation debris can be important additions to rivers and Remnant Native
Vegetation as habitat enrichment).

Erosion management Activities focused on stabilising or mitigating erosion of gullies, dune systems,
river banks, creeks, estuaries etc. where it can be demonstrated that the activity
is part of a Threat Abatement Plan or strategy and/or will directly improve the
ecological condition of the site and/or the heritage values of a site.

Public access management. Activities that aim to manage public access and visitor movements to reduce
impacts on environmentally sensitive or valuable heritage areas. Activities may
include the construction and maintenance of walking tracks, boardwalks, signage
and railings.

Fencing Fencing will only be supported where it will provide high environmental or
heritage benefits. For example, where it is the most cost effective management
action for the protection of a sensitive riparian area, heritage landscape,
revegetation, remnant native vegetation, critical habitat area (including for pest
animal management), or is part of a strategy to reduce soil erosion.

Fencing for the primary purpose of stock management will not be supported
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unless it meets the above requirement.

Community participation and Activities that enhance visitor understanding and appreciation of the significant
engagement environmental and/or heritage values of an area.

(Interpretation and visitor use Green Army Teams may assist in organising and participating in community open
facilities) days, talks/presentations, on-country trips and activities and field days. These
activities will only be supported as one component of a suite of Project activities.

Indigenous knowledge, use and | Activities to record and share Indigenous traditional knowledge to support
maintenance environment and heritage conservation may be funded as & component of a suite
of Project activities. Relevant activities could include activities with Indigenous
school children to share traditional knowledge about country, engagement with
traditional owners and young people to clean rock holes and transfer knowledge
or working with scientists to share and record knowledge about species or
management practices.

Applications proposing the use and recording of Indigenous knowledge should
indicate how traditional owners will be engaged in and give consent for the
activities, and how the knowledge will be stored so that access to sensitive
cultural information is managed through traditional cultural protocols and assists
Indigenous people to manage their information on culture and country.

Site preparation activities Activities that are part of a suite of Participant activities within a Project, other
than those listed elsewhere in the activities list that are primarily aimed at
preparing a site for other activities that link to Programme objectives. This may
include, for example, ripping soil prior to revegetation.

Surveying Activities focused on plant, animal, water quality, weed or pest surveys using
recognised methods and must be carried out under the supervision of an
appropriately qualified and/or experienced person and with appropriate permits.

Activities that involve establishing monitoring sites and recording data on changes
in vegetation type and condition {with reference made to condition thresholds as
specified in Conservation Advices and Recovery Plans for same threatened
vegetation communities, where possible). This data can be collected using one of
the following recognised methods:

*  Habitat Hectares

*  BioMetric: Terrestrial Biodiversity Tool

*  BioCondition

e TasVeg: Tasmanian Vegetation Condition Assessment Method

*  Bushland Condition Monitoring

*  Native Vegetation Condition Assessment and Monitoring for WA

*  Ecological Monitoring Guide [Department of the Environment).

Vegetation monitoring and
related monitoring activities

In all cases, where possible, Applicants should demonstrate consistency with relevant local, regional,
state or national vegetation legislation, plan and strategies.

3.1  Activities that are not supported through the Programme

In addition to activities excluded by the conditions in Table 1 above, the Programme will not support
activities which, in the Department’s opinion:

x do not clearly deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic Objective 1 (see Section 1.2)

x do not clearly support the delivery of conservation outcomes that align with the investment
priorities, as outlined in the Application (see Section 5.1) (for example, activities primarily
delivering a private benefit or commercial gain or are for the primary purpose of beautifying
or improving amenity)

x are outside of Australia and its territories
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x are required or are part of an approval under Commonwealth, state or territory legislation,
for example, the requirements of an environmental offset under the EPBC Act;

x are primarily for the purpose of beautifying or improving amenity;

x involve flood/fire recovery work where this work is covered by insurance - the Applicant may
be required to provide a letter from their insurer showing that the proposed works are not
covered by the relevant insurance policy

x are unable to be undertaken by Green Army Teams, for example, major construction which
requires technical or professional expertise outside that which may be sourced through
Green Army Teams

x involve the use of firearms or present significant risk to the health and safety of Participants

x are already funded through Australian Government programmes.
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PART 4: ELIGIBILITY

Individuals, community groups, local councils, Indigenous organisations, heritage organisations, local
catchment or regional natural resource management organisations, state and territory agencies and
others are encouraged to apply, provided they, and the proposed Projects, meet the following
eligibility requirements set out in Section 4.1.

41  Eligibility

Applications that do not meet all of the eligibility criteria set out in this will not be eligible for support
through Round Two.

Eligibility of a Project Sponsor

To be eligible to become a Project Sponsor, the Applicant must:

v be a legal entity, for instance:

e anindividual (Australian citizen or permanent resident only)

* acompany

e apartnership where each of the partners are legal entities

® an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander organisation, council or incorporated association

e anincorporated association or cooperative society.

v if in a partnership, the person signing the Application must have authority to sign for and
bind the partners of the partnership jointly and severally.

Application eligibility

To be eligible:

v the Application must be submitted by an eligible Project Sponsor

each Project proposed within the Application must be undertaken over a continuous
period of no less than 20 weeks and no more than 26 weeks in duration

v each proposed Project within the Application must only contain activities being
undertaken within Australia and its territories

v each proposed Project within the Application must deliver outcomes consistent with
Strategic Objective 1, and contain activities consistent with those found in Part 3 of the
Guidelines
Green Army Round Two Project Guidelines Page | 17
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v for a single Project Application, the Project must commence between 1 January 2015 and
30 June 2015

or

v for multi-Project Applications, the Application must include at least one Project that

commences between 1 January 2015 and 30 June 2015, with all Projects demonstrating
one overarching primary conservation outcome, theme, location or site, and all Projects
completed by 31 December 2016.

4.2 Application declarations

Applicants will be required to make declarations regarding their Application which will be considered
in the assessment process. Applications must include a declaration to the effect that:

v'  the Applicant has or is able to obtain the written consent of the property owner or property
manager to implement the proposed Project(s) activities where the Applicant does not own or
have management responsibility for the proposed Project(s) location(s) (including sites from
which seeds or other materials will be collected).

v where proposed activities may directly or indirectly affect Indigenous sites or places of value, the
Project has or will have the necessary permits and/or support from the relevant traditional
owners and/or local Indigenous organisations.

v the Applicant has or is able to access adequate funds and/or resources to support delivery of the
Project (other than Project Specific Materials requested in the Application) before the proposed
date of commencement.

¥ the proposed Project(s) complies with all requirements set out in any applicable Commonwealth,
state, territory, and local government laws, and that all necessary planning, approvals and/or
permits are or can be in place prior to the commencement of the Project.

v'  the Applicant understands the Department reserves its discretion to conduct criminal history
checks and exclude any Applicant that is deemed unfit.

v if the Application is supported through the Programme, the Applicant and all others engaged or
deployed in relation to the Project will consent to undertake appropriate criminal records checks
where a Project will involve working with Vulnerable Persons.

¥ written documentation supporting the above declarations will be provided to the Department
upon request.
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PART 5: PROJECT CRITERIA
5.1 Investment Priorities

Applications will be assessed by the Department. Each Application will be assessed against the
following criteria, including each individual Project in a multi-Project Application. In addressing the
selection criteria, Applicants must demonstrate how their proposal aligns with at least one of the
following investment priorities:

® increase the area, linkages between and condition of Australia’s native vegetation

* protect and enhance Aquatic Ecosystems, including wetlands and sensitive coastal
environments

* protect and conserve threatened species or ecological communities, migratory species, and
regionally significant species as well as where they live

s protect and conserve Australia’s natural, historic and/or Indigenous heritage.

As part of any Application that aligns with the priorities above, Applications should further
demonstrate, where appropriate:

s increased community participation in environmental and/or heritage conservation activities
and outcomes

& enhanced community environmental awareness
e provision of a variety of skills and experiences for Participants

* alignment with, building on or complementing existing Australian Government programmes.

5.2 Selection Criteria

To receive support under the Programme, a Project must deliver outcomes consistent with Strategic
Objective 1. To improve the likelihood of success, a Project should also deliver outcomes consistent
with one or all of Strategic Objectives 2 to 4. Whether a Project delivers outcomes consistent with the
Strategic Objectives will be assessed against the selection criteria below.

Proposed Projects must be directed towards Australia’s international obligations under one or mare of
the treaties identified in Section 1.2, or be directed towards protecting and conserving Matters of
National and Environmental Significance. Projects which cannot demonstrate how they focus on
reducing the loss of natural habitats, degradation and fragmentation; protecting and conserving
Matters of National Environmental Significance, including World Heritage Areas, Ramsar wetlands,
national heritage etc., and reducing the number of nationally threatened species and improving their
conservation status will not be supported.
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Table 2:
will be assessed. All assessment criteria are weighted equally.

Assessment criteria against which Applications for Green Army Round Two

Selection Criteria

Considerations

Selection Criterion 1.

The proposed Project will deliver
sustained environment and/or
heritage conservation outcomes.

Assessment against this criterion will consider the extent to which the proposed
Project:

s includes activities focused on reducing the loss of natural habitats,
degradation and fragmentation; protecting and conserving Matters of
Mational Enviranmental Significance, including World Heritage Areas, Ramsar
wetlands, national heritage etc., and reducing the number of nationally
threatened species and improving their conservation status.

Note: As per Section 1.2, proposed activities must contribute to Australia’s
international obligations, or be directed towards protecting and conserving Matters
of National and Environmental Significance as identified in part 3 of the EPBC Act
(such as World heritage Areas, Ramsar wetlands, national heritage etc.).

*  aligns with the Programme's investment priorities, and demonstrates that
they align with, and strongly contribute to, implementation of relevant
environmental or Conservation Management Flans, strategies or advice.

Note: Relevant plans and strategies may include, but are not limited to, national
strategies such as Australia’s Biodiversity Conservation Strategy, relevant Regional
Natural Resource Management plans and strategies, Water Quality Improvement
Plans, Protected Area Plans of g
Conservation Advices, Recovery Plans, Threat Abatement Plans, and Conservation
Management Plans. The Application should refer to the relevant plan by name
where possible (see the Glossary in Part 12 for further information).

ond Indigenous Sea Country Plans,

* demonstrates a commitment to the ongoing monitoring and management of
the intended environment and/or heritage outcomes once the Green Army
activities have been completed.

Selection Criterion 2.

The proposed Project clearly
demonstrates how it will work
cooperatively with community
groups, and help raise awareness
of environmental and/or heritage
conservation values in the
community.

Assessment against this criterion will consider the extent to which the proposed
Project demonstrates that:

s implementation of the Project will have a clear public benefit; and

s the proposed Project has the support of the local community, such as
traditional owners, the local council, relevant local Indigenous organisations
and/or boards, 'Friends of' groups and local community environment groups,
and will help raise awareness of Projects in the community.

Note: Applicants should be prepared to provide evidence of relevant local
community support upon request from the Deportment. This may be in the form of
letters of support from each relevant local community organisation or traditional
owners.

Selection Criterion 3.

The proposed Project
demonstrates that it will support
the enhancement of Green Army
Participants’ skills and experience
for a range conservation related
activities.

Assessment against this criterion will consider the extent to which the proposed
Project demonstrates:

«  adiverse range of practical activities through which Participants can gain a
variety of useful practical work related experience and skills.

« that they have considered the types of young people who may be able to
participate as a Green Army Participant in the proposed Project and how this
opportunity may be beneficial to them.
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Selection Criterion 4.

For each proposed Project, there
are a set of clearly defined and
feasible activities that clearly
relate to the environment and/or
heritage outcomes being sought
by the potential Project and
represent value for money.

Assessment against this criterion will consider the extent to which the proposed
Project demonstrates that:

e it represents value for public monies. The proposed Project should also detail
the value of any Project Specific Materials sought and demonstrate how these
are eligible to be funded provided.

« itiswell planned, technically feasible and realistic, with clearly defined
resources, activities and timeframes. The proposed Project should also clearly
demonstrate an understanding of the skills required of the Green Army
Participants to successfully deliver the proposed Project, and any specialist
technical support that will be provided by the Project Sponsor in delivering
Project activities.

®  the Applicant has the relevant skills and resources to support delivery of the
proposed Project activities within the designated timeframe.

Selection Criterion 5.

For each proposed Project, the
risks and mitigation strategies are
comprehensive, appropriate and
clearly identified.

Assessment against this criterion will consider the extent to which the proposed
Project demonstrates that:

= the Applicant has past experience in the efficient and effective delivery of
environment and,/or heritage conservation projects.

Note: Any activities related to natural, historic and/or Indigenous heritage works
propased in the Project should be carried out consistent with heritage best practice
and in accordance with the Burra Charter. Activities related ta historic heritage
should be endorsed by an appropriate technical advisor (for example, a heritage
architect).

*  risks associated with achieving the Project and its objectives are
comprehensive and clearly defined and identify appropriate mitigation
strategies for reducing or managing these risks

. Work Health and Safety risks to Participants and the Team Supervisor
associated with the Project have been comprehensive, considered, clearly
defined and that appropriate mitigation strategies for reducing or managing
these risks have been identified.

Note: The management of risk is a high priority for the Australian Government.
Applicants must carefully consider the Project and Waork Health and Safety risks
associated with the proposed Project(s) and clearly articulate these risks and their
mitigation strategies in their Application. Enough detail should be provided to allow
a determination of the level of risk the Project(s) may pose to the Participants and
others who may be involved, and to completing the Project,.

Green Army Round Two Project Guidelines

Page | 21

Page (240)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

PART 6: SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION

An Application for a Project(s) can be lodged by an eligible legal entity. An Application may include one
or more Projects (see Section 2.2). Each Application will be required to meet the eligibility
requirements (see Section 4.1) and should address each of the selection criteria (see Part 5).

6.1 How to apply
Online Applications

The online Application form is available from the Department’s website
(http://www.environment.gov.au/green-army).

Please note that each downloaded Application form has an embedded unique identifier as a means
to exclude duplicate submissions. This means that the same form cannot be submitted for more
than one Application. For each individual Application, a separate Application form will need to be
downloaded from the website.

Please do not email an Application form to the Department, as these may not be accepted. It is
advised that Applicants allow extra time to correct any errors in the Application form prior to
submitting. Please contact the Department well before the Closing Time if any assistance is required to
complete the form or correcting errors.

Hard copy Applications

If the Applicant does not have access to the Internet, a hard copy Application form may be requested
by calling the Green Army Hotline on 1800 780 730.

Please do not print the Application form from the Internet and complete it by hand. Essential
guestions may not be visible in this format. When completing an Application form, limit responses to
the character limit indicated. Any excess text will not be considered.

If submitting a hard copy Application form, the submission date is the date on which the Application is
received by the Department.

Please do not send hard copies of Applications that have already been submitted online. Hard copy
Applications are to be addressed and delivered to:

Post: Courier delivery:
Director Director
Green Army Programme Green Army Programme
Biodiversity Conservation Division Biodiversity Conservation Division
Department of the Environment Department of the Environment
GPO Box 787 John Gorton Building, King Edward
CANBERRA ACT 2601 Terrace

PARKES ACT 2600

Applicants should keep a copy of their Application for their records.
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6.2  Things to know when completing an Application

¥" Applicants must complete all relevant sections of the Application form. Mandatory fields are
denoted by an asterisk (*). Additional information provided by the Applicant but not requested in
the Application form will not be assessed.

v Electronic Applications are preferred. Completed online Applications will be submitted
automatically. Each online Application is given a unique identification number. An automatic
receipt is generated once the online Application is submitted.

v Submission of the Application form online must be considered, approved and submitted by an
authorised officer of the Applicant. Hard copy Applications must be signed and approved by an
authorised officer of the Applicant.

v The Department may, at its sole discretion, extend the Closing Time. Any such extension will be
published on the Department’s website.

¥ Once submitted, changes to an Application can only be made by contacting the Green Army
Hotline. Any requested changes will be considered by the Department however, the decision to
accept or reject the requested change will be made at the Department’s discretion.

6.3 Late Applications

A late Application is an Application that has not been received by the Department before the Closing
Time of 2:00pm AEDT (Canberra time) on Tuesday 9 December 2014 for which an extension has not
been granted.

The Department has no obligation to accept a late Application. Any decision by the Department to
accept or not accept a late Application is at the Department’s absolute discretion and will be final.

If an Applicant believes that their Application may not be received by the Department by the Closing
Time, please contact the Green Army Hotline on 1800 780 730 or in writing at
greenarmy@environment.gov.au. However, for a request for an extension to be considered by the
Department, it must be received by the Department before the Closing Time. The Department is
under no obligation to agree to an extension.
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PART 7: ASSESSMENT OF PROJECT APPLICATIONS
7.1 Assessment process

The Australian Government is committed to ensuring that the assessment process for the selection of
Projects is fair and transparent. The assessment process will be overseen by an independent probity
advisor to ensure processes are robust, transparent and equitable.

Receipt and registration

Once an online Application is submitted, an automatic receipt will be generated. For Applications
lodged in hard copy, Applicants will be notified in writing to confirm the Department’s receipt of the
Application.

Eligibility check

All Applications will be screened by the Department against the eligibility requirements set out in
Section 4.1 of these Guidelines. The Applicant’s response to the declaration requirements in the
Application form will also be considered, as set out in Section 4.2 of these Guidelines.

Assessment

Each Application will be assessed by at least two Australian Government assessors with necessary
expertise and technical specialisation as required for the Project being considered. Each Project will be
assessed against whether it delivers outcomes consistent with the Strategic Objectives (Section 1.2),
the investment priorities (Section 5.1) and the selection criteria (Section 5.2). This will include an
assessment of the volume and type of Project Specific Materials, against the proposed value, as
detailed in the Application form and whether they are eligible. Additional advice may be sought by the
assessors to assist in their assessment, as required. Each Application will be given an overall score.

A Moderation and Business Allocation Panel will then consider the assessed Applications and provide
advice to the Department. The Moderation and Business Allocation Panel will be independently
chaired and may include representatives of Australian Government agencies. Advice may also be
sought from Service Providers.

The Moderation and Business Allocation Panel may consider Applications in the context of:

s Constitutional risk to the Programme, including alignment with national and international
obligations

s gutcomes of the Green Army Round One

e commitments made by the Australian Government

s the geographic distribution of proposed Projects

e the balance of Project types

e the Programme budget

e the balance of organisation types

e the merit of individual Projects within multi-Project Applications

o the overall value for money of the proposed Projects, including the value of Project Specific
Materials being sought
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+ the timing and duration of Projects

s the feasibility of delivering Projects relative to the capacity of the Service Providers.

For multi-Project Applications, information about each Project within the Application will be
considered when assessing the Application. The Moderation and Business Allocation Panel may
recommend that only certain Projects within a multi-Project Application be supported.

In making recommendations on the suitability of Projects for support through the Programme, the
Moderation and Business Allocation Panel and/or the Department may determine a value, type or
volume of Project Specific Materials that is below or different to that requested by the Project
Sponsor. This determination may take into account the nature of the Project, and the other
contributions to be provided by or on behalf of the Applicant, including in comparison with other
Projects.

The Moderation and Business Allocation Panel will also determine the notional allocation of Projects to
Service Providers. This will include consideration of the extent to which Project Sponsors have been
engaging Service providers in the development of the proposed Project.

All assessors and members of the Moderation and Business Allocation Panel will be required to sign
conflict of interest declarations, keep them up to date, and comply with the Australian Public Service
Code of Conduct.

The Department may contact Applicants during the assessment process to seek clarification about the
Application (for example where the information provided in the Application is ambiguous or where
contradictory statements are made). The Department reserves the right to accept or disregard
additional information provided by the Applicant and will not allow responses which materially
improve or amend an Applicant’s original Application.

The Department reserves the right to, at its absolute discretion, exclude from further consideration
those Applications that do not contain sufficient information on which to make an assessment.

Selection and notification

Following the deliberations of the Moderation and Business Allocation Panel, recommendations for
supported Projects will be made to the Minister for the Environment by the Department. The Minister
for the Environment will make the final decision on the Projects to be supported through the
Programme. For multi-Project Applications, the Minister may choose to approve selected Projects
within that Application.

The Minister’s decision on the selection of successful Projects will be final. All successful and
unsuccessful Applicants will be notified in writing of the outcome of assessment. Applicants will be
able to receive feedback on their Application from the Department. Details of successful Projects will
also be listed on the Department’s website at www.environment.gov.au, once Applicants have been
informed.
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PART 8: SUCCESSFUL PROJECTS
8.1 Agreement with a Service Provider

Once an Application (or part thereof) has been approved by the Minister for the Environment, the
Department will provide information about the approval to Service Providers. The Department will
also notify the Applicant of the outcome.

The relevant Service Provider will liaise with the Project Sponsor to determine Project specific details.
Before the Project can commence, the Service Provider and the Project Sponsor will be required to
negotiate a Project Agreement which sets out their respective roles and responsibilities in the delivery
of the Project. Where an organisation partners with one or more other organisations, one organisation
(a legal entity) must take overall responsibility for the Project, as a Project Sponsor, and be able to
enter into a Project Agreement with the Service Provider.

The Project Agreement will be a legally enforceable agreement and both parties will be legally
responsible for ensuring all of their obligations under the terms and conditions of the agreement are
met,

Project Sponsors will be required to:

s enterinto a Project Agreement with the relevant Service Provider setting out (amongst other
things):

o the Project details, including work schedule and details of training to be undertaken

o resources to be provided by the Service Provider (that is the basic tools and Project
Specific Materials) and any resources to be provided by Project Sponsor required to
undertake the Project

o arisk management plan including risk management strategies, roles and
responsibilities

o Work Health and Safety requirements (see Section 2.6)
o compliance with relevant laws, regulations and policies
o the requirement for Participant criminal history checks to be obtained where required

* work with the Service Provider in the development of Project specific Work Health and Safety
plans, particularly in relation to the provision of a safe work environment (for example, by
considering the presence of asbestos, the use of specialised equipment or including safe
access to the site where work is being carried out, where they have control of this)

« before commencement of a Project, ensure that all necessary planning, approvals and/or
permits are in place, including the written consent of the relevant traditional owners or
appropriate Indigenous organisations where activities may directly affect Indigenous sites,
places, values or communities

o facilitate a safe work environment, including safe access to the site where work is being
carried out, where they have control of this, or facilitate this where a third party (such as a
land manager) is involved
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* ensure that any equipment provided {other than that provided by the Service Provider) for use
in the Project is in good working order and meets necessary safety, performance and servicing
standards

* hold and maintain relevant insurance for their organisation (e.g. public liability and products
liability insurance)

« facilitate the delivery of the Project in collaboration with the Service Provider and support a
positive Participant experience, including with regard to Participant training and skills
development opportunities, and facilitate local community support for, and engagement in,
the Project as appropriate

* provide a short end-of-Project survey detailing Project Priorities and the experience of
engaging in the Programme.

An approved Project must not commence before the Project Sponsor and Service Provider have
entered into the Project Agreement. Applicants can seek further details about the Project Agreements
via the Service Providers to inform the development of the Application.

8.2 Promotion and publicity

Project Sponsors will be required to acknowledge Australian Government support. Any signage or
publications related to the Project must contain an acknowledgement as reasonably required by the
Department.

The Australian Government reserves the right to publicly disclose information about successful
Projects.
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PART 9: RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
9.1 Rights and responsibilities of the Applicant
General obligations

It is the responsibility of the Applicant to:

e fully and properly inform themselves of the requirements of the Programme, these Guidelines,
and the requirements of the Application process

e ensure that their Application is complete and accurate, as the Department is not obliged to
request additional or missing information

* ensure their Application is received by the Department before the Closing Time

e identify any information contained within their Application, which they consider should be
treated as confidential and provide reasons for the request (noting the Department will not be
in breach of any confidentiality obligations where disclosure is required as authorised in
Section 9.3

* keep a copy of their Application and any attachments for their records

+ after submitting their Application, inform the Department of any changes to their
circumstances, which may affect their Application or their eligibility under the Programme.

Conflict of interest

Applicants are required to declare, in writing to the Department, where any actual, apparent, or
potential conflict of interest exists or might arise in relation to their Application that may impact on it,
the proposed Project(s), or any Project Agreement it may enter into with a Service Provider. A conflict
of interest is any circumstance in which the Project Sponsor or any of the Project Sponsor’s personnel
has an interest (whether financial or non-financial) or an affiliation that affects, will affect, or could be
perceived to affect, the Project Sponsor’s ability to perform the Project(s), or its obligations under any
agreement, fairly and independently.

A conflict of interest may exist, for example, if the Applicant or any of its personnel:

s has a relationship (whether professional, commercial or personal) with a party who is
able to influence the Application assessment process, such as a Departmental staff
member; or

* has a relationship with, or interest in, an organisation which is likely to interfere with
or restrict the Applicant in carrying out the proposed activities fairly and
independently; or

e has a relationship with, or interest in, an organisation from which they will receive
personal gain as a result of the receipt of support under the Programme.

Risk, costs and expense

The Applicant’s participation in any stage of the Application process, or in relation to any matter
concerning the process, is at the Applicant’s sole risk, cost and expense. The Department will not be
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responsible for any costs or expenses incurred by an Applicant in preparing or lodging an Application
or in taking part in the process or the Programme.

False and misleading information

Applicants are entirely responsible for the accuracy of all information submitted in their Application. If
Applicants knowingly provide inadequate, false or misleading information, the Application may be
excluded from the assessment process. Applicants should be aware that the giving of false or
misleading information is a serious offence under the Criminal Code Act 1995 (Cth).

If an Applicant discovers any material discrepancy, ambiguity, inconsistency or error in their
Application, they must immediately bring it to the attention of the Department via the Green Army
Hotline on 1800 780 730 or via email to greenarmy@environment.gov.au.

The Department may request further information from an Applicant and allow an Applicant to remedy
any discrepancy, ambiguity, inconsistency or error in an Application. The Department reserves the
right to accept or disregard clarification information provided by an Applicant, and will not consider
clarification information that materially improves or amends an Applicant’s original Application.
Projects may be terminated if it is identified that false or misleading information was provided in an
Application.

9.2 Rights and responsibilities of the Australian Government
The Australian Government is committed to ensuring:

« fairness and impartiality: Applicants will be treated equally and have the same opportunity to
access information and advice

* consistency and transparency of process: Applications will be evaluated in a systematic
manner against explicit predetermined selection criteria

e security and confidentiality: the processes adopted for receiving and managing Applicant
information will ensure the security and confidentiality of information, as appropriate

* identification and resolution of potential conflicts of interest: staff involved in the Application
and assessment process are required to declare and address any actual, potential or perceived
conflict of interest prior to providing any advice or assessment

s circumstances for waiving/amending criteria or process: the Australian Government is
committed to ensuring that the Programme is transparent and in accordance with published
Guidelines. The Australian Government, however, reserves the right to amend these
Guidelines by whatever means it may determine at its absolute discretion and will, where
possible, provide reasonable notice of these amendments. The Government also reserves the
right to vary, suspend or terminate the assessment process at any time and at its absolute
discretion.

The Department will not accept responsibility for any misunderstanding arising from the failure by an
Applicant to comply with these Guidelines, or arising from any discrepancies, ambiguities,
inconsistencies or errors in their Application.
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9.3  Confidentiality and privacy

Applicants must identify any information contained within their Application, which they consider
should be treated as confidential and provide reasons for the request.

The Department will only consider a request for confidentiality where:
» the information to be protected is identified in specific rather than global terms
s the information is by its nature confidential and
o disclosure would cause detriment to the parties concerned.

The Department is subject to the legislative and administrative accountability and transparency
requirements of the Australian Government, including disclosure to the Parliament and its
Committees. Notwithstanding any obligation of confidentiality, the Department may disclose, or allow
at any time the disclosure of, any information contained in or relating to any Application:

s toits advisers, employees or internal management for purposes related to the Application and
assessment processes, including to evaluate or otherwise assess Applications and manage any
resultant arrangements

e tothe responsible Minister

s inresponse to a request by a House or a Committee of the Parliament of the Commonwealth
of Australia

® within the Department, or with another agency, where this serves the Australian
Government’s legitimate interests

* where the information is authorised or required by law to be disclosed, noting that
information submitted to the Australian Government is subject to the Freedom of Information
Act 1982 (Cth) and its requirements

» where the information is already in the public domain otherwise than due to a breach of any
relevant confidentiality obligation by the Australian Government.

In submitting an Application, Applicants consent to the Department using the information submitted
for the above mentioned purposes, for administering, monitoring and evaluating the Programme and
any other incidental or related purpose.

Applicants should be aware that if they are successful, the Department may publish information on its
website about the Project Sponsor, including but not limited to:

» the name of the person or entity receiving support under the Programme
e the title and purpose of the Project(s)
e the term and location of the Project(s).

By submitting an Application, the Applicant consents to publication of the above information by the
Department if they are granted support through the Programme.
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The Department will store and use the personal information collected by it in compliance with its
obligations under the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth). Applicants may access or correct personal information by

either emailing the Department at greenarmy@environment.gov.au or sending a letter to the
Department’s postal address.
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PART 10: ENQUIRIES AND COMPLAINTS

All enquiries will be handled consistent with the Department’s Service Charter 2014-16, available from
the Department’s website at www.environment.gov.au.

If an Applicant is dissatisfied with the way their Application has been handled by the Department, the
Applicant can lodge a complaint by contacting the Department via

Email:
greenarmy@environment.gov.au

Postage:
Green Army Programme
Biodiversity Conservation Division
Department of the Environment
GPO Box 787
Canberra ACT 2601

The complaint will be managed in line with the Department’s Complaints Management Policy. The
Department is committed to consistent, fair and confidential handling of complaints and to resolving
complaints as quickly as possible. Feedback and complaints will be handled impartially and in a
confidential manner.
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PART 11:  CONTACT DETAILS

For more information about the Programme, or questions about the Application process, please
contact us via:

Green Army Hotline:
1800 780 730

Email:
greenarmy@environment.gov.au

Postage:
Green Army Programme
Biodiversity Conservation Division
Department of the Environment
GPO Box 787
Canberra ACT 2601

To ensure the query is dealt with promptly, please include ‘Green Army Application’ in the subject line
of all emails.
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PART 12:  GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Term Definition

Allowance The allowance paid to Participants for each fortnight, or part thereof, of participation in the Programme.

Applicant An entity that makes an Application. An Applicant may become a Project Sponsor should their Application be awarded.

Application An Application to the Australian Government under Round Two for one or more (up to nine) Projects, to deliver specified conservation

outcomes in accordance with these Guidelines.

Aquatic Ecosystems

Include rivers, streams, swamps, lakes, estuaries, marine systems, and underground aquifers. They have biodiversity values as well as resource
values and provide many services to the environment and the community. The Aquatic Ecosystems Toolkit
(http://www.environment.gov.au/topics/water/commonwealth-environmental-water-office/monitoring-and-evaluation/aquatic-ecosystems)
may be of assistance in identifying the Aquatic Ecosystems of national, regional and local importance.

Australia’s Biodiversity
Conservation Strategy

Information on Australia’s Biodiversity Conservation Strategy can be found here: http://www.environment.gov.au/node/14488.

Australian Pest Animal
Strategy

The Australian Pest Animal Strategy address the undesirable impacts caused by exotic vertebrate animals (mammals, birds, reptiles,
amphibians, and fish) that have become pests in Australia, and to prevent the establishment of new exotic vertebrate pests.

Basic Materials

Basic Materials refers to those materials that will be supplied (and replaced if lost or broken) by the Service Provider to enable Participants to
complete their required activities. Basic materials include:

s safety clothing

s basictools

o first aid kits.

Burra Charter

The Burra Charter and its accompanying guidelines are considered the best practice standard for cultural heritage management in Australia.
More information can be found here: http://australia.icomos.org/publications/charters/.

Closing Time

The time by which Applications must be received by the Department, 2:00pm AEDT (Canberra time) Tuesday 9 December 2014.

Conservation Advices

Conservation Advice provides guidance on immediate recovery and threat abatement activities that can be undertaken to ensure the
conservation of a newly listed threatened species or ecological community under the EPBC Act.

Conservation advice includes practical on-ground activities that can be implemented by local communities, natural resource management
groups or interested individuals, such as landholders. It can also include broader management actions which can be undertaken by
organisations such as local councils, government agencies or non-government organisations, to protect the species or ecological community on
aregional level (http://www.environment.gov.au/topics/biodiversity/threatened-species-ecological-communities/conservation-advices).
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Conservation
Management Plan

A document that sets out what is significant in a place and what policies/strategies are appropriate to allow that significance to be kept in the
future use and development of the place. Further information can be found at:
http://australia.icomos.org/publications/the-conservation-plan/.

Department

The Commonwealth Department of the Environment or any other agency that administers this Programme from time to time.

EPBC Act

The Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cth).

Green Army Team

A team of up to nine Participants and a Team Supervisor working over a period of 20 to 26 weeks to deliver a Project.

Guidelines

These Green Army Round Two Project Guidelines 2014-15.

Indigenous Sea
Country Plan

Indigenous Sea Country Plans help Indigenous communities describe their objectives for the use, conservation and management of sea country
and to work with others to achieve them. There are six prepare Sea Country Plans that seek to marry Indigenous community priorities and
aspirations with those of others with an interest in sea country, including government. Plans are available at:
http://www.environment.gov.au/indigenous/seacountry/

Key threatening
process

A process, listed under the EPBC Act that threatens or may threaten the survival, abundance or evolutionary development of a native species or
ecological community. For more information, see www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/ktp.html.

Matters of National
Environmental
Significance

The matters of national environmental significance identified in Part 3 of the EPBC Act, including:
e world heritage properties
s national heritage places
s wetlands of international significance (under the Ramsar Convention)
o listed threatened species and ecological communities
» migratory species protected under international agreements
* Commonwealth marine areas
o the Great Barrier Reef Marine Park.
For further information about Matters of Environmental Significance see http ://www.environment.gov.au/epbc/what-is-protected.

Moderation and
Business Allocation
Panel

A panel with an Independent Chair that will moderate the assessed Applications, provide recommendations to the Department on Applications
suitable for support through the Programme, and the allocation of projects to Service Providers.

National
Environmental Alert
List

the National Environmental Alert List (the Alert List) is a list of 28 non-native weeds that have established naturalised populations in the wild.
Species were identified for the Alert List based on three criteria:
s posing a high or serious potential threat to the environment

Green Army Round Two Project Guidelines Page |1
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® having limited distribution within Australia at present
e being amenable to successful eradication or containment programmes.

Order

An order for Services made to the Service Provider by the Department in relation to the delivery of one or more Projects.

Participant

A Green Army Participant is an Australian citizen or permanent resident aged between 17 and 24, who is engaged to participate in a Team to
work on a Project delivering environment and/or heritage conservation outcomes within the community.

Participant Agreement

An agreement between the Service Provider and the Participant in relation to the Programme, including provisions about the Allowance and
training.

Programme The Green Army Programme.
Project A Green Army project is an agreed work schedule of 20 to 26 weeks to be undertaken by a Green Army Team.
Project Agreement A written agreement between a Service Provider and the relevant Project Sponsor for each Project setting out their respective rights and

obligations.

Project Specific
Materials

Project Specific Materials refers to those materials that will directly support both the delivery of the environmental objectives of the Project

and be used in an activity being undertaken by the Participants. Project Specific Materials will be provided by the Service Provider in addition to

basic materials in delivery of a Project. The value of the agreed Project Specific Materials to be provided will be detailed in the Project
Agreement,

Project Sponsor

An Applicant who is successful in being awarded the services of a Green Army Team under the Programme.

Protected Area Plans
of Management

A plan setting out the individual needs of each declared Indigenous Protected Area, and usually includes weed and feral animal control, fire
management, work to conserve cultural heritage and setting up infrastructure to manage visitor access.

Public land

Land owned by a government entity or government-related entity, except where such land is leasehold land (that is, the subject of a 99 year
lease or a pastoral lease).

Recovery Plans

Recovery Plans set out the research and management actions necessary to stop the decline of, and support the recovery of, listed threatened
species or threatened ecological communities. The aim of a Recovery Plan is to maximise the long term survival in the wild of a threatened
species or ecological community. A full list of Recovery Plans is available at the Department’s Species Profile and Threats Data Base
http://www.environment.gov.au/topics/biodiversity/threatened-species-ecological-communities/recovery-plans/recovery-plans-made-or

Regional Natural
Resource
Management Plan

A regional plan prepared by the regicnal natural resource management organisations based on community, local and regional consultation.
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Regional Natural
Resource
Management
QOrganisation

Regional natural resource management organisations are based on catchments or bioregions.
A list of natural resource management regions and contacts is provided at: http://www.nrm.gov.au/about/nrm/regions/index.html.

Registered Training
Organisation

An organisation registered by a state or territory training authority or the National VET Regulator to deliver training and/or conduct
assessments and issue nationally recognised qualifications in accordance with the VET Quality Framework. Information about these nationally
recognised qualifications, including skill sets, may be found at www.training.gov.au and/or www.myskills.gov.

Remnant Native
Vegetation

One or more areas of largely intact (structurally and/or compositionally) native vegetation that remains after the removal (usually by clearing)
of parts of a natural area.

Restoration

The restoration or reconstructions of native vegetation to its former species and composition.

Revegetation

The re-establishment of vegetation in areas that have been cleared or highly modified. The mix of plant species may not be the same as that of
the original vegetation.

Service Provider

A legal entity that has entered in to an agreement with the Department to deliver the Programme (or part thereof).

Strategic Objectives

The strategic objectives of the Programme, as set out in Section 1.2 of these Guidelines.

Team Supervisor

A Green Army Team Supervisor is engaged by Service Providers to manage a Green Army Team on a full-time basis.
A Team Supervisor must be over 18 years old, be adequately experienced, and will be primarily responsible for supervising Participants in the
field to carry out activities as part of a Project, manage attendance, Work Health and Safety requirements and field reporting.

Threat Abatement
Plans

These plans provide for the research, management, and any other actions necessary to reduce the impact of a listed key threatening process
on native species and ecological communities. Implementing the Threat Abatement Plan should assist the long term survival in the wild of
affected native species or ecological communities. A list of approved Threat Abatement Plans can be found at:
http://www.environment.gov.au/topics/biodiversity/threatened-species-ecological-communities/threat-abatement-plans/approved-threat

Vulnerable Persons

An individual under the age of 18, or an individual aged 18 years and above who is or may be unable to take care of themselves or is unable to
protect themselves against harm or exploitation by reason of age, illness, trauma or disability, or any other reason.

Water Quality
Improvement Plan

Water Quality Improvement Plans (WQIPs), prepared consistent with the Framework for Marine and Estuarine Water Quality Protection,
among other matters identify the most cost-effective and timely projects for investment by all parties including the Australian Government,
State and Local Governments, and community and environment groups.
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Weeds of National Weeds of National Significance (WoNS) are plant species that have been identified by Australian governments based on their invasiveness,

Significance potential for spread and environmental, social and economic impacts. For further information see:
http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/invasive/weeds/weeds/lists/wons.html

Work Health and In the context of the Programme, protecting the health and safety of workers and other persons while in the workplace from exposure to

Safety hazards and risks, and the terms ‘worker’, ‘workplace” and ‘other persons’ are defined and used in the relevant Work, Health and Safety Laws.

Work Health and
Safety Laws

Applicable work, health and safety statute, regulation, by-law, ordinance or subordinate legislation in force from time to time in the relevant
state or territory.
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8.7 PROPOSED CORPORATE RISK REGISTER SUBMITTED FOR ADOPTION

File No: 8780
Attachments: 1. Draft Corporate Risk Register
2. Draft Corporate Risk Register - Summary
Report
Authorising Officer: Drew Stevenson - Acting General Manager Corporate
Services
Ross Cheesman - General Manager Corporate Services
Author: Kisane Ramm - Risk Management Officer
SUMMARY

The proposed Corporate Risk Register is presented to Council for consideration and
adoption.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Corporate Risk Register, as presented in the attachment to this report, be
adopted.

COMMENTARY

In keeping with legislated requirements and Council’'s overarching Enterprise Risk
Management Framework, Policy and Procedures, the Corporate Risk Register has been
developed for Council’s consideration. This Register documents the risks, accepted by the
Leadership Team, which go beyond the departmental operating risks that have the potential
to impact on Council’s corporate objectives.

BACKGROUND

Under Rockhampton Regional Council’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework, adopted
in June 2013, Council has the responsibility of:

e monitoring the management of risks with a high or very high current risk rating, including
the effectiveness of associated controls, through the review and discussion of quarterly
risk management reports;

o gsatisfying itself that the evaluation of As Low as Reasonably Practicable risks, with an
existing high or very high current risk rating is tolerable;

o gsatisfying itself that risks with lower ratings are effectively managed, with appropriate
controls in place and effective reporting structures; and

e approving major decisions affecting Council’s risk profile or exposure.

The Corporate Risk Register, and the previously presented Departmental Risk Registers,
have been developed to assist Council in meeting its responsibilities.

LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT

The Local Government Regulation 2012, Chapter 5, Section 164 requires...(1) a local
government must keep a written record stating (a) the risks the local government’s
operations are exposed to...; and (b) the control measures adopted to manage the risks.

CONCLUSION

In concluding, this document has been constructed in consultation with Managers from all
departments of Council. It will be presented to Council on a quarterly basis for review. It is
recommended that Corporate Risk Register, as presented in the attachment to this report,
be adopted.
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PROPOSED CORPORATE RISK
REGISTER SUBMITTED FOR
ADOPTION

Draft Corporate Risk Register

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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PROPOSED CORPORATE RISK
REGISTER SUBMITTED FOR
ADOPTION

Draft Corporate Risk Register -
Summary Report

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 2
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25 NOVEMBER 2014

ERM RISK SUMMARY REPORT
Corporate Risk Profile

Risk Rating Summary - Gorporate Services

Corporate Register Risk Rating Summary

1 0

Risk Rating Summary - Community Services

1 ~ 0_0 °
‘ @Very Hign aHign oModerale mLow
[ avoyHgn  eHgh  owosate  mlow Vo High | mHgh  olodets  mlaw
Risk Rating Summary - Office of CEQ Risk Rating Sum-amry - Regional Services
0
0 0
~—
wVery Hah ahigh ohoderate Lo BVery High mHigh DModerate wLon
Risks - 'Very High' and "High'
Risk No. Risk c"rm“.‘ Risk Current Controls R'“.
Rating
1 Council processes and services are provided without due: (7) Established Asset Management plans. [Acoept Risk
recognition of economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for (2) Non-priced based selection criteria included in the tender /  |(ALARP)
money) exposing Council to increased costs, 0ss in reputation lquote assessment process to assist in the value for money
and ratepayer confidence and impacting service delivery, lassessment.
3) Tender evaluation plans with weighted selection criteria
lassessment that does not rely on price as having the highest
lweighting.
(4) Capital Projects evaluation procass includes whole of life
lcycle cost considerations.
(4.2) Fleet asset assessment utilises a whole of life cost model
|as part of the acquisition and operations process.
(5) Long term financial forecasts based around asset
management plans adopted.
8 Identified Disaster Mitigation Strategies not actioned resulting in 2) Identified disaster mitigation strategies implemented where [Treat Risk
increased impactieffect of disaster events on the community possible within disaster management budget
and potential for increased costs to Council in recovery and 2 Appropriate funding opportunities identified and sourced to
restoration costs, implement identified disaster mitigation strategies.
9 Council's financial operations fail to supporl and susiain 1) Council's Long Term Financial Forecast includes forecasts  |Accept Risk
Council's service provision, financial sustainability and the [from asset management plans (ALARP)
community's expectations resulting in revenue shorfalls, 2) Long Term Financial Forecasts are reviewed annually.
increased debt, reduced service levels, loss of reputation and (3) Asset Management Plans reviewed regularly.
community discontent. (4) Finance staif are adequately qualified as per the respective
Pasition Descriptions.
5) Council lobbies other levels of govemment for appropriate
lgrants and subsidies
5) Council financially operates in a surplus position.
(6) Financial controls are monitored. Finance also works closely
ith Internal and External Audit in regards to internal controls.
(7) Project Delivery procedure developed
10 Actions of Council, Councillors or employees that fail to meset 1-4) Policy implemented Treat Risk
the standards of behaviour outlined in the Local Government 3) Controls within Local Government Act and policy.
Act, Council's Code of Conduct and other assaciated policies or (2-3) Training in obligations undertaken
procedures resulting in damage to Council's reputation,
financial loses and regulatory breaches against Gouncil or
individuals.
Risks Requiring Further Treatment (ALL)
Current Risk Resources / | Performance / % Completion
Risk No. Risk Rating Future Risk Control(s) Budget Constraints | Complete Date
2 Non-existent or inadequate business continuity initiatives Moderate 5 [1. Business Continuity to be and used to Constraint - 0% 30/06/2016 |Office of CEO
leading to prolonged service / process disruptions resulting in |draft standardised Sectional BCPs. resources Lack of
adverse community reactions and possible financial loss. |2. Additional continuity plans to be implemented across the required. Resources.
lorganisation.
3. Regular review and testing required.
8 Identified Disaster Mitigation Strategies not actioned resulting in (1) Annual review and report on implementation of disaster Budgets for  [Funding and 50% 01/07/2015  |Regional Services
i i of disaster events on the community mitigation strategies. project specifi
and potential for increased costs to Council in recovery and (2) Forward works program fo be developed for disaster mitigation
restoration costs mitigation strategies to be submitted through Council's project  |strategies.
levaluation and management system (PEMS) process, and far
Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements (NDRRA)
[funding applications.
10 Actions of Council, Councillors or employees that fail to meet (1) Conduct fraud and comruption risk assessment across the Exisiting [ 0% 30/03/2015 |Office of CEO
the standards of behaviour outlined in the Local Govemment lorganisation.
Act, Council's Code of Conduct and other associated policies or
procedures resulting in damage to Council's reputation,
[financial loses and regulatory breaches against Council or
individuals.
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9 STRATEGIC REPORTS

9.1 ANNUAL OPERATIONAL PLAN QUARTER ONE PROGRESS REPORT

File No: 11365
Attachments: 1. Q1 Progress Report and Summary - CEO's
Office

2. Q1 Progress Report and Summary -
Corporate Services

3. Q1 Progress Report and Summary - Regional
Services

4. Q1 Progress Report and Summary -
Community Services

Authorising Officer: Tracy Sweeney - Manager Workforce and Strategy
Ross Cheesman - General Manager Corporate Services
Author: Kerrie Barrett - Coordinator Corporate Improvement &
Strategy
SUMMARY

The 2014/15 operational plan progress report for quarter 1 as at 30 September 2014 is
presented, pursuant to s174(3) Local Government Regulation 2012.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT the 2014/15 operational plan progress report for quarter 1 as at 30 September 2014
be ‘received’.

COMMENTARY

The Operational Plan progress reports for the period 1 July to 30 September 2014 are
attached for Council’s consideration.

The attached performance reports display actual performance against quarterly targets. In
addition, the report includes progress comments as determined appropriate by the
responsible manager. Actual year to date expenditure and revenue has been included for
comparison to the adopted 2014/15 operational budget.

To ensure performance of the 2014/15 Operational Plan KPI's, standardised monthly
departmental reports are now presented to Committee. This ensures that the performance of
each unit is consistent with Council’s strategic direction.

Overall the majority of Corporate Plan activities have been achieved for the quarter. There
are some individual Operational Plan KPI's that have not been met and comments have
been provided in the attachment against those items.

PREVIOUS DECISIONS

The 2014/15 Operational Plan was adopted at the Special Council Meeting on 27 June
2014.

LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT
s174(3) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 states:

The Chief Executive Officer must present a written assessment of the local government’s
progress towards implementing the annual operational plan at meetings of the local
government held at regular intervals of not more than 3 months.

CONCLUSION

The 2014/15 Operational Plan progress report for quarter one as at 30 September 2014 has
been prepared in accordance with legislation.
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ANNUAL OPERATIONAL PLAN
QUARTER ONE PROGRESS REPORT

Q1 Progress Report and Summary -
CEQ's Office

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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General Manager Office of the CEO Summary
Operational Plan Report
1st Quarter

Directorate

* Activities within the Directorate have generally been directed towards ensuring the
Departmental service deliverables and standards are met. A significant amount of
resources were committed to the Community Cabinet meeting at Frenchville State
School. Council has received positive responses from the State Government for the
North Side Flood Mitigation project and the Mount Archer Activation Master Plan.

e Budget is predominantly on track however some transfers to or from other areas of
Office of CEO budget are required at the budget revision, as a necessary
consequence of the new Regional Promotions unit coming on board, and budget
lines still needing to be created for those units.

Economic Development
e Departmental focus in Economic Development for the quarter has been on
formalising the Regional Interest Group and establishing expenses reimbursement
processes and governance frameworks to support the Resource Industry Executive
liaison staffing resource commitment to the group to produce greater operational
efficiencies and improved targeted area outcome effectiveness.

e Budget is on track

¢ Despite the recent resizing of a number of major resources industry businesses, we
are still seeing positive signs from the industry that warrants our continued
investment into this arena.
Internal Audit

¢ Internal Audit facilitated the Audit & Business Improvement Advisory Committee
meeting on 10 September 2014. The Chief Audit Executive has provided the Internal
Audit Plan to the CEO and work is progressing to finalise acceptance of the plan.

e Budget is on track

Governance Support

* The Governance Support unit is tracking adequately. There have been some staffing
disruptions due to staff changes however as a whole the unit is on target.

* There have been a number of community engagements undertaken in the first
quarter, all of which tracked on target. The unit continues to deliver services in
accordance with program and customer service response timelines with statutory and
regulatory requirements being met and maintained.

* Budget is predominantly on track. Some transfers to or from other areas of Office of
CEO budget are required at the budget revision, as a necessary conseguence of new
units coming on board but budget lines still needing to be created for those units.

Page (266)



PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

Regional Promotion
* This unit was formally established in September 2014.
* There will need to be a transfer of allocated budget from Office of CEO to Regional
Promotion budget lines, which has not occurred in quarter 1 but will happen in

Quarter 2 to correct the current budget lines, as identified in the Directorate and
Governance Support section of this report.

Evan Pardon
Chief Executive Officer
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CEO DIRECTORATE

lion Budget Summary
Budget Adopted Actual YTD
[Operating Revenue 91 $91
[Operating Expenses $1.761,128 $179.766
[Capital Revenue £0
[Capital Expenses 30 30

ICORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Risk of / Delay

On Taget

Anead af Target

\Complete

1. Provide lsadership, corporate aversight and strateqic direction

CEO Directorate - The Office of the GEO directorate s led by Council's Chisf Executive Officer wha is responsible for
Imanaging the Council in & way that promatas: the sffective. efficient and economical management of public resources,
loxcotionce in service defuery, continual improvement, responsiveness to the Councils policies and priorties and
lostabiishing and impiemanting goals and practices in accordance with the policies and pririties of the Gouncil. The
lairectorate cansists of thise units, Govemance Support, Ecanomic Development and Internal ALgit.

Incomplete (Q4 cniy)

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
|Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100%

lCompliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100

|safety, risk and other legislative matters

IAchievement of Gapital Projects within adepted budget and approved 100%

[imeframes.

|Achievement of Operational Projects within adapted budget and 100%

lapproved timetrames

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's adopted 100%

[Service Levels
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‘GOVERNANCE SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND

[Section Budget Summary R Hisk of Incampletion / Dalay

Budget Adopted Actual YTD QK [On Target
[Operating Revenue $24.000 58,547 AT |Anead of Target
[Operating Expenses $3.588,152 814,994 [+ [Complete
[Capital Revanus 50 30 | Incompiete {Q4 only)
[Capital Expenses 50 $0
ICORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

1. Increase the reach and consistency of key branding and assaciated taglines for the Rockhampton Region

2. Work collabaratively with other Cauncil departments to increase awareness of Council's services

[3. Use a variety of communication channels to reqularly and accurately deliver Council messages and
maintain a positive reputation

[+ Increase staft familiarisaiion and compliance with the Gommunity Engagement Palicy, Framework and
Procedure across Council

[5. Wark collabaratively with other Cauncil depariments to deliver campalgns which encourage responsibla
Iresident behaviour

6. Provide professional agenda management services

7. Manage relevant civic events

8. Facilitate Councillor interactions with censtituents

9. Manage investigations as authorised by the GEQ in with ion and Cauncil's G
[Management Process

[Governance - manages the Cownci's commillas masting prOcesses CONlnG raperis 1o creals agendas for e Gounci
landt Gommittes mestings, minuts taking for those meetings and distibution of the mesting action shests, Counciliors
isceetianaey Ninds, canporate travel srangements, execulive administrative support 1o the Mayor, Couniliors and Chig!l
Exccutive Officer, Counclior's cuslemer service requests and disry management, publc commumcations, media
|reigases, marketing activitiss, civic svants, i , i action and compiaint
|reterais 1o seate goversmant depanments.

2121812181212 (%|%

I[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME

ICompliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR

lCompliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including s .

|safety, risk and cther legislative matiers °

Ichievement of Capital Projects within adepted budgel and approved 100% atr 100% 100% Delivery of reception area finalised. This is the only Capital Project
within Gavernance Support for year

lAchievement of Operational Projects within adopled budget and

lappraved timeframes 100% arh L 1onse

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's adopted

lServics Levels 100% QTR 100% 1007
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AUDIT SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND
Budget Summary R |Risk of / Delay
Budget Adopted Actual YTD CK__[On Target
[Operating Revenug $0 $0 AT |Anead of Target
[Operatng Expenses §255.361 51,399 [¥] (Complats
[Capital Revenue 30 30 | Incomplete {Q4 only)
ICapital Expenses $0 $0

ICORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES
1. Provide assurance, consulting and assigned investigation services

2. Provide independent reporting to an audit committee

3. Facilitate an audit advisory committee of Council

(0L2) abed

[Infernal Audit - underlake sk based review of all management achiity, syslams, isks and processes; ndspendent and
lobjective funbiased) assessment and review by highly quatiied and certified stalf based on professional internal audit
fand other] standards; independent reporing, directly fo an audlt commites of Councll, which includes exfernal
lcammittee: members: protection of the public interest; professional consulting (non-audit achvities) services; Sssurance
{sudt activities) services In-house; fraud related Services and nsk managemeant related services.

I[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
|ICompliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR Mot relavant to Internal Audit Linit
[Compliance with statutary and regulatory requiraments including 100 atR
lsafety, risk and other legislative matiers y
Iachievement of Gapital Projects within ad d budget and a aved

! pial Projects wilhin adopted budg pRr 100% atR NA 0% [Not relevant to Internal Audit Uit
[imeframes.

at Of Projects within adapted budget and T

L praved limetrames 100% QTR NIA 0% Mot relevant to Internal Audit Unit
Delivary of services and activities in accordance with Council's adapted
lservice Lovels 100% QTR 100% 100%

VAN3OV I3 LLININOD FDIAYTS ® IONVINHO4H3d

102 Y39INIAON S¢




(TL2) abed

__--/-\_/
Rockhampton
Regional *"Council

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SECTION
Budget Summary

Budget Adopted Actual YTD
[Operating Revenus $0 $0
[Operating Expenses §548.192 $153 424
ICapital Revenue 50 50
ICapilal Expenses $0 $0
ICORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Risk of ion / Delay
On Targest
|Anead of Targat

[Complete

lolz[g|»

1. Acl as a Councll ambassador to support development of key projects acress the Region, n line with
ICouncil's strategic direction

Incomplete (Q4 cniy)

2. Assist industry and developers with business expansion within the Region and advacate associated
benefits

|3 Collaborate with government agencies to identify and foster the development of new industries in the
Rﬂiuﬂ

l4. Collaborate with Capricarn Enterprise 1o ensure the delivery of services to promate the tourist potential
|and economic development of our Region

5. Assist pers through the it precess to facilitate economic growth

P - hangles Councils economic development interests; present fopics of parficular inferest,
[deveiopment of the GIA, relafions with the resources seclar, Fitzroy Agricultural Corridar and tvoadbang rollout; also

lanswers devsiopment questions and hejos thrcugh the process.
IKEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
Performance against operational standards is shown, as na customer
|Compliance wilh Cuslamer Sarvice Requests 100% QTR service requests relevant for Economic Development Unit
ICompliance with statutory and regulatery requirements including 100% aTR
[satety, risk and other legislative matters °
T Tal 15 Wil e T
crievement o ' rojects within acep udget and approve 1007 QTR No Capital Projects for Economic Development Unit
IAchievement of Operational Projects within adopled budget and
lapproved limeframes 100 QTR s 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's adopted
lservica Levels 100% QTR 100% 100%
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General Manager Corporate Services Summary
Operational Plan Report
1st Quarter

The first quarter results, whilst still early in the reporting period, has not highlighted any
major deviations or concerns. Throughout the first quarter the monthly performance reports
presented to Council and Committees have fracked performance. Corporate Plan activities,
at this stage of the year are also tracking on target.

Comments have been added throughout the report against KPI's that may be not quite at
expected levels.

Ross Cheesman
General Manager
Corporate Services
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
CORPORATE SERVICES

CORPORATE & TECHNOLOGY SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND
Section Budgel Summary R Risk ol Incomplation © Delay
Budget Adopted Actual YTD oK On Target

Operating Revenue 1,226,548 $302,063 AT Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses 9,365,517 $3,444,530 G |Complate
Capital Revenua 6,575,000 $1,206,519 | Q4 only)
Capital Expenses 3,773,254 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES ai Qi-a2 Qai1-03 Qi-04
1. Champion 2 customer servica cullure thal complies with Cauncil's stalulry ooligations and Gustomer oK
Service Charter
2. Deliver fleet and plant asset management in an efficient operating environment OK
3. Efficiently manage and oplimise wse of Council's property partiolio oK
4. Manzge and effectively administer Council’s contract and tendering, inventary and purchasing precesses in oK
accordance with relevant legislative requirements and organisational needs
5. Strategically plan and actively manage Gouncil's infarmation systems ta mael Council's needs oK
6. Ensure Counci's practices are in ance with legislative, policy obligations and oK
(Counci's Recordkesping Charter
7. Ensure Gouncil operations are perfarmed considering and addressing all polential fisk ooounences io -
Council and the community
Customer Service - The st point of contael far cuslamers with Want-counter Services n Aoekhamplon, Gracemere

N Mount Morgan, and a cal centre based i Rockhamplon. Customar Service also provides QGAP (QLD
Governmant Agancy Pragram services and faciitaras park suems and hall hookings.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 a2 as Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% aTR 100% 100%
(Compliance with statutary and regulatory requirements including .
saaly, risk and other lsgislative matlers 100% OTR 100% 100%
m’:;;::m of Capilal Projects within adopted budgel and spproved 100% QTR A 0%  |No plannedibudgeted capital projects for this unit,
Achievernent of Operational Projects within adopted budget and
approved tmeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Dalivery of services and aclivilies in accordance with Council's .
adopted Service Lavels 100% OTR 100% 100%
Procurement & Logistics - Engures wall govems and discipined rocurament actiiies and inventory management
|oracnices which comply with legisiative and policy req wiilist mesting i nesds now and info the
luture. The Uit consists of four Sub-mits sing Comypl Accounts Payable; Contracs &

Tenders. and Logistics (3 x Storss) undertaking centralised purchasing for FRW, Givil Ops and RAWA,
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 [+7] Q3 [*T] ANNUAL COMMENTS
(Compliance with Customer Service Requesls 100% oTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including "
salely, risk and other legislative matlers 100% oTR 100% 100%
Achi ital Proj hi
prchievement of Capial rojects wihin adopted budgs! an approved 100% oA A 0% [No plannediudgeled capital projects for this unil.
Achigvement of Oparational Projects within adepted budget and
approved tmeframes 100% GTR 100% 100%
Dalivery of services and activities in accordance with Counci's .
adopted Service Lavels 100% oTR e R
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
CORPORATE SERVICES

information Systems - A combined unit far and recoms serices
information Testnoiogy Services' rofs s lo acquire, marage and support information and communication fechnology
reiated squipment and services for the organisation. Recards Managemant aversses and assists with the management
of Gouncl recovds and is respansible for ansunng that Cowncil's offisial records are captured and managed in a way
that improves business processes and fufils lagistative requirements. Records slso coominates he RTT ( IP
jurocesses.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 a2 a3 ANNUAL COMMENTS
(Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%

(Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including

saaly, risk and other lsgislative matlers 100% QTR 100% 100%

[hckcnament o Gephal Prejscks witin ednpten bucel and approved 100% atR 100% 100% (482 of capital budget comminted for plannsd IT projects pragrar.
Achievemnent of Operational Projects within adopted budget and

aporoved tmeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%

Delivery of sarvices and aclivilles in accordance with Council's

adopted Service Lavels 100% GTR 100% 100%

Property & Insurance - Managemesnt of Council ownad ang confroiied propsries by ensuring Gounci's and the

communiy's intevests are sppropvistely risk managed fhrough the negotistion and establishment of formal lease

larrangsments. Responsitle for the eifactive and sticient managament of the day do-day insurance claims processing;

including fiaising with Council's inSUTers, ASSESSoiS, repsir Sgents and claimants. Land resumphons, Goquisihons and

|sanios, Entorpise risk managamant,

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 a2 a3 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customar Service Requesls 100% QTR 100% 100%

(Compiliance with stafutary and regulatory requirements including

safety, risk and other legislative matters 100%, aTa i i

[ eoment of Capal Projecte within adopted budgel and approved 100% aTh 100% 100%  |Planned land sales progressing on schedule.
AchievemsnT :firaratiunal Projects within adepted budget and 100% aTR 100% 100%

Delivery ol services and aclivilles in accordance with Council's

adopted Service Lavels 0% 4R Lo Lo

Fleat - Flsst Sarvices has i and ity of all fiest, plant and equipment asssts abovs

ihe 55,000 capitalisation threshold and ¢ or 2l assets requinng ragisation with Queensiand Transport. Thi inciudes:

capital and recurrant burigeting, renewal and aintenance planning, and disposal ensuring fit for purpose, safe,

reiiaie and cost eftective fieer, plant and equipment, enabiing Counsi to defiver an oplimum iavel of service. Council

has a Fleat Asset base comprising just over B00 assets with a replacement value of approximately $52.8M.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 az2 a3 ANNUAL COMMENTS
(Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%

(Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including

sataly, risk and other lsgislative mattars 100% oTR %D e

o - - -

“;elre[:;rg:m of Capital Projects within adepted budget and approved 100% oTR 100% 1008  [375% of capital budget commilted for planned Fleet renewsl program.
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and

aperovad tmeframas 100% QTR 100% 100%

Delivery of sarvices and activities in accordance with Councir's

adopted Service Lavels 100% QTR 100% 100%
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CORPORATE SERVICES

AIRPORT SECTION
Section Budget Summary
Budget Adopted Actual YTD
Cperating Aevenue $16.107.084 $3,782,000
Operating Experses §16.107.085 53,770,346
Capital Revenue 30 $86,364
Capilzl Exparses 5,034,628 30

[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES LEGEND
A Risk of Ir i Delay
OK__[On Target
AT [Ahaad of Targal
[4 Complate
1 104 only)

@ [ @102 | o103 | Q104 |

CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

1. Operate and maintain the Rockhampton Airport to mest the transport needs of the regional community and oK | ‘ | |
in @ manner that provides a il reurn,
Aitport Unil i a commercialised business unit and the key objeclive is to operate a profifable and fnancially
sustainable siport business that is resilient and prograssive thvough ever changing times. The aitport main achvities

re e core Businass, aernalical, which invalves managing the airside of he arpor inciuding (Ne ruways, axiways
and aprons in a safe and efficient mannsr. The landside componsnt of the business involves the commercial actiilies
raiated to management of the fevminal precinat including the tenmingl and Gar parking operations as weil as propety
lesses an ai
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME at a2 03 Q4| ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and requiatory requirements including
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% TR LA i
Achievement of Capital Projects within adepted budget and approved 100% otR 760 6% 195 of 25% in Q1 due to lesaurcmg"le!ldelsfqmlalwm\s for work/additional

|scope of works and requirsd
Achievernent of Operational Projects within adeptad budgel and .
aporoved timeframes oo o Toee o
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's . a3 7 ol 8 KPI's achieved. Passenger numbers continua lo decline dus o
adopted Service Lavels % QTR 8% |general economic condifions
FINANCE SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND
Section Budget Summary R Risk of Ir ion ¢ Delay
Budgel Adopted Actual YTD OK__|on Taraet

Operating Revenue $455,660 §137.985 AT |Ahead of Target
Resourcing Revenue $66,677,783 §25,768,096 C Cormplete
Operating Expenses §5,841,880 §1,178,304 ] 104 only)
Resourcing Expenses $25,604,506 §$6,198,205
Capital Revenua 30 0
Capital Experses 50 0
[Resourcing Capital Revenue 30 0
Resourcing Capital Expanses $1.000,000 $0

al ai-02 01-03 | Gi-04

1. Provide an Asssl Services Saction locusing on a clear communicalive process and accurale dala.

Ok

2. Provide professienal accounting and financlal management funclions and ensure slalulery compliance s
met.

oK

3. Manage the Council rating function in aspects of maintenance, levying and collection of rate revenue for
Courncil.

oK

4. Manzge the treasury functions of Council to ensure effective and optimised cash management as well as
with taxation.

oK

5. Provide accurale Geographical Infarmation System (GIS) and spacial data infermatian

oK
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
CORPORATE SERVICES

|assers & GiS - tansge, suppon and develsp Council's corporste GIS Sysiem ensuring records are acourslely
maintained and users’ needs ar supporied. In addition the systems are confinually developsd for opfimisation.
Provides an inferface fo custodians of non-current assefs fo enswre Assst Registers and Asset Management Plans are
maintained, The information is wsed for futurs investment decisions and legislative compliance,

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 Q2 [+%] ANNUAL COMMENTS
(Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% NA 0% No ralevant Gustomer Service requests for this unit.
Compliance with statutary and requlatory requirements including

salely, risk and other legislative matters 100% ara 10ee e

m:ife';r;:m af Capital Projects within adapted budget &nd spproved 100% aTth NiA 0% No capilal projeles relevant for this unit.
|Achieverment of Operalional Projects within adopled budgel and

pproved tmelreres 100% TR 100% 100%

Delivery of sarvices and aclivilles in accordance with Council's , . . )
acopted Service Lavels 100% QTR NiA 0%  [Norelevant adopted servics levels for this unit.
Financial Systems - Manage, SUEEON AN GEVEIIE COuncils COPOTAe IRGNGIAl S FEIBm Brsuing Mnancial (Coms e

|accurately maintained and users' nesds are supportsd. In adtiion the systems ars contnually developed for

|optimisation._________________

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME al a2 a3 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customar Service Requests 100% aThR NA 0% No relevant Gustomer Service requests for this unit.
Compiiance with statutory and regulatary requirements inclucing

salaly, risk and other legislative matlers 0t arA QU 1005

'?ﬁ:':;fﬂn;:m of Capital Frojects wihn acopted budgal and approved 100% QTR NiA 0% No capital projects refevant for this unit.
Achievemnent of Operalional Projects within adopted budget and

approvad tmelranms 100% QTR 100% 100%

Delivery of sarvices and aclivilies in accordance with Council's "

acopted Service Levels 100% QTR NA 0% No relevant adopted service levels for this unit.
[Revente & Accounting - Frovides the oversight of the financial governance of Council Tis includes Long Tevm

Financial Forecasting, Budget Preparation and Financial reporting within legislaiive requirsments whilst mesiing the

organisational needs in this regard, The 4 inlerrelaled subunits mlated ars Financial Accounting, Gommercial

Accounting, Treasury and Rates.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 a2 a3 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%

Compliance with statulary and regulatary requirements including

safely, risk and other legislative matters 100% TR 1D il

Achiavernent of Capital Projects within adepted budget and approved 100% oTR A o o capital projects relevant for this unit
Achigvemnent of Operational Projects within adepted budget and

aporoved tmeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's

adopled Service Levels 100% OTR 100% 100%
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WORKFORCE & STRATEGY SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND
Section Budgel Summary Gl Risk of Ir ion / Delay
Budget Adopted Actual ¥TD OK__[On Target

(Operating Ravenue $40,500 $22,810 AT [Ahead of Target
(Operating Expenses $3.827.683 §739,832 [+ Complate
Capital Revenuws 0 50 I 134 only)
Capital Expenses 0 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES [*1] @1-Q2 | 01-03 | Q1-04
1. Implement and oversea a compliant safety management system oK
2. Provide rehabilitation and injury management suppor services oK
3. Manage Council's training and development programs oK
4. Provide human resource and indusinial relations advisory support services OK
5. Provide payrall services ta all of Council ok
6. Manage Council's strategic business planning function oK
7. Administer an appropriale corporate governance program oK
Safety & Training - provides specialist advisory services fo sV departments of Counc for the functions of Workplace
Health & Safely, Training and Injury Management,
[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 Q2 Q3 [*T] ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% (9] 100% 100%
Compliance with statulary and regulatary requirements including
salety, risk and oiher legislative matters 100 TR Touse 1005
fichiavament of Capilal Projacts wihin adapted budgel and agproved 100% oTR NiA % |No Capital Projects are relevant for Salety & Traiing.
Achievermnent of Operational Projects within adepted budgel and
proved fmekames 100% atA 100% 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's
adopted Service Levels 100% TR fide 100%

7 TGS - provides Hormer Resources, NOUsIal FeVEhons, yestgaion and Dayrol Services oross e
organisahon.
The Human Resources Sub Unit s focused on delvering quallly consultancy services to all areas of Coungil; enabling
the schisvement af objectives, whils maintaining compliance with relevant legisianon, poiicies and procedures snd
uptoigiing the Counci’s values,
The Imdustria! Rslations Sub Unit provides an infsmal igation services and AwardA . while
managing te reltionship between Councl and the Crme and Miscondust Commission for malter of & more Serious
naturs.
The Payrel Sub U is MEpansibile or e provision af an accurals and IMely payrol service.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME al a2 a3 [} ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Custorner Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
salety, risk and oiher legislative matters 100% ar 0o 1005
:;:'5;;::"1 af Capital Projects within adapted budgel and spproved 100% aTh NiA 0% No Capital Projects are relevant for Workforce Relations.
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and
acoroved tmetramas 100% QTR 100% 100%

. 19 positions were recruited in Q1. 3 were not completed within the 30

Delivery af sarvices and aclivilies in accardance with Caundirs 100% aTh 1% 91%  [days. These delays were due to Criminal History Checks, applicant

adopted Service Levels

|adviging available start date and unsuitability of interviewed applicants.
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
CORPORATE SERVICES

Corporate improvement & Stralegy - provides lagi Compiant planming and
(ramewonks thal are fully integraled infe Cacnels and stratogios a
hassd organisation.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 a2 a3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Custarmer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
safety, risk and other lsgislative matters 100% L 100% 100%
ﬁil'ﬁ!.i”;i"‘ of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% oTR A 0%  [No Gapilal Projects are relavant for GIS.
Achievement of Oparational Projects within adopted budget and
Aporoved tmedframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accardance with Council's
acopted Service Lavels 100%: aThR 98% 98%  [Stafl resourcing has impacted on the under achlevemant of this KPL
CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Section Budget Summary A [Askollr ion [ Delay

Budgel Adopled Actual YTD oK On Target
|Operating Revenue $0 $0 AT___|Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $526,379 $102,619 [+] Complate
ICapital Revenue $0 50 | 104 only)
[Capital Experses 0 50
[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES a1 Qi1-Q2 Q1-a3 Qi-od
1. Provide leadership, corporate oversight and strategic direction oK | |
Corporate Services Direclorate - The direciomle of Corporale Services provides e oversight of this deparment.
Corporate Services department containg the Financial functions of Gowngil moluding asset managenmnt & GIS,

& supply, workforce & sirategy, fleet management, propsrly managamsnt and
cugtomar sarvice. in acciian 1 Ihis Alport Qperations are algo inchuded.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME a1 a2 a3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR NA 0% No specific Custarmer Service Requests for Directorale.
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
salety, risk and other legislative matters 100% ara 10e e
;ncmevernem of Capital Prajects within adopted budget and approved 1007 ata A 0% No Capital prajects specific o Directarats.
imeframes
Achigvement of Oparational Projects within adepted budget and
aporoved tmeframes 100% aTh 100% 100%  |Work progressing on the Propel Alongskde project.
Dalivery of services and aclivilies in accordance with Council's 100% otR A % o adopted servics levels for the Dirscarate.

Acopted Service Lavels

COMMERCIAL BUSINESS UNITS

The Airport Annual Performance Plan was adopted by Council on 12 August 2014, This Plan is 3 requirement of 5175 Local Government Reguiotion 2012 .
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PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

General Manager Regional Services Summary
Operational Plan Report
1st Quarter

All sections of Regional Services have continued to deliver on their respective services with
all operational areas progressing as per budget forecasts. There have been some minor
overruns on response times for Customer Service Requests with most units hitting the 100%
achievement whilst RRWR have delivered at 98% for the quarter. Development Assessment
and Strategic Infrastructure are a little lower at 92% and 90% respectively with that due
mainly to the volume received and, in respect of Strategic Infrastructure, generated through
the proposed Planning Scheme consultation. Building Compliance was relatively low at 67%
for Customer Service Requests and 82% for compliance with legislative timeframes and
standards and these were as a result of staffing issues with vacancies in the Unit; however,
these have now been addressed.

The capital programs across Regional Services are being completed in line with forecasts;
however, there will be more discussion on this as we approach our capital budget review.
Overall, the reporting period has been extremely busy for all sections of Regional Services
with the following main issues highlighted:

. Continued South Rockhampton Flood Levee investigations;

. North Rockhampton Flood Mitigation Project;

. Proposed Planning Scheme;

. Local Creek Catchment modelling;

. Design work for capital program;

. CBD Revitalisation;

. Water supply security;

. Waste programs;

. Cocljlaborative approach with Gladstone Regional Council for long term waste options;
an

. A number of community awareness programs for FRW and RRWR.

Robert Holmes
General Manager
Regional Services
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Regional *Counci

2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
REGIONAL SERVICES

CIVIL OPERATIONS SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Section Budget Summary R Risk of Incompletion / Delay

Budget Adopted Actual YTD OK On Target
Operating Revenue $9,498,584 $2,100,057 AT Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $35,778,982 $7,652,223 C [Complete
Capital Revenue $7,014,624 $55,345 | Incomplete (Q4 only)
Capital Expenses $33,828,259 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES Q1 Q1-Q2 a1-Q3 Q1-Q4
1. Provide value for money construction, maintenance and community response services for transport and OK
drainage assets
Urban Operations Unit - manages the and mair of road p: and bridges, kerb
and channel, footpaths and cycle ways, stormwater drainage systems, guardrail, street signs, linemarking and traffic
signals that are not on State controlled roads and road lighting for the urban areas of Rockampton, Parkhurst, Gracemere
and Mt Morgan.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME al Q2 a3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o -
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR 100% 100%
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved
limeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o, o
approved timeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o o . -
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 95% 95% [Some minor overruns in timeframes.
Rural Operations Unit- manages the construction and maintenace of sealed and unsealed read pavements, bridges,
stormwater drainage systems guardrail, road signs, linemarking in the rural towns and areas of the Region.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME (1} Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR jitze 1E52
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved
imeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o "
approved timeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's . -
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 95% 95% Some minor overruns in timeframes.
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
REGIONAL SERVICES

ENGINEERING SECTION

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

ion Budget Summary R Risk of Incompletion / Delay
Budget Adopted Actual YTD OK On Target

Operating Revenue $132,000 $76,511 AT Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $3,932,350 $539,137 [o] [Complete
Capital Revenue $2,920,024 0 | Incomplete (Q4 only)
Capital Expenses 1,152,200 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES Qa1 Q1-Q2 Q1-Q3 Q1-Q4
1. Provide engineering, infrastructure planning and project management services to meet the current and future oK
needs of the community and organisation
2. Maintain a disaster management response capacility able to meet the community's needs when required. OK

[e] i ible for the provision of engineering advice, assessment of development applications
and compliance inspections mvo!wng reconfiguration of lots, material change of use and operational works as they relate
to traffic, transport, stormwater, water supply and sewerage reficulation networks. The Unit is also responsible for the
development and implementation of traffic and road safety initiatives.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME fel] Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 80% 80% Some minor delays in responding to inspection and advice requests.
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR jitze 1E52
:ﬁgﬁ;?:;zm of Capttal Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR N/A 0% (Capital is moved to Civil Operations for undertaking the work.
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o, o
approved timeframes 100% QrR 07 e
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o "
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 80% 80% Development assessment Referral timeframes
Disast - for the planning, i ion and response required
to ensure Council has the appropriate response capability and prCESSES in place to assist the local community to be
|prepared for, respond to and recover from disaster events. The Unit also provides support to the State Emergency Service
through the provision of a SES Local Coniroller.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME al Q2 a3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR N/A 0%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o o
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR e el
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved
limeframes 100% QTR N/A 0%
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o
approved timeframes 100% aTh el 5
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o o .
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 100% 100% No adopted service levels. LDMG has been reviewed
Civil Design - responsible for the engineering survey and design of civil works principally undertaken by the Regional
Services Department but also for various projects undertaken by other Council Departments when required.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME al Q2 a3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100% Receive minimal direct Customer Service Requests
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o o
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR e el
:;:ﬁ,;?nr:m of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR 100% 100% Future design program doesn't start until 3rd quarter.
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o
approved timeframes 100% QTR lBKezs o
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR el e
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN

REGIONAL SERVICES

for the i igation and p!annlng of new and upgraded infrastructure within the
roads, pathways, cyclepaihs, public transpoit , A i d water supply and
networks within the region.

|adopted Service Levels

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME e}] Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Gustomer Service Requests 100% QTR 90% 90% Minor overruns in response times.
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o, "
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR jozs e
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% atrR 80°% 80% North Rockhampton Flood Mitigation Project has commenced. Gracemere
timeframes ° - ° Industrial Area Planning not commenced.
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and . "
approved timeframes 100% QTR 100% 100% Programs underway in Transport, Stormwater and Roads Alliance areas.
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR el e
PLANNING SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND
Section Budget Summary R Risk of Incompletion / Delay
Budget Adopted Actual YTD OK On Target
Operating Revenue $3,635,929 $704,282 AT Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $4,977,784 $1,052,292 [¢] (Complete
Capital Revenue 30 30 | Incomplete (Q4 only)
Capital Expenses $0 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES Q1 Q1-Q2 Q1-Q3 Q1-04
1. Provide regulatory and compliance services in line with statutory requirements and best practice OK
2. Contribute to the fair, orderly and sustainable use and development of the Region's resources OK
3. Assist in the implementation of a growth management framework which facilitates economic growth whilst oK
preserving the region's character
4. Plan and deliver programmes, partnerships, regulation and education relevant to activities associated with oK
town planning and operational works
5. Implement a growth management framework which facilities economic growth whilst preserving the Region's oK
character
6. Manage the Region's growth framework to compliment state legislation and policy OK
7. Promote the sustainable development of natural and physical resources and the maintenance of ecological OK
processes and genetic diversity
8. Promote the sharing of responsibility for resource management and planning between the different spheres oK
of government, the community and industry
C [t three primary functions, these being inspections and certification for building and
|plumbing, and ensuring camp/:ance of all land use and development activities.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME [ed] Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 67% 67% [Some delays in responding to Customer Requests.
(Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR 809 809, [Some slippage in timeframes due to staff movements. Now getting back
safety, risk and other legislative matters ° i ° on track.
/_\chlevement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% TR N/A 0% No Gapital Programs
timeframes
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and
approved timeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR 75% 75% Some slippage in timeframes due to staff movements. Now getting back

lon track.
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
REGIONAL SERVICES

Strategic Planning - provides stratégic planning services lo optimise quality of life and economic development
opportunities for region residents and businesses through the provision of essential services and

amenities. To utilise strategic planning tools to deliver services in the most efficient and cost effective manner possible. To
capture community needs and aspirations through active dialogue and engagement. To analyse and incorporate best
practice planning tools in concert with understanding of future growth demands, changing demographics, changing lifestyle
choices and the interests of other levels of government as they relate to the use of land in the planning area. Develop land
use policies and guide patterns to and respond d and efficiently to these inputs. Plan for
the eflicien! and timely delivery of ry trunk lo service the patlern in a Priority
Infrastructure Plan (PIA) in collaberation with the Sirategic Infrastructure unit. All planning products will manifest
[principally in the Planning Scheme (Town Plan) which is a statutory planning instrument requiring Local Council and State
Government approval. It has a statutory ife of 10 years.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME al Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Gustomer Service Requests 100% QTR 96% 96% [Some minor delays in response times.
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o "

safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR 100% 100%

:;r:'ler:renr:znt of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR N/A 0% No Capital Programs

:pc::z\i?ﬁnmt ;I ;?;):Sranonal Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR 90% 90% Planning Scheme

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's

adopted Service Levels 100% QTR |0U% 0U%

De - manages for material changes of use, reconfigurations of lots,

operational works and building works assessable against the planning scheme through the Integrated Development

[Assessment System under the Sustainable Planning Act 2009. The Unit supports this primary role with ancillary services

such as pi meetings, decision nofices, issuing infrastructure charges notices and managing

development assessment matters in the Planning and Environment Court which involve Council as a party.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME at Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 92% 92% Some minor delays in response times.
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR 97% 979 [Some slippage in timeframes due to staff movements. Now getting back
safety, risk and other legislative matters ° ° ° on track.

?&:'er;?nrgznt of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR NA 0% No Capital Programs

Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o ,

approved timeframes 100% QTR IR 5

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o "

adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 100% 100%

VAN3OV I3 LLININOD FDIAYTS ® IONVINHO4H3d

102 Y39INIAON S¢



(982) abed

/\/
Rockhcﬁgmjn

Regional *Council

2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
REGIONAL SERVICES

FITZROY RIVER WATER

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Section Budget Summary R Risk of Incompletion / Delay
Budget Adopted Actual YTD OK On Target
Operating Revenue $58,762,116 $23,077,528 AT Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $53,087,735 $12,530,710 C (Complete
Capital Revenue $4,111,609 $1,027,755 | Incomplete (Q4 only)
Capital Expenses $29,589,921 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES Q1 Q1-Q2 Q1-Q3 Q1-Q4
1. Operate water supplies and networks to ensure future regional water demand (potable water) is sustainable oK
2. Operate and maintain sewerage netwrok and treatment assets including re-use schemes OK
Treatment and Supply - manages the planning. and of water and sewage
treatment plants, water and sewage pump stations, waler reservoirs, and water storages enabling the delivery of high
quality, safe, refiable and cost effective water and sewerage services to our customers. The unit also manages trade
waste licensing, drinking water and environmental compliance reporting for FRW.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME [ed] Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
(Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR etz e
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved
limeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and
approved timeframes 100% Qarr S 1D
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 100% 100%
Network Services - manages the and of trunk and water and pipe
network enabling the delivery of high quality, safe, refiable and cost effective water and sewerage services {0 our
customers. The unit also conducts water mefer reads, new water and i and il irrigator
conlracts for FRW.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o "
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR i i
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved A number of projects needed to be tendered externally which has taken
: 100% QTR 95% 95% N
timeframes place during the 1st quarter.
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o o
approved timeframes 100% arr e 1E5
Delivery of services and acfivities in accordance with Council's o Voluntary Transitional Environmental Program in place for Sewage
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR s il Treatment Plants.
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2014 - 2015 OPERATIONAL PLAN
REGIONAL SERVICES

ROCKHAMPTON REGIONAL WASTE & RECYCLING ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Section Budget Summary R Risk of Incompletion / Delay

Budget Adopted Actual YTD OK On Target
Operating Revenue $18,908,220 $7,511,282 AT Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $16,561,740 $3,057,117 [} (Complete
Capital Revenue £ 30 | Incomplete (Q4 only)
Capital Expenses $7.052,824 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES Q1 Q1-Q2 Q1-Q3 Q1-04
1. Provide waste management facilities and services which meet the community's needs through thel OK
development and implementation of a Strategic Waste Management Plan
Collections - Provision of a relfable kerbside collection service for waste and recyclables from domestic and some
commercial premises from within declared waste areas across the Regional Council area. Adminsitration of kerbside
recycling collections contract.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME il Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 98% 98% Marginal time delays in responding.
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR 100% 100%
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved
timeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o, ~
approved timeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 100% 100%
Waste Operations - Provision and management of waste and recycling transfer and disposal faciliies that are
accessible and provided in a sustainable manner.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME at Q2 Q3 Q4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 98% 98% Marginal time delays in responding.
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
safety, risk and other legisiative matters 100% QtR pi: il
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved
limeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o, o
approved timeframes 100% QrR 07 5
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o o
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 100% 100%
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REGIONAL SERVICES

REGIONAL SERVICES DIRECTORATE

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Section Budget Summary R Risk of Incompletion / Delay
Budget Adopted Actual YTD OK On Target
Operating Revenue $0 $0 AT Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $610,185 $134,293 & (Complete
Capital Revenue -$1,000,000 $0 | Incomplete (Q4 only)
Capital Expenses $250,000 $0
CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES Q1 Q1-Q2 Q1-Q3 Q1-04
1. Provide leadership, corporate oversight and strategic direction OK |
Regional Services Directorate - Overall corporate management and coordination of the service delivery and strategic
direction of Civil Operations, Planning, Engineering, Fitzroy River Water and Rockhampton regional Waste & Recycling.
The Directorate also provides media and communily awareness programs for those areas.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME 1] [*F] a3 4 ANNUAL COMMENTS
Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR 100% 100%
Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR e s
fAchiovernant of Gapital Projects within adopted budgat and appraved 100% QTR NiA 0%  |No Capital Programs for Regional Services Directorate
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o - o
approved timeframes 100% QTR 100% 100%
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR 100% 100%

COMMERCIAL BUSINESS UNITS

The FRW and Rockhampton Regional Waste & Recycling Performance Plans was adopted by Council on 7 October 2014. These Plans are a requirement of s175 Local Government Regulation 2012.
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PERFORMANCE & SERVICE COMMITTEE AGENDA 25 NOVEMBER 2014

General Manager Community Services Summary
Operational Plan Report
1st Quarter

Directorate

Activities within the Directorate have generally been directed towards ensuring the
Departmental service deliverables and standards are met, supporting the sectional staff re-
alignments and maintaining the mandated operational strategic direction. Specific
Directorate customer service requests are being met 100% within service delivery timelines
and actual costs of the Directorate are 2% better than predicted quarter budget outcome.

Parks

Departmental focus of management activities in Parks for the quarter has been on the
following:

* Re-alignment of staff resources to produce greater operational efficiencies and
improved targeted area outcome effectiveness.

¢ Delivery of parks operational outcomes.

Despite an increase in hectares to be maintained and a shift in operational emphasis,
maintenance service levels have been sustained and improved due to this effort with the
actual budget outcome being 2% better than predicted for the quarter without increase in
staffing levels.

The response time for all requests types has been able to be met in all categories with
statutory and regulatory compliance being maintained well within organisational tolerance
limits.

Specific operational projects such as the Yaamba Road medians, CBD “Spring Clean” and
Gracemere Streetscape projects have been delivered within project parameters drawing
favourable community feedback.

Community and Facilities

Section continues to deliver services in accordance with program and customer service
response timelines with statutory and regulatory requirements being met and maintained.

Actual budget outcome for the quarter is 6% better than predicted for the quarter but when
adjusted for the “lumpiness” of grant monies received (library grant, home assist subsidy) the
quarterly result is in accordance with the quarterly outcome prediction.

The diversity of library programs and mix of care opportunities at the Child Care Centre has
seen attendance rates at the library and child care facilities remain high with the current
trend indicating increased attendance and utilisation for the year.

The integrity of Facilities unit maintenance schedules remains intact with programmed works
occurring and the minor capital program has delivered improvements to City Hall, Walter
Reid Cultural Centre, Rockhampton Showgrounds, Pilbeam Theatre, Gracemere
Administration Centre, Botanic Gardens and Dooley Street depot within budget parameters.
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Health, Environment & Local Laws

Departmental focus of management activities for the quarter has been:
* Amalgamation of the Environment & Public Heath and Local Laws units

* Re-alignment of staffing resources to produce greater operational efficiencies and
improved targeted area outcome effectiveness.

* Streamlining of administrative support processes.

These efforts have seen increased revenue achieved in Local Laws at reduced cost while
maintaining staff levels and Health & Environment reducing costs through improved
programming and more targeted activities.

Systematic inspections combined with education programmes in both operational areas are
yielding increased compliance and positive community feedback.

Arts and Heritage

Holding responsibility for Council’'s major venues; a key component is the delivery of
entertainment programming and the unit has been particularly effective in this regard over
the quarter.

Attendances at the Pilbeam Theatre, Art Gallery and Heritage Village sites is increased over
the previous year's comparative quarter with actual budget outcome for the quarter being 3%
better than predicted outcome in the budget when adjusted for event cash flow impacts.

Of note, the “Cream”travelling exhibition, the first time the Gallery's principal artworks have
travelled, commenced during the quarter and attendances at visitor gallery locations has
been in excess of 30,000 thus far.

Michael Rowe
General Manager
Community Services
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HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT SECTION

Section Budget Si y

Budget ‘Adopted Actual YTD
Operating Revenue $197,358 $38,521
Operating Expenses $2,664,028 $424 255
[Capital Revenue 0 $0
[Capital Expenses 0 30
[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES LEGEND
R__[Riskofl ion / Delay
OK On Target
|Ahead of Target

(Complete

1. Provide regulatory and compliance services in line with statutory requirements and best

practice

incomplete (Q4 only)

2. Plan and deliver programmes, partnerships, regulation and education relevant to Envirol
Health

nment and Public

3. Implement Pest Management Plan actions to control declared pests

4. Implement Vector Management Plan actions to establish vector control measures

[Health & Environment - Responsible for licensing and ir i activities partic ly food

lenvironmentally relevant activities and higher risk personal appearance services as well as investigating complaints
relating to environmental nuisance, public heaith risks and licensed activities and being a conduit for State based

No capital projects are relevant to Health and Environment

No operational projects are relevant to Health and Environment

requirements.

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
(Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters i

Achlevemeni of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR
timeframes

Achleveme_m of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR
approved timeframes

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o

ladopted Service Levels 100% bl
Pest - R i ing declared pests plants and animals on Council centrolled land,

for
inspecting and invesligating declared pest activities and/or complaints and being a conduit for State based

No adopted service levels

No capital projects are relevant to Health and Environment

No operational projects are relevant to Health and Environment

requirements.

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
Cumpllgnce with slatutor_y an.d regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters

Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved o

timeframes 100% QTR
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o

approved tirr 100% QTR
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's

adopted Service Levels 100% QTR
Vector = Re ible for the of it pests on Council controlled land, inspecting and

investigating public health risk activities and/or complaints and being a conduit for State based requi

irements.

No adopted service levels

No capital projects are relevant to Health and Environment

No operational projects are relevant to Health and Environment

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters °

Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved

timeframes 100% QTR
Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o

approved i 100% QTR
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR

ladopted Service Levels

No adopted service levels
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PARKS SECTION ACTIVITIES LEGEND

|section Budget Summary TRisk of

Budget Adopted Actual YTD On Target
Operating Revenue $644,816 $178,895 |Ahead of Target
Operating Expenses $17.473,624 $4,071,175 Complete
Capital Revenue $234,783 $82,311 Incomplete (Q4 only)
Capital Expenses $2,244,916 $0
[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

1. Plan for appropriate open space within the Region.

2. Ensure botanical collections are maintained and developed

3. Provide a well maintained and managed zoological collection

4. Provide developmental programs for sporting and recreational groups

5. Maintain the Region’s sports fields, parks, gardens, playgrounds and open spaces

|6 Deliver regional cemetery and associated services that meet current and future burial and remembrance
needs

|Parks ion Services - ges the ion, heritage conservation and maintenance of the Rockhampton
Botanic Gardens and Zoo, Kershaw Gardens, and burial and memorial services at the Region's cemeteries. This unit is
the liaison between Council and the various user groups of Council's parks and sport and recreation facilities to assist in
building active and heaithy it

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME

[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR

[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including The completion of the crocodile enclosures and relocation of freshwater|

o
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR crocodiles acquits an issue with Zoo BioSecurity licence conditions
I-T\chlevemeni of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR All projects are underway.

timeframes

[Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR All projects are underway.

approved timeframes

Performance against operational standards is shown, as no service levels|
have been formally adopted by Counil.

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% aTR Delays in finalising tenure renewals for community groups on councill
adopted Service Levels land.

Resourcing issues will impact effective delivery of Sport & Health Expo;|
options being explored

|Parks Operations - manages the construction and maintenance of local parks and playgrounds, street trees and

Amenity and ing activities in the high use urban areas of the region are also the responsibility of this
unit.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR

[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including

o
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR

Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved o .

himeframes 100% QTR All projects are underway.

Achlaveme_m of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% aTR Al projocts are undervay.

approved timeframes

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR Performance against operational standards is shown, as no service levels]

ladopted Service Levels have been formally adopted by Council.
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[Parks -
|procurement and financial management for the Parks Section.

of customer work requests, park bookings,

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

TARGET

TIMEFRAME

Parks Administration do not deliver Capital projects

ladopted Service Levels

[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters .

Achlevemeni of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR
timeframes

Achleveme:m of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR
approved timeframes

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR

ARTS & HERITAGE SECTION
Section Budget y
Budget Adopted Actual YTD
(Operating Revenue $4,620,003 $1,347,894
(Operating Expenses £7,670,516 $1,648,334
Capital Revenue $0 $0
Capital $254,000 30

[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Risk of Incompletion / Delay

On Target

|Ahead of Target

(Complete

1. Develop and deliver targeted arts and heritage programs

Incomplete (Q4 only)

2. Deliver and facilitate community events and celebrations

lproduction services. The unit also delivers the See it Live Theatre program.

Venue Operations - manages the Council's major venues including the Pilbeam Theatre, Walter Reid Cultural Centre
and the Rockhampton Showgrounds while also providing auxilary services such as food and beverage, ticketing and

Performance against operational standards is shown, as no service levels|
have been formally adopted by Council.

Performance against operational standards is displayed as no service
standards have been formally adopted by Council

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME

[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR

[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o

safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR

Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved

timeframes 100% QTR

Achlaveme_m of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR

approved timeframes

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's

adopted Service Levels 100% QTR
Services - iges the F Heritage Viliage, presenting and preserving the region's historical

collections.

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME

[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR

[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including

safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR

Achuevemeni of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR

timeframes

[Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and

approved timeframes 100% arR

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's "

adopted Service Levels 100% Qmh

Per against 1al standards is displayed as no service|
standards have been formally adopted by Council
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[Events - coordinates the development and delivery of the Council's major civic events and celebrations.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME

Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100%

QTR

[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including

o
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR
Achievemenl of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR
timeframes

[Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o

approved timeframes 100% QTR
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's o

adopted Service Levels 100% QTR
|Art Gallery - manages the Rockhampton Art Gallery to meet i ic through art

imanagement and development, local and visiting exhibition presentation and inclusive and developmental public

Per against 1al standards is displayed as no service|
standards have been formally adopted by Council

adopted Service Levels

lprograms.
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
(Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters °

Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved

timeframes 100% arR
Achleveme.m of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR
approved timeframes

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR

LOCAL LAWS SECTION
|Section Budget Summary

Budget Adopted Actual YTD
(Operating Revenue $1,054,750 $584,984
Operating Expenses $2,310,693 $447 746
[Capital Revenue 0 30
[Capital Expenses 0 $0

[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

[Risk of lion / Delay

On Target

|Ahead of Target

(Complete

1. Provide compliance and regulatory services in line with legislative and community standards

Incomplete (Q4 only)

2. Plan and deliver Local Laws programs, partnerships, regulation and education

animals, overgrown land, signage, parking and illegal use of Council land.

[Operations - Enforces State Government Acts and Council's Local Laws in relation to Environmental Nuisances,

Per against op al standards is displayed as no service
standards have been formally adopted by Council

No capital projects are relevant to Local Laws

Projects ongoing throughout the year.

|KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
(Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% TR
safety, risk and other legislative matters i
Achuevemeni of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR
timeframes

of Operational Projects within adopted budget and
approved timeframes 100% QTR
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR

No adopted service levels
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|Section Budget Summary

Budget Adopted Actual YTD
Operating Revenue $3,286,554 $1,068,092
Operating Expenses $18,343,702 $3,975,184
Capital Revenue $0 30
(Capital Expenses $3,290,587 $0
[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES

COMMUNITY & FACILITIES SECTION

ACTIVITIES LEGEND

R [Riskof ion / Delay
OK On Target
|Ahead of Target

Complete

1. Deliver a range of individual and organisational development services and programmes.

Incomplete (Q4 only)

2. Provide and maintain regional library services

3. Deliver targeted social programs relating to child care, youth and aged services

4. Facilitate community safety

5. Deliver faciliies maintenance programs and projects

Libraries Unit (Client Services, Collections and Systems) provides the community with access to community hubs

adopted Service Levels

of services, and spaces for literacy digital literacy) development,
learning and social connection.

|KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters

Achlevemem of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR
timeframes

Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and o

[approved tirr 100% QTR
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR

Council's building assets.

Facilities - responsible for the delivery of minor capital projects, maintenance, cleaning and

security services for

Requests responded to in line with scheduled response times

ladopted Service Levels

|KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
(Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
(Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters °

Achi f ital Proj ithi

Ac ievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR
timeframes

Achlaveme_m of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR
approved tim

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR

[Home Assist - delivers the CQ Home Assist Program to pmwds safety rsls!sd information and referral to hume owners

(Customer Service requests and response times tracked externally.

No capital projects relevent to Home Assist

adopted Service Levels

or tennants with a disability or aged over 60 years, and with home ,

and repairs for eligible clients, to assist them to remain living in their homes.

[KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
(Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o

safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR
ni\chlevemem of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR
timeframes

AGhIEVemE-I'Ii of Operational Projects within adopted budget and 100% QTR
lapproved timeframes

Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QTR
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[City Child Care Centre - provides quality long day and occasional care for children from 6 weeks to school age in
laccordance with the Early Years Learning Framework and National Quality Standard.

[Laws, and Communily Services Sections.

coordinafion of the service delivery and strategic direction of the Health & Environment, Parks, Arts & Heritage, Locals

|KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR Not relevant to Child Care
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including 100% QTR
safety, risk and other legislative matters °
Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved 100% QTR No capital projects relevant to Child Care
timeframes
[Achievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and
lapproved timeframes 100% arR
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's
adopted Service Levels 100% QTR
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORATE ACTIVITIES LEGEND

Section Budget y [Risk of pletion / Delay

Budget Adopted Actual YTD OK (On Target
(Operating Revenue $66,172 $6,540 |Ahead of Target
(Operating Expenses $965,402 $213.325 Complete
[Capital Revenue $738,507 30 Incomplete (Q4 only)
[Capital Expenses $3,289,805 $0
[CORPORATE PLAN ACTIVITIES
1. Provide leadership, corporate oversight and strategic direction

Services Dil = The Ct Services Di provides overall corporate management and

adopted Service Levels

|KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS TARGET TIMEFRAME
[Compliance with Customer Service Requests 100% QTR
[Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements including o
safety, risk and other legislative matters 100% QTR
[Achievement of Capital Projects within adopted budget and approved o
|timeframes 100% QTR
JAchievement of Operational Projects within adopted budget and

" 100% QTR
approved timeframes
Delivery of services and activities in accordance with Council's 100% QtR

No Council adopted Service Levels set during this quarter
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9.2 SUMMARY BUDGET MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31 OCTOBER 2014

File No: 8148
Attachments: 1. Income Statement - October 2014
2.  Key Indicator Graphs - October 2014
Authorising Officer: Ross Cheesman - General Manager Corporate Services
Author: Alicia Cutler - Manager Finance
SUMMARY

Manager Finance presenting the Rockhampton Regional Council Summary Budget
Management Report for the period ended 31 October 2014.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Rockhampton Regional Council Summary Budget Management Report for the
Period ended 31 October 2014 be ‘received’.

COMMENTARY

The attached financial report and graphs have been compiled from information within
Council’s Finance One system. The reports presented are as follows:

1. Income Statement (Actuals and Budget for the period 1st July 2014 to 31 October
2014), Attachment 1.
2. Key Indicators Graphs, Attachment 2.

Council should note in reading this report that normally after the completion of the first three
months of the financial year, operational results should be approximately 33.3% of budget.
All percentages for operational revenue and operational expenditure are measured against
the adopted budget.

The percentages reported for capital revenue and capital expenditure are measured against
the adopted budget with carryovers i.e. including carry-over capital budgets from 2013/14.

The following commentary is provided in relation to the Income Statement:
Total Operating Revenue is reported at 42%. Key components of this result are:

» Net Rates and Utility Charges are at 46% of budget. This positive variance is due to
General Rates and Utility Charges for the six months ending 31 December 2014 having
been processed in full.

» Private and Recoverable Works are behind budget at 26%.

> Interest Revenue is ahead of budget at 44%. There appears to be scope to increase
the budget during December revised budget.

» All other revenue items are in proximity to budget.
Total Operating Expenditure is reported at 34%. Key components of this result are:

» Contractors and Consultants expenditure is ahead of budget at 41%. This is due to
committed expenditure, as actual expenditure is only 21% of budget.

» Materials and Plant expenditure is below budget at 24%. This result is largely
attributable to the Civil Works Maintenance area, where the majority of expenditure is
budgeted against Materials and Plant, however actual expenditure is incurred not only
against Materials and Plant, but also against other expenditure groups.

» Asset Operational Expenditure is ahead of budget at 42%. This is due to Council having
already paid annual insurance premiums including, amongst others, Public Liability and
Motor Vehicle premiums.
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» Administrative Expenses are ahead of budget at 54%. This account group is also
significantly impacted by committed expenditure, as actual expenditure is in line with
budget at 31%. Council has also paid a number of annual Information Technology
software licenses.

» Finance Costs are behind budget at 23%. Finance costs will remain below budget until
the next quarterly repayment on Council’s loan portfolio held with the Queensland
Treasury Corporation.

» Other Expenses are ahead of budget at 40%. This is mostly due to Council having paid
annual LGAQ membership as well as the first instalment to Capricorn Tourism and
Economic Development.

The following commentary is provided in relation to capital income and expenditure, as well
as investments and loans:

Total Capital Income is at 14% of budget. Receipt of Capital Income is anticipated to
increase in coming months with Natural Disaster, GIA and Southside Pool funding as well as
proceeds from asset sales.

Total Capital Expenditure is at 42% of budget with committals, or approximately 20% of
budget without committals.

Total Investments are approximately $96.9M as at 31 October 2014 which is a decrease
from the $104.3M as reported for end September 2014. Decreases should continue for
November through to January 2015 prior to next half yearly rating period.

Total Loans are $154.4M as at 31 October 2014.
CONCLUSION

Operational Income is ahead of budget mainly due to the levying of the General Rates and
Utility Charges for the six months ending 31% December 2014. Operational Expenditure is in
line with budget at 34%, including committals.

Capital Revenue is behind budget at 14% and Capital Expenditure excluding committed
expenditure is currently at 20% of budget. This is partly attributable to the carry-over capital
addition to budget.
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SUMMARY BUDGET MANAGEMENT
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31 OCTOBER 2014

Income Statement - October 2014

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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Income Statement
For Period July 2014 to October 2014

33.3% of Year Gone
i@ Adepted ’ YTD Actuals (inc

Budget YTD Actual Commitments commitments) % of Adopted Budget

$ $ $ 5

o
OPERATING 04
Revenues
Net ratas and ufility charges (124,312,081) (57,047,738 o {57.047,738) A6% A
Fess and Charges (28,728,960) (9.357.524) 4.588 18.352,938) 3% A
Private and recoverable works (7.977,114) (2,095,504} o 2,005,504 26% A
Rent/Leass Revanua (2,973,053) (889,342 o (989,342} 33% A
Grants Subsidies 8 Contributions (14,798,353) (5.224.500) 223 {8.224.2T7) 5% A
Intarest revenus (2,588,470) (1,142,385} o {1,142,388) A% A
Other Income (3,960.138) (1.587,839) 0 {1.587.938) A0% A
Total Revenues {185,338,169) {77.445,021) 4,811 (77,440,210) 42% A
Expenses
Employea Costs 70,866 820 22,204,293 223,682 22,427,875 I2% A
Contractors & Consultants 15,759 452 3,294,500 3,182,853 6,481,152 A1% A
Materials & Plant 18,730,644 3,409,580 1,029,080 4,438,859 24% A
Asset Cperational 18,138,028 6,807,245 1,167,774 7.885,019 42% A
Administrative Expenses 10,568,883 3,322,275 2,335,674 5,657,850 B4% A
Depreciation 44,437 366 14,812 456 o 14,812,455 % A
Financa costs 10,063,262 2,346,866 0 2,346,866 2% A
Other Expensas 1,480,408 £39,145 52,078 501,222 Al A
Tafal Expenses 191,045,862 56,740,359 8,010,940 64,751,299 4% A
Transfer / Overhead Allocation
TransfenOverasd Allcation (10,352,252) (3,300,418) 1,418 13,288,503) 32% A
Total Transfer / Overhead Allocation {10,352,252) (3,300,975} 1418 (3,298,503) 32% A
TOTAL OPERATING POSITION (SURPLUSDEFI 14,644,557) (24.005,583) 8,017,167 115,688 414) 344% A

Adopted August Revised (Inc YT Actuals (ine
CAPITAL Budget Carry Forward) YTD Actual Commitments commitments) % of Revised Budget
Total Developers Contributions Recelved (3,600,000) (3,600,000} {1.078,164} 0 (1,078,164) 30%
Tatal Capits! Grants and Subsidies Received (6,344,000) (10,887,134} (971,986} 0 (971,866) 9%
Total Proceeds from Sale of Assefs (6,575,000) (6,5681,455) (925,000} L] {925,000 4%
Total Capital Inceme (16,519,000} (21,078,589) |2.075,150) ) (2,075,150} 4%
Tatal Capitsl Expenditure 0,462,481 99,636,804 20,165,204 71,251,835 41,435,138 425
Net Capital Position 63,943,491 78,558,315 17,208,054 21,251,935 14,455,989 49%
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 96,848,602
TOTAL BORROWINGS 154,370,578
Page 1 of 1
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SUMMARY BUDGET MANAGEMENT
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31 OCTOBER 2014

Key Indicator Graphs - October 2014

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 2
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Operating Revenue
(Excluding Net Rates and Utility Charges)
(33.3% of Year Gone)

OUncollec

Operating

Revenue
B Collected

Operating
Revenue

Operating Employee Costs
(33.3% of Year Gone)

OUnspent
Employee
Costs

Operating Materials & Plant
(33.3% of Year Gone)

OUnspent
Materials &
Plant
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Total Investments
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9.3 CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT - MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT

File No: 1392

Attachments: 1. Finance Monthly Report - October 2014
2.  Workforce & Strategy Monthly Report -
October 2014
3. Corporate and Technology Monthly Report -
October 2014

Authorising Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author: Ross Cheesman - General Manager Corporate Services
SUMMARY

The monthly operations report for the Corporate Services department as at 31 October 2014
is presented for Councillor’s information.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Corporate Services Departmental Monthly Operations Report as at 31 October
2014 be ‘received’.

COMMENTARY

It is recommended that the monthly operations report for the Corporate Services department
as at 31 October 2014 be received.
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CORPORATE SERVICES
DEPARTMENT - MONTHLY
OPERATIONAL REPORT

Finance Monthly Report - October 2014

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT
FINANCE SECTION
Period Ended OCTOBER 2014

VARIATIONS, ISSUES AND INNOVATIONS

Innovations

The review of the Chart of Accounts project is well underway with a plan for improvement to
the accounts to enable service information to be extracted easier from Finance 1.

Scoping for the implementation of the Finance One Budget module has been undertaken
with further training to be undertaken During December.

Signage for Land Sale for Arrears of Rates will be erected on the affected properties
within the week in preparation for the Auction on the 11 December 2014.
Improvements / Deterioration in Levels of Services or Cost Drivers

Nil.
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LINKAGES TO OPERATIONAL PLAN

1. COMPLIANCE WITH CUSTOMER SERVICE REQUESTS
The response times for completing the predominant customer requests in the reporting period for Finance are as below:

i

Requasis Avg Avg Avg

TOTAL Undsr Compition /- Complation Complation .

s eaary | OO | S | s | Tmses | TG | e
B

Fales Enquiry 28 23 112 11 3 1] 3 205 1.75 1.70 1.36

Comments & Additional Information
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2. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

INCLUDING SAFETY, RISK AND OTHER LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

Safety Statistics

The safety statistics for the reporting period are:

SECOND QUARTER
Oct Nov Dec
Number of Lost Time Injuries 0
Number of Days Lost Due to Injury 0
Total Number of Incidents Reported 0
Number of Incomplete Hazard 0
Inspections
Risk Management Summary
Example from Section Risk Register (excludes risks accepted/ALARP)
Current Risk | Future Control & o
Risk Rating Risk Treatment | Due Date o Comments
Pl Completed
ans
Lack of funds for capital Enhanced Roads AMP
works resulting in capital adopted by
degradation of existing expenditure Infrastructure
assets causing reporting for Committee.
unus_ab_le assets gnd High 5 monitoring 31/12/14 45 Tlm_lng of all
public liability claims purposes. capital
Improved Asset programs
Management submitted to
and Financial Finance.
Planning
The use of inaccurate Continued Ongoing
GIS data by external review of
and internal users will integrity of
lead to litigation and a Moderate 5 | existing data 30/06/14 20
lack of integrity for
internal and external
users.
Legislative Compliance & Standards
N : %
Legislative Compliance Matter Due Date Comments
Completed
Audited Statement completed by end of o Statements signed by
October 31/10/14 100% QAO on 31/10/14
Annual Budget adopted by 1 August 01/08/14 100% Budget adopted in
June
Asset Register must record its non-current |  30/06/15 30% Ongoing
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%

Legislative Compliance Matter Due Date Comments
Completed
physical assets
A community financial report must be Submitted to
prepared for the Annual Report 30/10/14 100% Marketing for inclusion
in Annual Report

A Local Government must have a Debt Included  with the
Policy, Investment Policy and a Revenue | 01/08/14 100% Budget adoption
Policy
Trust Fund Management in acco_rdance 30/06/15 3206 Ongoing
with the Local Government Regulation
Monthly Financial report prepared for the o July report presented
monthly meeting of Council 30/08/14 100% to August P&S
A Local_ _Government must set an Asset 30/06/15 50% Amount set — no
Recognition threshold changes proposed

3.ACHIEVEMENT OF CAPITAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET AND
APPROVED TIMEFRAME

No capital projects are relevant to the Finance Section.

4.ACHIEVEMENT OF OPERATIONAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET AND
APPROVED TIMEFRAME

As at period ended October 2014 - 33.3% of year elapsed.

Revised Actual % budget

Budget (incl. committals) | expended Eplaniio T

Project

Improve Information
for Better Asset
Management and
Financial Planning

Majority of work will be
$95,000 0 0 from September through
to December

5. DELIVERY OF SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL’S
ADOPTED SERVICE LEVELS

Adopted/Operational Service Level Standards & Performance

Service Level Target s
Performance
Levy rates within 1 week of predicted dates in revenue 100% 100%
statement
Manage the recovery of unpaid rates and charges in 3.08%
accordance with the Revenue Management Policy, achieving <6% achieved in
an overdue balance of less than 6% August

Please note the service levels depicted in the above table are operational standards only
and have not been formally adopted by Council.
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FINANCIAL MATTERS

RRC

End of Month General Ledger - (Operating Only) - FINANCE

As At End Of October
Report Run: 13-Now-2014 15:37:52 Excludes Nat Accs: 2802,2914,2917,2924

Adopted

Adopted Budget

YTD Commit +

. On target
Budget (Pro Rata YTD) YTDActual Actual Variance
$ $ $ $ % 33.3% of Year Gone
FINANCE

Finance

1- Revenues (95,000) (31,667) (3,282) (3,282) 3% «

2 - Expenses 766,333 255,444 192,735 217,735 28% v

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 31 31 0% x

Total Unit: Finance 671,333 223,778 189,484 214,484 32% '
Business Administration

2 - Expenses 0 0 65 65 0% x

Total Unit: Business Administration 0 0 65 65 0% bd
Accounting Services

1- Revenues 0 0 (1,212) (1,212) 0% v

2 - Expenses 1,152,937 384,312 349,896 349,896 30% v

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 12,750 4,250 2,325 2,325 18% v

Total Unit: Accounting Services 1,165,687 388,562 351,010 351,010 30% v
Revenue & Treasury

1- Revenues (357,060) (119,020) (197,209) (197,209) 55% v

2 - Expenses 1,712,304 570,768 631,525 684,853 40% *

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 29 29 0% *

Total Unit: Revenue & Treasury 1,355,244 451,748 434,345 487,673 36% x
Financial Systems & Projects

2 - Expenses 405,052 135,017 132,028 132,028 33% v

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 15 15 0% x

Total Unit: Financial Systems & Projects 405,052 135,017 132,043 132,043 33% v
Asset Management

1- Revenues (3,600) (1,200) (2,731) (2,731) 76% v

2 - Expenses 1,862,503 620,834 437,728 442,942 24% v

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 30,000 10,000 11,847 11,847 39% x

Total Unit: Asset Management 1,888,903 629,634 446,844 452,058 24% v

Grand Total: 5,486,220 1,828,740 1,553,790 1,637,332 30% v
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Total Rates Outstanding
$10,000,000.00 - 8.00%
7.46%
$9,000,000.00 - 7.00%
$8,000,000.00
5.57% | 6.00%
$7,000,000.00 5.49%
$6,000,000.00 ) - 5.00%
$5,000,000.00 3.75% - 4.00%
o 3.08%
$4,000,000.00 5 90%  3.00%
$3,000,000.00
- 2.00%
$2,000,000.00
$1,000,000.00 - 1.00%
s 0.00%
May June July August September October

mm Total Rates Overdue

Overdue rates expressed as a percentage of budgeted rates revenue

Sundry Debtors Outstanding

$4,000,000

$3,500,000

$3,000,000

$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500,000
S0
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B Current m>30days ©E>60days [>90days
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CORPORATE SERVICES
DEPARTMENT - MONTHLY
OPERATIONAL REPORT

Workforce & Strategy Monthly Report -
October 2014

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 2
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MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT
WORKFORCE AND STRATEGY SECTION
Period Ended 31 October 2014

VARIATIONS, ISSUES AND INNOVATIONS

Innovations
Nil to Report

Improvements / Deterioration in Levels of Services or Cost Drivers

Staff movements and recruitment within the Corporate Improvement and Strategy unit have
impacted slightly on service delivery timeframes to internal customers. It is expected that
the service delivery levels will improve in the near future due to a full complement of staff
now recruited and in training.
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LINKAGES TO OPERATIONAL PLAN

1. COMPLIANCE WITH CUSTOMER SERVICE REQUESTS

The response times for completing the predominant customer requests in the reporting period for Workforce and Strategy are as below:

Current Month NEW Avg
e Raqu mc'l'o‘ml- Under Completion - Avg - Avg - Avg D(“"’“‘;"

BIF OMPLETE Long Term Standard days|

in Current REQUESTS | jnyestigation (days) ) Teme (cays) Tima fctays) 12 Months

Mth Received Completed BALANCE nths and

incomplete)
Administrative Action Complaints 3 1 0 0 2 0 2 0.00 @ 40.17 @ 48.00 0.00
WA&S - Complaints Management Process (NOT CSO USE) 4 1 5 2 6 0 30 1.50 7.53 6.94 8.05

COMMENTS

It is noted that the management responsibility for the Administrative Action Complaints have only recently transferred to Workforce & Strategy from Governance Support. Two

long term matters not completed by Governance Support are currently being reviewed with a view to finalisation as soon as realistically possible. It is noted that the Completion
Standard (days) for Administration Action Complaints being 2 days will also need to be reviewed.
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2. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

INCLUDING SAFETY, RISK AND OTHER LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

Safety Statistics

The safety statistics for Workforce & Strateqy in the reporting period are:

August September October
Number of Lost Time Injuries 0 0 0
Number of Days Lost Due to Injury 0 0 0
Total Number of Incidents Reported 1 0 0
Total number of Incomplete Hazard 0
Inspections

The safety statistics for All of Council in the reporting period are:

August September October
Number of Lost Time Injuries 0 10 3
Number of Days Lost Due to Injury 23 57 77
Total Number of Incidents Reported 16 31 19

Inspections

Total number of Incomplete Hazard

7 (2 current month)

The graph below displays the number of lost time injuries (LTI) claims lodged across Council
There was a total of three lost time injury claims lodged for October 2014.

Lost Time Injury Claims

e [ 0. OF LTI Claims

10
. 8 A
g 6- / \
E 4 A [\
=R N/ Vv

o @ N

Jan Feb Mar Apr May  Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov  Dec
Month
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Risk Management Summary

Example from Section Risk Register (excludes risks accepted/ALARP)

Current Future Control & %
Potential Risk Risk Risk Treatment Due Date c Comments
Rating Plans omp

Corporate Risks
A legislatively compliant Ongoing annual Audit will be
SafePlan is not audits will be conducted in
implemented, monitored conducted. November 2014
and reviewed effectively,
for the whole of council,
its workers and Continuing to
contractors, to achieve rectify the actions
the acceptable from the 2011
compliance level with Workplace Health
annual WH&S audits & Safety System
resulting in: increased Audit.
worker injuries,
legislative breaches/legal
action, reputational Third Party
damage, reduced service Workplace Health October
levels, increased costs Low & Safety system 2014 90%
and non-compliance with audit due in
a key council objective. October 2014.

Rectifications

resulting from the

Workplace Health

& Safety system

audit will be

addressed and

assessed in the

annual internal

audit of the

Workplace Health

& Safety systems.
Section Risks
Council's rehabilitation & glenvaelizement of the 55 supervisory
injury management Leader?ship staff have
procedures cannot Training Proaram completed
achieve lost time injury Low d 9 9 Ongoing 100% | training. Round
rate reductions, an | d 4 commenced
increasing injury claims comp Qte 1stroun on 14 October
& insurance premiums. of training. 2014.
Supervisory and Finalise PEP 30 June Project
managerial staff not Project. completed in
having the skills and_ (1) Policy . early 2014.
knowledge of Council's Moderate Enhancement 100%

HR Policy and
Procedures resulting in

Project currently
underway to
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Current Future Control & %
Potential Risk Risk Risk Treatment Due Date Com Comments
Rating Plans b
litigation, industrial ensure policy
disputes, poor coverage while
recruitment practices and adopting
outcomes, legislative contemporary best
breaches, inappropriate practice.
managerial action.
Finalise 31 May 55 supervisory
staff have
developm_ent of the completed
Lea_dgrshm training. Round
Training Program 4 will commence
and comple_te_ 1st on 14 October
round of training. 2014.
Council's payroll function
fails to accurately record
and process employee
wages and entitlements Multiskilling of Informal
resulting in an inability to Administration and | 31 multiskilling
pay employees on time Moderate | HR staff December | 95% program in
and accurately, potential 2014 place.
employee dissatisfaction,
Industrial disputes,
financial impacts and
reputation damage.
Legislative Compliance & Standards
%
Legislative Compliance Matter Due Date Comments
Completed
Prepare and adopt annual operational Plan adopted at Special
plan Council meeting 27 June
27 June 100% 2014 and has been. ,
2014 uploaded on Council’s
internal and external
websites.
Quarterly written assessment of progress Templates for the 2014/15
towards implanting the current annual Q1 review were issued on
operational plan 25 1 October. Results will be
November 0%
2014 presentec_i to Performance
and Services Committee
25 November 2014.
Report on the results of the annual The results were included
implementation of the annual operational 26 A with the Q4 review results
ugust . .
plan 2014 100% in a single report to
Performance and Services
Committee 29 July 2014.
Update of Workplace Health & Safety 31 Documents continue to be
documents to meet the new legislative | December 90% updated so that Council
requirements 2014 remains compliant
Report breaches of the Workplace Health | As soon as 100% Council has been
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Legislative Compliance Matter

Due Date

%
Completed

Comments

& Safety Act and Regulation as necessary
to the division within specified legislative
timeframes

practicable

compliant in this regard for
the current reporting
period

Workplace Health and Safety Audit

November
2014

0%

LGW have been booked to
conduct the audit in
November 2014

Rectification Action Plan

As soon as
practicable

95%

Continuing to rectify the
actions from the 2011
Workplace Health & Safety
System Audit.

issued to
required

WHS Infringement Notices
Council are remedied within
timeframes

As per
notice

100%

No current notices to
report

Performance Reviews

Various

All performance reviews
for the period July 2013 to
June 2014 were due to
Workforce & Strategy 29
August 2014.

27 out of 491 performance
reviews are yet to be
completed.

Outdated employee immunisations,

tickets, and/or licenses

Various

As at 31 October 2014
Council records indicate
that 365 employees are
still to complete
immunisations deemed
necessary for their roles.

128 Employees are
required to provide proof of
renewal of their
licenseltickets.

Outdated legislative compliance
mandatory training and/or qualifications

Various

As at 31 October 2014
Council records indicate
the following overdue or
outdated cases:

- 32 Fire & Evac

- 403 Cracking the Code
- 5 Confined Space

- 6CPR

- 6 Safe Working Near
Exposed Live Parts

- 1 Self-Contained
Breathing Apparatus

- 14 Traffic Management
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Legislative Compliance Matter

%
Completed

Due Date Comments

- 3 Power of Entry

- 5 Apply First Aid -
Initial/Refresher

- 5Low Voltage

CPR Refresher

3. ACHIEVEMENT OF CAPITAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET AND

APPROVED TIMEFRAME

No capital projects are relevant to the Workforce and Strategy Section.

4. ACHIEVEMENT OF OPERATIONAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET

AND APPROVED TIMEFRAME

As at period ended October 2014 — 33.3% of year elapsed.

Project

Explanation

Award Modernisation

On 8 October the Leadership Team and Workforce & Strategy
specialists provided a presentation to all employees in three
sessions at the Pilbeam Theatre. The presentation covered
aspects of the new Modern Award and various matters for the
upcoming Certified Agreement negotiations.

Certified Agreement
Negotiations

The CA Debrief Team which comprises of the Leadership Team
and Workforce & Strategy specialists have held numerous
meetings to develop the Council’'s Log of Claims which is in the
format of a new Certified Agreement. Negotiations with the unions
and delegates officially commenced on 29 October, and further
meetings have been scheduled. A communications for staff has
been developed and has commenced.

Complaint
Management
Framework review

The responsibility for the management of all Administration Action
Complaints, Crime & Conduct Commission related matters,
including all complaints and enquiries has been transferred from
Governance Support to Workforce & Strategy. An entire review of
Council’'s complaint management framework has commenced
including preventative strategies for fraud and corruption. Council
has commenced consultation with the Crime and Conduct
Commission to arrange a Section 40 agreement which will
streamline and modernise processes between the two
organisations.

WHS Management
System

A suitable system has been identified and is at the purchasing
stage. Council stakeholders will work with product provider to
develop an integration/implementation plan. This will include
programing the system to match Council’s structure/positions,
processes etc. Training will then be provided for
administrators/key uses and flow through to the workforce. It is
expected the system with be implemented by the end of January
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2015.

Infringement Notice
Policy documents

Policy has been finalised and was presented to Performance &
Service Committee 26 August 14. Subordinate documents to this
policy will be the Infringement Notice Administration Procedure,
and an Enforcement Strategy. Both of these subordinate
documents are yet to be finalised by the relevant units. It is
anticipated that this will be completed in December.
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5. DELIVERY OF SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL'’S

ADOPTED SERVICE LEVELS

Current
Service Delivery Standard Target Month’s
Performance

Recruitment positions finalised within 30 working days (refer 100% 100%
Graph 1 below)
Policies reviewed within 10 working days 100% 95%
Acknoyv!edge job applications Wlth_ln 2 working days of the 100% 100%
advertising close date. (as per policy/procedure)
Employee pays processed and paid within 3 working days 100% 100%
after the period end date
Payroll accuracy 100% 99.38%
Hazard Inspections completed as per the adopted Matrix 100% 100%

Non-compliance of Policy reviews due to shortage of staff in the Corporate Improvement and
Strategy Section. The section is now fully staffed.

40 -

Average Recruitment Timeframes

= R ecruitment Target

—i— Average Recruitment Timeframe

W

No. of Days

10

=

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month
Establishment
Establishment 1Jan 14 September 14 October 14
FTE Positions FTE Positions FTE Positions
Workforce & Strategy 30.05 32.44 32.44
Council 838.9 835.86 834.86

FTE Positions is the total full time equivalent positions approved and recorded in Aurion
excluding casual positions and including approved vacancies.

Changes to Workforce & Strategy Establishment
e 1 x Business Administration Trainee positions re-established. (The October report
noted that this position had been withdrawn and removed from the establishment.

Due to the resignation of an employee in Payroll and a realignment of resources the

position has now been re-established with no impact on budget and a slight increase

in FTE).

The FTE positions of 834.86 as at October 2014 include the following apprentices and

trainees across Council:

Apprentices

Trainees

15

11
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Changes to Council Establishment
Decrease

¢ 1 x Healthy Communities Project Officer position from Parks Recreation abolished
due to the cessation of the allocated funding.

o 1 x Service Delivery & Asset Engineer position in Regional Services Directorate.
Following 2 unsuccessful attempts to recruit for this position a business decision was
made to engage a consultant on a limited time basis to undertake the project work
identified.

Increase

e 1 x Technical Officer within Engineering Services created for a temporary period of 6

months due to an employee taking unpaid leave.

FTE Positions (excluding Casuals & including Vacant Positions)
The following graph shows approved full time equivalent positions. These figures include
vacant positions but exclude casuals. The percentage split is 56% internal and 44% external.

FTE Positions

200

800

700

600

[ Internal
C—JExternal

500
400

T otal

200 +

100 +

1Jan Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Casual Hours — October 2014

There are currently a total of 54 casuals actively employed by Council of which 47 were
engaged during the reporting period. The engaged casual employees collectively have
worked the total number of 2296.07 hours during the month of October.

Total Casual Hours

2350 A /._.__.

2150

1950

1750 /././ \.

1550

1350 /./ —8— Total Hours

1150 Worked

Total Number of Hours

950
750

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Month
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Casual Hours by Section — September 2014

The following list shows the total number of hours worked by casual employees by Section
and Unit in the reporting period. The casual hours data was unavailable at the time of the
September report publication and is now available.

Section

Unit

Commentary

No. of hours

Arts & Heritage

Art Gallery

Casuals utilized for exhibition
pack-up/installation and
preparation; exhibition launch
for Gold Award and Creative
Generations exhibitions. There
was also a private function
after hours that required a
casual staff member

79.75

Arts & Heritage

Heritage Services

Casuals used to staff Shearing
Shed Function Centre - These
are Wedding functions or
morning teas which the hirer
pays a Venue hire fee, cost of
food as per our wedding
packages.

313

Arts & Heritage

Venue Operations

The theatre was booked every
day during September on
average of 12 hrs per day.
Casual staff were required to
work to ensure we were
compliant with working hours &
fatigue management of fellow
crew members. There was
also many external events at
other venues within our unit
that also required tech &
operations staff. As always,
casual staff recoveries were at
a high percentage.

790.75

Communities &
Facilities

City Child Care Centre

Hours used to cover annual and
sick leave for permanent staff
as staff to child ratios must be
maintained for the Centre to
operate

408.75

Communities &
Facilities

Client Services

Hours used to cover annual and
sick leave, RDOs, and some
Saturday coverage for branch

316.5

Communities &
Facilities

Facilities

Casual hours used to cover
annual leave for permanent
cleaning staff and Saturday
cleaning of Library

117.4

Parks

Parks Recreation
Services

To cover staff absences —
away at training, annual leave
& suitable duties plan

115.9

Local Laws

Support Services

Insufficient administration
officer allocation to undertake
processing of dog registrations
renewals

32

Governance Support

Executive Support

Relief required due to absence
of key staff in Committee
Support and workload could
not be deferred

134

TOTAL

2308.05
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The above casual hours by employment type includes the following HERO hours.

Section Unit No. of hours
Local Laws Support Services 32
Governance Support Executive Support 134
TOTAL 166

Casual Hours by Section — October 2014
The following list shows the total number of hours worked by casual employees by Section
and Unit in the reporting period.

Section Unit Commentary No. of hours

Arts & Heritage Art Gallery Casuals utilized for exhibition 74.5
pack-up / installation and
preparation for Creative
Generations and Reality in
flames exhibitions; program
preparation for forthcoming
exhibition Snap! Crocodile
Culture

Arts & Heritage Heritage Services Casuals used to staff Shearing 228.25
Shed Function Centre - These
are Wedding functions or
morning teas which the hirer
pays a Venue hire fee, cost of
food as per our wedding
packages.

Arts & Heritage Venue Operations October had many back to 1074.75
back touring & local shows
which required large numbers
of crew.

Casual staff were required to
work during this period, across
multiple venues, to ensure we
were compliant with breaks &
managing fatigue
appropriately.

We also supplied technical
staff to Gladstone
Entertainment Centre, as they
had similar shows touring their
venue, with less base staff. A
very large percentage of
casual labour was recovered
by way of on-charge to the
client, to reduce the liability on

council.
Communities & City Child Care Centre | Hours used to cover annual 319
Facilities and sick leave for permanent

staff as staff to child ratios
must be maintained for the
Centre to operate

Communities & Client Services Hours used to cover annual 178.42
Facilities and sick leave, RDOs, and

some Saturday coverage for

branch
Communities & Facilities Casual hours used to cover 38.85
Facilities RDOs and sick leave for

cleaners and Saturday
cleaning of Library

Parks Parks Recreation To cover staff absences — 257.55
Services away at training, annual leave
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Section Unit Commentary No. of hours
& suitable duties plan
Corporate & Customer Service Customer Service training 145
Technology refresher to retain/provide new
skills — 2 x HERO
Governance Support Executive Support Communications officer 42.75

resigned relief required due to
projects in progress & unit
work load

Fitzroy River Water FRW Administration Staff assigned from Council 67.5
HERO program to fill void
created by FRW Trainee who
was able to secure permanent
employment in another Council
Section. FRW relies on its
trainee to assist with general
admin duties and processing
of rebates, backup support to
private works and meter
reading admin, and job
dispatch function. Currently
this staff member is also
tracking down each resident in
the Mount Morgan Dam
Failure Impact Area that did
not respond to FRW mail outs
or media campaign.

TOTAL 2296.07

The above casual hours by employment type includes the following HERO hours.

Section Unit No. of hours
Fitzroy River Water FRW Administration 67.5
Governance Support Executive Support 21
Parks Parks Recreation Services 36.25
TOTAL 124.75
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FINANCIAL MATTERS

Financial performance as expected for reporting period.

End of Month General Ledger - (Operating Only) - WORKFORCE & STRATEGY

M_CD As At End Of October

Report Run: 12-Mow-2014 11:12:17 Excludes Nat Accs: 2802 2814 2917 2024

Adopted Adopted Budget ¥TD Commit + oOn target
Budget {Pro Rata YTD} ¥TD Actual Actual Variance
$ 13 $ 13 % 33.3% of Year Gone
WORKFORCE & STRATEGY
Workforce & Strategy
2 - Expenzes 28510 109,537 115,127 116,807 6% x
3 - Transfer [ Overhead Allocation a a 277 277 0% x
Total Unit: Workforce & Strategy 328,670 T08,537 115,404 TIT, 084 36% x
Corporate Improvement & Strategy
1 - Revenues (3,500 (1,167 (1,212 1,212 35% v
2 - Expenzes 477 543 159,214 130,681 139,681 29% v
3 - Transfer [ Overhead Allocation 13500 4,500 3,365 3,365 25% v
Total Unit: Corporate Improvement & Strategy 87,643 162,548 132,834 TH1,834 29% v
Human Resources
2 - Expenzes 1,712,914 570,871 500,678 502,574 20% v
3 - Transfer [ Overhead Alocation g,700 2,800 5,093 5,093 SO% x
Total Unit: Human Resources 1,721,614 573,877 505,771 508,068 3% 4
Safety & Training
1 - Revenues (37,0007 (12,333) (23,509 (23509) F4% v
2 - Expenses 1,221 316 407,105 316,428 421,904 35% x
3 - Transfer [ Overhead Allocation 63,000 21,667 16,976 16,978 26% d
Total Unit: Safety & Training 1,249,316 416,439 309,707 415,183 33% v
Grand Total: 3,787,183 1,262,394 1,063,717 1,182,163 31% v
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CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT -
MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT

Corporate and Technology Monthly
Report - October 2014

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 3
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MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT
CORPORATE & TECHNOLOGY SECTION
Period Ended October 2014

VARIATIONS, ISSUES AND INNOVATIONS

Section Update

RTI / IP Application Status:

Three new applications were received under the Right to Information Act, two were
completed, leaving one outstanding application. All applications were completed within
legislated timeframes. No documents were released administratively this month and no
external reviews were received. There are three external reviews outstanding. All current
applications are progressing in accordance with legislative timeframes.

Innovations
Nil to report

Improvements / Deterioration in Levels of Services or Cost Drivers
Nil to report
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LINKAGES TO OPERATIONAL PLAN

1. COMPLIANCE WITH CUSTOMER SERVICE REQUESTS

The response times for completing the predominant customer requests in the reporting period for October 2014 are as below:

Current Month NEW

Avg Duration

TOTAL . Avg Avg Avg Avg
Balance C_Zompleted Request INCOMPLETE Under Long | Completion Completion | Completion | Completion (days) Completion
in Current Term Standard . . . 12 Months :
B/F Mth REQUESTS I W) Time (days) | Time (days) | Time (days) o — Time (days)
: 1
Received|Completed| BALANCE Current Mth | 6 Months 12 Months incomplete)
Accounts Payable Enquiry 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0.00 1.75 1.20 0.55 0.00
Bookings Enquiry 3 3 4 4 0 0 3 0.50 2.58 2.28 1.49 2.25
Insurance: Mower / Slasher /| 1 3 2 3 0 90 7.50 24.00 31.36 23.94 21.33
Whipper / Snipper
Insurance: Personal 31 7 3 0 27 3 120 0.00 3.83 4.38 95.55 0.00
Accident / Injury
Insurance: Public Liability /
Property Damage Public 6 5 6 6 1 0 90 4.67 7.03 12.11 15.24 2.22
Property
Leased Premises - General
Enquiry 1 0 2 2 1 0 5 2.00 1.62 £95.96 3.63 2.75
Rates Searches 15 15 150 142 7 0 3 1.73 1.72 1.66 1.47 1.77
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2. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

INCLUDING SAFETY, RISK AND OTHER LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

Safety Statistics

The safety statistics for the reporting period are:

SECOND QUARTER
Oct Nov Dec
Number of Lost Time Injuries 2
Number of Days Lost Due to Injury 26
Total Number of Incidents Reported 2
Number of Incomplete Hazard 1
Inspections
Risk Management Summary
Section Risk Register (excludes risks accepted/ALARP)
Current . %
Potential Risk Risk FUIE Sl & (Rsis LUz Compl Comments
; Treatment Plans Date
Rating eted
Corporate Recordkeeping The Records Archiving, On hold due to higher
software (ECM) doesn't meet Retention and Disposal project priorities.
strategic records (RARRD) project ECM upgrade
management requirements in commenced in 2012 to planned for early 2015
relation f[o systematic _ High deve_lop a corporate TBA 300 | MY !ncIUQe
electronic records archival solution to cover functionality to better
and disposal resulting in eRecords (including facilitate the archive
failure to dispose/archive more effective and disposal functions
eRecords. hardcopy disposal for electronic records.
recording).
Failure to have an efficient Implement the Section Registers
and effective Enterprise Risk Enterprise Risk adopted Sep 14
Management system Management ;
integrated and embedded Framework to cater for CR:orporate RISkh dul
through the whole of Council , a consistent approach Dec egister on schedule
S ) High ) 85% | for adoption Dec 14
resulting in ineffective to risk management 14
decision making having throughout the
strategic, financial, legal, organisation.
compliance, safety and
service delivery impacts.
Operational degradation or Commence planning Currently assessing
failure of Council’'s Two-way and implement a available solutions
radio communications system replacement RRC leading to system
resulting in failed regional regional two-way radio design.
communications for daily communications
operations and emergency system. Two stage
disaster management. High | plan-1. Replace the TBD 5%
Rockhampton City
Two-way system. 2.
Integrated regional
solution taking in the
Gracemere
infrastructure.
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Legislative Compliance & Standards

%
Legislative Compliance Matter Due Date Comments
Completed
A local government must review its To be completed
procurement policy annually. 30/06/15 0% annually in June.

3. ACHIEVEMENT OF CAPITAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET AND
APPROVED TIMEFRAME

Expected

Start Budget YTD actual (incl

Estimate committals)

Project Completion  Status

CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM

FLEET (CP440)

Fleet Asset Renewal

P 1/07/2014 | 30/06/2015 | Ongoing | $5,887,500 $3,934,811
rogram

Comment: YTD represents 67% of budget expenditure and is made up of actuals and committals.
Budget includes 2013/14 carryover budget.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (CP230)

IT Asset Renewal & Upgrade
Program

1/07/2014 | 30/06/2015 | Ongoing | $1,664,059 $848,405

Comment: YTD represents 51% of budget expenditure and includes committals. Budget includes
2013/14 carryover budget.

BUSINESS SUPPORT & DEVELOPMENT (CP630)

Property Sales 1/07/2014 | 30/06/2015 | Ongoing |(-$1,360,838 -$914,982

Comment:

4.  ACHIEVEMENT OF OPERATIONAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET AND
APPROVED TIMEFRAME

As at period ended October — 33.3% of year elapsed.

Project 2011/15 AEUE o SUeITIEl Explanation
J Budget | (incl. committals) | expended P
Customer Service After $65 000 $17 085 26% Propel after hours call
Hours Operation ' ' ° centre service.
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_ Project Start c Projlec_t % c
Project Date ompletion Completed omments
Date
7 of 14
Implementation of OIC {;C?énmrgirt]ggnmi 5
RTI/ IP Review April 2014 | June 2015 70% P! i . orod
Recommendations. partially complete
and 5 remaining
underway.
Review of Councils Post de-
Contract Manual (Supply June 2014 June 2015 10% amalgamation review
Chain Website). and update.
g‘;?;r:]itr;?cnazgg ICT Plan to include IT
Technology Strategic July 2014 Dec 2014 85% Mobility, eServices
Plan 2015-20 and Corporate
development System Consolidation.

5. DELIVERY OF SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL’S

ADOPTED SERVICE LEVELS

Service Delivery Standard Target Peﬁg::r?;rgce
IT support services provided within service levels outlined in 95% 93%
the IT Service Catalogue.
Ensure availability of system up-time during core business 99% 100%
hours (excluding planned outages).
Maintain the ratio of customer queries satisfied by Customer 80% 820
Service Officers, without referral to departments. 0 0
Customer Service Call Centre answering 75% of incoming 7506 69%
calls within 45 seconds.
Process records on the day of receipt as per Recordkeeping 0 0
Charter. 95% 100%
Proc_ess_ nght_to_Inforr_natlpnllnformatlon Privacy (RTI/IP) 100% 100%
applications within legislative timeframes.
Manage centrgllsed 'tenQerlng and contracting functhns in 100% 100%
accordance with legislative requirements and Council policy.
Ensure supplier payments are made within stated trading 90% 9204
terms.
Ensure _staff purchasing activity is compliant with legislation 100% 100%
and policy.
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: : Current

Service Delivery Standard Target Performance
Ensure top 100 suppliers by dollar value under formal 90% 94%
purchasing agreements (contracts).
Maximise Council property occupancy rates. 98% 100%
Ensure tenanted properties in any month, have current lease 80% 88%
agreements and public liability insurance.
Process insurance claims within procedural timeframes. 100% 100%
Maintenance of the risk monitoring and reporting regime by
providing a quarterly risk report to the Council and o 0
Leadership Team on all current high and very high risks 100% 100%
assessed as not ALARP (unacceptable).

Fleet Services
Ensure internal plant hire operations deliver budgeted net surplus.

Plant Hire Operations Recoveries

10000000

2000000

5000000 /
7000000 /

£000000 /

5000000 "/

/ ——Budget
4000000

// —e—"r'2ar to
2000000

// Date
2000000 .//_(/
1000000

-

° Jul I Aug I Sep I Oct I Mow I Dec I Jan I Feb I Mar I Apr I May I Jun
Plant Hire Operations Budget (Surplus) $ 8,823,500
Year to Date (Surplus) $3,726,922

Procurement & Logistics
Contracts Awarded for Oct: Qty 3

11331 — Construction of Blower Support Structure at South Rockhampton Sewage
Treatment Plant — Hutchinson Builders $114,580.00

11265 — Lucas Street Pump Station Upgrade — Rocky Industrial Controls $480,874.00

11376 — Engineering Assistance to the Regional Services Department — AECOM Australia
Pty Ltd - Schedule of Rates
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Customer Requests Completed Monthly & Top 5 Customer Requests

January February March April May June July August September October November December
Requests Logged 5133 8054 5808 3678 3540 3023 3733 3517 3687 3415
Same month 4372 4594 5092 2751 2792 2450 3077 2830 2959 2630
Completed
ar
s completed same 85% 82% 86% 75% 9% 80% 82% 80% 81% 78%
month
CW”":‘:’:;"“' for 5077 5590 6060 3486 3858 3037 3925 3422 3383 3325
Total Pending 2218 2205 1999 2464 2073 2027 1627 1723 1919 1944
‘Wileak OGrawn OPlanner Massies OiPlanner O'Planner InfEng InfEng Meter Mice InFEnq
OIPlan OIFlan TiTrim \WAnimal Wileak WBnimal ‘e Bnimal OIPlarner OFlanner OFlan
Top 6 Requests for MISJIR Patholes Wil eak Rates TiTrim Wi Leak DPlan wilinimal CiDec Fark Gen
Month Wihnimal WiLeak Wihnimal InfEnq CoOA Meter Mice Cdec TiTiim Park Gen Rates
Bin RRC Clec Clec Cdec Bin RRC Facilities Mgt ‘Wileak ‘wileak Wileak THTrim
Total uncompleted customer requests up to 3 months old: 1402 Conquest Work Order & Investigation Long Term up to 3 months old: 445
Total uncompleted customer requests between 3 to 6§ months old: 225 Conquest Work Order & Investigation Long Term between 3 to 6 months old: 114
Total uncompleted customer requests greater than & months old: 34 Conquest Work Order & Investigation Long Term greater than 6 months old: 191

Hequeseda (ask of AcUon Nas Deen CoOmpIetea LNOK [USt WOrK Oraer ralsed), of COMPIAING Nas Deen INYesIgaed, aciuon (aKken ana comesponaance
Regquest Completed:

Finalicad

Conquest Work Order: A Work Order has been raised for maintenance, repair or future planned action.

Investigation Long Term: Requested task, action or complaint assigned to internal or external investigation, may include, but not limited to: Insurance, Planning, Legal, Civil or Domestic matter

Inf Eng - Infringement Enguiry -
Lacal Laws

TiTrim = Tree Trim

Key:| ParkGen-Parks General ‘wifinimal - W andering Animal

DiPlan - Duty Planner ‘wleak - Water Leak

Cl0ec - Commissioner of
Declarations

Bin RRC - Feplace Bin RRC Rate- Rates Enguiry
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FINANCIAL MATTERS

Operational Budget Status for month ending October 2014
Adopted

ABduodptgg Budget (Pro  YTD Actual YTP&??aT't Var On target
9 Rata YTD)
33.3% of Year
$ $ $ $ % Gone
CORPORATE AND TECHNOLOGY

IT Services

1 - Revenues (100,658) (33,553) (70,959) (70,959) 70% v’

2 - Expenses 5,124,996 1,708,332 2,138,129 2,583,355 50% 4

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 21,525 7,175 8,023 8,023 37% X

Total Unit: IT Services 5,045,863 1,681,954 2,075,193 2,520,419 50% X
Coordinator - Technology Infra

2 - Expenses 195,261 65,087 49,110 49,110 25% v’

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 (2,386) (2,386) 0% v’

Total Unit: Coordinator - Technology Infra 195,261 65,087 46,724 46,724 24% v’
Records Management

1 - Revenues (12,000) (4,000) (4,699) (4,699) 39% v’

2 - Expenses 720,387 240,129 257,011 258,021 36% X

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 16 16 0% X

Total Unit: Records Management 708,387 236,129 252,328 253,339 36% x
Property & Insurance

1 - Revenues (599,041) (199,680) (215,866) (215,866) 36% v’

2 - Expenses 2,609,865 869,955 1,938,130 1,988,961 76% X

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 9,738 3,246 2,963 2,963 30% v’

Total Unit: Property & Insurance 2,020,562 673,521 1,725,227 1,776,057 88% x
Fleet Services

1 - Revenues (252,000) (84,000) (100,035) (99,637) 40% v’

2 - Expenses 13,396,080 4,465,360 4,674,623 5,426,006 41% X

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation (16,562,000) (5,520,667) (5,843,751) (5,843,751) 35% v’

Total Unit: Fleet Services (3,417,920) (1,139,307) (1,269,163) (517,383) 15% X
Corporate & Technology

2 - Expenses 665,201 221,734 194,161 224,350 34% b4

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 750 750 0% X

Total Unit: Corporate & Technology 665,201 221,734 194,911 225,100 34% X
Procurement & Logistics

1 - Revenues (850) (283) 131 530 -62% X

2 - Expenses 1,429,848 476,616 461,495 462,614 32% v’

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 35,086 11,695 9,581 9,581 27% v’

Total Unit: Procurement & Logistics 1,464,084 488,028 471,208 472,724 32% v’
Customer Service

1 - Revenues (262,000) (87,333) (74,698) (74,698) 29% > 4

2 - Expenses 1,719,530 573,177 541,567 546,168 32% v’

3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 198 198 0% X

Total Unit: Customer Service 1,457,530 485,843 467,067 471,668 32% v’

Grand Total: 8,138,968 2,712,989 3,963,495 5,248,648 64% X
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9.4 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR GOVERNANCE SUPPORT UNIT
FOR OCTOBER 2014

File No: 1830

Attachments: 1. Operational Performance Report for
Governance Support Unit, October 2014

Authorising Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer

Author: Shane Turner - Manager Governance Support

SUMMARY

Manager Governance Support presenting the monthly Performance Report for the
Governance Support Unit for the period ending 31 October 2014.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

THAT the monthly Performance Report for the Governance Support Unit for October 2014
be received.

BACKGROUND

Council has requested that each unit manager provide a performance report on a monthly
basis to Council.

The report will contain updates on matters such as staffing issues, financial matters, key
projects etc.

The report for the period ending Friday 31 October 2014 is attached for the Councillor’s
information.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
REPORT FOR GOVERNANCE
SUPPORT UNIT FOR OCTOBER 2014

Operational Performance Report for
Governance Support Unit, October
2014

Meeting Date: 25 November 2014

Attachment No: 1
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MONTHLY OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE REPORT
GOVERNANCE SUPPORT SECTION
Period Ended 31 October 2014

VARIATIONS, ISSUES AND INNOVATIONS

Innovations

The Governance Support unit is investigating a change to the media release process. The
changes are designed to establish the effectiveness of Council's media releases by
monitoring if the release or statement was picked up or not and was the reported tone of the
article positive, neutral or negative. We are in the early stages of the process change at
present and will provide more detail in due course.

We are also investigating a more effective process for our Facebook posts and responses
but again only very initial discussion have been undertaken.

Improvements / Deterioration in Levels of Services or Cost Drivers
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LINKAGES TO OPERATIONAL PLAN

1. COMPLIANCE WITH CUSTOMER SERVICE REQUESTS

The response times for completing the predominant customer requests in the reporting period for October 2014 are as below:

I3 All Monthly Requests - Traffic Light _(exc Conquest].pdf - Adobe Acrobat Pro . — — . . — - — — T . R — =
File Edit View Window Help =
Boere- | B @2 8| @zl costomize = | [T}
Sz | &0 ‘ (=) @ ‘ = Tools Sign | Comment
(L] . . b=
All Monthly Requests (Priority 3)
H __A/ L = H L]
- Rockhamp 5N Governance 'Traffic Light' report
Regional 'Council October 2014
Lz
= Current Month NEW e
Requests . Avg Avg Avg i
TOTAL Under Completion 5 5 . Duration
’ Completed e Completion Completion Completion vs) L
Balance BIF | Current REQUESTS ,::er;%;;{,—':" 5:::3:;“ ;"“P ":a':'a: T'ﬁ'“';’ (d;:’S’ 1:;";“’?{57 12 Months
Mth Received Completed BALANCE urren onths onths (complete and
incomplete)

Media All Enquiries 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 000 | 715 |@ 542 025

Citizenship Request/Enquiry 0 0 0 (1] 0 0 5 0.00 1.38 3.19 0.57

Administrative Action Complaints 3 il 0 0 2 0 2 000 (@ 4017 | @ 48.00 0.00

2

Committee Support - il das etc 1] 0 (4] 0 (4] 0 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CEO General Request 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 1.00 i 175 E 2 625 0.50 W

Councillor General Enquiry 1 0 2 0 = 0 2 000 | 543 |® 10.18 6.63

Mayor's Personal (Mayor's General Info) 4 1 5 4 4 0 2 L ] 325 i 426 [ ] 587 0.93

1042 M | |

17/11/2014 | |

Comments & Additional Information

A shortage of staff at different times across all sections of Governance Support has impacted the figures. However are now done to
one vacant position
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2. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

INCLUDING SAFETY, RISK AND OTHER LEGISLATIVE MATTERS

Safety Statistics

The safety statistics for the reporting period are:

SECOND QUARTER
Oct Nov Dec
Number of Lost Time Injuries 0
Number of Days Lost Due to Injury 0
Total Number of Incidents Reported 3
Number of Incomplete Hazard 0
Inspections
Risk Management Summary
Example from Section Risk Register (excludes risks accepted/ALARP)
Current Future Control & %
Potential Risk Risk Risk Treatment Due Date | Compl Comments
Rating Plans eted
Legislative Compliance & Standards
N : %
Legislative Compliance Matter Due Date Comments
Completed
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3.

ACHIEVEMENT OF CAPITAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET AND
APPROVED TIMEFRAME AND OTHER UNIT INFORMATION FOR OCTOBER
2014

No capital projects are relevant to the Governance Support Section; other activity
undertaken by the unit for October is listed below.

Media & Communications Section:

Media Releases 19

Media Opportunities 3

Facebook likes 5,934

Facebook post reach for October 62,613

Communication Projects being undertaken by the Communications Section:

2" WW Memorial Aquatic Centre Opening
ANZAC Day Centenary Celebrations

Youth Forum

Mount Archer Activation Master Plan

Plain Language Guide

Australia Day Awards

Certified Agreement progress communications
New Council Intranet project

Community Engagement Projects for October:

4.

Preparation of Mount Archer Activation master Plan
Rockhampton CBD revitalisation draft survey
Survey on the Banner poles in Gracemere

ACHIEVEMENT OF OPERATIONAL PROJECTS WITHIN ADOPTED BUDGET
AND APPROVED TIMEFRAME

As at period ended 31 October 2014 -- 33% of year elapsed.

Revised Actual % budget

Project Budget | (incl. committals) | expended

Explanation

5.

DELIVERY OF SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL’S
ADOPTED SERVICE LEVELS

Adopted/Operational Service Level Standards & Performance

Current

Service Level Target
Performance

Please note the service levels depicted in the above table are operational standards only
and have not been formally adopted by Council.
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FINANCIAL MATTERS

The overall financial performance of the unit to date is virtually on track with expectations.
There have been a number of staff movements / absences during September & October that
have effected wage expenses as temporary staff have needed to be utilised to enable the
unit to meet required work outputs.

End of Month General Ledger - (Operating Only) - GOVERNANCE SUPPORT

R\R"-D As At End Of October

Report Run: 17-Now-2014 09:44:58 Excludes Nat Accs: 2802,2914,2917,2924
Adopted Adopted Budget YTD Commit +

X On target
Budget (Pro Rata YTD) YTD Actual Actual Variance
$ $ $ $ % 33.3%of Year Gone
GOVERNANCE SUPPORT
Executive Support
1- Revenues (24,000) (8,000) (7.483) (7,483) 31% *
2 - Expenses 2,126,177 708,726 761,475 773,747 36% x
3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 110,000 36,667 30,914 30,914 28% v
Total Unit: Executive Support 2,212,177 737,392 784,906 797,178 36% x
Marketing & Engagement
1 - Revenues 0 0 (2,727) (2,727) 0% v
2 - Expenses 728,690 242,897 196,905 283,175 39% %
3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 19,400 6,467 606 606 3% v
Total Unit: Marketing & Engagement 748,090 249,363 194,783 281,053 38% *
Office of the CEO
2 - Expenses 507,848 169,283 91,289 91,289 18% v
Total Unit: Office of the CEO 507,848 169,283 91,289 91,289 18% v
Ethics & Integrity
2 - Expenses 96,037 32,012 1,227 1,227 1% v
3 - Transfer / Overhead Allocation 0 0 1,961 1,961 0% *
Total Unit: Ethics & Integrity 96,037 32,012 3,188 3,188 3% v
Grand Total: 3,564,152 1,188,051 1,074,167 1,172,709 33% v
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10 NOTICES OF MOTION

Nil
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11 URGENT BUSINESS/QUESTIONS

Urgent Business is a provision in the Agenda for members to raise questions or matters of a
genuinely urgent or emergent nature, that are not a change to Council Policy and can not be
delayed until the next scheduled Council or Committee Meeting.
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12 CLOSED SESSION

In accordance with the provisions of section 275 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, a
local government may resolve to close a meeting to the public to discuss confidential items,
such that its Councillors or members consider it necessary to close the meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the meeting be closed to the public to discuss the following items, which are
considered confidential in accordance with section 275 of the Local Government Regulation
2012, for the reasons indicated.

13.1 Legal Matters as at 31 October 2014

This report is considered confidential in accordance with section 275(1)(f), of the
Local Government Regulation 2012, as it contains information relating to starting or
defending legal proceedings involving the local government.

13.2 Building and Development Issues - Larnach Street

This report is considered confidential in accordance with section 275(1)(h), of the
Local Government Regulation 2012, as it contains information relating to other
business for which a public discussion would be likely to prejudice the interests of the
local government or someone else, or enable a person to gain a financial advantage.

13.3 Monthly Report to Council from Chief Executive Officer for period ending
Monday 17 November 2014

This report is considered confidential in accordance with section 275(1)(h), of the
Local Government Regulation 2012, as it contains information relating to other
business for which a public discussion would be likely to prejudice the interests of the
local government or someone else, or enable a person to gain a financial advantage.
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13 CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS

13.1 LEGAL MATTERS AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2014

File No: 1392
Attachments: 1. Legal Matters - October 2014
Authorising Officer: Tracy Sweeney - Manager Workforce and Strategy
Ross Cheesman - General Manager Corporate Services
Author: Kerrie Barrett - Coordinator Corporate Improvement &
Strategy

This report is considered confidential in accordance with section 275(1)(f), of the Local
Government Regulation 2012, as it contains information relating to starting or defending
legal proceedings involving the local government.

SUMMARY

Coordinator Corporate Improvement & Strategy presenting an update of current legal
matters that Council is involved in as at 31 October 2014.
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13.2 BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT ISSUES - LARNACH STREET

File No: 8025

Attachments: Nil

Authorising Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer

This report is considered confidential in accordance with section 275(1)(h), of the Local
Government Regulation 2012, as it contains information relating to other business for which
a public discussion would be likely to prejudice the interests of the local government or
someone else, or enable a person to gain a financial advantage.

SUMMARY

There is a long running neighbourhood dispute. This report summarises the dispute and the
options available for Council.
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13.3 MONTHLY REPORT TO COUNCIL FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FOR
PERIOD ENDING MONDAY 17 NOVEMBER 2014

File No: 1830

Attachments: 1. Monthly Report November 2014
Authorising Officer: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer
Author: Evan Pardon - Chief Executive Officer

This report is considered confidential in accordance with section 275(1)(h), of the Local
Government Regulation 2012, as it contains information relating to other business for which
a public discussion would be likely to prejudice the interests of the local government or
someone else, or enable a person to gain a financial advantage.

SUMMARY

Chief Executive Officer presenting monthly report to Council for the period ending 17
November 2014.
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14 CLOSURE OF MEETING
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